
 

_____ 
625 Burnell Street, Napa CA  94559 

 
 
 

Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) 
 

Board of Directors 
 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, April 16, 2014 
1:30 PM 

 
NCTPA/NVTA Conference Room 

625 Burnell Street 
Napa CA 94559 

 
General Information 

 
All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NCTPA 
Board of Directors are posted on our website at www.nctpa.net/agendas-minutes/12 at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting and will be available for public inspection, on and after at the time of 
such distribution, in the office of the Secretary of the NCTPA Board of Directors, 625 Burnell 
Street, Napa, California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., except for NCTPA holidays. Materials distributed to the present members of the Board at the 
meeting will be available for public inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the members of 
the NCTPA Board or staff and after the public meeting if prepared by some other person.  
Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does not include materials 
which are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 
6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22. 
 
Members of the public may speak to the Board on any item at the time the Board is considering 
the item.  Please complete a Speaker’s Slip, which is located on the table near the entryway, and 
then present the slip to the Board Secretary.  Also, members of the public are invited to address 
the Board on any issue not on today’s agenda under Public Comment.  Speakers are limited to 
three minutes. 
 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a 
disability.  Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact 
Karrie Sanderlin, NCTPA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8631 during regular business hours, at 
least 48 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 
 
This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NCTPA website at www.nctpa.net, click on 
Minutes and Agendas – NCTPA Board or go to www.nctpa.net/agendas-minutes/12 
 
Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items they are approximate and intended as estimates 
only, and may be shorter or longer, as needed. 
 
  

http://www.nctpa.net/agendas-minutes/12
http://www.nctpa.net/
http://www.nctpa.net/agendas-minutes/12


 
ITEMS 
 
1. Call to Order – Chair Keith Caldwell 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 

 
Members: 

 
Joan Bennett          City of American Canyon 
Leon Garcia, Mayor       City of American Canyon 
Chris Canning, Mayor       City of Calistoga 
James Barnes         City of Calistoga 
Scott Sedgley          City of Napa 
Jill Techel, Mayor        City of Napa 
Keith Caldwell         County of Napa 
Bill Dodd           County of Napa 
Ann Nevero, Mayor        City of St. Helena 
Peter White          City of St. Helena 
Lewis Chilton          Town of Yountville 
John F. Dunbar, Mayor      Town of Yountville 
Beth Kahiga          Paratransit Coordinating Council 
 

4. Public Comment 
5. Chairperson’s, Board Members’ and Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

(MTC) Commissioner’s Update 
6. Director’s Update 
7. Caltrans’ Update 
 
Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items they are approximate and intended as estimates 
only, and may be shorter or longer, as needed. 
 
8. CONSENT ITEMS (8.1 – 8.5) RECOMMENDATION TIME 

8.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of 
March 19, 2014 (Karrie Sanderlin) 
(Pages 9-14) 
 

APPROVE 1:45 PM 

8.2 Approval of Amendment 1 to the 
Napa County Transportation and 
Planning Agency (NCTPA) 
Agreement No. 12-08 (Janice Killion) 
(Pages 15-19) 
 
Board action will approve 
Amendment 1 to the NCTPA 
Agreement 12-08 between NCTPA 
and Kate Miller, Executive Director. 

 

APPROVE  

  

2



 
 

 

  

8.3 Resolution No. 14-08 Requesting the 
Allocation of FY 2013-14 & 2014-15 
Transportation Development Act 
Article 3 (TDA-3) Pedestrian/Bicycle 
Project Funds from the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) 
(Diana Meehan) (Pages 20-25) 
 
Board action will approve requesting 
the allocation of FY 14/15 
Transportation Development Act 
Article 3 (TDA-3) Pedestrian/Bicycle 
project funds in the amount of 
$312,646 from the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC). 
 

APPROVE  

8.4 Active Transportation Advisory 
Committee Appointments (ATAC) 
(Diana Meehan) (Pages 26-27) 
 
Board action will approve the 
reappointment of Barry Christian to 
the ATAC as the representative for 
the City of American Canyon. 
 

APPROVE  

8.5 Approval to Remit Payment to Veolia 
Transportation for Invoice 12272012-
2 Dated 12/27/2012 (Justin 
Paniagua) (Pages 28-46) 
 
Board action will approve payment of 
the Veolia Transportation invoice 
#12272012-2 dated 12/27/2012 in 
the amount of $25,139.51. 
 

APPROVE  

3



9. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS RECOMMENDATION TIME 

9.1 Napa County Grand Jury 2013-2014 
Final Report Napa County 
Transportation and Planning Agency 
(NCTPA) VINE: Management & 
Ridership for the Future (Kate Miller) 
(Pages 47-79) 
 
Board action will receive the Final 
Napa Grand Jury Report, and 
authorize Chair Caldwell to sign the 
letter to the Superior Court Justice 
Boessenecker responding to the 
report. 
 

RECEIVE/ 
APPROVE 

1:50 PM 

9.2 First Reading of Draft NCTPA FY 
2014-15 Budget (Justin Paniagua) 
(Pages 80-99) 
 
The Board will review and provide 
comment on the FY 2014-15 NCTPA 
annual operating and capital budget 
in the amount of $20,795,400.  
 

INFORMATION/ 
ACTION 

2:30 PM 

9.3 Adoption of Revised NCTPA 
Policies, Practices and Procedures 
Manual Chapter 7: Finance and 
Grants and Rescission of Previous 
Version of Financial Policies 
(Antonio Onorato) (Pages 100-253 
 
Board action will approve the 
NCTPA Policies, Practices and 
Procedures Manual Chapter 7: 
Finance and Grants and rescind the 
previous version of Financial Policies 
 

APPROVE 2:45 PM 

9.4 Resolution No. 14-09 Authorizing the 
Procurement of Financing 
Instruments with Pledge of Future 
Revenues (Antonio Onorato) Pages 

254-264) 
 
Board action will (1) authorize the 
Executive Director to enter into an 
agreement with the Bank of Marin on 
a debt financing instrument and (2) 
approve Resolution 14-09 pledging 
revenues as collateral as a term of 
funding. 
 

APPROVE 3:00 PM 

4



   

9.5 Napa County Transportation and 
Planning Agency (NCTPA) Staffing 
Plan (Kate Miller) (Pages 265-269) 

 
Board action will approve Resolution 
No. 14-10 Resolution for Exception 
to the 180-Day Wait Period; (2) 
Authorize the Executive Director to 
hire Eliot Hurwitz, as a part-time 
extra help, limited-term employee, 
effective July 1, 2014 through June 
30, 2015, for the provisions of 
services related to the preparation of 
the Napa Countywide Transportation 
Plan–Vision 2040: Moving Napa 
Forward, in an amount not to exceed 
$53,684 (960 hours) (3) Approve 
reclassifying the Transportation 
Engineer position from a part-time 
limited term position to a full-time 
FLSA exempt position with an 
annual salary range of $84,777-
$102,412, and (4) Receive an 
update on staffing and new 
positions. 
 

APPROVE 3:15 PM 

9.6 Priority Development Area (PDA) 
Investment and Growth Strategy: 
May Update (Danielle Schmitz) 
(Pages 270-283) 
 
Board action will accept and file the 
PDA Investment and Growth 
Strategy: May 2014 Update.  

 

ACCEPT 
AND FILE 

3:30 PM 

9.7 Legislative Update and State Bill 
Matrix (Kate Miller) (Pages 284-295) 
 
The Board will receive the monthly 
Federal and State Legislative 
Update. 
 

INFORMATION/ 
ACTION 

3:45 PM 

  

5





AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

AVAA Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA’s Congestion Management Agencies 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

FAS  Federal Aid Secondary  

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  

HTF  Highway Trust Fund  

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

NCTPA Napa County Transportation and Planning 
Agency 

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PMS Pavement Management System  

Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 
gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  

RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TCM Transportation Control measure 

7



TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

 Century 

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

8



 

_____ 
625 Burnell Street, Napa CA  94559 

 

April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 8.1 

Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) 

 
Board of Directors 

 
MINUTES 

 
Wednesday, March 19, 2014 

 
ITEMS 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Vice Chair Dunbar called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Vice Chair Dunbar led the salute to the flag. 
 

3. Roll Call 
 
Members Present:                Voting Power 

 
Leon Garcia     City of American Canyon     (2) 
Joan Bennett     City of American Canyon     (2) 
James Barnes    City of Calistoga        (1) 
Chris Canning    City of Calistoga        (1) 
Scott Sedgley     City of Napa          (5) 
Jill Techel      City of Napa          (5) 
Ann Nevero     City of St. Helena        (1) 
Peter White     City of St. Helena        (1) 
John Dunbar     Town of Yountville        (1) 
Margie Mohler    Town of Yountville        (1) 
 

Members Absent: None 
 
Keith Caldwell    County of Napa         (2) 
Bill Dodd      County of Napa         (2) 
 

Non-Voting Member Present: 
 
Beth Kahiga     Paratransit Coordinating Council  (0) 

9



 

Page 2 of 6 

 
4. Public Comment 

 
None.  
 

5. Chairperson’s, Board Members’ and Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) Commissioner’s Update 
 
Board members provided updates on the status of various projects in their 
respective jurisdictions.  
 

6. Director’s Update 
 
Kate Miller, Executive Director 

Reported that April 1st marks the kick off of the Napa Commute Challenge.  The 
Challenge encourages employers and its employees to identify alternative 
means to commute for a three month period between April 1 and June 30.  
NCTPA staff is working with the Solano Napa Commuter Information staff on 
this project.  Board members were encouraged to work with their Council and 
City Managers/Staff to sign up to participate.   
 
Reported that March 24th is Rider Appreciation Day.  A VINE reusable bag will 
be provided free to passengers while supply last. 

 
7. Caltrans’ Update 

 
Ahmad Rahimi, Caltrans, Caltrans, provided an update on the status of various 
projects located throughout the County. 
 
7.1 Hopper Slough Project Presentation 

 
Kelly Hirschberg, Caltrans, made a presentation on the Hopper Sough 
Project.  
 

8. CONSENT ITEMS (8.1 – 8.6) 
 
At the request of Vice Chair Dunbar, Item 8.2 was pulled from Consent for further 
review. 
 
MOTION MOVED by CHILTON, SECONDED by WHITE to APPROVE Consent 
Items 8.1, and 8.3-8.6.  Motion Passed 20-0. 

 
8.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of February 19, 2014 

  

10



 

Page 3 of 6 

 
8.2 Resolution No. 14-06 Amending the Active Transportation Advisory 

Committee (ATAC) By-Laws 
 
Vice Chair Dunbar requested that the following language under Article IV 
Membership, Section 2 (page 19 of the agenda packet), be removed from 
the amended ATAC By-laws.  
 
…In the event that a jurisdiction cannot forward a sufficient number of 
nominees or a nominee does not qualify then a member may be appointed 
by the Board without a nomination from the jurisdiction and without regard 
to the individual's jurisdiction of residence… 
 
MOTION MOVED by CHILTON SECONDED by WHITE to APPROVE, 
Resolution No. 14-06 amending the Active Transportation Advisory 
Committee (ATAC) by-laws, with the removal of the above stated 
language.  Motion Passed 20-0. 
 

8.3 Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) Appointments 
Board action will approve the appointments to fill vacancies on the 
ATAC 
 
Board action approved the appointments of Michael Costanzo to represent 
the County of Napa and Dieter Deiss to represent of the City of Calistoga 
on the ATAC.  

 
8.4 Resolution No. 14-07 Authorizing the Submittal of a Proposition 1B-

California Emergency Management Agency (Cal-EMA) Governor’s 
Office of Homeland Security Grants for FY 2013-14 
 
Board action authorized the submittal a FY 2013-14 Cal-EMA grant 
application in the amount of $9,803 for the purchase of Security Cameras 
on VINE Transit vehicles. 
 

8.5 FY 2013-14 Overall Work Program (OWP) Update  
 
Information Only / No Action Taken 

Provide for review was an update on the FY 2013-14 OWP. 
 

8.6 Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) Member Appointment to the 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
 
Board action approved the appointment of Doug Weir to the Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC) as the PCC representative. 

  

11



 

Page 4 of 6 

 
9. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
9.1 Napa 2015 Countywide Transportation Plan (CWTP) Goals & 

Objectives 
 
Staff reviewed the new set of goals and objectives based upon the 
NCTPA Board feedback at the January 15th retreat and the comments 
received from the NCTPA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)  
 
Genji Schmeder, Napa resident, encouraged the Board to include in the 
CWTP more strategies for developing multimodal systems that will 
encourage the shift in the use of the automobile to alternate modes of 
travel. 
 
MOTION MOVED by CANNING, SECONDED by TECHEL to APPROVE, 
with NEVERO OPPOSSING, the revised goals and objectives in response 
to comments received at the January 15, 2014 2015 Countywide 
Transportation Plan (CWTP) kickoff retreat and to include the comments 
received from the NCTPA Technical Advisory Committee.  Further that the 
CWTP include a preamble which states that all Goals & Objectives carry 
the same weight regardless of their order placement in the CWTP.  
Motion Passed 19-1 
 

9.2 Agreement between the Napa County Transportation and Planning 
Agency (NCTPA) and Urban Transportation Associates 
 
Staff stated that the information provided by the Automatic Passenger 
Counters (APC) will allow the VINE transit to improve service productivity, 
and improve service quality by accessing up-to date, highly accurate and 
comprehensive information to meet our local, state, and federal reporting 
requirements.  APCs are also a planning tool and can provide granular 
data about ridership by route and time of day.  Further, staff advised the 
Board that the staff report was incorrect in that the agreement is for 
purchase and installation of 35 (not 34) APC’s.  The not to exceed amount 
of $255,789 remains the same.  
 
MOTION MOVED by WHITE, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE 
authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Urban 
Transportation Associates (UTA) for the purchase and installation of thirty-
five (35) Automatic Passenger Counters and related hardware in an 
amount not to exceed $255,789. Motion Passed 20-0. 

  

12



 

Page 5 of 6 

 
9.3 Resolution No. 14-08 Authorizing the Procurement of Financing 

Instruments with Pledge of Future Revenues 

 
Board member Chilton requested that this item be tabled and returned to 
the April 16, 2014 meeting for review/approval along with policies and 
procedures outlining specific responsibilities and restrictions for use of the 
line of credit. 
 
MOTION MOVED by CHILTON SECONDED by CANNING to APPROVE, 
tabling the item until the April 16, 2014 meeting when it will returned for 
review/approval along with policies and procedures outlining specific 
responsibilities and restrictions for use of the line of credit.  Motion 
Passed 20-0. 
 

9.4 Legislative Update and State Bill Matrix  
 
Kate Miller, NCTPA Executive Director provided a review of the monthly 
Federal and State Legislative Update. 
 
MOTION MOVED by GARCIA SECONDED by WHITE to APPROVE 
supporting AB 1720 (Bloom D) Vehicles: Bus Gross Weight; AB 2445 
(Chau D) Community Colleges: Transportation Fees; and SB 1433 (Hill D) 
Local Agency Public Construction Act: transit design-build.  Motion 
Passed 20-0. 
 

Janice Killion, NCTPA Legal Counsel, announced that the Board would be 
adjourning to closed session for the two items as noted in the agenda 
(Conference with Real Property Negotiator and Conference with Labor 
Negotiator) and that no reportable action is expected for either item.  
 
Adjourned to Close Session at 3:40 p.m. 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

 
10.1 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government 

Code Section 54956.8) 
 
Property: APN 046-370-024-000 
Agency Negotiator: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Negotiating Parties: Joe Carter, Boca Company 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment 

  

13



 

Page 6 of 6 

 
10.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code 

Section 54957.6) 
 
Agency Designated Representative: 
Keith Caldwell, Chairman 
 
Employee: Executive Director 
 

Adjourned to Open Session at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Janice Killion, NCTPA Legal Counsel, reported there was no reportable action 
associated with either closed session item. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
11.1 Approval of Regular Meeting Date of April 16, 2014 and Adjournment 

 
The next regular meeting will be held Wednesday April 16, 2014 at 1:30 
p.m. 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Vice Chair Chilton at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
______________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NCTPA Board Secretary 

14



April 19, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 8.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM: Janice Killion, NCTPA Legal Counsel 

REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager- Board Secretary, 
Administration, Procurement, & Civil Rights 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment 1 to the Napa County Transportation and 
Planning Agency (NCTPA) Agreement No. NCTPA 12-08 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board approve 
Amendment 1 to the NCTPA Agreement No. NCTPA 12-08 (Attachment 1) amending 
Sections 3.1, 3.2.1, 3.4 and adding Section 3.7. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In June 2012, the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (Employer) 
executed the above-referenced Agreement (Attachment 1) with Catherine (Kate) Miller 
(Employee) outlining the terms and conditions of Employee’s employment with NCTPA.  
The parties now desire to amend the agreement amending Sections 3.1, 3.2.1, 3.4, and 
adding section 3.7. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
  

 

15

mailto:ksanderlin@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                     Wednesday July 20, 2011 
Board Agenda Item 8.2 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  Yes.  An additional 5% increase in administrative salaries 
and an additional $1000 towards the 401k Employer match.   
 
Is it Budgeted: Yes, under the Administrative budget. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
The proposed action is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which define a project as an action which has the potential for resulting in 
either a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect 
physical change.  Accordingly, no additional CEQA review is required at this time. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
In June 2012, the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (Employer) 
executed the above-referenced Agreement (Attachment 1) with Catherine (Kate) Miller 
(Employee) outlining the terms and conditions of Employee’s employment with NCTPA.  
The parties now desire to amend the agreement amending Sections 3.1, 3.2.1, 3.4, and 
adding Section 3.7.  Therefore, the parties wish to amend the Agreement in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth below: 
 
1. Section 3.1 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

3.1 Salary. Employer agrees to pay Employee a salary of $157,500 annually (the 
“Base Salary”) effective June 18, 2013, payable in equal installments at the same time 
as other Employees of the Employer are paid. 

 
2. Section 3.2.1 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

3.2.1 Review of Performance.  Employee performance shall take place as often 
as Employer deems appropriate but not less than once each calendar year.  Employer 
shall advise Employee of the results of that review in writing not later than sixty (60) 
days following the conclusion of the review.  Employer’s review and evaluation shall be 

in accordance with specific criteria developed by Employer from time to time.  The next 
performance review shall occur by December 2014. 
 
3. Section 3.4 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

3.4 Relocation Incentive.  If Employee moves to Napa County within 18 months 
after the initial date of this Agreement, Employee shall be paid $5000.    
  

16



Board Agenda Letter                     Wednesday July 20, 2011 
Board Agenda Item 8.2 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

4. Section 3.7 is added to read in full as follows: 
 

457 Deferred Compensation Plan Employer Match.  NCTPA shall match 
Employee 457 Deferred Compensation Plan deposits to a maximum of $2,000 per year. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Amendment 1 to Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency 
       Agreement No. NCTPA 12-08 

17



ATTACHMENT 1 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 8.2 

April 16, 2014 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO 
NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY  

AGREEMENT NO. NCTPA 12- 08 
 

This Amendment Number 1 to Agreement No. NCTPA 12-08 is made and 
entered into by Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency, a joint powers 
agency organized under the laws of the State of California (NCTPA) and Catherine 
Miller (Employee) on the date last listed below. 
 

RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, On June 18, 2012, NCTPA executed the above-referenced 

Agreement with Employee for the position of Executive Director; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Parties desire to amend the agreement relating to various 
compensation matters: 
 

TERMS 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties amend Agreement NCTPA 12-08 as set forth 

below: 
 
1. Section 3.1 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

3.1 Salary. Employer agrees to pay Employee a salary of $157,500 annually (the 
“Base Salary”) effective June 18, 2013, payable in equal installments at the same time 

as other Employees of the Employer are paid.   

2. Section 3.2.1 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

3.2.1 Review of Performance.  Employee performance shall take place as often 
as Employer deems appropriate but not less than once each calendar year.  Employer 
shall advise Employee of the results of that review in writing not later than sixty (60) 
days following the conclusion of the review.  Employer’s review and evaluation shall be 

in accordance with specific criteria developed by Employer from time to time.  The next 
performance review shall occur by December 2014. 
 
3. Section 3.4 is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

3.4 Relocation Incentive.  If Employee moves to Napa County within 18 months 
after the initial date of this Agreement, Employee shall be paid $5000. 

18



 

Page 2 of 2 

4. Section 3.7 is added to read in full as follows: 
 

457 Deferred Compensation Plan Employer Match.  NCTPA shall match 
Employee 457 Deferred Compensation Plan deposits to a maximum of $2,000 per year. 
 
5. The Parties agree that all other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to the Agreement have caused this 
Amendment to Agreement to be duly executed on their behalf by their authorized 
representatives.  
 
 
Dated: __________________    By___________________________________ 
               CATHERINE MILLER 
               “EMPLOYEE” 
 
 
Dated:  __________________    NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND 
               PLANNING AGENCY, a joint powers agency 
 
               By___________________________________ 
               KEITH CALDWELL 
               Chairman of the Board of the Directors 
               “NCTPA” 
 
 
Attest:  
 
_____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NCTPA Board Secretary 
 
 
Approved as to Form 
 
________________________________ 
Janice D. Killion, NCTPA Legal Counsel 

19



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 8.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Assistant Program Planner/Administrator 
(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 14-09 Requesting the Allocation of FY 2013-14 & 
2014-15 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) 
Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds from the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board approve 
Resolution No. 14-08 (Attachment 1) requesting the allocation of FY 14/15 
Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Pedestrian/Bicycle project funds in 
the amount of $312,646 from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
At their April 3rd meeting the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommended the 
NCTPA Board of Directors approve the list of TDA 3 FY 14/15 projects in Resolution 14-
08.  
 
At their March 24th meeting the Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) 
recommended the NCTPA Board of Directors approve the FY 14/15 TDA 3 project list 
shown in attachment 2.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The TDA-3 program is for bicycle and pedestrian projects funded by approximately 2% 
of the ¼ cent statewide sales tax.  This generates roughly $125,000 per year for Napa 
County jurisdictions.  A call for projects was issued on January 16, 2014; applications 
were due on March 7, 2014. Fourteen (14) applications were received, The ATAC met 
on March 24, 2014 to finalize their recommendations to the NCTPA Board.  The TAC 
met on April 3, 2014 to finalize their recommendations to the NCTPA Board 

 

20

mailto:dmeehan@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                    Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 8.3 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes.  $312.646 in TDA-3 funds  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The TDA-3 program is for bicycle and pedestrian projects funded by approximately 2% 
of the ¼ cent statewide sales tax. This generates roughly $125,000 per year for Napa 
County jurisdictions.  Priority is given to capital projects.  Planning is a permissible 
activity under TDA-3 revenues but can only be used for comprehensive planning 
activities every 5 years per jurisdiction.  Unallocated funds roll over and accumulate.  
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission accepts project applications annually. 
Projects must be completed within two (2) years plus the fiscal year of application.  
 
A call for projects was issued on January 16, 2014.  Applications were due on March 7, 
2014.  Fourteen (14) applications were received totaling $1,277,909 dollars. The ATAC 
met on March 24, 2014 to finalize their recommendations to the NCTPA Board.  The 
TAC met on April 3, 2014 to finalize their recommendations to the NCTPA Board.   
 
After reviewing all project submittals and ATAC’s project recommendations, the TAC 
developed the list of projects included on Resolution No. 14-08 (Attachment 2).  Staff 
recommends that the Board approve TAC’s recommended project list.   
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 14-08 

(2) ATAC TDA-3 Project Recommendation List 2013-14 & 2014-15 

21



ATTACHMENT 1 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 8.3 

April 16, 2014 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION No.14-08 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY (NCTPA) 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF COUNTWIDE COORDINATED CLAIM TO THE 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC)  
FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT ARTICLE 3 (TDA-3) 
PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE PROJECT FUNDS TO CLAIMATS IN NAPA COUNTY 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public 
Utilities Code (PUC) Section 99200 et seq., authorizes the submission of claims to a 
regional transportation planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the 
benefit and/or use of pedestrians and bicyclists; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional 
transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC 
Resolution No. 4108, which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of 
requests for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 4108 requires that requests from eligible 
claimants for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds be submitted as part of a single, 
countywide coordinated claim, composed of certain required documents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency has 
undertaken a process in compliance with MTC Resolution No. 4108 for consideration of 
project proposals submitted by eligible claimants of TDA Article 3 funds in Napa 
County, and a prioritized list of projects, included as Attachment A of this resolution, 
was developed as a result of this process; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each claimant in Napa County whose project or projects have been 
prioritized for inclusion in the fiscal year 2014-15 TDA Article 3 countywide coordinated 
claim, has forwarded to the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency a 
certified copy of its governing body resolution for submittal to MTC requesting an 
allocation of TDA Article 3 funds; now, therefore, be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency 
approves the prioritized list of projects included as Attachment A to this resolution; and 
furthermore, be it 
  

22



 
Resolution No. 14-08 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 RESOLVED, that the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency 
approves the submittal to MTC, of the Napa County fiscal year 2014-15 TDA Article 3 
countywide, coordinated claim, composed of the following required documents:   

A. transmittal letter 
B. a certified copy of this resolution, including Attachment A;  
C. one copy of the governing body resolution and required attachments, for each 

claimant whose project or projects are the subject of the coordinated claim; 
D. a description of the process for public and staff review of all proposed projects 

submitted by eligible claimants for prioritization and inclusion in the 
countywide, coordinated claim; 

 
Passed and Adopted the 16h day of April 2014. 
 
 
 
________________________        Ayes: 
Keith Caldwell, NCTPA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                   Noes: 
 
 
                   Absent: 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NCTPA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Janice Killion, NCTPA Legal Counsel 

23



 
Resolution No. 14-08 

Page 3 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
Prioritized List of Projects 
 

 Short Title Description of Project 

TDA 
Article 3 
Amount 

Total 
Project 

Cost 

1. City of American Canyon-Rio Del Mar/Los Altos/Theresa 
Pedestrian Project $  47,855 $  56,205 

2. City of St. Helena- Mitchell Drive Sidewalk Project $107,278 $126,000 

3. City of Calistoga-Riverside Pedestrian Project $106,427 $950,000 

4. Town of Yountville-Washington St. Sidewalk Project $  51,086 $  60,000 

 Totals $312,646 $1,192,205 
 

24



ATTACHMENT 2
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 8.3

April 16, 2014

Project Sponsor Project Description Amount Requested

City of Napa Hwy 29/Napa Creek Path (Undercrossing) $147,000

American Canyon Vine Trail Gap Closure Study $45,000

Yountville N. Yountville Bike Route $65,810

Calistoga Riverside Pedestrian Path $125,000

TOTAL $382,810

Funds Available $312,646

ATAC TDA-3 Project Recommendation List 2013-14 & 2014-15

25



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 8.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Assistant Program Planner/Administrator 
 (707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Approval of Appointment to the Active Transportation Advisory 
Committee (ATAC) 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA Board approve the 
reappointment of Barry Christian to the Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
(ATAC) as the representative for the City of American Canyon. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Barry Christian has served as the ATAC member representing the City of American 
Canyon for the past three years and has been nominated by the City to be reappointed 
to represent American Canyon on the ATAC. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 
 
  

 

26

mailto:dmeehan@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
Board Agenda Item 8.4 

Page 2 of 2 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (State California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Active Transportation Advisory Committee is made up of eleven members with 
representation that mirrors the voting structure of NCTPA for transportation issues: five 
members from the City of Napa, two from Napa County and one from each from each 
the Cities of American Canyon, Calistoga, and St. Helena, and the Town of Yountville.  
Mr. Christian’s reappointment to the ATAC will extend his representation on the 
committee until April 1, 2017. 
 
The City of American Canyon reappointed Mr. Christian at its Council Meeting on March 
18, 2014. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
None 

27



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 8.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Justin Paniagua, Accounting Technician 
       (707) 259-8781 / Email: jpaniagua@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Approval to Remit Payment to Veolia Transportation for Invoice 
12272012-2 Dated 12/27/2012 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board approve 
payment of the Veolia Transportation invoice #12272012-2 dated 12/27/2012 in the 
amount of $25,139.51. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Dating from FY 2012-2013, this invoice was not received and subsequently went 
unpaid.  During Veolia’s end of the year closeout they noticed the invoice was still 
outstanding.  Veolia brought it to NCTPA’s attention and resubmitted the invoice for 
processing.  Because NCTPA contracts with the County for finance, accounting, and 
banking services, NCTPA is subject to the County of Napa’s policies.  Due to the value 
of the invoice exceeding $10,000 and because it is from a previous fiscal year, County 
of Napa policy requires board approval for payment. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
  

 

28



Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 8.5 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  Yes.  $25,139.51 
 
Is it Currently Budgeted?  No.  However, the cost can be absorbed by VINE’s capital   
improvement budget 
 
Where is it budgeted? N/A. 
 
Is it Mandatory or Discretionary?  Mandatory. 
 
Future Fiscal Impact:  N/A. 
 
Consequences if not approved:  Payment of invoice #12272012-2 will not be processed.  
NCTPA is contractually obligated to pay for work performed by Veolia and approved by 
NCTPA management. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION  
 
Veolia invoice #12272012-2 is a pass through charge from Triton Truck Repair Inc. for 
the engine overhaul of bus 150 in December of 2012.  It was determined by Veolia and 
agreed upon by NCTPA that the overhaul was necessary to extend the useful life of bus 
150 as it was not scheduled to be replaced in the near future.  There are several email 
discussions between Veolia and the NCTPA Transit Manager discussing and 
subsequently approving the engine overhaul.  Under the contract with Veolia NCTPA is 
responsible for maintenance expenses exceeding $5,000, since anything over that 
amount is considered a capital expense and adds to the useful life of the asset.   
 
The County of Napa policy states that previous fiscal year invoice payments exceeding 
$10,000 must be approved by the Board of Directors.  Ref. County of Napa policy 
section 6 page 3. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Veolia Transportation Invoice #12272012-2 

29



                        ATTACHMENT 1 

NCTPA Board Agenda Item 8.5 

                             April 16, 2014

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: RECEIVE AND APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Napa County Grand Jury 2013-2014 March 18, 2014 Final Report 
Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency (NCTPA) VINE: 
Management & Ridership for the Future and Proposed NCTPA 
Board Response 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board receive the 
Napa County Grand Jury 2013-2014 March 18, 2014 Final Report Napa County 
Transportation & Planning Agency (NCTPA) VINE: Management & Ridership for the 
Future with discussion and possible action to authorize the chairman to sign a letter 
(Attachment 2) transmitting the response to the report.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
NCTPA received an inquiry from the Napa County Grand Jury dated September 19, 
2013 requesting a number of agency documents for their review (Attachment 3).  The 
Napa County Grand Jury subsequently published the report included as Attachment 1 
titled, VINE: Management and Ridership for the Future dated March 18, 2013.  The 
Board is required to respond to the Findings and Recommendations within 90 days.  
Attachment 2 is the proposed response. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 

 

47

mailto:kmiller@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                    Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.1 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
NCTPA received an inquiry from the Napa County Civil Grand Jury dated September 
19, 2013 requesting a number of documents.  NCTPA complied with that request. The 
Napa County Grand Jury further interviewed staff both before and after the receipt of 
the documents.  The Napa County Grand Jury’s findings have been published in the 
report VINE Management and Ridership for the Future dated March 18, 2013.   
 
The report is largely complimentary of the work that NCTPA has done to improve the 
VINE services and acknowledges that many of the efforts were successful.  The report 
also includes a number of findings and recommendations.  The primary focus of the 
Napa County Grand Jury findings and recommendations center on strategic 
management, planning practices, and marketing.  NCTPA staff concurs with a number 
of the Grand Jury’s recommendations, some of which have already been implemented.  
NCTPA staff clarifies information included in the Introduction and Findings sections of 
the report and offers explanations for rejecting several of the recommendations. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Napa County Grand Jury 2013-2014 March 18, 2014 Final Report 
    Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency (NCTPA) VINE: 
    Management & Ridership for the Future 

(2) April 16, 2014 Proposed NCTPA Board Response 
(3) September 19, 2013 Napa County Grand Jury Request for 
  Information 

48



 
 

 
NAPA COUNTY GRAND JURY 

2013-2014 
 
 

MARCH 18, 2014 
 
 
 

FINAL REPORT 
 
 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION & 
PLANNING AGENCY (NCTPA) 

 
VINE: MANAGEMENT & RIDERSHIP  

FOR THE FUTURE  
 

                        ATTACHMENT 1 

NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.1 

                             April 16, 2014

49



Page 1 
 

Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency 
(NCTPA) 

 
VINE: MANAGEMENT & RIDERSHIP FOR THE 

FUTURE 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The 2013-2014 Napa County Grand Jury initiated an investigation of the Napa County 
Transportation & Planning Agency’s (NCTPA) VINE transit system to look into the 
issue of low VINE ridership. The Grand Jury found areas for improvement in VINE 
management practices that could address improving ridership.   
 
NCTPA experienced high personnel turnover and lacked consistent fleet management 
during the time period 2001 to 2009.  Five of the six current VINE management 
employees have been in their positions for less than three years.  Since June 2006, there 
have been 22 personnel changes in an agency population of 12. This is almost a 200% 
turnover of personnel in a seven-year period.  During these years, the VINE bus fleet 
was in decline as was ridership.  Much of the ridership decline was correlated with the 
VINE becoming a non-clean, infrequent, slow transit system.  
 
A Director of Transit Services and a Director of Finances and Grants were hired in 
2009. In 2012, a new NCTPA Executive Director was hired.    Between 2009 and 2013, 
31 new buses were purchased for the VINE Route services.  A new NCTPA 
Office/VINE Transit complex was opened in December of 2012.  The Agency 
restructured its entire VINE route system at the end of 2012 to better meet ridership 
needs.  With this new system in place in 2013, compared to the same nine month period 
in 2012, the VINE management estimated there had been a 25.1% increase in ridership.   
 
Under current management, there have been significant changes at the NCTPA; for 
example, the completion of the Napa County Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) FY 
2013-2022, which serves as a significant milestone guiding efforts toward improvement 
of the NCTPA and the VINE Transit System. 
 
The Grand Jury believes that the VINE can successfully serve the community if the 
public is better informed of its services and schedules.  This can be accomplished by 
directing more time and resources to marketing and branding to attract ridership. The 

50



Page 2 
 

incorporated jurisdictions need to be active and consistent partners in this effort.  The 
VINE organization cannot do it alone. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Napa County is approximately 788 square miles and home to over 138,000 people. Most 
of the population can be found in the communities of Napa and American Canyon.  
Napa County has maintained a rural agricultural environment in a large portion of the 
valley floor while supporting moderate growth in the incorporated cities.  Napa County 
has a strong economic base that is centered on agriculture, tourism and retail trades.  
The City of Napa is the County's largest city and is the County seat with an economy 
based mainly on tourism. Growth in downtown Napa includes the development of a 
gourmet marketplace, hotels and restaurants.  Most jurisdictions in Napa County have 
growing tourism as well as professional, scientific, administrative and waste 
management services. Napa County’s agriculture and growing tourism economy call for 
lower paying jobs, thus workers who cannot afford the higher cost of housing are 
required to commute from rural areas and outside Napa County. 
 
Napa County’s agricultural economy is not easily served by traditional transit systems 
because of the rural nature of the landscape and spread out locations of work sites.  In 
addition, public transportation has not been a popular commute option to work for any 
of the incorporated cities, with percentages of ridership typically representing only 1-
2% of the population.  Napa County’s population growth rates are not expected to 
significantly change demands for public transit in the years to come.   
 
A. The VINE 
 
Public transit service began in Napa County in 1972 when the City of Napa took over 
the privately owned bus company serving the community. In 1986, the City of Napa 
implemented major system-wide changes and rebranded the service “Valley Intercity 
Neighborhood Express” (V.l.N.E.). With a growing demand for transit in the area and a 
need for intercity connectivity along the Highway 29 corridor, Napa Valley Transit 
(NVT) was created in 1991.  NVT connected communities from Napa to Calistoga. In 
an effort to consolidate services and more efficiently provide transit to Napa County 
residents, the Napa County Transportation & Planning Agency (NCTPA) was formed in 
1998 as a joint powers agency among the cities of American Canyon, Napa, Yountville, 
St. Helena, Calistoga, and the County of Napa.  With the new Agency in place, V.I.N.E, 
NVT, and Para-transit (services for the elderly and disabled) operations were combined 
and began operating under the names VINE and VINEGo.   
 

51



Page 3 
 

These communities along the Napa Valley Route 29 corridor are jointly engaged in the 
coordination of transportation planning, programs and systems in conjunction with 
NCTPA that oversees all public transit system components within Napa County.  In 
2001, all of the public transit vehicles owned by the City of Napa and all other transit 
services in Napa County were turned over to NCTPA as part of the joint transit system 
venture. 
 
NCTPA offers a variety of public transportation services to the residents of Napa 
County.  VINE transit proper (as of July 1, 2013) is an inner-city, fixed-route service 
and is provided in Napa on Routes 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8.  Service is provided on 
Routes 10 and 11, connecting communities along Highway 29 from Calistoga to 
Vallejo. Inter-county Routes 21, 25 and 29 provide express service from Napa to 
Fairfield and Suisun, Napa to Sonoma, and Calistoga to El Cerrito Del Norte BART 
station, respectively. Major changes to all these services were implemented in 
December 2012 and ridership on these routes is a central focus of this report. 
 
NCTPA is governed by a Board of Directors (BOD) which represents the incorporated 
cities of American Canyon, Napa, the Town of Yountville, St. Helena, Calistoga, and 
the County of Napa.  Thirteen members currently sit on the Board, two from each 
community and two from the County Board of Supervisors.  The thirteenth member of 
the Board represents the Para-transit Coordinating Council in a non-voting position.     
 
NCTPA is comprised of twelve employees. All positions ultimately report to the 
Executive Director. Transit services are overseen by one of five Program Managers.  
Day-to-day bus operations and maintenance (including drivers and mechanics) for all of 
NCTPA's transit services are provided through a contract with Veolia Transportation, 
the largest private sector provider of public transportation services in North America.  
NCTPA administers the transit system and owns all facilities and equipment. 
 
B. Reasons for VINE Investigation 
 
The findings of the 2009-2010 Napa County Grand Jury Report titled “The Napa 
County Transportation and Planning Agency: Our Transit Provider and More” focused 
on empty buses, and low ridership.  In 2013, there were 25% more buses operating in 
Napa running 100% more frequently and many were still running nearly empty.   
 
National, state, and local studies predict that private automobile travel will increase by 
25% between now and 2035, an increase that largely follows population growth. In that 
same time frame, alternative travel options (transit, biking, and walking) will increase 
by about one percent (1%). Most of that increase is expected to come from biking and 
walking, not transit based upon the Ilium Associates “Results from Market 

52



Page 4 
 

Segmentation Survey, Focus on Ridership Generation” (2010) report. Consultant studies 
funded by NCTPA do not point to increased bus ridership. In the last four years the 
NCTPA has invested $12.5 million in the new transit center, $5 million in new buses, 
and $1 million in the increased operational costs to support the new buses, routes, and 
schedules. These funds are a combination of federal and state grants, local jurisdiction 
fare payments, and Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds that are generated by 
a 0.25% sales tax that is controlled by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC).  The Grand Jury’s investigation strived to address the question, what can be 
done to ensure that Napa County’s transit ridership warrants this significant investment?  
 
METHODOLOGY   
 
This report addresses only that part of NCTPA specific to the VINE operation in Napa 
County.   This report does not address related VINE services such as VINEGo, and Para-
transit.   
 
The Grand Jury interviewed NCTPA Management and Board members during this 
investigation. 
 
The Grand Jury interviewed Management from the Napa County Office of Auditor-
Controller. 
 
The Grand Jury requested and reviewed the following agency reports and other 
documents.  

 
  1.  VINE grant proposals submitted since January 1, 2009.  
  2.  VINE grant reports since January 1, 2009.  
  3.  2012 State Controller VINE Report.  
  4.  2012 National Transit Database VINE Report.  
  5.  Vine reports submitted for Transportation Development Act funds since 
  January 1, 2009.  
  6.  2009 VINE Joint Powers Agreement, including bylaws and amendments   
  currently in effect.  
  7.  VINE Policies and Procedures Manual currently in effect.  
  8.  VINE Standard Services Manual.  
  9.  VINE 10-year Short Range Transit Plan adopted by the Board of Directors 
  (BOD) in June 2013.  
 10. VINE Marketing Plan/NCTPA Public Education Plan by Ilium Associates, 
  2012.  
 11. Vine consulting contracts and reports related to ridership since January 1, 
  2009.  

53



Page 5 
 

13.  Vine consulting contracts and reports related to marketing since January 1, 
  2009.  
14.  NCTPA agendas, board packages, and meeting minutes since January 1, 
  2012.  (Board package materials not related to the Vine were not  
  reviewed.)  
15.  The contract currently in effect with Veolia.  
16.  Agenda and minutes of meetings between representatives of the VINE and 
  Veolia since January 1, 2011.  
17.  Projections of VINE ridership prepared in the ordinary course of business 
  since January 1, 2009  
18.  Documents for VINE ridership on a monthly basis, as broken down in the 
  ordinary course of business, since January 1, 2009.  
19.  Graphs and charts, prepared in the ordinary course of business, showing 
  Vine ridership, prepared on or after January 1, 2009.  
20.  Documents related to ridership that will be included or referenced in the 
  VINE Strategic Marketing Plan.  
21.  Monthly Fare-Box Reports, prepared in the ordinary course of business, 
  since inception.  
22.  Each VINE vision statement since January 1, 2009.  
23.  Each VINE strategic plan since January 1, 2009.  
24.  Each report specially prepared for an NCTPA Director that relates to  
  ridership (including ridership by route and ridership projections) or  
  marketing.  

 
The Grand Jury rode VINE buses, made physical observations of VINE bus service in 
action, and took related photos.  
 
The Grand Jury reviewed newspaper articles, editorials, and Letters to Editor regarding 
the VINE.   
 
DISCUSSION   
 
According to the findings of the 2009-2010 Napa County Grand Jury Report, the 
original intent for NCTPA in the early 2000s was to provide transit services. However, 
the agency expanded to non-transit missions that included road repairs, climate change, 
flood control and has become the transportation planning agency for Napa County. In 
2009, the total budget for NCTPA was $17 million of which $4.7 million went to transit 
services.   
 
The NCTPA budget for fiscal year 2012-2013 was approximately $26 million of which 
nearly $8.9 million was capital expenses (building construction and new bus purchases) 

54



Page 6 
 

and $5.4 million was for the Congestion Management Authority, a state mandated 
entity. The remaining budget for public transit was approximately $10.4 million of 
which $7.4 million was for the VINE.  Each budget is treated as a separate cost center of 
NCTPA.  These funds originate from a combination of federal and state grants, local 
jurisdiction fare payments, and Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds that are 
generated by a 0.25% sales tax that is controlled by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC).  The Federal Transportation Agency (FTA) provides Section 403 
Formula Grants to the NCTPA on a yearly basis, of which approximately $1.5 million is 
dedicated for public transit, accounting for 20% of public transit funds. The TDA 
money represents about 40 to 50% of the total funds to transit.  The balance of the 
transit funds come from passenger fares and from the cities that support their services.   
 
A. NCTPA Legacy Issues 
 

 
 
During the period of 2000 through 2009, NCTPA experienced high personnel turnover, 
very little fleet upgrade was done, and ridership was declining.  Until 2003, the VINE 
had a total of 22 buses in its fleet (Figure 1).  Most of these buses were obtained from 

55



Page 7 
 

the City of Napa and Napa County when the VINE began service in 2001.  By 2001, 13 
buses were far beyond their useful lifespan of 12 years, as set by the Federal 
government. These factors contributed to the decline in ridership during those years 
(Figure 2).    
 
A pattern was observed in reviewing NCTPA’s transit financial reports during 2001 to 
2010.  Napa County accounting records indicate that funds for new buses were 
accumulated but were not used.  The agency was not putting together a comprehensive 
proposal to the SF Bay Area’s MTC for bus replacements.  For many years, funds 
designated for certain bus service budgetary items were not fully expended.  TDA 
surplus funds were returned to the TDA reserve fund to be re-appropriated at a future 
date. The County holds these funds in one of its accounts as part of its fiduciary 
obligation. The MTC must authorize any expenditure of these funds.  Unspent TDA 
funds in the County’s reserve could be rolled over to subsequent fiscal year use. 
NCTPA presently has almost $10 million in its reserve fund.  
 

 
 
The bus routes for the VINE were established initially in 2001 with an annual ridership 
of almost 1,000,000 rides (per VINE records and staff interviews). Ridership trended 
steadily downward from 900,041 in 2002 to 630,000 in 2009 (Figure 2) increasing the 

56



Page 8 
 

cost per passenger from $2.99 to about $6.50 and causing passenger subsidies to more 
than double.  Some of this decline could be attributed to the fact that Napa’s transit 
buses came infrequently and it could take an hour and a half to get across town on a bus 
for a ride that should have taken 15 minutes, according to VINE management.  Numbers 
from 2012 showed the total ridership below 500,000 (Figure 2).  As of 2012 VINE 
operated eight bus routes in the city and four in the County.  With 50% more buses in 
service, VINE was carrying 24% fewer riders.  
 
The 2013-2014 Grand Jury noted inconsistencies in reporting bus ridership.  Without 
accurate knowledge of historical performance the VINE organization could keep 
repeating the poor performance of the past.  Some people have to use transit by 
necessity; others think it is the right thing to do. Ideally, people use public transportation 
because it is convenient and affordable.  Strong leadership and management is required 
to design the best routes and service to meet the needs of the Napa County’s ridership, 
and to market those services effectively. 
 
B. Transformation of NCTPA Management & Operations  
 
In 2009, with a new Board of Directors (BOD), management began to address the 
declining VINE transit system.  New personnel were hired, buses were purchased, and 
new routes were set in place, such as the Solano and Sonoma lines.  The new leadership 
set a goal to improve the organization’s effectiveness by consolidating its offices and 
moving the Napa transit transfer site to better serve the planned growth of the new 
transit system.  Planning was begun for a new Transit Center and NCTPA Office 
complex on Burnell Street.  In 2011 the bus service contractor Veolia was informed that 
it needed to improve its performance or its contract would not be renewed.  Veolia 
implemented major changes in management, services, and staff to better serve NCTPA.   
 
Between 2009 and 2013, a total of 31 new buses were purchased for the VINE Route 
services (Figure 1).  Many Napa residents were concerned about the large number of 
bus purchases (as expressed by numerous letters to newspaper) in light of the perceived 
declining ridership.  Actually, the VINE was required to purchase buses to replace those 
in the fleet that were well beyond their useful life of approximately 12 years.  Many of 
the buses in the VINE fleet were 30 years old. 
 
In December 2012, a new consolidated NCTPA Office Complex and VINE Transit 
Center was completed and opened for business at 625 Burnell Street. It serves as the 
transfer point for many of the bus routes in Napa as well as the long-distance routes that 
serve other areas. 
 

57



Page 9 
 

The VINE designed a new series of routes that began operation on December 3, 2012.  
This new route structure included a re-design of the VINE Napa inner-city routes 1-8 
and corresponding changes to Routes 10 and 11 that run up and down the valley 
respectively, with buses running every 30 minutes during peak hours of service.  The 
VINE also took all the inner City Napa routes and connected them to the main trunk 
lines, 10 and 11, allowing the rider to go from the neighborhoods to the main route 
system that travels the length of the Valley.  
 
With this new design in place there was a 25.1% increase in ridership during the first 9 
months of 2013 versus 2012.  This increased ridership encouraged management to 
project that the VINE can increase ridership throughout the system at a 20-30% growth 
rate per year over the next several years.  Ridership data indicated that most of the 
increase had been in the long-distance routes, not on the VINE inner City Napa routes.  
This correlates with the marketing campaign that was conducted in the late spring of 
2013 for the Route 29 service.   
 
In late 2012, the NCTPA BOD requested that the VINE provide a monthly summary of 
overall VINE operations from each preceding month.  VINE management created the 
VINE dashboard report which contains the major ridership data by routes as well as 
other variables on performance.  The dashboard includes cleanliness, maintenance, on-
time running, and safety information for the previous month.  The dashboard represents 
the first major effort by the VINE to present a series of metrics and indicators that 
informs management of how the transit system is operating on a short-term basis.  
Metrics and indicators, as well as other reporting mechanisms become invaluable for 
monitoring to prevent “back-sliding” into past VINE management practices.  NCTPA 
management can employ in-depth and expansive policies and procedures developed 
around indicators for conducting transit services on a daily and long-term basis.  An 
example of employing indicators in decision-making, every report made to the Board of 
Directors in 2013 on Napa’s inner-city routes showed that the buses were running twice 
an hour with an on-time rate of 90%, achieving their benchmark rate.  
 
NCTPA hired a software consultant to adjust routes based upon traffic conditions to 
meet the ridership demands of on-time performance.  Another initiative was adding GPS 
systems to all VINE buses that allow riders to use the “where is my bus” feature on their 
computer or smartphone.  
 
The Napa County Short Range Transit Plan FY 2013-2022 (completed June 2013) 
serves as a significant guide towards improvement of the NCTPA and the VINE Transit 
System.  It provides direction for the organization for the next 10 years along with a 
reporting system to track project progress along with timelines for projects and 
completion dates.   

58



Page 10 
 

 
The VINE intends to initiate, as part of its strategic plan, a new regional SmartCard 
system.  When the SmartCard goes into existence next year it will interface with all of 
the regional transit agencies and will provide one consolidated payment system for 
using transit systems throughout the San Francisco Bay Area. The SmartCard will bring 
the VINE system into partnership with all the other Bay Area systems and should serve 
to improve ridership. It will also create opportunities for regional co-marketing efforts 
and partnerships.   
 
C. Marketing 
 
The 2008 Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) of 2008-2017 identified branding and 
marketing as a key strategy for the VINE as well as completing a comprehensive rider 
survey.  Interviews, reports, agendas and financial data revealed a less than robust effort 
to market and increase VINE ridership.  The annual marketing budget during the period 
of 2009-2012 averaged $145,864 whereas the 2013 SRTP calls for an annual marketing 
budget of $222,327. Management as of November 2013 had not developed an effective 
strategy on the best course of action to implement the 2013 SRTP Marketing Goals and 
Objectives.  The VINE had only spent approximately $22,000 of the annual marketing 
budget for VINE promotion, approximately 10% over five months for a fiscal year that 
began July 1, 2013.  This indicates a possible reluctance on the part of management to 
spend marketing and advertising funds to promote ridership on the VINE.   
 
VINE studies have identified commuters as the primary target market along with the 
Napa Valley College, Napa Latino community and youth ridership.  The Ilium 
Associate’s 2011 Marketing Plan recommended that the VINE improve bus stops 
throughout the Hwy 29 corridor and explore the expansion of “park and ride” facilities 
to facilitate more commuter use of transit services.  It was further suggested through the 
Ilium Associates memo “Results from Market Segmentation Survey, Focus on 
Ridership Generation” (2010) that VINE reach out to major employers in Napa to 
encourage employee incentives for riding the VINE between the home city and the 
working city.  For example, the City of St. Helena could reimburse bus fare for 
employees who commute regularly from Napa, thereby removing their cars from the 
Route 29 thoroughfare.  Furthermore arrangements could be made with businesses in 
shopping areas such as Bel Aire Plaza to encourage incentives for customers riding the 
buses and eliminating parking problems. 
 
VINE management performs a range of marketing efforts such as distributing materials 
at downtown functions, visiting senior, Latino events and other activities such as the    
Bike Fest.  During the VINE’s Christmas challenge, one bus each day is designated as 
the Christmas bus and this designation moves to different routes offering free bus rides 

59



Page 11 
 

on that particular Christmas bus.  During the 
Thanksgiving week those passengers who 
donate food get to ride free.  
This investigation found several significant 
branding issues for NCTPA. One of the 
major issues is that, after being open since 

December 2012, the new NCTPA 
Office Complex and Transit Center on 
Burnell Street does not have any 
visible street or building signage that 
would help direct riders to the Transit 
Center (as of January 2014).  There are 
also branding issues with the VINE 
buses (Figures 3 & 4) which impact the overall transit image.   There is inconsistency in 
appearance between many of the older buses and the new buses. New buses (Figure 4) 
were purposely left with a lot of blank space to be used for advertising to make 
additional revenue for the VINE.   
 
In spring 2013, NCTPA was awarded original Measure 2 grant funds of $90,000 to 
promote the Route 29 bus service.  The agency rolled out a marketing campaign of 
television, print and online advertisements aimed at attracting new riders for Route 29, 
which offers service to the El Cerrito BART station.  This proved so successful that 
riders were being left behind at bus stops because the buses were so full.  This short-
term effort at marketing only one VINE service is an example of what additional 
marketing could do to increase ridership system-wide.   
 
A well-functioning public transit system can decrease the production of greenhouse 
gases (GHG), especially a system that is trying to decrease emissions through natural 
gas and hybrid engines.  The Napa Valley Region faces some real challenges in the 
future with managing the production of excessive GHGs.  The majority of these GHGs 
come from congested traffic on the highways during a significant part of each day.  
Much of this traffic is related to tourism and short-term visits to the Valley as well as 
from daily commuters, commercial trucking and other local travel (draft Napa County 
Climate Action Plan, 2013).  Benefits from improved ridership on the transit system 
serve the average resident as well as the regional environment and beyond.  
Encouraging bus ridership and its impact on decreasing GHGs can assist in helping 
Napa County meet its required reductions in GHGs.   
 

Figure 3.  VINE bus from the 1990s. 

Figure 4.  Newly purchased VINE bus. 

60



Page 12 
 

Finally, VINE management cannot be expected to maximize bus ridership without 
adequate support from the incorporated jurisdictions and the County. The point stressed 
here is that it will take a large effort, beyond the VINE organization itself, to move 
significant ridership out of cars and onto transit services. The governmental entities 
represented on the NCTPA Board should each be making a strong contribution to 
promote VINE ridership, given that highway and road congestion are growing problems 
County-wide.  
 
D. Future Considerations 
 
Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) is a strategy to plan the design of transit routes in 
high population density areas that encourage ridership and target high density 
employment and shopping areas to increase transit service for workers and shoppers, 
thus increasing ridership.  A number of apartment and condominium complexes already 
exist in Napa and at least three more are to be completed in the next two years.  It would 
benefit the VINE to begin targeting these areas in its future planning efforts.  Likewise, 
large employers like the Queen of the Valley Medical Center and retail centers like the 
Bel Aire Plaza can collaborate on strategies for enhanced ridership through incentives as 
well as added service features.   
 
NCTPA and VINE operational facilities are dispersed throughout the City of Napa.  
There is the new NCTPA Office/VINE Transit Complex building on Burnell Street.  
Most of the buses are parked in the area of Jackson Street and Soscol Avenue. All 
maintenance is performed at this site.  The fueling for all buses is done at a natural gas 
facility on Redwood Road and Solano Avenue at high cost, and when natural gas is not 
available at this facility the buses must go to Fairfield for fuel.  A search is underway to 
locate an alternative fuel source and a better storage/maintenance facility with adequate 
capacity for the buses.  Collaborating with the City of Napa and the County on fuel 
needs could serve all entities well. 
 
NCTPA manages both transportation planning and public transit.  Sixty percent of the 
Board's time is devoted to planning and approximately 20-30% is devoted to public 
transit.  This raises concerns that transit issues may not receive sufficient attention at the 
NCTPA BOD level, particularly in light of the discussion about the consolidation of the 
transit facilities versus the increasing traffic congestion problems in the region.   
 
FINDINGS   
 
F1. During 2003-2008 few new buses were purchased while NCTPA expanded its 
role from solely transit to planning, traffic congestion and other activities.   
 

61



Page 13 
 

F2. According to data collected during the period of 2001 to 2012, VINE ridership 
declined by more than 50%.  
 
F3. NCTPA has had more than $10 million rolled over annually in its reserve TDA 
fund since 2009 that can be used for transit related capital expenses with MTC approval. 
 
F4. There was a major restructuring of NCTPA management and of the Veolia 
contractor during 2009 – 2011 and between 2009 and 2013 31 new buses were 
purchased for the VINE Routes. 
 
F5. A new VINE Transit Center and consolidated NCTPA office complex was 
completed in December 2012. 
 
F6. A redesigned VINE route system began service December 3, 2012 and had 
positive growth in ridership numbers over the first nine months of 2013.   
 
F7. A monthly VINE dashboard for the NCTPA Board of Directors (BOD) was 
implemented in 2012, reporting on ridership, maintenance, cleanliness, frequency of on-
time running, and safety that showed in 2013, VINE buses were clean, running twice as 
often, and meeting on-time targets.   
 
F8. There is a lack of community awareness of numerous route changes, additional 
routes and other significant improvements in VINE transit services as documented in 
the NCTPA consultant Ilium Associate’s 2011 Marketing Plan. 
 
F9. Marketing of the VINE bus service is not perceived as a high priority for NCTPA 
management and thus the annual marketing budgets for the VINE are not being fully 
deployed consistently. Only 10% of the NCTPA marketing budget had been spent six 
months into the present (FY14) fiscal year.   
 
F10. Open since December 2012, the new NCTPA Office/VINE Transit Center does 
not have any visible street or building signage to help direct riders to the Transit Center 
and VINE buses and bus shelters lack consistent branding/signage, not optimizing 
potential advertising revenue and marketing opportunities.   
 
F11. In the spring of 2013 the Route 29 service received special grant funds to conduct 
an extensive advertising (billboard, television and radio) campaign that increased 
ridership, demonstrating the effectiveness of a marketing campaign.   
 
F12. VINE services are not optimally promoted on website home pages of the 
incorporated jurisdictions.  American Canyon, Yountville, and Calistoga websites have 

62



Page 14 
 

links that contain information about transportation services, including the VINE.  The 
home pages of Napa and St. Helena lack such links. 
  
F13. The VINE currently does not employ sufficient financial, quantitative and 
qualitative metrics, indicators toward adaptive (learning-based) management in 
decision-making to constantly improve transit operations and ridership service. 
 
F14. Planning for VINE proper (Napa inner-city) routes does not utilize Transit-
Oriented-Development (TOD) methodologies for achieving the most sustainable 
transportation route designs.   
 
F15. NCTPA lacks a coordinated logistics management system for its many different 
facilities including the transit center, maintenance area, bus parking, and fueling 
facilities which results in an inefficient operation. 
 
F16. As demands increase upon its role in congestion management and transportation 
planning, particularly from the increased traffic in American Canyon and on Route 29 
throughout the Valley, the NCTPA BOD’s time allocated to the VINE may not  be 
sufficient in light of the VINE’s increasing directional needs regarding marketing, other 
ridership incentives, and long-term planning.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS    
 
R1. The Grand Jury recommends that the BOD adopt and follow a capital budget that 
anticipates maintenance and equipment acquisitions, projects out costs and funding 
mechanisms, and monitors implementation with a consistent progress reporting method. 
If the recommendation is not implementable in the current fiscal year, then it should be 
implemented in FY 2014/15. 
 
R2. The Grand Jury recommends that the BOD evaluate at least annually, with careful 
prior analysis by staff, any needed major acquisitions such as buses, maintenance yards, 
and fueling stations, with the goal of achieving the efficient integration of transit 
operations.  
 
R3. The Grand Jury recommends the BOD to explore ways to improve NCTPA 
management retention such as merit pay or other incentives, and put in place for the 
coming fiscal year.  
 
R4. The Grand Jury recommends planning out the use of the $10 million reserve fund 
to meet transit’s existing needs over the next 10 years, including capital expenses and 
marketing costs by the beginning of the next fiscal year. 

63



Page 15 
 

 
R5. NCTPA should consistently utilize the Napa County Short Range Transit Plan FY 
2013-2022 (June 2013) for guidance in the sustainable operation of the Napa transit 
system with timely progress reports to the Board of Directors (BOD) put in place by 
June 2014. 
 
R6. NCTPA should develop financial, qualitative and quantitative reporting metrics 
that will identify problems in standards of system performance so operation corrections 
can be made through adaptive management actions, with those metrics in place by the 
end of the current fiscal year. 
 
R7. NCTPA should install at a minimum temporary signage as soon as possible for 
the new Transit Center that can be seen from Soscol Avenue and install a complete and 
consistent branding and marketing signage system for the center, buses and bus shelters, 
within ninety (90) days of this report. 
 
R8. NCTPA should implement within the current fiscal year a coordinated VINE 
marketing strategy with each Napa County jurisdiction so that NCTPA’s transit services 
are readily available and consistently communicated across all public, community and 
visitor websites.   
 
R9. The Grand Jury recommends NCTPA contract with an agency with transit 
expertise to develop and implement appropriate marketing efforts to targeted ridership 
populations and major employers that will drive awareness of all VINE services and 
improve ridership within the current and for the future fiscal year. 
 
R10. NCTPA should explore, adopt and apply sustainability design tools such as TOD 
to determine ideal alterations to transit services within the 2014 calendar year. 
 
REQUEST FOR RESPONSES      
 
Pursuant to Penal code section 933.05, the Grand Jury requests responses to all 
recommendations from as follows in the format of 933.05:    
 
From the following governing bodies: 
 

• NCTPA Board of Directors:  R1, R2, R3, R4, R5, R6, R7, R8, R9, R10 
 

• American Canyon, Napa, Yountville, St. Helena and Calistoga City Councils:  R8 
 

64



Page 16 
 

It is requested that each person responding to the foregoing recommendations certify 
above his or her signature that the responses conform to the requirements of section 
933.05 of the Penal Code. 
 
 
The foregoing report was duly approved by the 2013-2014 Grand Jury in regular session 
on March 18, 2014. 
 
/s/ 
 
Alan Galbraith 
Foreperson, 2013-2014 Grand Jury 

65



ATTACHMENT 2 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.1 

April 19, 2014 

 
 

625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559 
Telephone: (707) 259-8631 
Fax: (707) 259-8638 

 
 

 
April 16, 2014 
 
 
The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker 
Superior Court of California 
County of Napa 
825 Brown Street 
Napa, CA  94559 
 
 
RE:  Response to the Grand Jury 2013-14 Final Report titled VINE:  Management and 
Ridership for the Future dated March 18, 2014 
 
 
Dear Judge Boessenecker: 
 
The Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency Board of Directors has reviewed 
the March 18, 2014 Grand Jury Report titled VINE:  Management and Ridership for the 
Future, and its findings and recommendations contained therein.   The Grand Jury is to 
be commended for its work on behalf of the citizens of Napa County. We acknowledge 
the arduous undertaking of the Grand Jury and its commitment to produce an earnest 
and comprehensive report requiring the review hundreds of documents and an 
immense amount of data.   
 
This letter is intended to clarify some of the information included in the Background 
section of the report and to respond to the Findings and Recommendations. 
 
Clarifications: 
 

1) On page 1 of the report, it states, “[s]ince June 2006, there have been 22 
personnel changes in an agency population of 12.  This is almost a 200% 
turnover of personnel. . “ 
 
During the 8-year period, only 10 staff members left the agency, and two of these 
employees retired. 
 

2) On Page 3 of the report, it states “[i]n 2013, there were 25% more buses 
operating in Napa running 100% more frequently and many were still running 
nearly empty.”   
 
NCTPA can confirm that service frequency was increased from mostly 1 hour 
frequencies to mostly 30 minute and 45 minute frequencies.  At the same time, 

66



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 

NCTPA did not introduce 25% more buses, however, the revenue hours went 
from 140.77 per day to 179.79 hours or 27.7% increase in service.  The issue 
with empty buses is sometimes perceptional.  As an example, if a bus is 
observed during morning peak hours driving away from the central business 
district it is because passengers have been dropped off and the bus is 
“deadheading” back to the beginning of the route to pick up more passengers.  
NCTPA will be able to understand how many riders are on each route at anytime 
of the day when the automatic passenger counters that the NCTPA board 
approved in March are installed.   

 
3) On page 4 of the report, it states “. . .the agency expanded to non-transit 

missions that included road repairs, climate change, flood control and has 
become the transportation planning agency for Napa County.”    

 
The agency’s mission has never included road repairs, climate change, or flood 
control.  NCTPA’s mission is to serve as Napa County’s Congestion 
Management Agency and Transit Provider.  The agency passes through funds to 
the jurisdictions for road repairs and partners with the County’s jurisdiction and 
regional agencies on climate change but only as it relates to transportation 
planning efforts.   
 

4) On page 5 of the report, it states:  “In 2009, the total budget for NCTPA was $17 
million of which $4.7 million went to transit.” 

 
The total agency budget was $17.4 million.  The Public Transit portion of the 
budget was $7.6 million for operating and $4.6 million for capital.  (The VINE 
operating portion of that was $4.7 million and the capital $3.7 million).  The CMA 
budget was $5.1 million for operating and $74,250 for capital. 

 
5) On page 5 of the report, it states “The NCTPA budget for fiscal year 2012-2013 

was approximately $26 million of which $8.9 million was capital expenses. . .” 
 

These figures correspond to NCTPA’s FY 2013-14 budget, not its 2012-2013 
budget. 

 
6) On Page 6 of the report, it states “ . . $5.4 million was for the Congestion 

Management Authority, a state mandated entity. . .”.   
 

NCTPA is a Joint Powers Authority comprised of the jurisdictions in Napa County 
and performs the duties of a congestion management agency.  It is not a state 
mandated entity. 

 
7) On Page 6 of the report, it states “. . . Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

funds that are generated by a 0.25% sales tax that is controlled by the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC).”   

 

67



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 3 
 

TDA is a statewide sales tax.  NCTPA receives the revenues generated in the 
County of Napa.  TDA is a state statute and therefore, controlled by the State not 
MTC.  MTC administers the TDA revenues in the San Francisco Bay Area to 
ensure recipients of the funds meet the statutory requirements. 

 
8) On Page 6 of the report, it states “The Federal Transportation Agency (FTA) 

Provides Section 403 Formula Grants to the NCTPA . . .” 
 

NCTPA receives Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 Formula 
Grant funds. 

 
9) On Page 6 of the report, it states “The balance of the transit funds come from 

passenger fares and from the cities that support their services.”   
 

NCTPA does not receive revenues from the City/Town/County jurisdictions for 
VINE services.  NCTPA does receive subsidies from its smaller jurisdictions and 
Calistoga Tourism Bureau for NCTPA ancillary services in American Canyon, 
Yountville, St. Helena, and Calistoga.  These ancillary serves were not the 
subject of the Civil Grand Jury report. 

 
10) On Page 7 of the report, it states “. . .buses were far beyond their useful lifespan 

of 12 years, as set by the Federal government.”   
 

The federal government sets a minimum useful life of 12 years or 500,000 miles 
for heavy duty buses unless a special exception is made due to inherent 
mechanical failure, or if a bus is inoperable because of accidents, etc.  
 

11) On Page 7 of the report it states “Napa County accounting records [2001-2010] 
indicate that funds for new buses were accumulated but were not used.” 
 
Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) is not part of the 
County; therefore, Napa County’s accounting records should not be considered 
when assessing NCTPA.  NCTPA purchased eight vehicles between 2001 and 
2010 for its VINE services, as listed below.  It also purchased 9 other vehicles for 
its ancillary transit services. 
 
(4) 35’ New Flyer Gasoline-Hybrid Buses – purchased 8/30/09 
(4) 35’ New Flyer Gasoline Hybrid Buses– purchased 9/14/10 
 

12) On Page 8 of the report, it states “[i]n 2011 the bus service contractor Veolia was 
informed that it needed to improve its performance or its contract would not be 
renewed”. 
 
NCTPA has no recollection of issues with Veolia in 2011.  NCTPA acknowledges 
that safety concerns were considered an issue by NCTPA staff at the time of the 
2009 negotiations.  The Transit contract went out to bid earlier in 2009.  Staff did 

68



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 4 
 

not recommend awarding the contract to Veolia due to the aforementioned 
performance concerns.  The Board rejected the staff recommendation because 
the Board had no previous knowledge of the performance concerns and instead 
formed a committee comprised of NCTPA board members, NCTPA staff and 
Veolia staff.  The committee was named the Transit Efficiency Committee and 
was tasked by the Board to evaluate and report to the Board Veolia’s 
performance over a two year period.  NCTPA has been pleased with Veolia’s 
performance under the current contract. 
 

13) On Page 8 of the report, it states “[m]any Napa residents were concerned about 
the large number of bus purchases (as expressed by numerous letters to 
newspaper) in light of the perceived declining ridership.” 

 
NCTPA did not receive any negative letters, emails, or telephone calls about the 
purchase of new buses. 

 
14) On Page 9 of the report, it states “The dashboard includes cleanliness, 

maintenance, on time running, and safety information.”   
 

At the time of the Grand Jury evaluation, the dashboard included unlinked 
passenger trips and on time performance.  Previous versions of the dashboard 
(VINE Transit Services Ridership Report), reported only ridership.  Another report 
that was created as a result of the performances concerns mentioned above 
during the 2009 contract negotiations, the Transit Efficiency Committee report, 
included data on accidents, road calls, complaints, and on time performance.  
  

15) On Page 9 of the report, it states “This increased ridership encouraged 
management to project that the VINE can increase ridership throughout the 
system at a 20-30% growth rate per year over the next several years.” 

 
A 20-30% year over year growth rate would be extraordinary.  The significant 
bump in transit ridership in 2013 was the result of some major restructuring and 
expansion services.  NCTPA does not have the justification or the resources to 
continue to build out the system this way each year, and therefore does not 
anticipate this level of growth.   

 
16) On Page 9 of the report, it states “NCTPA hired a software consultant to adjust 

routes based on upon traffic conditions to meet the ridership demand of on-time 
performance.”   
 
NCTPA hired a consultant that specializes in transit scheduling software to 
optimize the VINE’s schedule in order improve stop time predictability, on-time 
performance, and to better align its schedule with actual running times. 

 
17) On Page 10 of the report, it states, “The VINE intends to initiate, as part of its 

strategic plan, a new regional SmartCard system.  When the SmartCard goes 

69



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 5 
 

into existence next year it will interface with all of the regional transit agencies 
and will provide one consolidated payment system for using transit systems 
throughout the San Francisco Bay Area.”   
 
The card is called Clipper and it is being implemented by MTC.  MTC administers 
Clipper and all transit operators in the Bay Area are required to use it.  It should 
be noted that the NCTPA Board is supportive of MTC’s Clipper program.  
 

18) On page 10 of the report, it states “[t]he annual marketing budget during the 
period of 2009-2012 averaged $145,864 whereas the 2013 SRTP calls for an 
annual marketing budget of $222,327 . . .[t]he VINE had only spent 
approximately $22,000 of the annual marketing budget for VINE promotion, 
approximately 10% over five months for a fiscal year that began July 1,2013” 
 
The annual marketing budget for the FY 2009-2012 was $144,074.  This is 
largely because a marketing budget was not identified for FY 2009, which 
reduced the overall average.  Nevertheless $28,410 in marketing expenditures 
was recorded in FY 2009.  The marketing budget for FY 2013 was $227,000, and 
by the end of December 2012, halfway through the FY 2013, $114,900 in 
marketing expenses was encumbered and $36,021 was expended. 

 
19) On Page 11 of the report, it refers to a fund source titled “original Measure 2”. 

 
NCTPA believes that Civil Grand Jury intended this to read Regional Measure 2.  
NCTPA does not receive a revenue source called Original Measure 2. 

 
20) On Page 12 of the report, it states “The fueling for buses is done at a natural gas 

facility on Redwood Road and Solano Avenue. . .” 
 

NCTPA only has 9 buses that run on compressed natural gas buses.  All other 
vehicles run on diesel or gasoline, and therefore, fueling happens at various 
stations around the County. 

 
Findings: 
 
Finding 1 During 2003-2008 few new buses were purchased while NCTPA expanded 
its role from solely transit to planning, traffic congestion and other activities. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board agrees with the finding in part.  During 2003-2008, 
NCTPA purchased 12 vehicles or roughly 15% of its current fleet.  NCTPA has served 
as the county’s congestion management agency since its inception in 1998.  The 
agency at one time also served as the Napa Commission for Arts and Culture but that 
role was assumed by the County of Napa in July 2013. It also facilitated the sub-
regional housing needs allocation (RHNA) and served as the County’s Vehicle 
Abatement Authority.   
 

70



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 6 
 
 
Finding 2 According to data collected during the period of 2001 to 2012, VINE ridership 
declined by more than 50% 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board agrees with the finding.  There are a number of factors 
that led to this ridership drop.  The agency was forced to increase fares due to revenue 
decline as a result of the recession.  Second, traffic congestion was significantly lighter 
during the recession making it more convenient to drive.  Fares and service have since 
been adjusted, new marketing programs implemented, fuel prices are up and traffic 
congestion is up to pre-recession levels all contributing to ridership gains. 
 
Finding 3 NCTPA has had more than $10 million rolled over annually in its reserve TDA 
fund since 2009 that can be used for transit related capital expenses with MTC 
approval. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board agrees with this finding.  The funding has been held in 
reserve to replace buses and to build a new maintenance facility.  The existing 
maintenance facility is no longer sufficient to service and park the number of buses that 
NCTPA currently operates, and constrained operations is impinging on operating funds.  
Also NCTPA holds 25% of its annual budget in reserve for transit operations to protect 
against economic downturns and fluctuations in revenues. 
 
Finding 4 There was major restructuring of NCTPA management and of the Veolia 
contractor during 2009-2011 and between 2009 and 2013 31 new buses were 
purchased for the VINE Routes. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding.  Veolia replaced its general 
manager around the time of the 2009 contract negotiations.  The NCTPA transit 
manager retired in 2011 and was replaced by NCTPA’s Finance Manager.   NCTPA 
also hired a new finance manager in 2011. In 2011, the Veolia General Manager hired 
around the time of the contract negotiations resigned and a replacement was hired.  
The NCTPA and Veolia events are unrelated, and therefore, “major restructuring” is a 
mischaracterization of the events.  Between 2009 and 2013 38 new buses were 
purchased.  There is no correlation between the purchase of new buses and the 
employment changes.   
 
Finding 5 A new Vine Transit Center and consolidated NCTPA office complex was 
completed in December 2012. 
 
Response: The NCTPA Board agrees with this finding in part.  NCTPA moved into the 
new Soscol Gateway Transit Center in December 2012, receiving a temporary 
occupancy permit from the City.  The notice of completion was filed on September 20, 
2013. 
 
Finding 6 A redesigned VINE route system began service December 3, 2012 and had 
positive growth in ridership numbers over the first nine months of 2013. 

71



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 7 
 
 
Response: The NCTPA Board agrees with this finding. 
 
Finding 7 A monthly VINE dashboard for the NCTA Board of Directors (BOD) was 
implemented in 2012, reporting on ridership, maintenance, cleanliness, frequency of on-
time running, and safety that showed in 2013, VINE buses were clean, running twice as 
often, and meeting on-time targets. 
 
Response: The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding. The monthly VINE dashboard 
was introduced in 2011.  The report included unlinked passenger trips (“ridership”), on-
time performance (“frequency of on time running”) and accidents.  The report did not 
include information about cleanliness or maintenance.  There was no information 
included in the report that indicated the buses were” running twice as often”.  The report 
did show that on-time performance had improved. 
 
Finding 8 There is a lack of community awareness of numerous route changes, 
additional routes and other significant improvement in VINE transit services as 
documented in the NCTPA consultant ILIUM Associate’s 2011 Marketing Plan 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding.  The ILIUM Associates study 
was completed in 2011.  The new route changes were implemented in 2012. The report 
states that “[o]ne-in-four (26%) riders rated the service as Fair or Poor for the criteria 
System Easy to Understand. One would expect that current riders would have a better 
understanding of the service as 87% are riding the service at least once a week..”  
NCTPA has not surveyed the public on the question of ‘easy to understand’ since the 
route restructuring in December of 2012 but will include the question in its next survey. 
 
Finding 9 Marketing of the VINE bus service is not perceived as a high priority for 
NCTPA management and thus the annual marketing budgets for the VINE are not being 
fully deployed consistently.  Only 10% of the NCTPA marketing budget had been spent 
six months in the present (FY 14) fiscal year. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding.  Marketing of the VINE bus 
service is a high priority for NCTPA management.  At the time of the interviews, the Civil 
Grand Jury was informed that a more refined strategy for how the revenues would be 
spent was being considered to ensure the revenues were maximized to provide the 
biggest bang for the buck.  The actual budget, expenditures and encumbrances from 
July 1 to December 31 in FY 2014 was:   budgeted - $ 227,000, encumbered - 
$114,900, expended - $36,021 
 
Finding 10 Open since December 2012, the new NCTPA Office/Vine Transit Center 
does not have any visible street or building signage to help direct riders to the Transit 
Center and VINE buses and bus shelters lack consistent branding/signage, not 
optimizing potential advertising revenue and marketing opportunities. 
 

72



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 8 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board agrees with this finding.  The signage for the Soscol 
Gateway Transit Center (SGTC) was part of the building contract with F&H 
Construction. F&H contracted with a sign maker but concerns about the company’s 
technical capacity was put into question when signs produced by the company for other 
purposes on the property were substandard.  NCTPA negotiated a reduction in the 
contract and elected to identify other sign makers for the main building signage. NCTPA 
is currently working on final bids for the building signage and anticipating awarding a 
contract within the next month.  We are also working with the City to request wayfinding 
signage be installed at strategic locations directing visitors and members of the 
community to the transit center.  NCTPA also released a RFP well over a year ago for 
advertising services and received no bids.  Subsequent to that time, NCTPA staff 
solicited interest to partner on an advertising program from the five transit operators in 
Solano County who were also having trouble identifying suitable advertising firms.   Of 
the five contacted, four indicated interest and a joint RFP was released.  NCTPA and its 
partners are currently evaluating the proposal received. 
 
Finding 11 In the spring of 2013 the Route 29 service received special grant funds to 
conduct an extensive advertising (billboard, television and radio) campaign that 
increased ridership, demonstrating the effectiveness of a marketing campaign. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board agrees with this finding in part.  NCTPA received a grant 
but did not complete subsequent surveying to ascertain whether the increase in 
ridership was solely the result of the marketing campaign. 
 
Finding 12 VINE services are not optimally promoted on website home pages of the 
incorporated jurisdictions.  American Canyon, Yountville, and Calistoga websites have 
links that contain information about transportation services including the VINE.  The 
home pages of Napa and St. Helena lack such links.   
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board agrees with this finding in part.  The only jurisdiction that 
currently does not have a link to the VINE on their website is the City of St. Helena, 
which resulted when the site was updated.  We are working with the jurisdictions to 
ensure that transit information is displayed more prominently. 
 
Finding 13 The VINE currently does not employ sufficient financial, quantitative and 
qualitative metrics, indicators toward adaptive (learning-based) management in 
decision-making to constantly improve transit operations and ridership service. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding.  NCTPA is implementing 
similar strategies as part of its countywide transportation plan which includes transit.  
NCTPA also adopted service policies that create standards of service with performance 
metrics that alert staff when service may need to be adjusted because of poor 
performance. 
 

73



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 9 
 
Finding 14 Planning for VINE proper (Napa inner-city) routes does not utilize Transit 
Oriented Development (TOD) methodologies for achieving the most sustainable 
transportation route designs. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding.  TOD methodologies 
generally refer to the land use development of areas served by transit, rather than how 
transit service is designed.  NCTPA’s involvement in land use is limited to facilitating the 
sub-regional housing needs allocation and providing planning support for priority 
development areas in Napa County.   There are currently no TODs within the service 
areas for which VINE provides service.    
 
Finding 15 NCTPA lacks a coordinated logistics management system for its many 
different facilities including the transit center, maintenance area, bus parking, and 
fueling facility which results in an inefficient operation. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding.  NCTPA coordinates with its 
transit contractor to provide computer aided dispatch and automatic vehicle location that 
can identify at any given time which operator is in which vehicle on which route in the 
system, including where the vehicle  is located, including at which stop, at the 
maintenance facility, transit center, park and ride lot, or whether it’s in route.   NCTPA 
does not currently have any fueling facilities.   
 
Finding 16  As demands increase upon its role in congestion management and 
transportation planning, particularly from the increased traffic in American Canyon and 
on Route 29 throughout the Valley, the NCTPA BOD’s time allocated to the VINE may 
not be sufficient in light of the VINE’s increasing directional needs regarding marketing, 
other ridership incentives, and long-term planning. 
 
Response:  The NCTPA Board disagrees with this finding.   There is no specific time 
allocated for the various issues that the NCTPA Board of Directors has been tasked to 
address.  The Board allocates its time based upon the urgency of the subject, the 
interest of the community, and/or to meet regulatory or legislative requirements. 
 
Recommendations 
 
Recommendation 1.  The Grand Jury recommends that the BOD adopt and follow a 
capital budget that anticipates maintenance and equipment acquisitions, projects out 
costs and funding mechanisms, and monitors implementation with a consistent progress 
reporting method.  If the recommendation is not implementable in the current fiscal year, 
then it should be implemented in FY 2014/15. 
 
Response:  This recommendation has been implemented. Each year as part of the 
annual budgeting process, the Board approves the capital expenditures for the year.  
The capital budget is developed from the Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP), a 10 year 
plan that also identifies capital needs.  The costs to operate and maintain each capital 

74



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 10 
 
purchase items is included in the 5 year operating  budget projections that are provided 
to the Board quarterly, and in the 10 year budget projections included in the SRTP. 
 
Recommendation 2.  The Grand Jury recommends that the BOD evaluate at least 
annually, with careful prior analysis by staff, any needed major acquisitions such as 
buses , maintenance yards, and fueling stations, with the goal of achieving the efficient 
integration of transit operations. 
 
Response:  This recommendation has been implemented.  As previously stated under 
our response in Recommendation 1 above, the Board reviews needed major 
acquisitions as part of the SRTP and as part of each annual budget. On major capital 
improvements, plans are completed to understand specific needs, costs, and resources 
required to implement a project.  As an example, the Board just received the Bus 
Maintenance Yard/Fueling Facility Feasibility Study to better understand the agency’s 
needs.  The facility is currently in the Short Range Plans and as the project is 
implemented, the capital needs and financing costs will be included in successive 
budgeting exercises. 
 
Recommendation 3.  The Grand Jury recommends the BOD to explore ways to 
improve NCTPA management retention such as merit pay or other incentives, and put 
in place for the coming fiscal year. 
 
Response:  This recommendation requires further analysis.  The NCTPA Board 
appreciates the Grand Jury’s suggestion and will take it under advisement.  It should be 
noted, however, that the agency has been existence since 1998 and has only had four 
executive directors in its 16 year history; and two of them retired from NCTPA.   
 
Recommendation 4.  The Grand Jury recommends planning out the use of the $10 
million reserve fund to meet transit’s existing needs over the next 10 year, including 
capital expenses and marketing cost by the beginning if the next fiscal year.    
 
Response:  This recommendation has been implemented.  The agency has planned out 
its capital and operating needs over the next 10 years and it is included in its SRTP.  
The SRTP is updated every 4 to 5 years; however, every two years NCTPA produces a 
“mini” SRTP which includes updates to its capital and operating programs as mandated 
by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission.   
 
Recommendation 5.  NCTPA Should consistently utilize the Napa County Short Range 
Transit Plan FY 2013-2022 (June 2013) for guidance in the sustainable operation of the 
Napa transit system with timely progress reports to the Board of Directors (BOD) put in 
place by June 2014.   
 
Response:  This recommendation has been implemented.  The SRTP is referred to 
frequently in both setting the groundwork for operations and for the annual development 
of the operating and capital budget.  In conjunction with the budget process, NCTPA 
staff develops and the Board adopts an overall work plan (OWP) which establishes the 

75



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 11 
 
number of staff hours required to complete various tasks and projects over the course of 
the year.  The Board receives quarterly updates on the budget, quarterly updates on 
transit operations and performance (and more frequently as needed), and semi-annually 
OWP updates. 
 
Recommendation 6.  NCTPA should develop financial, qualitative and quantitative 
reporting metrics that will identify problems in standards of system performance so 
operation corrections can be made through adaptive management actions, with those 
metrics in place by the end of the current fiscal year. 
 
Response:  This recommendation has been implemented.  Service Policies and 
performance metrics are adopted by the Board and are summarized in NCTPA’s 
SRTPs.  The most recent Service Policies were adopted in March 2013.  The Board 
also receives 5 year financial projections quarterly. 
 
Recommendation 7.  NCTPA should install at a minimum temporary signage as soon 
as possible for the new Transit Center that can be seen from Soscol Avenue and install 
a complete and consistent branding and marketing signage system for the center, 
buses, bus shelters, within ninety (90) days of this report. 
 
Response:  This recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted 
and is not reasonable.  As previously discussed, the building signage was part of the 
original SGTC contract but other building signs produced by the subcontractor were 
substandard. Consequently NCTPA canceled the contract and solicited a sign 
contractor elsewhere.   NCTPA is currently evaluating three quotes.  Each of the quotes 
is deficient in some way and we are unable to proceed until the issues are resolved.  
Temporary signage would require that we work with the city planning staff on alternative 
signage design, release another RFP which would create unnecessary delay, 
inefficiencies and costs. 
 
Recommendation 8.  NCTPA should implement within the current fiscal year a 
coordinated VINE marketing strategy with each Napa County jurisdiction so that 
NCTPA’s transit services are readily available and consistently communicated across all 
public, community and visitor websites. 
 
Response:  This recommendation will be implemented within 90 days.  NCTPA will work 
with the jurisdictions and visitor sites and request that information about the VINE and 
its ancillary services are consistently communicated.  It should be noted that NCTPA 
has no authority to demand that Napa’s jurisdictions or its visitor sites comply with this 
request. 
 
Recommendation 9.  The Grand Jury recommends NCTPA contract with an agency 
with transit expertise to develop and implement appropriate marketing efforts to targeted 
ridership populations and major employers that will drive awareness of all VINE services 
and improve ridership within the current and for the future fiscal year. 
 

76



The Honorable Mark A. Boessenecker  
April 16, 2014 
Page 12 
 
Response:  This recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted 
and is not reasonable.  Most transit operators spend approximately 1% of its budget on 
marketing.  The NCTPA Board allocates roughly 2% of the VINE budget on marketing.   
The NCTPA board is pleased with the marketing effort and acknowledges that 
professional support could enhance the marketing materials but is concerned that an 
advertising professional would consume a significant share of the agency’s annual 
budget for marketing. 
 
Recommendation 10.  NCTPA should explore, adopt and apply sustainability design 
tools such as TOD to determine ideal alterations to transit services within the 2014 
calendar year. 
 
Response:  This recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted 
and is not reasonable.  NCTPA staff take courses, and attend conferences regularly to 
learn about new trends and technologies in transit.  Professionals in the field of transit in 
rural and suburban areas are often consulted in order to ensure that NCTPA transit 
services are utilizing the most up to date technologies and employing state of the art 
practices.  TODs are neighborhoods that are designed by cities and towns. There are 
times that a transit partner may participate if development occurs on a property owned 
by that transit operator but transit operators rarely initiate such developments.  
 
Once again, NCTPA appreciates the efforts undertaken by the Grand Jury, and invites 
any questions that you may have.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Keith Caldwell 
NCTPA Chair 

77



                        ATTACHMENT 3 

NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.1 

                             April 16, 2014

78



79



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION/ACTION 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Justin Paniagua, Accounting Technician 
       (707) 259-8781 / Email: jpaniagua@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: First Reading of Draft NCTPA FY 2014-15 Budget 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board review and 
provide comment on the FY 2014-15 NCTPA annual operating and capital budget in the 
amount of $20,795,400.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The first reading of the draft FY 2014-15 NCTPA budget is being presented to the 
NCTPA Board of Director’s for review and comment.  A budget committee review 
comprised of Chair Caldwell, Vice Chair Dunbar, and staff occurred on April 4th and an 
optional budget committee review may occur in May if deemed necessary or requested 
by the Board.  The final FY 2014-15 NCTPA budget will be presented to the Board in 
May for adoption. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR PROPOSED BUDGET 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
  

 

80

mailto:jpaniagua@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 2 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  Yes.  $20,795,400 for the draft budget comprised of: 

(1) Operating budget of $15,589,100 
(2) Capital budget of $2,944,300 
(3) Depreciation budget of $2,062,000 
 

Depreciation expense is a “non-cash” recognized expense used for reporting purposes.  
Final budget figures may change prior to the May Board meeting.  Staff will highlight any 
substantive changes that are made to the draft budget prior to the Board’s adoption at 
its May meeting. 
 
Is it Currently Budgeted?  No.  
 
Where is it budgeted? N/A 
 
Is it Mandatory or Discretionary?  N/A 
 
Future Fiscal Impact:  N/A 
 
Consequences if not approved:  This is an informational item. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION  
 
This is a first reading of NCTPA’s fiscal year annual budget.  The NCTPA Board of 
Directors is required to adopt an annual budget by June 30th for the upcoming fiscal 
year.  The Agency updated its financial forecast several times in the past year in 
preparation for the annual budget.  NCTPA also conducted an ad-hoc budget review 
with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board in April.  
 
During the review and comment period between the April and May Board meetings, 
Board members and the public will have the opportunity to ask questions about sources 
of funding, reason for expenditures, purpose of capital purchases, and any other topics 
associated with the budget development.  Revisions to the draft budget may be made in 
response to comments during the review period.   
  

81



Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 3 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Economic Forecast and Strategies 
 
Revenue indicators show that that the local economy continued to recover through FY 
2013-2014.  This was reflected in an increase in quarterly collections of Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) sales tax receipts.  TDA revenue comprises approximately 41% 
of NCTPA’s operating revenues.   
 
The balance of NCTPA’s revenues come from a number of federal and local sources, 
including 28% from Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and other federal sources,  
10% from farebox revenues (blended rate of 15% when only looking at the Public 
Transit Fund); 19% from Regional/Local Sources, and 2% from local pass through 
funds.   
 
Federal sources continue to be in a state of flux due to Congress’ inability to pass a long 
term authorization bill.  Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) is a 
two-year bill which largely maintains existing funding levels with a small increase for 
inflation. However, MAP-21 did not resolve how future transportation authorization bills 
will be funded as current 18.4 cents per gallon fuel tax is insufficient to support existing 
transportation infrastructure spending.  Insufficient revenue generations will continue to 
put a damper on the development of a MAP-21 successor legislation. 
 
The volatility of fuel prices will likely continue in FY 2014-15 as a result of market 
speculation and instability in oil producing regions.  The implementation of AB32 to 
include fuel producers may have an impact on wholesale fuel prices in the coming year.  
As a result we have increased our fuel contingency from 10% to 20% in hopes of 
capturing any increased cost which may occur.  Napa’s geographic location and limited 
fueling options, particularly for compressed natural gas, will continue to influence 
NCTPA’s fueling costs.  Stabilizing fuel costs and supply will be of paramount 
importance in the coming years. 
 
In FY 2014-15, ridership trends are expected to show another year over year increase, 
reversing several years of declines.  With the route revisions implemented in December 
2012 and continued focused marketing efforts, ridership increases are expected to 
continue but begin to level out.  Fare revenue is expected to increase nominally over the 
next fiscal year.  The fare increases are partially due to the new fareboxes which has 
stabilized revenue collections and accountability of the system.   
 
NCTPA staff continuously monitors and reports on long term financial forecasts in order 
maintain sufficient funding levels for service delivery, agency operations, maintenance 
and capital needs, and to ensure that the agency can balance and attain its long and 
short term objectives and goals.  Financial forecasts can guide staff to determine the 
level of service that is sustainable over a long period of time.  Forecasts and fiscal 
strategies also optimize the level of reserves that should be maintained, informs staff 
when reserves can be increased during economically robust times, in order to 
safeguard operational stability during fiscally challenging times. 

82



Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 4 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
The proposed budget employs sound strategies and fiscal discipline in order to sustain 
operational objectives, maintain the capital investments in a state of good repair, make 
necessary capital improvements to enhance operational efficiencies and improve 
agency operations. 
 
FY 2014-15 NCTPA Budget Discussion 
 
The proposed FY 2014-15 budget is a balanced budget which was achieved by 
minimizing expenditures and funding operations and capital purchases with reasonably 
anticipated operating and grants revenues.  This was accomplished by establishing 
project priorities and ensuring that funds will remain available for critical capital and 
operating needs.   
 
NCTPA has established operational and capital goals, which are reflected in the 
proposed budget.  The budget proposal reflects the efforts made to meet the agency’s 
new and existing responsibilities to the community while minimizing costs.  As such, 
staff anticipates that these goals and objectives can be achieved with existing staffing 
levels.  This may require the reallocation of staff to address new responsibilities such as 
ramping up Measure T administration, maintaining the efficiency of transit services, and 
assisting with Priority Development Area improvements.     
 
NCTPA Top Five Budgeted Expenses 
 

1. Purchase Transportation 
2. Professional Fees 
3. Fuel 
4. Personnel Costs 
5. Vehicle Maintenance 

 
NCTPA Planning and Administration 
 
The NCTPA administrative and planning budget is supported by Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Planning funds, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) funds 
distributed by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and planning funds 
from Caltrans.  NCTPA’s FY 2014-15 planning and administration expenses are 
expected to be $5,323,600, a decrease of 0.4% over last fiscal year’s budget of 
$5,346,748.  This decrease is primarily due to decrease in the consulting services 
budget.  A list of Congestion Management Agency (CMA) and transit projects is 
included as Attachment 1.   
  

83



Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 5 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
NCTPA Public Transit Services 
 
The Transit operating budget represents the cost for the VINE, VINE Go, Taxi Scrip 
Program, American Canyon Transit, Yountville Trolley, the St. Helena Shuttle, and 
Calistoga Shuttle, which combined, provide over 722,000 passenger trips per year, and 
are anticipated to exceed 800,000 in FY 2014-15.   
 
Public transit expenses are expected to decrease by 1.3% in the new fiscal year. The 
budget reflects maintaining service at current levels last year’s budget included costs 
associated with continued expansion of services. Service levels have also been 
increased on the St. Helena Shuttle, and $171,700 has also been proposed as an 
operating contingency (not including the fuel contingency) for other possible system 
operating enhancements and adjustments.   
 
Fuel costs have decreased because of newer more efficient buses as well as a 
decrease in CNG prices. Fuel is budgeted at $3.76 per gallon on average.  If fuel costs 
rise for a prolonged period of time, the agency will need to use revenues set aside for 
fuel contingency. 
 
VINE 
The VINE budget proposal recommends a 0.3% increase in overall expenses due to 
increased purchased transportation costs offset by reductions in other parts of the 
budget.  As previously mentioned, the budget reflects 12 full months of maintaining 
current service levels.   
 
VINE Go (Paratransit) 
The VINE Go budget proposal recommends a proposed 2.8% decrease due mainly to a 
decrease in budgeted fuel costs. Other than a small increase for purchase 
transportation and an increase in ITS service costs, no other material changes have 
been included in the budget.   
 
American Canyon Transit 
The American Canyon Transit budget proposal recommends a 1% increase due to a 
slight increase in overhead costs, as well as a modest increase for purchase 
transportation. 
 
St. Helena Shuttle 
St. Helena Shuttle budget proposal recommends a 1.1% increase in costs due to an 
increase in fuel and operations contingencies.  No other material changes are proposed 
at this time.  However, a grant has been applied for to study the feasibility of providing 
service to Angwin.  The result of this grant application is still to be determined.  
  

84



Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 6 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Yountville Trolley 
The Yountville Trolley budget proposal recommends a 19.7% decrease due to purchase 
transportation and fuel costs aligning more narrowly with actual FY13-14 costs. 
 
Calistoga Shuttle 
The Calistoga Shuttle budget proposal recommends a 6.8% increase due to more 
closely match FY 2013-2014 actual costs. 
 
Taxi Scrip Program 
The Taxi Scrip Program budget proposal recommends a 47.1% decrease.  The pricing 
redesign of this program has finally met its original expectations.  Taxi Scrip payments 
per month were averaging $13,800 before the changes, in FY13-14 they are averaging 
just $5,200.  
 
VINE Facilities 
For FY14-15 a new budget subdivision has been added.  This addition reflects the 
accounting department’s goal of accurately tracking costs and in this case tracking 
costs associated with NCTPA park & ride facilities and its transit yard.  The VINE 
Facilities budget is $88,700 comprised of overhead costs which were charged to the 
VINE in prior years.  These costs will be allocated to the individual transit services at the 
end of the year to the building maintenance account.  With this new subdivision we 
hope to better understand our facilities costs which will become central when our new 
transit yard is in operation.  
 
Capital Projects 
Capital investments are detailed in Attachment 1.  Of the total proposed capital 
investments, 61% are carryover projects which were approved in FY 2013-14, but will 
not be delivered until FY 2014-15.  As such, Board approval is necessary to allocate 
budget for these projects in FY 2014-15. The remaining 39% of the projects listed are 
new.  Investments for the fiscal year include procuring additional vehicles, equipment, 
and facilities.  The total capital projects budget has decreased by 64.7% due to the 
completion of several equipment and vehicle purchases as well as the completion of the 
Soscol Gateway Transit Center.    
 
Fare Policy 
Projections indicate that NCTPA may have to increase fares to meet its statutory 
farebox recovery ratio.  NCTPA is currently in the early stages of developing a 
comprehensive fare policy.  The intent of the fare policy will be to guide future decisions 
on fare changes based on a set of criteria currently under development.  The fare policy 
will also address the relevant challenges associated with fare changes such as Title IV, 
farebox ratio requirements and market conditions. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Draft NCTPA FY 2014-15 Budget 

85



Budget Inputs-CONSOLIDATED  CMA and PUBLIC TRANSIT
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Includes AVAA and TFCA (for Informational Purposes)

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                             
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED BUDGET                  
FY 2013-14

DRAFT BUDGET 
FY2014-15 $ Difference % Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 1,188,600               1,317,560                   128,960                         10.8%
2 Farebox Contribution 94,800                    94,900                        100                                0.1%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue 52,900                    92,900                        40,000                           75.6%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 1,336,300                  1,505,360                   169,060                            12.7%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 6,289,670               6,314,540                   24,870                           0.4%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL
9 Federal: FTA 5307,Operating 1,563,100               1,552,900                   (10,200)                         -0.7%

10 Federal: FTA 5311 Operaing 670,900                  550,500                      (120,400)                       -17.9%
11 Federal: FHWA 20.205 998,000                  1,000,000                   2,000                             0.2%
12 Federal: Other 1,250,000               1,250,000                   -                                0.0%
13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 1,494,600               1,250,100                   (244,500)                       -16.4%
14 Regional: Other 461,700                  461,700                      -                                0.0%
15 Regional: MTC 425,000                  425,000                      -                                0.0%
16 PPM 117,000                  117,000                      -                                0.0%
17 State: Other 549,700                  549,700                      -                                0.0%
18 Jurisdictions 236,300                  236,300                      -                                0.0%
19 TFCA 200,000                  200,000                      -                                0.0%
20 TFCA Admin 10,000                    10,000                        -                                0.0%
21 AVAA 136,000                  136,000                      -                                0.0%
22 Interfund Revenue 335,000                  352,000                      17,000                           5.1%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 8,112,300                  7,739,200                   (373,100)                          -4.6%
24
25 INTEREST 27,600                    30,000                        2,400                             8.7%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES $15,765,870 $15,589,100 -$176,770 -1.1%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
32 Salaries and Wages 1,238,800               1,295,000                          56,200                           4.5%
33 Employer Payroll Taxes 36,000                    37,200                                1,200                             3.3%
34 Retirement 143,300                  156,000                             12,700                           8.9%
35 Dental/Vision/Life/LTD 24,000                    24,000                                -                                0.0%
36 Health 145,000                  159,600                             14,600                           10.1%
37 Medicare 17,400                    18,700                                1,300                             7.5%
38 Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 3,000                      3,000                                  -                                0.0%
39 Workers Compensation 8,400                      10,200                                1,800                             21.4%
40 OPEB Contribution 27,000                    40,000                                13,000                           48.1%
41 457 Employer Contribution 12,000                    12,000                                -                                0.0%
42 Other Benefits Expense 600                         600                                     -                                0.0%
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit (1,100)                    -                                      1,100                             -100.0%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 1,654,400                  1,756,300                   101,900                            6.2%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
47 Administration Services 12,300                    12,300                     -                                0.0%
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 97,000                    96,700                     (300)                              -0.3%
49 Information Technology Service 94,548                    105,400                   10,852                           11.5%
50 Legal Services 74,000                    90,500                     16,500                           22.3%
51 Temporary/Contract Help 20,000                    20,000                     -                                0.0%
52 Professional Fees 2,974,500               2,780,000                (194,500)                       -6.5%
53 Security Services 49,000                    51,800                     2,800                             5.7%
54 Maintenance-Equipment 47,000                    10,000                     (37,000)                         -78.7%
55 Purchase Transportation 7,716,002               7,764,500                48,498                           0.6%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 58,800                    138,700                   79,900                           135.9%
57 Maintenance- Software 45,000                    36,000                     (9,000)                           -20.0%
58 Maintenance-Vehicles 237,000                  112,000                   (125,000)                       -52.7%
59 Rents and Leases - Equipment 9,600                      9,000                       (600)                              -6.3%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 35,000                    36,000                     1,000                             2.9%
61 Insurance - Premiums 70,000                    55,000                     (15,000)                         -21.4%
62 Communications/Telephone 8,400                      8,500                       100                                1.2%
63 Advertising/Marketing 227,000                  140,000                   (87,000)                         -38.3%
64 Printing & Binding 61,200                    60,000                     (1,200)                           -2.0%
65 Bank Charges 1,200                      4,500                       3,300                             275.0%
66 Public/ Legal Notices 5,200                      6,000                       800                                15.4%
67 Training Conference Expenses 45,000                    32,000                     (13,000)                         -28.9%
68 Business Travel/Mileage 5,000                      7,500                       2,500                             50.0%
69 Office Expenses 38,000                    35,200                     (2,800)                           -7.4%
70 Freight/Postage 6,600                      6,000                       (600)                              -9.1%
71 Books/Periodicals/Subscriptions 4,000                      4,000                       -                                0.0%
72 Memberships/Certifications 21,900                    30,000                     8,100                             37.0%
73 Utilities - Electric 50,400                    20,000                     (30,400)                         -60.3%
74 Fuel 1,603,700               1,503,100                (100,600)                       -6.3%
75 AVAA 136,000                  136,000                   -                                0.0%
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 139,800                  300,400                   160,600                         114.9%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 218,320                  221,700                   3,380                             1.5%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 14,111,470                13,832,800                 (278,670)                       -2.0%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS $15,765,870 $15,589,100 -$176,770 -1.1%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                      -                       -                            0.0%
83

84 Depreciation Expense 1,762,000               2,062,000                300,000                         17.0%
85
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
90 Federal: FTA 5307, Capital 2,456,000               -                             (2,456,000)                    -100.0%
91 State: Prop. 1B Capital 406,000                  680,700                      274,700                         67.7%
92 RM2 Capital 200,000                  200,000                      -                                0.0%
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) 5,647,800               1,968,600                   (3,679,200)                    -65.1%
94 Other Government Agencies 192,000                  95,000                        (97,000)                         -50.5%
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES 8,901,800                  2,944,300                   (5,957,500)                       -66.9%

96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98
99 Security Equipment 25,000                       130,000                             105,000                         420.0%

100 Equipment 1,180,000                  1,110,000                          (70,000)                         -5.9%
101 Vehicles 3,682,800                  454,200                             (3,228,600)                    -87.7%
102 Buildings- Transit Center 100,000                     250,000                             150,000                         150.0%
103 Buildings & Improvements 3,914,000                  1,000,100                          (2,913,900)                    -74.4%
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 8,901,800                  2,944,300                   (5,957,500)                       -66.9%
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                      -                       -                            0.0%

TOTAL BUDGET 26,429,670$              20,595,400$               (5,834,270)$                  -22.1%

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET 15,765,870$              15,589,100$               (176,770)$                     -1.1%

Increase w/o Contingencies (442,650)                -2.9%

PUBLIC TRANSIT STATISTICS

Estimated Passengers 702,400                     925,100                      
Cost Per Passenger $15.31 $10.97
Estimated Service Hours 115,365                     131,600                      
Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $87.65 $74.42

OTHER NOTES

$4.50
Price Per Gallon of Fuel
Approximately 400,000 gallons
(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

86



V1. V2. V3. F1. F2. F3. F4. E2. E3. E.8 E4. E5. E6. E.7

TOTALS 3 VINE Go Vans
American Canyon 

Replacement Vehicles
Used Rolling Stock

PNR Lot 

Enhancements

NV College NB 

Shelter

American Canyon 

Park & Ride

SG Transit Center 

Enhancements

Asset Management 

Database
CAD-AVL

Automatic Voice 

Annunciator
POS System

Transit Yard 

Equipment 

Upgrades

Security 

Enhancements - 

Bus Cameras 

Phase 1

Electric Vehicle 

Charging 

Infrastructure

8302001 8302004 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002 8302002

Secured Secured Secured Secured Awaiting 1B Bond Sale Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured

Funding Source:

FTA State of Good Repair 80,000                  80,000            

STATE: TDA (LTF) 1,968,600             19,000                  50,000                  50,000                  284,600                250,000                250,000                50,000                  750,000                65,000             70,000             130,000          

STATE: Prop. 1B 600,700                232,700                152,500                215,500                

MTC: RM2 Capital 200,000                50,000                  150,000                

Other Funds 95,000                  $20,000 $75,000

TOTAL FOR YEAR $2,944,300 $251,700 $152,500 $50,000 $100,000 $500,100 $400,000 $250,000 $50,000 $750,000 $65,000 $70,000 $80,000 $150,000 $75,000

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $2,944,300 $251,700 $152,500 $50,000 $100,000 $500,100 $400,000 $250,000 $50,000 $750,000 $65,000 $70,000 $80,000 $150,000 $75,000

Approved FY11/12 Approved FY11/12 Approved FY11/12 Approved FY11/12 Approved FY11/12 Approved FY13/14 Approved FY11/12

Carryover, Previously approved $1,704,300 58%

New Projects $1,240,000 42%

$2,944,300 100%

NEW CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 2014-2015

PROJECT

DEPT

FUNDING STATUS

FACILITIESVEHICLES EQUIPMENT

87



Budget Inputs-CMA
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F
Includes AVAA and TFCA (for Informational Purposes)

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED 
BUDGET                  

FY 2013-14
DRAFT BUDGET 

FY2014-15 $ Difference % Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox -                          -                             -                      0.0%
2 Farebox Contribution -                          -                             -                      0.0%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue -                          -                             -                      0.0%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE -                             -                             -                         0.0%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 1,010,048               967,900                     (42,148)               -4.2%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL

11 Federal: FHWA 998,000                  1,000,000                  2,000                   0.2%
12 Federal: Other 1,250,000               1,250,000                  -                      0.0%
13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) -                          -                             -                      0.0%
14 Regional: Other 461,700                  461,700                     -                      0.0%
15 Regional: MTC 35,000                    35,000                       -                      0.0%
16 PPM 117,000                  117,000                     -                      0.0%
17 State: Other 549,700                  549,700                     -                      0.0%
18 Jurisdictions 236,300                  236,300                     -                      0.0%
19 TFCA 200,000                  200,000                     -                      0.0%
20 TFCA Admin 10,000                    10,000                       -                      0.0%
21 AVAA 136,000                  136,000                     -                      0.0%
22 Public Transit Salary Chargeback 335,000                  352,000                     17,000                 5.1%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 4,328,700                  4,347,700                  19,000                    0.4%
24
25 INTEREST 8,000                      8,000                         -                      0.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 5,346,748           5,323,600            (23,148)            -0.4%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
32 Salaries and Wages* 1,238,800               1,295,000                         56,200                 4.5%
33 Employer Payroll Taxes 36,000                    37,200                              1,200                   3.3%
34 Retirement 143,300                  156,000                            12,700                 8.9%
35 Other Benefits (Dental, LTD, Vision) 24,000                    24,000                              -                      0.0%
36 Health 145,000                  159,600                            14,600                 10.1%
37 Medicare 17,400                    18,700                              1,300                   7.5%
38 Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 3,000                      3,000                                 -                      0.0%
39 Workers Compensation 8,400                      10,200                              1,800                   21.4%
40 OPEB Contribution 27,000                    40,000                              13,000                 48.1%
41 457 Employer Contribution 12,000                    12,000                              -                      0.0%
42 Cell Phone 600                         600                                    -                      0.0%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 1,655,500                  1,756,300                  100,800                 6.1%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
47 Administration Services 12,300                    12,300                              -                      0.0%
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 70,000                    70,000                              -                      0.0%
49 Information Technology Service 73,248                    76,000                              2,752                   3.8%
50 Legal Services 63,000                    80,000                              17,000                 27.0%
51 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000                    10,000                              -                      0.0%
52 Consulting Services 2,889,500               2,765,000                         (124,500)             -4.3%
53 Security Services 49,000                    42,800                              (6,200)                 -12.7%
54 Maintenance-Equipment 12,000                    10,000                              (2,000)                 -16.7%
55 Purchase Transporation -                          -                                     -                      0.0%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 52,800                    50,000                              (2,800)                 -5.3%
57 Maintenance- Software 45,000                    36,000                              (9,000)                 -20.0%
58 Maintenance-Vehicles 2,000                      2,000                                 -                      0.0%
59 Rents and Leases - Equipment 9,600                      9,000                                 (600)                    -6.3%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land -                          -                                     -                      0.0%
61 Insurance - Premiums 55,000                    55,000                              -                      0.0%
62 Communications/Telephone 6,000                      6,000                                 -                      0.0%
63 Advertising/Marketing 4,000                      12,000                              8,000                   200.0%
64 Printing & Binding 14,900                    15,000                              100                      0.7%
65 Bank Charges 1,200                      1,500                                 300                      25.0%
66 Public/ Legal Notices 3,200                      4,000                                 800                      25.0%
67 Training Conference Expenses 25,000                    32,000                              7,000                   28.0%
68 Business Travel/Mileage 5,000                      7,500                                 2,500                   50.0%
69 Office Expenses 30,000                    25,000                              (5,000)                 -16.7%
70 Freight/Postage 5,600                      5,000                                 (600)                    -10.7%
71 Books/Periodicals/Subscriptions 4,000                      4,000                                 -                      0.0%
72 Memberships/Certifications 21,900                    30,000                              8,100                   37.0%
73 Utilities - Electric 36,000                    20,000                              (16,000)               -44.4%
74 Fuel 5,000                      1,200                                 (3,800)                 -76.0%
75 AVAA 136,000                  136,000                            -                      0.0%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 50,000                    50,000                              -                      0.0%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,691,248                  3,567,300                  (123,948)             -3.4%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 5,346,748           5,323,600            (23,148)            -0.4%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                      -                      -                   0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense 30,000                    30,000                              -                      0.0%
85
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) -                          -                             -                      0.0%
94 Other Government Agencies -                          -                             -                      0.0%
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES -                             -                             -                         0.0%

96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98
99 Security Equipment -                          -                                     -                      0.0%

100 Equipment -                             -                                     -                      0.0%
101 Vehicles -                             -                                     -                      0.0%
102 Buildings- Transit Center -                             -                                     -                      0.0%
103 Buildings & Improvements -                             -                                     -                      0.0%
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES -                             -                             -                         0.0%
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                      -                      -                   0.0%

(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies; Consulting Svcs 101,352               4.2%

OTHER NOTES

32.  Includes Extra Help for P/T Mileage Reimbursement Grant Administrator
and P/T Planner

88



Professional Fees/ Consultant Details
No. Elective Regulatory CMA/Transit Special Projects/Studies Funding 2013-2014 2014-2015 Status

1 a Active Transportation Plan- Pedestrian Focused CMA Planning $50,000 $50,000 Carryover

2 a Agriculture Vanpool program Transportation Development Act 20,000                15,000                       Continued Funding

3 a American Canyon Park N Ride Regional Measure 2 & TPI 35,000                35,000                       Carryover

4 a Annual Report- NCTPA Transportation Development Act 10,000                10,000                       Continued Funding

5 a Bay Area Air Quality Management District- TFCA Transportation for Clean Air 400,000              400,000                     Continued Funding

6 a Bike Plan Updates and Revisions Transportation Development Act 25,000                25,000                       Continued Funding

7 a Bike & Pedestrian Enhancements/Upgrades CMA Planning 5,000                  5,000                         Carryover

8 a Community-wide Based Transportation Plan- update (Transit) Lifeline 80,000                80,000                       Carryover

9 a Countywide Plan- Napa's Transporation Future (1) CMA Planning 150,000              150,000                     Continued Funding

10 a Gateway Corridor - Hwy 29 Study Federal 250,000              35,000                       Carryover, Increase Budget

11 a Napa Valley Vine Trail (multiyear) Federal 1,000,000           500,000                     Carryover

12 a Safe Routes To Schools (Caltrans) Safe Routes to School 250,000              420,000                     New Funding

13 a State Advocacy Services- Lobbying Services Transportation Development Act 35,000                35,000                       Continued Funding

14 a Transit Service Route Assessment Route 10/11 Transportation Development Act 49,500                50,000                       Carryover

15 a Travel Demand Update (1) CMA Planning 50,000                50,000                       Carryover

16 a Website Enhancements-Upgrades Transportation Development Act 15,000                15,000                       Continued Funding

17 a Maintenance Yard and Fueling Facility NEPA/SEQA Transportation Development Act -                     250,000                     New Project

18 a Maintenance Yard and Fueling Facility PS&E Transportation Development Act -                     250,000                     New Project

19 a Spare the Air Youth Transit Incentive Transit Education Program -                     55,000                       New Project

20 a Mileage Reimbursement Program* 5317 New Freedom -                     80,000                       New Project

21 a Active Transportation Program- Outreach & Supplies Transportation Development Act -                     10,000                       New Project

22 a SR 29 Corridor Bus Rapid Transit Study Transportation Development Act -                     200,000                     New Project

23 a Imola Pedestrian/Bike Enhancement Transportation Development Act -                     25,000                       New Project

24 a Federal Advocacy Program (Shared) Transportation Development Act -                     20,000                       New Project

Travel Behavior Study CMA Planning 150,000              -                            
Soscal Flyover study (CMA/TLU) PPM/CMA 100,000              -                            
Disparity Study CMA Planning 50,000                -                            
California Street Class II Bike Lane- City of Napa PPM/TDA 50,000                -                            
Maintenance Yard and Fueling Feasability Study Transportation Development Act 175,000              -                            
Limited English Proficiency Transportation Development Act 100,000              -                            
Onboard Surveys CMA Planning 50,000                -                            
Project Study Report/PID (Calistoga) PPM/CMA 200,000              -                            
Capital Projects Dashboard Transportation Development Act 25,000                -                            

-                     -                            
TOTAL CMA SPECIAL PROJECTS 3,324,500        2,765,000              

*5317 Administrator Costs in Salary and Wages Expense

Public Transit Special Projects Funding 2013-2014 2014-2015
25 a Consulting Services for New Flyer Buses Transportation Development Act $85,000 $15,000 Carryover

$85,000 $15,000

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES/ CONSULTING SERVICES 3,409,500           2,780,000                  

Notes

(1) Pursue Outside Funding
New Projects 1,310,000                  47%

Carrover, Continued Funding 1,470,000                  53%
2,780,000                  100%

Regulatory $630,000 23%
Elective 2,150,000                  77%

$2,780,000 100%

89



Budget Inputs- VINE FAMILY TRANSIT OF SERVICES
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED 
BUDGET                  

FY 2013-14
DRAFT BUDGET 

FY2014-15 $ Difference % Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 1,188,600                 1,317,560                  128,960              10.8%
2 Farebox Contribution 94,800                      94,900                       100                     0.1%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue 52,900                      92,900                       40,000                75.6%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 1,336,300                 1,505,360                  169,060                 12.7%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 5,279,622                 5,346,640                  67,018                1.3%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL
9 Federal: FTA 5307,Operating 1,563,100                 1,552,900                  (10,200)               -0.7%

10 Federal: FTA 5311 Operaing 670,900                    550,500                     (120,400)             -17.9%
13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 1,494,600                 1,250,100                  (244,500)             -16.4%
14 Regional: Other -                            -                            -                      0.0%
15 Regional: MTC 390,000                    390,000                     -                      0.0%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 4,118,600                 3,743,500                  (375,100)                -9.1%
24
25 INTEREST 19,600                      22,000                       2,400                  12.2%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 10,754,122         10,617,500         (136,622)          -1.3%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 333,900                    352,000                     18,100                5.4%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 333,900                    352,000                     18,100                   5.4%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
47 Administration Services -                                   -                                   -                      0.0%
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 27,000                      26,700                       (300)                    -1.1%
49 Information Technology Service 21,300                      29,400                       8,100                  38.0%
50 Legal Services 11,000                      10,500                       (500)                    -4.5%
51 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000                      10,000                       -                      0.0%
52 Professional Fees 85,000                      15,000                       (70,000)               -82.4%
53 Security Services -                            9,000                         9,000                  0.0%
54 Maintenance-Equipment 35,000                      -                            (35,000)               -100.0%
55 Purchase Transportation 7,716,002                 7,764,500                  48,498                0.6%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 6,000                        88,700                       82,700                1378.3%
57 Maintenance- Software -                            -                            -                      0.0%
58 Maintenance-Vehicles 235,000                    110,000                     (125,000)             -53.2%
59 Rents and Leases - Equipment -                            -                            -                      0.0%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 35,000                      36,000                       1,000                  2.9%
61 Insurance - Premiums 15,000                      -                            (15,000)               -100.0%
62 Communications/Telephone 2,400                        2,500                         100                     4.2%
63 Advertising/Marketing 223,000                    128,000                     (95,000)               -42.6%
64 Printing & Binding 46,300                      45,000                       (1,300)                 -2.8%
65 Bank Charges -                            3,000                         3,000                  0.0%
66 Public/ Legal Notices 2,000                        2,000                         -                      0.0%
67 Training Conference Expenses 20,000                      -                            (20,000)               -100.0%
69 Office Expenses 8,000                        10,200                       2,200                  27.5%
70 Freight/Postage 1,000                        1,000                         -                      0.0%
73 Utilities - Electric 14,400                      -                            (14,400)               -100.0%
74 Fuel 1,598,700                 1,501,900                  (96,800)               -6.1%
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 139,800                    300,400                     160,600              114.9%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 168,320                    171,700                     3,380                  2.0%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 10,420,222                     10,265,500                     (154,722)             -1.5%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 10,754,122         10,617,500         (136,622)          -1.3%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                     -                      -                   0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense 1,732,000                 2,032,000                  300,000              17.3%
85
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
90 Federal: FTA  Capital 2,456,000                 -                            (2,456,000)          -100.0%
91 State: Prop. 1B Capital 406,000                    680,700                     274,700              67.7%
92 RM2 Capital 200,000                    200,000                     -                      0.0%
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) 5,647,800                 1,968,600                  (3,679,200)          -65.1%
94 Other Government Agencies 192,000                    95,000                       (97,000)               -50.5%
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES 8,901,800                 2,944,300                  (5,957,500)             -66.9%
96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98
99 Security Equipment 25,000                      130,000                     105,000              420.0%

100 Equipment 1,180,000                 1,110,000                  (70,000)               -5.9%
101 Vehicles 3,682,800                 454,200                     (3,228,600)          -87.7%
102 Buildings- Transit Center 100,000                    250,000                     150,000              150.0%
103 Buildings & Improvements 3,914,000                 1,000,100                  (2,913,900)          -74.4%
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 8,901,800                 2,944,300                  (5,957,500)             -66.9%
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                     -                      -                   0.0%

-                      
(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies ($318,702) -3.1%

PUBLIC TRANSIT STATISTICS

Estimated Passengers 702,400                    925,100                     
Cost Per Passenger $15.31 $10.97
Estimated Service Hours 115,365                    131,600                     
Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $87.65 $74.42
Estimated Service Miles 1,650,700                 1,687,950                  

OTHER NOTES

Fuel 1,501,900$            
Estimated Gallons 400,500                 
Price/ gallon 3.75$                     

90



Budget Inputs- VINE Go
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED 
BUDGET                   

FY 2013-14
DRAFT BUDGET 

FY2014-15 $ Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 84,000                   62,000               (22,000)              
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue -                     -                     
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 84,000                      62,000               (22,000)                 
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 540,100                 528,300             (11,800)              
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL
9 Federal: FTA 5307,Operating 300,000                 300,000             -                     

13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 275,800                 275,800             -                     
14 Regional: Other -                         -                     -                     
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 575,800                    575,800             -                        
24
25 INTEREST 1,000                     1,000                 -                     
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 1,200,900           1,167,100     (33,800)            
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 30,000                   30,000               -                     
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 30,000                      30,000               -                        
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 4,800                     4,800                      -                     
49 Information Technology Service 2,000                     3,000                      1,000                 
50 Legal Services 2,000                     2,000                      -                     
54 Maintenance-Equipment -                         -                          -                     
55 Purchase Transportation 872,000                 880,000                 8,000                 
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem -                         10,700                   10,700                
58 Maintenance-Vehicles 20,000                   20,000                   -                     
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 4,000                     4,000                      -                     
63 Advertising/Marketing 10,000                   10,000                   -                     
64 Printing & Binding 2,000                     2,000                      -                     
69 Office Expenses 1,200                     1,200                      -                     
74 Fuel 204,000                 150,000                 (54,000)              
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 20,400                   30,000                   9,600                 
77 Operations Contingency (2) 28,500                   19,400                   (9,100)                
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,170,900                 1,137,100          (33,800)              
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 1,200,900           1,167,100     (33,800)            
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                      -                -                   
83
84 Depreciation Expense 115,000                 115,000                 -                     
85
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
91 State: Prop. 1B Capital 192,000                 232,700             40,700                
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) 50,000                   19,000               (31,000)              
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES 242,000                    251,700             9,700                    

96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98

101 Vehicles 242,000                    251,700             9,700                 
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 242,000                    251,700             9,700                    
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                      -                -                   
106
107 -                     
108 (1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
109 (2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.
110
111 Increase w/o Contingencies ($34,300) -3.0%
112
113 VINE GO TRANSIT STATISTICS

114 Estimated Passengers 18,900                      26,000               Farebox*
115 Cost Per Passenger $63.54 $42.99 8.54%
116 Estimated Service Hours 17,645                      12,100               
117 Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $65.29 $92.37

Estimated Service Miles 157,700                    165,500             

OTHER NOTES

56. Budget for allocation of Facilities expenses
73.  Fuel Overbudgeted FY13-14 Fuel 150,000$               
76. Fuel Contingency Increased to 20% due to AB32 Estimated Gallons 40,000                   
114. Farebox* includes Taxi Scrip Price/ gallon 3.75$                    

91



Budget Inputs-VINE
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED 
BUDGET                  

FY 2013-14
DRAFT BUDGET 

FY2014-15 $ Difference % Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 1,010,000              1,180,000                     170,000                16.8%
2 Farebox Contribution -                         -                                -                        0.0%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue 20,000                   60,000                          40,000                  200.0%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 1,030,000                 1,240,000                     210,000                   20.4%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 4,150,982              4,291,100                     140,118                3.4%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL
9 Federal: FTA 5307,Operating 1,203,100              1,192,900                     (10,200)                 -0.8%

10 Federal: FTA 5311 Operating 367,300                 297,600                        (69,700)                 -19.0%
12 Federal: Other -                         -                                -                        0.0%
13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 769,000                 524,500                        (244,500)               -31.8%
14 Regional: Other -                         -                                -                        0.0%
15 Regional: MTC 390,000                 390,000                        -                        0.0%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 2,729,400                 2,405,000                     (324,400)                  -11.9%
24
25 INTEREST 10,000                   12,000                          2,000                    20.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 7,920,382           7,948,100              27,718               0.3%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 289,500                 300,000                               10,500                  3.6%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 289,500                    300,000                        10,500                     3.6%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 15,500                   15,000                          (500)                      -3.2%
49 Information Technology Service 11,500                   18,000                          6,500                    56.5%
50 Legal Services 6,000                     5,000                            (1,000)                   -16.7%
51 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000                   10,000                          -                        0.0%
52 Consulting Services 85,000                   15,000                          (70,000)                 -82.4%
53 Security Services -                         9,000                            9,000                    0.0%
54 Maintenance-Equipment 35,000                   -                                (35,000)                 -100.0%
55 Purchase Transportation 5,533,182              5,700,000                     166,818                3.0%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 6,000                     64,000                          58,000                  966.7%
58 Maintenance-Vehicles 200,000                 80,000                          (120,000)               -60.0%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 25,000                   20,000                          (5,000)                   -20.0%
61 Insurance - Premiums 15,000                   -                                (15,000)                 -100.0%
62 Communications/Telephone 2,400                     2,500                            100                       4.2%
63 Advertising/Marketing 175,000                 100,000                        (75,000)                 -42.9%
64 Printing & Binding 32,000                   30,000                          (2,000)                   -6.3%
65 Bank Charges -                         3,000                            3,000                    0.0%
66 Public/ Legal Notices 2,000                     2,000                            -                        0.0%
67 Training Conference Expenses 20,000                   -                                (20,000)                 -100.0%
69 Office Expenses 4,500                     6,000                            1,500                    33.3%
70 Freight/Postage 1,000                     1,000                            -                        0.0%
73 Utilities - Electric 14,400                   -                                (14,400)                 -100.0%
74 Fuel 1,219,400              1,200,000                     (19,400)                 -1.6%
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 100,300                 240,000                        139,700                139.3%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 117,700                 127,600                        9,900                    8.4%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,630,882                 7,648,100                     17,218                  0.2%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 7,920,382           7,948,100              27,718               0.3%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                     -                         -                     0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense 1,500,000              1,800,000                     300,000                20.0%
85
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
90 Federal: FTA  Capital 2,456,000              -                                (2,456,000)            -100.0%
91 State: Prop. 1B Capital 214,000                 295,500                        81,500                  38.1%
92 RM2 Capital -                         200,000                        200,000                0.0%
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) 5,297,800              1,949,600                     (3,348,200)            -63.2%
94 Other Government Agencies -                         95,000                          95,000                  0.0%
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES 7,967,800                 2,540,100                     (5,427,700)               -68.1%
96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98
99 Security Equipment 25,000                      130,000                               105,000                420.0%

100 Equipment 1,180,000                 1,110,000                            (70,000)                 -5.9%
101 Vehicles 3,198,800                 50,000                                 (3,148,800)            -98.4%
102 Buildings- Transit Center 100,000                    250,000                               150,000                150.0%
103 Buildings & Improvements 3,464,000                 1,000,100                            (2,463,900)            -71.1%
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 7,967,800                 2,540,100                     (5,427,700)               -68.1%
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                     -                         -                     0.0%

-                        
(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies (121,882)          -1.6%

VINE TRANSIT STATISTICS

Estimated Passengers 600,000                    800,000                        Farebox
Cost Per Passenger $12.84 $9.48 16.36%
Estimated Service Hours 98,000                      99,000                          
Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $78.60 $76.57
Estimated Service Miles 1,500,000                 1,525,500                     

OTHER NOTES

10. Funding for Route 20 (Solano) and 25 (Sonoma)
54, 61 & 73 Budget Moved to Facilities Sub-division
56. Budget for allocation of Facilities expenses
58. Reduced due to expiration of New Flyer contract.
76. Fuel Contingency Increased to 20% due to AB32 Fuel 1,200,000$              

Estimated Gallons 320,000                   
Price/ gallon 3.75$                       

92



Budget Inputs- Taxi Scrip
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED BUDGET                  
FY 2013-14

DRAFT BUDGET 
FY2014-15 $ Difference

% 
Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 65,000                   41,000                       (24,000)               -36.9%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 65,000                      41,000                       (24,000)                  -36.9%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 99,300                   44,700                       (54,600)               -55.0%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL

23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV -                            -                            -                         0.0%
24
25 INTEREST 1,600                     2,000                         400                     25.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 165,900              87,700                (78,200)            -47.1%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 2,400                     4,000                         1,600                  66.7%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 2,400                        4,000                         1,600                     66.7%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,600                     1,700                         100                     6.3%
49 Information Technology Service 800                        1,000                         200                     25.0%
50 Legal Services -                         500                            500                     0.0%
54 Maintenance-Equipment -                         -                            -                      0.0%
55 Purchase Transportation 152,000                 70,000                       (82,000)               -53.9%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,000                     2,000                         -                      0.0%
64 Printing & Binding 6,800                     7,500                         700                     10.3%
69 Office Expenses 300                        1,000                         700                     233.3%
77 Operations Contingency (2) -                            -                      0.0%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 163,500                    83,700                       (79,800)               -48.8%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 165,900              87,700                (78,200)            -47.1%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                      -                      -                   0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense -                         -                                   -                      0.0%
85

(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies ($78,200) -47.1%

Estimated Passengers 7700
Cost Per Passenger 11.39$                      
OTHER NOTES

1,029 registered users.
55.  Overbudgeted for FY13-14

93



Budget Inputs- American Canyon
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED BUDGET                  
FY 2013-14

DRAFT BUDGET 
FY2014-15 $ Difference

% 
Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 18,000                   18,000                      -                     0.0%
2 Farebox Contribution- City of American Canyon 36,000                   25,600                      (10,400)              -28.9%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue 2,500                     2,500                        -                     0.0%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 56,500                      46,100                      (10,400)                 -18.4%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 158,200                 173,100                    14,900               9.4%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL
9 Federal: FTA 5307,Operating 60,000                   60,000                      -                     0.0%

13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 180,000                 180,000                    -                     0.0%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 240,000                    240,000                    -                        0.0%
24
25 INTEREST 2,000                     2,000                        -                     0.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 456,700              461,200              4,500               1.0%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 4,800                     6,000                        1,200                 25.0%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 4,800                        6,000                        1,200                    25.0%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,200                     1,200                        -                     0.0%
49 Information Technology Service 2,000                     2,200                        200                    10.0%
50 Legal Services 800                        800                           -                     0.0%
55 Purchase Transportation 306,000                 315,000                    9,000                 2.9%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem -                        5,000                        5,000                 0.0%
58 Maintenance-Vehicles 15,000                   10,000                      (5,000)                -33.3%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 1,000                     4,000                        3,000                 300.0%
63 Advertising/Marketing 10,000                   5,000                        (5,000)                -50.0%
64 Printing & Binding 3,500                     3,500                        -                     0.0%
69 Office Expenses 500                        500                           -                     0.0%
74 Fuel 96,000                   84,000                      (12,000)              -12.5%
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 9,600                     16,800                      7,200                 75.0%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 6,300                     7,200                        900                    14.3%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 451,900                    455,200                    3,300                 0.7%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 456,700              461,200              4,500               1.0%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                      -                      -                   0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense 24,000                   24,000                             -                     0.0%
85
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
90 Federal: FTA 5307, Capital -                        -                            -                     0.0%
91 State: Prop. 1B Capital -                        152,500                    152,500             0.0%
92 RM2 Capital 150,000                 -                            (150,000)            -100.0%
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) 300,000                 -                            (300,000)            -100.0%
94 Other Government Agencies 192,000                 -                            (192,000)            -100.0%
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES 642,000                    152,500                    (489,500)               -76.2%
96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98
99 Security Equipment -                        -                                   -                     0.0%

100 Equipment -                           -                            -                     0.0%
101 Vehicles 242,000                    152,500                    (89,500)              -37.0%
102 Buildings- Transit Center -                           -                            -                     0.0%
103 Buildings & Improvements 400,000                    -                            (400,000)            -100.0%
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 642,000                    152,500                    (489,500)               -76.2%
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                      -                      -                   0.0%

-                     
(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies ($3,600) -0.8%

AMERICAN CANYON TRANSIT STATISTICS

Estimated Passengers 24,000                      27,500                      Farebox
Cost Per Passenger $19.03 $15.90 10.54%
Estimated Service Hours 3,300                        6,000                        
Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $133.58 $72.87
Estimated Service Miles 57,000                      59,000                      

OTHER NOTES

56. Budget for allocation of Facilities expenses
68. Increase in rent allocation for Transit Center Fuel 84,000$                
76. Fuel Contingency Increased to 20% due to AB32 Estimated Gallons 22,400                  

Price/ gallon 3.75$                    

94



Budget Inputs- Yountville
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED BUDGET                  
FY 2013-14

DRAFT BUDGET 
FY2014-15 $ Difference % Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox -                         -                             -                      0.0%
2 Farebox Contribution- Town of Yountville 33,100                   33,600                       500                     1.5%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue -                             -                      0.0%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 33,100                      33,600                       500                        1.5%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 177,220                 112,200                     (65,020)               -36.7%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL

10 Federal: FTA 5311 Operaing 101,200                 84,300                       (16,900)               -16.7%
13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 100,000                 100,000                     -                      0.0%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 201,200                    184,300                     (16,900)                  -8.4%
24
25 INTEREST 2,000                     2,000                         -                      0.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 413,520              332,100               (81,420)            -19.7%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 2,400                     4,000                         1,600                  66.7%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 2,400                        4,000                         1,600                     66.7%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,500                     1,600                         100                     6.7%
49 Information Technology Service 1,000                     1,000                         -                      0.0%
50 Legal Services 600                        600                            -                      0.0%
55 Purchase Transportation 354,000                 278,000                     (76,000)               -21.5%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem -                         3,000                         3,000                  0.0%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 1,000                     2,000                         1,000                  100.0%
63 Advertising/Marketing 10,000                   6,000                         (4,000)                 -40.0%
69 Office Expenses 500                        500                            -                      0.0%
74 Fuel 32,000                   24,400                       (7,600)                 -23.8%
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 3,200                     4,900                         1,700                  53.1%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 7,320                     6,100                         (1,220)                 -16.7%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 411,120                    328,100                     (83,020)               -20.2%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 413,520              332,100               (81,420)            -19.7%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                      -                       -                   0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense 24,000                   24,000                             -                      0.0%
85
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
90 Federal: FTA 5307, Capital -                         -                             -                      0.0%
92 RM2 Capital 50,000                   -                             (50,000)               -100.0%
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) -                         -                             -                      0.0%
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES 50,000                      -                             (50,000)                  -100.0%

96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98

101 Vehicles -                            -                             -                      0.0%
103 Buildings & Improvements 50,000                      -                             (50,000)               -100.0%
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 50,000                      -                             (50,000)                  -100.0%
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                      -                       -                   0.0%

(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies ($81,900) -20.3%

YOUNTVILLE TROLLEY STATISTICS

Estimated Passengers 29,000                      31,400                       Farebox
Cost Per Passenger $14.26 $10.23 10.46%
Estimated Service Hours 4,700                        4,800                         
Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $85.74 $66.90
Estimated Service Miles 29,000                      30,450                       

OTHER NOTES

55. Purchased Transportation Overbudgeted FY13-14
56. Budget for allocation of Facilities expenses
68. Increase in rent allocation for Transit Center
76. Fuel Contingency Increased to 20% due to AB32 Fuel 24,400$                 

Estimated Gallons 6,500                     
Price/ gallon 3.75$                     

95



Budget Inputs- St. Helena
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED BUDGET                      
FY 2013-14

DRAFT BUDGET 
FY2014-15 $ Difference

% 
Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 2,000                    3,360                         1,360                  68.0%
2 Farebox Contribution- City of St. Helena 15,700                  25,700                       10,000                63.7%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue -                        -                            -                      0.0%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 17,700                     29,060                       11,360                   64.2%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 92,820                  101,440                     8,620                  9.3%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL

10 Federal: FTA 5311 Operaing 101,100                84,300                       (16,800)               -16.6%
13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 69,800                  69,800                       -                      0.0%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 170,900                   154,100                     (16,800)                  -9.8%
24
25 INTEREST 1,000                    1,000                         -                      0.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 282,420             285,600              3,180               1.1%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 2,400                    4,000                         1,600                  66.7%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 2,400                       4,000                         1,600                     66.7%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
47 Administration Services -                        -                            -                      0.0%
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,200                    1,200                         -                      0.0%
49 Information Technology Service 2,000                    2,000                         -                      0.0%
50 Legal Services 800                       800                            -                      0.0%
55 Purchase Transportation 237,620                237,000                     (620)                    -0.3%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem -                        3,000                         3,000                  0.0%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 1,000                    2,000                         1,000                  100.0%
63 Advertising/Marketing 8,000                    2,000                         (6,000)                 -75.0%
64 Printing & Binding 1,000                    1,000                         -                      0.0%
69 Office Expenses 500                       500                            -                      0.0%
74 Fuel 22,300                  22,500                       200                     0.9%
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 2,300                    4,500                         2,200                  95.7%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 3,300                    5,100                         1,800                  54.5%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 280,020                   281,600                     1,580                  0.6%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 282,420             285,600              3,180               1.1%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                     -                      -                   0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense 24,000                  24,000                       -                      0.0%

(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies (820)                -0.3%

ST. HELENA SHUTTLE STATISTICS

Estimated Passengers 10,500                     16,500                       Farebox
Cost Per Passenger $26.90 $16.73 10.53%
Estimated Service Hours 4,300                       4,300                         
Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $64.38 $64.19
Estimated Service Miles 21,700                     22,700                       

OTHER NOTES

56. Budget for allocation of Facilities expenses
68. Increase in rent allocation for Transit Center
76. Fuel Contingency Increased to 20% due to AB32

Fuel 22,500$                 
Estimated Gallons 6,000                     
Price/ gallon 3.75$                     

96



Budget Inputs- Calistoga
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED 
BUDGET                  

FY 2013-14
DRAFT BUDGET 

FY2014-15 $ Difference
% 

Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
1 Farebox 9,600                 13,200                   3,600                 37.5%
2 Farebox Contribution- City of Calistoga 10,000               10,000                   -                     0.0%
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue- CTBID 30,400               30,400                   -                     0.0%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE 50,000                  53,600                   3,600                    7.2%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act 61,000               95,800                   34,800               57.0%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL

10 Federal: FTA 5311 Operaing 101,300             84,300                   (17,000)              -16.8%
13 State: State Transit Assistance (STA) 100,000             100,000                 -                     0.0%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV 201,300                184,300                 (17,000)                 -8.4%
24
25 INTEREST 2,000                 2,000                     -                     0.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES 314,300          335,700           21,400            6.8%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit 2,400                 4,000                     1,600                 66.7%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 2,400                    4,000                     1,600                    66.7%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
48 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,200                 1,200                     -                     0.0%
49 Information Technology Service 2,000                 2,200                     200                    10.0%
50 Legal Services 800                    800                        -                     0.0%
54 Maintenance-Equipment -                     -                        -                     0.0%
55 Purchase Transportation 261,200             284,500                 23,300               8.9%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem -                     3,000                     3,000                 0.0%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 1,000                 2,000                     1,000                 100.0%
63 Advertising/Marketing 10,000               5,000                     (5,000)                -50.0%
64 Printing & Binding 1,000                 1,000                     -                     0.0%
69 Office Expenses 500                    500                        -                     0.0%
74 Fuel 25,000               21,000                   (4,000)                -16.0%
76 Fuel Contingency (1) 4,000                 4,200                     200                    5.0%
77 Operations Contingency (2) 5,200                 6,300                     1,100                 21.2%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 311,900                331,700                 19,800               6.3%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 314,300          335,700           21,400            6.8%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                  -                   -                  0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense 45,000               45,000                   -                     0.0%

(1)  20% contingency for fuel costs.
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

Increase w/o Contingencies 20,100          6.6%

CALISTOGA SHUTTLE STATISTICS

Estimated Passengers 20,000                  23,700                   Farebox
Cost Per Passenger $15.72 $13.72 16.48%
Estimated Service Hours 5,000                    5,400                     
Cost Per Hour of Service- Fully Burdened $61.02 $60.22
Estimated Service Miles 43,000                  50,300                   

OTHER NOTES

2. Flat Rate from City of Calistoga
3.  Flat Rate from Calistoga Tourism Bureau
43. Was underbudgeted for FY2013-14
55. Was underbudgeted for FY2013-14
56. Budget for allocation of Facilities expenses
68. Increase in rent allocation for Transit Center
76. Fuel Contingency Increased to 20% due to AB32 Fuel 21,000$                

Estimated Gallons 5,600                    
Price/ gallon 3.75$                    

97



Budget Inputs-VINE Facilities (Park & Rides/Transit Yard)
Statement of Revenue, Expenses A C D F

Updated 4/09/14 at 11:30am

(C-A)                   
Draft - Approved   

APPROVED 
BUDGET                  

FY 2013-14
DRAFT BUDGET 

FY2014-15 $ Difference
% 

Difference

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
3 Ad Revenue and Other Operating Revenue -                         18,000                          18,000               0.0%
4 TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE -                            18,000                          18,000                  0.0%
5
6 TOTAL- Transportation Development Act -                         -                                -                     0.0%
7
8 REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL

22 Intrafund Revenue -                         70,700                          70,700               0.0%
23 TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV -                            70,700                          70,700                  0.0%
24
25 INTEREST -                         -                                -                     0.0%
26

27 TOTAL REVENUES -                      88,700                   88,700            0.0%
28

29 OPERATING EXPENSES
30

31 PERSONNEL COSTS
43 Salary Chargeback to Public Transit -                         -                                        -                     0.0%
44 TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS -                            -                                -                        0.0%
45
46 OPERATING EXPENSES
48 Accounting/Auditing Services -                         400                               400                    0.0%
54 Maintenance-Equipment -                         25,000                          25,000               0.0%
55 Purchase Transportation -                         -                                -                     0.0%
56 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem -                         13,200                          13,200               0.0%
57 Maintenance- Software -                         -                                -                     0.0%
58 Maintenance-Vehicles -                         -                                -                     0.0%
60 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land -                         26,000                          26,000               0.0%
61 Insurance - Premiums -                         11,500                          11,500               0.0%
62 Communications/Telephone -                         1,800                            1,800                 0.0%
73 Utilities - Electric -                         8,400                            8,400                 0.0%
77 Operations Contingency (2) -                         2,400                            2,400                 0.0%
78 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -                            88,700                          88,700               0.0%
79

80 TOTAL OPERATING COSTS -                      88,700                   88,700            0.0%
81

82 NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS -                      -                         -                  0.0%
83
84 Depreciation Expense -                         -                                -                     0.0%
85 88,700                          
86
87

88 CAPITAL REVENUES
89
90 Federal: FTA  Capital -                         -                                -                     0.0%
91 State: Prop. 1B Capital -                         -                                -                     0.0%
92 RM2 Capital -                         -                                -                     0.0%
93 Local Transit Capital/ STA (TDA) -                         -                                -                     0.0%
94 Other Government Agencies -                         -                                -                     0.0%
95 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES -                            -                                -                        0.0%

96

97 CAPITAL PURCHASES
98
99 Security Equipment -                            -                                        -                     0.0%

100 Equipment -                            -                                        -                     0.0%
101 Vehicles -                            -                                        -                     0.0%
102 Buildings- Transit Center -                            -                                        -                     0.0%
103 Buildings & Improvements -                            -                                        -                     0.0%
104 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES -                            -                                -                        0.0%
105

106 NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL -                      -                         -                  0.0%

-                     
(2) 2 % contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.

OTHER NOTES

60.  Expo Parking

98



CONSOLIDATED NCTPA BUDGET - PLANNING AND TRANSIT 

EXPLANATION SHEET

OPERATING REVENUES

REV- OPERATIONS
Farebox Revenue collected from farebox and taxi scrip program.
Farebox Contribution Local jurisdictions contribution to farebox to meet farebox ratio requirement agreed to 

by MTC.
Ad Revenue Operational revenue generated by advertising posted on VINE and ACT buses.
TOTAL - OPERATIONAL REVENUE

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNDS (TDA) Local transportation funds allocated for transportation operating assistance and 
planning/administration assistance.

REV- INTERGOVERNMENTAL

Federal: FTA 5307,Operating Federal funds available to urbanized areas for transit operating assistance.
Federal: FTA 5311 (Rural Routes) FTA transportation operating assistance for rural routes/areas.
Federal: FHWA (CMA/TLU) FHWA transportation planning funds.
Federal: Other Other federal funds for transportation, operations or planning purposes.
State: State Transit Assistance (STA) State funds derived formally derived from gasoline tax used for transportation 

operating assistance. Funds now appropriated by legislative action.
Regional: Other Other local funds for transportation or planning purposes.
Regional: MTC Operating assistance funds from MTC.
State: Planning, Programming, Monitoring (PPM) Funds for programs, studies and reports (PS&R's). MPOs can use up to 1% of their 

STIP money for PPM. PPM can be used either for planning activities or for project 
development.

State: Other State grants for planning/transit purposes.
Jurisdictions Local assistance for operating assistance or planning purposes or initiatives.
TFCA Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) funds for local jurisdiction projects.
TFCA Admin

Administration Fee charged to  the Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA) program.
State: Abandoned Vehicle Abate Auth (AVAA) Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority funds from $1 vehicle license fee.
Interfund Revenue Revenue transfer between budget subdivisions 
TOTAL- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

INTEREST Interest income from NCTPA cash accounts.

TOTAL REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

PERSONNEL COSTS
Salaries and Wages Regular salaries and wages.
Employer Payroll Taxes Federal, State, and other employer payroll taxes.
Retirement PERS retirement benefits.
Dental/Vision/Life/LTD Employer paid dental, vision, life insurance and long term disability insurance.
Health Employer paid health premiums.
Medicare Employer paid medicare taxes.
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) Employer paid EAP benefits.
Workers Compensation State workers compensation expense.
OPEB Expense Annual Required Contribution (ARC) to CERBT (OPEB) fund
457 Employer Contribution Annual employer contribution to 457 plan.
Other Benefits All other medical benefits excluding health.
Salary Chargeback to Public Transit All personnel costs allocated to transit cost centers.
TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration Services Non-professional administrative expenses.
Accounting/Auditing Services Professional service expenses related to external audit and county services.
Information Technology Service Professional services expenses related to information technology system county 

services.
Legal Services

Professional services expenses related to external legal and county counsel services.
Temporary/Contract Help Expenses for temporary administrative help.
Professional Fees Professional service expenses for studies/reports for planning purposes.  Also, 

expenses related to programs with funding noted above in intergovernmental revenue 
section- i.e. TE, CMA, Ag Vanpool program, and BAAQMD.

Security Services Professeional security service expense.
Maintenance: Equipment Small equipment purchases and maintenance expenses.
Purchased Transportation Expenses recognized for services provided by transportation services provider and 

insurance costs related to maintaining the transit fleet.
Maintenance:  Building & Improvements Maintenance expenses for facilities.
Maintenance: Software Software licensing and maintenance expenses.
Maintenance: Vehicles Vehicle maintenance expenses.
Rents and Leases - Equipment Office equipment lease expenses.
Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land Rent expenses for bus parking and public transit allocation for SGTC.
Insurance - Premiums Property and liability insurance excluding transit fleet and vehicles.
Communications/Telephone Internet and telecommunications expenses.
Advertising/Marketing Marketing expenses and campaigns.
Printing & Binding Printing expenses for reports, literature, maps.
Bank Charges Credit card processing and account maintenance expenses.
Public/Legal Notices Expenses for advertising of public and legal notices.
Training/Conference Expenses Course registration expenses and ancillaries related to attending a 

course/seminar/training session.
Business Travel/Mileage Transportation costs for travelling at events and meetings, etc.
Office Expenses Office supplies and maintenance of facilities.
Freight/Postage Postage/courier expenses
Books/Periodicals/Subscriptions Expenses related to the purchase of books and journalistic material.
Memberships/Certifications Membership fees.
Utilities - Electric Utilities expenses.
Fuel Fuel costs for transit fleet and Agency vehicles.
AVAA Disbursements for Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority.
Fuel Contingency 10% contingency for fuel cost volatility.
Operations Contingency 2% contingency for operating expenses not including fuel and depreciation.
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS Summation of personnel and operating expenses

NET CHANGE IN OPERATIONS Surplus or deficit

DEPRECIATION Non-cash expense recognized due to the reduction in value of an asset.

CAPITAL REVENUES

Federal: FTA 5307, Capital Federal funds available to urbanized areas for transit capital purchases.
State: Prop. 1B Capital Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancements 

Program (Prob 1B) used for capital purchases.
RM2 Capital Capital funds from RM2 funding source.
Local Transit Capital (STA/TDA) Local transportation funds (STA/TDA) used for capital purchases.
Other Government Agencies Other State or Federal capital funding sources.
TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUES

CAPITAL EXPENSES

Security Equipment Maintenance costs for security monitoring of premises and purchase of security 
equipment such as gates and cameras.

Equipment Capital purchase of equipment of a value greater than $5,000 for a single item.
Vehicles Capital purchases of vehicles.
Buildings - Transit Center Capital expenses related to the Soscol Gateway Transit Center
Buildings & Improvements Capital purchases of buildings, shelters, and other amenities.
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES

NET CHANGE IN CAPITAL

99



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.3 

Action Requested: APPROVE 
 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Program Manager- Finance 
(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Revised NCTPA Policy Manual Chapter 7: Finance and 
Grants and Rescission of Previous Version of Financial Policies 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the NCTPA Board review and adopt NCTPA Finance and Grants Section of the 
NCTPA Policies, Practices and Procedures Manual.  . 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
A refinement of NCTPA Financial Policy Manual is being proposed to better serve the 
needs of the Agency. This revised Manual was developed to be more consistent with 
policies with newer procedures adopted by NCTPA and to improve the function of the 
agency. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  No. 
  

 

100

mailto:aonorato@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                   Wednesday April 16, 2014 
Board Agenda Item 9.3 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (State CEQA Guidelines) and therefore 
CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Finance and Grants Section of the NCTPA Policies, Practices, and Procedures 
Manual is the second chapter to be updated in an effort to reform the entire manual.  
The Board approved changes to the Human Resources section at its February meeting.  
The Board will receive the Procurement, Contracts, and Agreements chapter at its May 
meeting.   
 
NCTPA’s financial policies were last updated and approved by the NCTPA Board on 
September 22, 2010. Since then several material changes have occurred at the 
Agency.  The financial policy manual has been revised to account for these changes. 
The revised Manual contains updated, deleted, and new information on the following 
topics: 

 
Added Policies: 
 
Cash Reserve Policy for Agency Funds (non-fiduciary): New policy to ensure 
NCTPA has sufficient cash resources available to fund daily administration, operations, 
and maintenance of providing service for the respective funds the agency actively 
manages.  General Fund reserve target criteria of $500,000; Public Transit reserve 
criteria of at least 20% of non-restricted funds of the current fiscal year operating 
budget. 
  
Investment Policy: New policy to establish investment objectives, provide guidelines, 
and set forth responsibilities and reporting procedures necessary for the prudent 
management and investment of the funds of NCTPA and its component units for 
independent investing accounts external to the County of Napa’s investments portfolio. 
 
Debt Financing: New policy to provide funding mechanisms to satisfy NCTPA’s short 
term liquidity needs.  The policy includes use, process, and reporting requirements. 
  
State of Good Repair: New policy reiterating NCTPA’s commitment to ensuring the 
best in safe, reliable, cost effective and responsive transit services.  
Transit Pass Inventory Control 
 
Expense Reimbursements: The Policy has been updated to better serve Agency 
employees clarifying rules and limits when arranging, engaging in, or claiming 
reimbursement for travel on Agency business. 

101



Board Agenda Letter                   Wednesday April 16, 2014 
Board Agenda Item 9.3 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
Deleted Policies: 
 
Information Security: County of Napa Information Technology Services policy 
supersedes NCTPA current policy.  As such, this policy is considered redundant and 
has been removed.   
 
Memorandums of Understanding: The policy will now reside in the Procurement and 
Contracting Policy section. This policy has been deleted from the Finance section to 
avoid redundancies. 
 
Record Retention:  The policy will now reside in the Procurement and Contracting 
Policy section. This policy has been deleted from the Finance section to avoid 
redundancies. 
 
The updates to the Policy Manual will promote consistency and standardization in the 
business practices of NCTPA. The manual is intended to assist employees in complying 
with statutory requirements and administrative policies and procedures for fiscal 
management. 
 
Changes in policy may be made at any time with Board approval, which will serve to 
strengthen the Agency’s internal control structure. The content of this document is 
subject to change to reflect the most up to date practices available to the employees.  
Employees will be required to acknowledge and accept these policy and procedural 
changes. 
 
NCTPA is committed to maintaining a system of internal controls sufficient both to 
safeguard the Agency’s assets and to assure that transactions are properly captured, 
summarized, categorized, reported, and to and ensure compliance with all federal, 
state, and local requirements.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) NCTPA Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual Chapter 7: 
   Finance and Grants 

102



ATTACHMENT 1 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.3 

April 16, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 

FIN 9.01 

SECTION 7.1.1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ................................................................. 2 
   7.1.1.1    Responsibility and Authority .......................................................................... 2 
   7.1.1.2    Information Security ...................................................................................... 5 
   7.1.1.3    Financial Management .................................................................................. 5 
   7.1.1.4    Internal Controls .......................................................................................... 11 
   7.1.1.5    Wire Transfers ............................................................................................. 18 
   7.1.1.6    Budget Development ................................................................................... 22 
   7.1.1.7    Budget Monitoring and Reporting ................................................................ 27 
   7.1.1.8    Fund Accounting ......................................................................................... 32 
   7.1.1.9    Accounting Principles .................................................................................. 35 
   7.1.1.10  Revenues and Expenditures ....................................................................... 37 
   7.1.1.11  General Ledger ........................................................................................... 40 
   7.1.1.12  Encumberances .......................................................................................... 42  
   7.1.1.13  Accounts Payables ...................................................................................... 44 
   7.1.1.14  Vendor Invoice Processing .......................................................................... 44 
   7.1.1.15  Audits .......................................................................................................... 51 
   7.1.1.16  Petty Cash ................................................................................................... 58 
   7.1.1.17  Cash Handling ............................................................................................. 61 
   7.1.1.18  Revenue Collections and Distribution .......................................................... 70 
   7.1.1.19  Purchasing Cards ........................................................................................ 73 
    
SECTION 7.1.2 RESERVE POLICIES AND FINANCING ............................................. 79 
   7.1.2.1    Cash Reserve .............................................................................................. 79 
   7.1.2.2    Investment Policy ........................................................................................ 81 
 
SECTION 7.1.3 DEBT FINANCING .............................................................................. 86  
  7.1.3.1     Debt Financing ............................................................................................ 86 
  
SECTION 7.1.4 ASSET MANAGEMENT ...................................................................... 88 
   7.1.4.1    Fixed Asset Management ............................................................................ 88 
   7.1.4.2    State of Good Repair ................................................................................... 94 
   7.1.4.3    Transit Pass Inventory Control .................................................................... 94 
 

SECTION 7.1.5 GRANT MANAGEMENT ..................................................................... 97 
   7.1.5.1    Grant Accounting and Administration .......................................................... 97 
   7.1.5.2    Grant Management ................................................................................... 106 
   7.1.5.3    Project Management ................................................................................. 115 
   7.1.5.4    Third Party Oversight ................................................................................ 117 

NCTPA 

POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

CHAPTER 7: FINANCE AND GRANTS   

103



   7.1.5.5    Subrecepient Monitoring............................................................................ 125 
 
SECTION 7.1.6 EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENTS ....................................................... 130 
   7.1.6.1    Business Travel ......................................................................................... 130 
  

104



7.1.1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 

7.1.1.1 RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORITY 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application  
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish the general responsibilities and authority of 
executives, managers, supervisors, and staff with regard to the financial operations of 
the Agency. 
 
The Agency is subject to the rules and policies established by the Board of Directors to 
promote efficiency and uniformity within the system of financial management. Within the 
boundaries established by the Board of Directors, the Agency has the authority and is 
responsible for managing its own operations. All employees are expected to fulfill at 
least the minimum requirements of their positions and to conduct themselves with 
honesty, integrity and professionalism. All employees shall also operate within the 
specific levels of authority that may be established by the Agency for their positions. 
 
Responsibilities 
 
The following paragraphs define the general responsibilities of Agency managers, 
supervisors and staff. 
 
Executive Director. The Executive Director is ultimately responsible for all operations 
of the Agency within the policy parameters established by the Board of Directors. The 
authority and duties of r the Executive Director include: 
 

 Ensuring the effective management and administration of the Agency 
consistent with any rules, policies, strategic plan, or budget adopted by the 
Board of Directors. 
 

 Ensuring that the Agency has adopted written policies and procedures 
allowing the Executive Director to perform the administrative duties of that 
office efficiently. 
 

Managers in the Agency. It is the responsibility of the Managers to oversee specific 
areas with the Agency under the guidance and oversight of the Executive Director. The 
authority and duties for the Managers include: 
 

 Supervise the employees of the Agency. 
 

 Prepare and implement budgets, including accounting, payroll, and financial 
controls. 
 

 Negotiate contracts. 
 

105



 Analyze, evaluate, and implement technological and automated systems to 
assist the Agency in caring out its mission. 

 Plan physical space needs, and purchase and manage equipment and 
supplies. 
 

 Create and manage uniform record-keeping systems, collecting data on 
pending and completed contracts, and the internal operation of the Agency, 
as required by the Executive Director and Board of Directors. 
 

 Financial reporting 
 

 Identify problems, recommending procedural and administrative changes to 
the Agency. 

 
Fiscal Officer. The fiscal officer is responsible for managing the Agency’s fiscal 
operations, accounting, and financial reporting. The fiscal officer for the Agency is the 
Finance Manager. Under administrative direction, the Finance Manager plans, 
organizes and directs the Agency’s Finance and Accounting Department; provides 
assistance to the Executive Director; and performs other related work as required for 
the Agency to function efficiently. The Finance Manager also: 
 

 Maintains and enforces all financial policies and procedures, whether they are 
developed internally or prescribed by the Executive Director or Board of 
Directors. 

 
 Maintains the Agency accounting system and financial records. 

 
 Assures the implementation of a system of financial internal controls. 

 
 Assures the Agency has an efficient and effective system to record and report 

employee time and attendance, accrue leave, and distribute the Agency 
payroll. 

 
 Develop the Agency’s annual budget. 

 
 If applicable, assures that all funds collected by the Agency is handled 

securely, properly accounted for and deposited, and accurately distributed 
and reported. 

 
 Ensures that Agency operations are in compliance with GAAP and GASB 

standards, and comply with all state and federal statutory and regulatory 
requirements for grant funding received. 

 
 Monitors the Agency budget and actual expenditures to identify variances, 

determine their cause, and implement measures to reduce or eliminate future 
variances. 

106



 
 Prepares the Agency’s financial statements including the Monthly Financial 

Statements. 
 

 Monitors cash flow and projects future cash flow needs to assure that the 
Agency can meet its financial obligations. 

 
 Serves as the primary point of contact for the Agency in the event of an audit 

of the Agency’s financial records. 
 
 Maintains an inventory of the Agency’s fixed assets and inventory items. 

 
 Performs other fiscal duties that may be delegated by the Executive Director. 
 
 Files application to receive and  administers grant funding as required. 

 
Managers/Supervisors. All managers and supervisors are responsible for ensuring 
that all fiscal operations and staff under their direction comply with the policies and 
procedures established by the Agency. 
 
Staff. Each Agency staff member is responsible for observing the Agency’s rules for 
ethical behavior and for complying with the policies and procedures established by the 
Agency. 
 
Levels of Authority 
 
The Agency shall establish a system of authorization to provide effective management 
control over its assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures. Specific levels and scopes 
of authority shall be established for executives, managers, supervisors, and staff, with 
dollar limits where appropriate, in areas such as procurement, contract approval, 
payment authorization, etc.  See Procurement Section for further details. 
 
An authorization matrix listing the scope and levels of authority for various employees 
shall be created and maintained by the Agency. The authorization matrix shall be 
updated as responsibilities change, and no less frequently than annually. The matrix 
shall be provided to Agency, County, and accounting service providers for reference as 
necessary. This matrix shall also be provided to internal and external auditors upon 
request.  The “Signature Authorization Form” is the current form in use and is provided 
to the Auditor-Controller’s Office annually or as needed. 
 
Signature and procurement authority is located at:  Signature Authorization Form 
 
Financial Personnel Requirements 
 

107

file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/1100_Contract%20Administration/16_Signature%20Authorization%20Forms.xlsx


The Agency shall be staffed with knowledgeable and trained employees who will 
implement the financial and accounting policies and procedures presented in this 
manual in conducting fiscal operations. 
 
The Agency shall adopt written job descriptions for all positions covered by the policies 
and procedures contained in this manual. Each job description shall include a duty 
statement and minimum qualifications. 
7.1.1.2 INFORMATION SECURITY 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of the information security policy, among other things, is to maintain the 
confidentiality and security of financial information and its transmission across data lines 
and the internet.  Specifically, NCTPA staff are tasked with:  
 

 Protecting Agency financial data, accounting applications, networks, and 
computer systems from unauthorized access, alteration, or destruction. 

 To prescribe mechanisms that help identify and prevent the compromise of 
information security and the misuse of Agency data, applications, networks 
and computer systems.  

 To define mechanisms that protect the reputation of the Agency and allow the 
Agency to satisfy its legal and ethical responsibilities with regard to its 
networks' and computer systems' connectivity to networks.  

 
Appropriate financial security services are essential to maintain the integrity of Agency 
financial operations. Accordingly, the Agency has entered into a memorandum of 
understanding with the County of Napa regarding information security that specifies the 
agreed-upon level of security services to be provided, their associated costs, and terms 
of payment. This policy is articulated as the Agency’s IT and Computer policies and can 
be accessed at:  County of Napa ITS and Security Policy 
 
The Agency and its staff members are required to adhere to Napa County’s Information 
Technology Use and Security Policy which has been incorporated into NCTPA’s 
Policies and Procedures. 
 
7.1.1.3 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines for the Agency to monitor 
and control its fiscal operations and publicly account for its performance. 
 
It is the policy of the Agency to employ sound business, financial and accounting 
practices to conduct its financial operations. The Agency shall be responsible for 
monitoring and controlling its fiscal operations and accounting publicly for its financial 
performance through: 

108

http://portal/C10/County%20Document%20Library/Document%20Library/POLICY%20MANUAL/SEC%2031A_TECHNOLOGY%20USE%20and%20SECURITY.doc


 
 Adherence to high ethical standards. 

 
 The development of a long-range strategic financial plan. 

 
 The application of generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
 The institution of a system of internal controls. 
 The retention of financial and accounting records for appropriate periods. 

 
 The issuance of financial reports that account for the Agency’s use of public 

funds. 
 
 Maintain adherence to all applicable state and federal laws and requirements. 

 
Fiscal Management Responsibilities 
 
The Agency is responsible for developing plans, obtaining resources for implementing 
the plans, monitoring its operations, and accounting publicly for its performance.  These 
plan include but are not limited the Annual Budget,  Overall Work Plan, the Short Range 
Transit Plan, the Countywide Transportation Plan, and Strategic Plans. 
 
The Agency is dedicated to providing an environment of openness and transparency by 
fairly allocating funds to every department. The Agency is responsible for evaluating its 
needs and providing relevant workload and cost data to establish funding priorities and 
compete for funds with federal, state, and local programs. It is also the responsibility of 
the Agency to develop a long-range strategic financial plan for the efficient and effective 
use of resources, technology, and the incorporation of community needs and concerns. 
 
Fiscal Practices 
 
Agency management shall promote compliance with all ethical standards, applicable 
statutes, and financial/accounting principles when exercising authority over the 
collection and disbursement of public moneys. 

 
Along with financial stability, the Agency assumes new responsibilities for administrative 
management, providing better service to the public and financial accountability. 
 
Accounting System 
 
The Agency shall utilize an efficient and organized accounting system that ensures the 
accurate reporting of all transactions. The Agency is responsible for assuring that the 
transactions recorded by its accounting system are supported by documentation and 
evidential matter that can withstand internal or external financial audits. 
 
The key elements of an efficient and organized accounting system include an: 

109



 
 Organized and efficient method of accumulating, recording and reporting all 

transactions. 
 
 Effective assignment of authority and responsibility. 
 
 Effective approach to segregation of duties. 
 
 Efficient method of detecting errors and irregularities. 

Financial transactions shall be executed and accounted for in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. The Agency shall also comply with the standards and 
principles established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),  
administrative policies and procedures that apply to the Agency’s fiscal management, 
and regulatory and statutory requirements guiding the administration of Agency’s grant 
revenues. 
 
Internal Controls 
 
The Agency shall maintain an effective system of internal controls that is integral to its 
management practices. A satisfactory system of internal controls includes, but is not 
limited to, the following: 

 
Segregation of Duties. The Agency organization plan should provide for a proper 
segregation of duties that safeguards Agency assets. The objective is to eliminate or 
minimize opportunities to conceal errors and irregularities. Assignment of work to 
Agency employees should be based on the rule that no one individual controls all 
phases of an activity or transaction.  
 
Segregation of Duties Matrix 
 
Standard Operating Procedures. All Agency departments should develop and enforce 
a system of operating procedures for employees to follow in performing their duties and 
functions. Such operating procedures should explain the implication of financial 
transactions and define Agency employees’ responsibilities and their accountability for 
Agency resources. 

 
Transaction Authorization and Documentation. The Agency shall establish a system 
of authorization that provides effective management control over assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenditures. Evidence of authorization shall be maintained in the 
accounting files to document that: 
 

i. Proper authorizations are obtained. 
 

ii. Authorizations are issued by employees acting within the scope of their 
authority. 

 

110

file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/1200_Finance/20_Authorization%20Signature%20Form/Segregation%20of%20Duties%20Matrix.xlsx


iii. Transactions conform to the terms of the authorizations. 
 
A matrix providing employee names, types of transactions authorized, dollar limitations 
on authorizations, and employee signatures shall be prepared and updated no less than 
on an annual basis or more frequent as needed. The current matrix is known as the 
“Signature Authorization Form” provided by the County’s Auditor-Controller’s Office. 
This information is memorialized under the Procurement Section of the Agency’s 
Policies and Procedures manual. 
 
Internal Review. The Agency will maintain an effective internal review system to 
provide checks and balances applicable to all financial transactions. An effective system 
of internal review includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
 

i. Transaction balancing such as preparing and comparing batch totals against 
transaction details. 
 
ii. Balancing system records against manual records. 
 
iii. Independent review and approval of transactions by a supervisor. 
 
iv. Periodic review of applicable accounting records against original entries for 
accuracy. 
 
v. Periodic management review of a summary of actual expenditures and 
revenues against budget items for propriety and reasonableness. 
 
vi. Audits conducted by external auditors. 
 

Internal Control Review Matrix 
 
The system of internal controls should be continuously monitored, reviewed, evaluated 
and improved as necessary. When detected, deficiencies should be promptly corrected. 
This policy recognizes that the objective of an internal control system is to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and errors and 
irregularities are minimized. The benefits of such a system should be greater than its 
cost. A more detailed discussion of internal controls is provided in the Internal Controls 
section of Financial Management. 
 
Accounting Records 
 
NCTPA’s Finance Manager shall document its financial activities and maintain sufficient 
accounting records to: 
 

 Ensure that all transactions are properly and accurately recorded. 
 

 Provide sufficient evidence and justification for all transactions. 

111

file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/1200_Finance/05_Audits/Internal%20Control%20Matrix.docx


 
 Maintain accountability for Agency assets and resources. 

 
 Document accountability of Agency employees who execute and process 

financial transactions. 
 

 Permit preparation of accurate, informative and reliable reports that conform 
to applicable criteria. 

 
 Support management during internal reviews and external audits. 

 
Examples of financial and accounting records to be maintained by the Agency are: 
 

 Timekeeping and payroll records. 
 

 Procurement files including purchase orders and contracts. 
 

 Vendor invoices, contractor/subcontractor claims. 
 

 Employee cost reimbursement claims. 
 

 System reports including general ledgers, sub-ledgers and other reports. 
 

 Revenue collection records. 
 

 Financial reports. 
 
A more detailed discussion of record retention procedures is provided in the Record 
Retention section of the Agency’s Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 
Financial Reporting 
 
The Agency is obligated to account for its use of public funds. To satisfy this obligation, 
the Agency prepares and issues periodic financial statements. The GASB Concepts 
Statement 1 defines the objectives of financial reporting as follows: 
 

 Financial reporting should assist in fulfilling the government’s duty to be 
publicly accountable and should enable users to assess that accountability. 

 
 Financial reporting should assist users in evaluating the operational results of 

the governmental entity for the year. 
 

 Financial reporting should assist users in assessing the level of services that 
can be provided by the governmental entity and its ability to meet its 
obligations as they become due. 

 

112



The primary use of Agency financial reports is to assess the Agency’s accountability in 
its use of public funds. According to GASB Concepts Statement 1 financial reports 
accomplish this by: 
 

 Comparing actual financial results with the legally adopted budget. 
 

 Assessing financial condition and results of operations. 
 

 Assisting in determining compliance with finance-related laws, rules and 
regulations. 

 
 Assisting in evaluating efficiency and effectiveness. 

The agency acknowledges that reports need to be transparent and understandable in 
order to communicate information adequately to the public, elected officials, funding 
agencies, and creditors.  In order to adequately communicate financial and operating 
information, the agency will publish information in the following forms on its website and 
written formats as required: 
 

 Annually publish a draft budget (First Reading by the Board) 
 Annually publish a final budget  
 Annually publish GASB-required financial statements (un-audited and 

audited) 
 Annually publish an annual statement listing the agency’s accomplishments 

and audited financial information 
 Quarterly present financial updates to the board, including any adjustments to 

the annual budget necessary to carry out the mission of the agency 
 Annually publish an Overall Work Plan which allocates staff members to the 

tasks and projects scheduled for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
The Finance Manager internal financial reporting functions include, but are not limited 
to, preparation of the following reports: 
 

 Monthly Financial Statements. 
 

 Monthly Cash Settlement reports from the County Treasurer to report revenue 
collection and distribution. 

 
 Monthly summaries of financial activities and review transactions for propriety 

and reasonableness. 
 

 Monthly budgetary reports to compare actual revenues and expenditures to 
budget items. 

 
 Monthly cash flow reports to analyze the current position and project future 

needs. 
 

113



 Monthly reimbursement claims for grants and other state or federal programs. 
 
The Agency shall apply GAAP, GASB and other government and public entity standards 
to prepare financial and other required reports. Exceptions should be disclosed in the 
form of qualifications or footnotes to the financial statements or reports. 
  

114



7.1.1.4 INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish the minimum standard for internal controls for 
the Agency to use as a reference in forming organization plans, implementing 
procedures and controlling accounting records. 

 
It is the policy of the Agency to maintain effective internal control systems as an integral 
part of its management practices. The Agency will continuously monitor and evaluate 
internal control systems for the purpose of strengthening existing operational, 
administrative and accounting controls. 
 
This policy recognizes that the objective of an internal control system is to minimize the 
Agency’s financial risks and provide reasonable assurance that Agency assets are 
properly safeguarded.  
 
Purpose of Internal Controls 

 
As a public institution, the Agency must maintain the highest standard of ethics and 
level of integrity to inspire public confidence and trust in the Agency system. Moreover, 
Agency operations include handling large sums of money on a routine basis. The risks 
associated with such operations are apparent. The Agency must not only protect its 
assets from potential acts of impropriety, but must also protect its reputation and those 
of its employees from negative public perceptions. 
 
An effective system of internal controls minimizes the Agency’s exposure to risks and 
negative perceptions. A properly designed, implemented, and continuously monitored 
system of internal controls protects Agency assets and resources by reducing or 
eliminating opportunities for individuals to commit and conceal errors or fraudulent acts. 

 
 
Key Elements of an Effective System of Internal Controls 

 
To be effective, the system of internal controls must be an integral part of Agency 
management practices. It covers all aspects of the Agency’s operations from the overall 
planning of the organization to the implementation of specific operating and 
administrative procedures. 

 
The components of an effective system of internal controls include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 

 
 Appropriate segregation of duties (checks and balances) 

 
 Comprehensive policies and procedures 

 

115



 Competent personnel 
 

 Continuous supervision 
 

 Controlled access to assets 
 

 Proper authorization and documentation 
 

 Sufficient internal review 
 

 Leave coverage for all employees with fiscal duties 
 
Appropriate Segregation of Duties 

 
NCTPA has an established organization structure that provides for an appropriate 
segregation of duties that safeguards Agency assets. Segregation of duties is based on 
the concept that no one individual controls all phases of an activity or transaction. 
 
Segregation of duties provides for a built-in system of checks and balances that is 
designed to catch and correct errors as soon as they are detected.    
 
Another important objective is to eliminate or minimize opportunities to conceal errors 
and irregularities.  

 
Whenever possible, key duties and functions are assigned to separate employees to 
minimize the risk of impropriety and establish a system of checks and balances. If 
segregation of duties cannot be achieved due to staffing limitations, Agency 
management must apply alternate control methods to mitigate the risks. For example, if 
one individual is handling all phases of the cash collection process (i.e., collecting cash, 
preparing bank deposits and updating the case files), then additional review and 
reconciliation of the case files by supervisors or higher levels of management should be 
performed on a routine basis. The controls that are implemented should be documented 
in a memorandum to the Agency’s files. 

 
Supervision 

 
Agency management shall provide appropriate supervision of Agency employees to 
assure that approved procedures are followed. 

 
The Agency shall ensure that all employees apply due care and diligence in the daily 
performance of their duties. 

 
Agency management shall ensure that the reporting hierarchy between employees and 
supervisors is well defined. Supervisors shall be held responsible for their own actions 
as well as the actions of their subordinates. 
  

116



Controlled Access to Assets 
 
The Agency shall limit access to its assets to authorized personnel who require these 
assets to perform their assigned duties. Access includes both direct physical access 
and indirect access such as preparing and processing documents authorizing 
transactions that impact Agency resources. 

 
Proper Authorization and Documentation 
 
The Agency has established a system of authorization to provide effective management 
control over its assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures. The specific levels and 
scope of authority of executives, managers, supervisors, and staff, with dollar limits 
have been established and documented. That documentation shall be provided to 
applicable Agency, County and accounting service provider personnel for reference. 

 
When processing transactions, evidence of authorization shall be maintained in the 
accounting files to document that: 

 
 Proper authorizations are obtained. 

 
 Authorizations are issued by Agency employees acting within the scope of 

their authority. 
 
 Transactions conform to the terms of the authorizations. 
 

Sufficient Internal Review 
 

The Agency shall establish an effective system of internal review to ensure that all 
financial transactions are properly and accurately recorded and reported. 

 
An effective system of internal review includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

 
 Transaction balancing such as preparing and comparing batch totals against 

transaction details. 
 

 Verifying system records against original records. 
 

 Independent review and approval of transactions by supervising or managing 
personnel. 

 
 Periodic (not less than monthly) reviews of applicable accounting records 

(relating to budgets, cash flow, timekeeping, payroll, procurement, cash 
collection, etc.) against original entries for accuracy. 

 
 Periodic management review of actual expenditures and revenues against 

budget items for propriety and reasonableness. 

117



Minimum Internal Control Standards 
 

This section provides minimum internal control standards that the Agency shall apply to 
(1) define its organizational boundaries, (2) monitor and control its fiscal operations; and 
(3) maintain accountability for, protect and report its resources. The Agency shall 
continuously assess its system of internal control against these minimum standards. 
Areas of weakness must be corrected or, if impractical or cost prohibitive, be properly 
documented and reported. 

 
Budgets 

 
The Agency Budget Program Structure consists of four levels of increasing detail that 
are used to develop and manage the Agency budget: 

 
Fund: This is the consolidated level, which includes all Funds: Governmental, 
Proprietary, and Fiduciary.  
 
Division: This is the second level of budget detail, which breaks down the three 
funds into the major Agency departments. 
 
Subdivision: The Component level is the third level of budget detail. It further 
segregates funds into categories and expenses from tasks. 
 
Program: The program level tracks specific programs or projects.  
 

To establish and manage a budget that makes efficient, effective use of Agency 
resources and conforms to the FDSP structure required by the NCTPA to monitor and 
control the budget so that expenditures do not exceed budgeted amounts. 

 
The Agency shall: 

 
 Develop its baseline budget beginning in December for the upcoming fiscal 

year that begins on July 1. 
 

 Develop budget change requests for in accordance with the budget schedule, 
guidelines, and priorities set forth in the annual budget cycle. 

 
 Prepare and submit monthly financial statements summarizing revenues and 

expenditures. 
 

i. Monitor budgets on a regular basis for each subdivision and budget line 
item as follows: 

 
ii. Actual expenditures incurred for the previous month. 

 
iii. Expenditures incurred for the fiscal month, quarter, and year-to-date. 

118



 
iv. The variance between the month-to-date actual and budgeted 
expenditures. 
 

 Analyze cash flow needs for the current month and project cash flow for the 
remainder of the fiscal year. 

 
 Prepare budget revisions to reflect any additional or amended allocations 

from federal or other sources and report these revisions to the Board of 
Directors. Budget revisions are reported at the task and summary object of 
expenditure levels. 

 
 Assure that any transfer of funds between program items or objects of 

expenditure is reported for the quarter during which the transfer was made. 
 

 Provide written notification to the department in the unlikely event that project 
funds will be exhausted before the end of the fiscal year. 

 
Bank Accounts 

 
To establish the conditions and operational controls under which the Agency may 
maintain funds outside the county treasury. 

 
The Agency shall: 

 
 Obtain Executive Director’s approval before opening or closing any bank 

account.  Agency requests to open or close any bank account must be signed 
by the Executive Director. 

 
 Assure that Agency banking relationships do not create any conflict of interest 

with the Board of Director’s, managers or officers. 
 
 Assure that any bank where the Agency opens an account is “well 

capitalized” as defined by federal statute and has received an “unqualified” 
opinion on its most recent financial statements from an independent auditor. 

 
 Keep detailed records for all money received in trust (e.g., TDA, AVAA.). 
 
 Provide for the safety and security of Agency employees and funds when 

making bank deposits. 
 
 Endorse all checks, warrants, money orders, and other negotiable 

instruments immediately upon receipt. 
 
 Make all disbursements by check or electronic transfer, except for petty cash 

disbursements. 

119



 
 Record all checks issued in a check register (this function is managed by the 

County). 
 
 Keep all check stock under locked control. Keep working check stock 

separate from long-term check stock. Record the receipt and transfer of 
check stock in a register documented by the signatures of two authorized 
employees (this function is managed by the County). 

 
 Reconcile all bank accounts quarterly. Both the employee who prepares the 

reconciliation and the employee who reviews and approves shall sign and 
date it (this function is managed by the County). 

 
 The annual bank balance and financial accounting cash balance information 

will be completed by the Agency for all bank accounts locally operated and 
reconciled by the Agency as of June 30, delivered no later than August 31 to 
the Finance Manager. 

 
 Require all withdrawals accompany two signatures, the Executive Director or 

Chair of the Board and one manager. 
 

Accounting Processes Related to Contract Management System 
 
In order to minimize overpayments and to ensure payments adhere to the content of a 
contract, the Agency shall:   

 Employ a system that assigns a unique contract number to track the status of 
each contract. 
 

 Maintain separate records on payments associated with each contract 
 
 Seek payment approval from contract manager, finance manager, and 

executive director. 
 
Accounts Payable 
 
To process and pay vendor invoices and claims in a timely fashion according to the 
terms and conditions of the purchase agreements and contracts. To assure that all 
invoices and claims are supported by appropriate documentation and approved for 
payment by authorized employees. 
 
The Agency shall: 
 

 Direct all vendors to submit invoices to accounts payable for processing. 
 

 Date stamp all invoices upon receipt by Accounts Payable. 
 

120



 Require that all claims for payment of services such as counsel, experts, 
investigators, or interpreters are submitted on an Agency-approved form and 
accompanied by a copy of the Agency authorization for the services provided, 
if necessary. 

 
 Require that individuals and firms submitting claims for Agency appointed 

services file claims for payment within a reasonable period after services are 
rendered. 

 
 Establish the dollar limits and the scope of authority of employees authorized 

to approve invoice payment. An authorization matrix (aka Signature 
Authorization Form) will be kept on file by the Agency, indicating employees’ 
approval limits. The approval matrix will be updated no less than annually. 
The approval matrix will also be provided to the organization that issues 
payment (County, outsourced service provider, etc.). 

 
 Perform a match of the purchase agreement, invoice and proof of receipt and 

acceptance of goods or services prior to payment if a purchase order was 
issued. 

 
 Require that authorized employees review each invoice for appropriateness, 

accuracy and reasonableness. Invoices shall be signed and dated by the 
employee responsible for monitoring the work or accepting goods. 

 
Reimbursement of Travel Expenses for Employees 
 
To reimburse employees for reasonable travel expenses incurred in the course of 
Agency business in a timely fashion upon submittal of appropriate documentation 
including pre-approval for travel (see Business Travel Section 7). 
 
The Agency shall: 
 

 Reimburse employee travel expenses according to the NCTPA travel 
guidelines- see Business Travel.  
 

 Require receipts documenting business travel expenses to be submitted with 
claims for reimbursement for all lodging, air travel, rental cars, and other 
expenses as defined in the travel policy. 
 

 Require employees seeking reimbursement of travel expenses to submit a 
completed and signed travel reimbursement claim form for management 
approval. 

 
Accounting Records 
 

121



Control Objectives. To retain financial and accounting records in compliance with 
statutory requirements, and ensure that they are accessible, auditable while ensuring 
the agency is making efficient use of available storage space.  Additional information 
about accounting records are included as part of the Agency’s Record Retention Policy. 
 
7.1.1.5 WIRE TRANFERS 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
This policy provides authoritative guidance to the Agency in accounting for outgoing or 
incoming wire transfers and related procedures. 
 
The policy explains the accounting procedures related to wire transfers. This policy 
applies to all departments that need to make payments via wire transfers, Electronic 
Funds Transfer (EFT), Automated Clearing House (ACH), or ECHO drawdown.  
 
Because of the transaction costs involved, it is generally recommended that payments 
be made through the traditional accounts payable system. However, there are times 
when it is necessary to pay vendors through other means. 
 
Wire Payments 

 
Initiating the Wire. The department creates and prints a journal entry in PeopleSoft.  
Attach a wire transfer authorization form and supporting (usually an original receipt or 
vendor’s invoice).  For wire transfers in a foreign currency, the amount must be input in 
PeopleSoft in U.S. dollars.  The payee on the voucher should match the account title on 
the wire transfer authorization form.  
 
Once voucher and supporting paperwork is complete, the department obtains 
appropriate signatory approval from the department’s authorized signor. By approving 
the wire, the signor is authorizing the transaction and attesting that the transaction and 
supporting documentation is appropriate.  
 
Wire payments are subject to the same approval process as other payments. 

 
Accounting Office Review. The County Treasurer’s Office reviews and approves the 
wire transfer authorization form and the journal.  The document is then taken by NCTPA 
staff to the Treasury for processing.  After approving the availability of funds, the 
Treasurer’s Office sends the journal entry for payment.  
 
Processed by Treasurer’s Office. Review the voucher and validate approving 
signature (If there is any question as to the authenticity of the signature, or any 
questions on the routing information provided, the authorized approver will be contacted 
for verification). The approval of the wire by authorized approvers fulfils the control 
objective of authorization.  Treasurer’s Office sends the wire, stamping “wire sent” and 
dating the voucher.  
 

122



For wires in a foreign currency, the Treasurer’s Office receives the conversion 
information from the bank and records US dollar amount on the voucher.  The bank’s 
wire fee is added to the voucher.  
 
Verify Wire’s Settlement.  The next business day, after reviewing the previous day’s 
bank activity, the Treasurer’s Office verifies that the wire has settled in the bank account 
and compares the voucher to the bank account. If the voucher does not match, the 
Treasurer’s Department investigates and resolves the issues before processing the 
voucher.  
 
The review is evidenced by the reviewer’s initials on the hard-copy of the cash sheet for 
that day. The person that initials is verifying that all the transactions balance to the bank 
account. The review, in the step above as evidenced by the initials on the cash sheet, 
are a control to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the transactions. It also 
ensures that transactions are processed timely because a delay in processing will 
cause a mismatch between the voucher and the transactions in the bank accounts.  
 
Controller’s Office Processes the Voucher and releases the hold on the voucher. For 
wires in foreign currencies, the Controller’s Office inputs the updated U.S. dollar amount 
into the PeopleSoft system.  The voucher and attachments are microfilmed at the end of 
the month.  
Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) 
 
This policy relates to electronic funds transfer (EFT) which is defined to be the 
transmission of an electronic message to a financial institution instructing it to make an 
electronic entry reflecting the transfer of ownership of funds from one depositor to 
another. 
 
The Napa County’s Treasurer’s Office is responsible for the daily management of bank 
balances and the general oversight of EFT activity and should be consulted to provide 
assistance in determining when an EFT is the most cost effective and appropriate 
payment mechanism. 
 
The Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer or an assigned designee are responsible for the 
security and administration of EFT’s and will provide EFT facilities for all appropriate 
banking institutions approved by the Board of Director’s. Subject to the system security 
and other procedures outlined in this document, the Executive Director or other 
individuals designated by the Executive Director, is authorized to initiate EFTs. 
 
Although the Agency’s primary method of disbursement is check based, EFT may also 
be used when a payment request meets one or more of the following conditions: 
 

 Legal or contractual requirements 
 

 Expedited payment required 
 

123



 Standard industry practice 
 

 Guaranteed payment delivery requested 
 

 Most cost-effective payment procedure 
 
EFTs Between Bank Accounts 
 
Because EFTs between accounts have minimal risk, the Treasurer’s Office may use 
EFT on a routine basis to concentrate funds for payment and investment purposes and 
to reallocate funds among investment accounts. Although risks are minimal for transfers 
between accounts, reasonable controls should exist with regard to authorization, 
reconciliation, and review of these transactions. 
 
Automated Clearing House (ACH) 
 
An ACH debit is an electronic transfer of funds directly out of the remitter’s bank 
account which is originated by an outside entity. Because the Agency has less control 
over the timing and amount of funds transferred, this policy statement has been 
established. 
 
The use of the ACH network to initiate payments and to receive funds has become a 
common business practice. It has also become common for some governments and 
businesses to require that certain payments be remitted to them electronically. A 
remitter may be given a list of options which could include the remitter originating an 
ACH credit or the remitter receiving an ACH debit originated by a government or 
business, both of which transfer funds from the remitter’s bank account to the 
government’s or business’s bank account. The difference lies in which party originates 
the transfer of funds. 
 
This policy statement has been developed because of the unique circumstances and 
requirements related to ACH debit transactions. In the case of receiving an ACH debit, 
the remitter does not have direct control over the timing and amount of funds transferred 
from a bank account. 
 
The Agency may be required to make certain payments by receiving an ACH debit. In 
addition there may be certain payment applications which, by nature and under the 
proper control environment, could be processed more timely and efficiently through the 
receipt of an ACH debit, without sacrificing audit trail and internal controls otherwise 
available with warrant, check or ACH credit payment processing. These payment 
applications must be reviewed on a case-by-case basis for determining whether they 
are appropriate for the ACH debit payment method and to review control procedures. 
 
General ACH Rules and Procedures 

 
The receipt of ACH debits to Agency accounts is permissible the following conditions: 

124



 
 Where required by federal or state law or associated regulations, or where 

required by an entity for payment of necessary goods or services. 
 

 Where the County Treasurer have authorized the receipt of ACH debits after 
determining that it is in the best interest of the Agency. 

 
In either case, procedures for the processing, authorization and control of the debits 
must be developed and approved by the Treasurer and the Executive Director or a 
designee prior to the acceptance of the ACH debits. 

 
Prior to implementing ACH debits, an agency must first notify the County Treasurer.  
The Treasurer will request information from the Agency on the frequency, timing, 
volume of transactions and other information as deemed appropriate. This information 
will assist in determining whether the application is appropriate for receiving ACH 
debits, and if so, what payment controls and procedures will be utilized. Typically such 
information would include but is not limited to: 

 
 current payment method 

 
 entity originating ACH debit 

 
 dollar amount, volume, frequency of ACH debits 

 
 provisions for agency notification of dollar amount, volume, etc. 

 
 regulatory or other requirements for use of ACH debits 

 
 other unique circumstances (time constraints, sole source of vendor, etc.) 

 
 a summary of planned agency control procedures. 

 
The Treasurer’s Office will review the request and seek further information if needed. 
The Agency will then be notified whether the ACH debit application is acceptable or if 
alternative payment methods might be considered. 
 
Upon initial acceptance of the ACH debit receipt request, the Treasurer in consultation 
with the Agency, will review the proposed control procedures, and make additional 
recommendations if necessary. 
 
All ACH debit receipt approvals will be reviewed periodically by County Treasurer to 
determine if other payment methods might be considered more feasible. 
 
ECHO Drawdown policy 
 
Cash Management Requirements  

125



 
All eligible FTA grantee organizations or sponsors paid by the requisition method of 
payment may now apply to be converted to Treasury's Automated Clearing House 
(ACH) method of payment, regardless of the money amount involved. ACH 
electronically sends payment to a payee's bank for deposit to their bank account.  
 
Guidelines for Disbursements  
 
Disbursement guidelines are in accordance with policies established in U.S. Department 
of Treasury Circular 1075, Part 205, "Withdrawal of Cash From The Treasury for 
Advances Under Federal Grant and Other Programs," and by FTA financing 
agreements. These guidelines state that the recipient organization shall commit itself to:  
 

 Initiating cash drawdowns for immediate disbursement needs. This has been 
defined as two to three calendar days. Excess federal funds held more than 
three days must be returned to FTA along with any interest earned. Timely 
reporting of cash disbursements and balances as required by the Federal 
program agency (FTA).  

 
 Imposing the same standards of timing and amount upon any secondary 

recipient organizations.  
 

 Limiting drawdowns to eligible project costs, which would include NOT 
drawing down funds for a project in an amount that would exceed the sum 
obligated by FTA or the current available balance for that project.  

 
 Providing control and accountability for all project funds consistent with FTA 

requirements and procedures for use of the ECHO-Web System. 
 
 Furnishing reports of cash disbursements and balances, when required by 

means of the Financial Status Report for FTA and the Federal Cash 
Transaction Report.  

 
The Federal Transit Administration Agreement (Form FTA II (A)), Part II or II Terms and 
Conditions, dated December 1992, Section 107.a and b. (1), describes the process for 
requesting payment and the requirement for payment processing under the ECHO 
System.  
 
Failure to adhere to these provisions, or an unwillingness or inability to establish 
procedures that will minimize the time elapsing between cash advances and the 
disbursement shall cause FTA to revoke or temporarily suspend a company or grantee 
organization's ECHO Control Number (ECN), which is their access to the ECHO-Web 
System.  
  

126



 
7.1.1.6 BUDGET DEVELOPMENT 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to present uniform guidelines for the Agency to use in 
developing and managing its annual budget. 
 
The Agency is responsible for developing and managing its budgets so that its 
resources are utilized efficiently and effectively, in a manner that inspires public 
confidence in the Agency. It is the policy of the Agency to comply with applicable 
legislation and follow the procedures adopted by the Board of Directors for budget 
development and management. 
 
Overview 
 
The Agency collects fare revenues, receives annual allocations from the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission, the State of California, the Federal government, and other 
entities.  The Agency operates on a fiscal year beginning July 1 and ends June 30 of 
the year thereafter. 
 
Sources of Agency Funding 
 
The Agency receives Federal, State, Regional, and Locally generated funding for 
specific purposes from The Agency may also receive direct local revenues as well as 
revenues from the County depending on the terms of its Memorandum of 
Understanding with the County. 
 
All money received by the Agency is deposited into the Governmental, Proprietary, or 
Fiduciary Funds. 
 
Agency Funds 
 
Each year the MTC releases a TDA and STA fund estimate to NCTPA for the 
operations of the Agency.  Money disbursed for operations is deposited into one of the 
Agency’s funds, which is administered by the Finance department. 
 
The Finance department is responsible for allocating funds in a way that: (1) assures 
the Agency ability to carry out their functions, (2) promotes implementation of 
countywide policies, and (3) promotes the immediate implementation of efficiencies and 
cost saving measures in operations. 
 
The Governmental Fund is used for NCTPA’s administration, transportation planning, 
coordinating of transportation and land use in the region and programming of regional 
funding activities. 
 

127



The Proprietary Fund is used for NCTPA’s transit services and capital projects. 
 
Agency Budget Cycle and Timelines 
 
There are two major phases of the budget cycle – development and implementation. 
The development phase includes evaluation of available revenues, current year 
activities and performance and planning for future year fiscal requirements. The 
implementation phase includes establishing budgetary controls through appropriation, 
allocation and budget execution, or in accounting terms, the recording and management 
of revenues, expenditures and encumbrances. 
 
The Board also receives quarterly updates that make periodic revenue and expense 
adjustments to the budget. 
 
Budget Development Process 
 
The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for adopting a budget. The development 
of the annual budget and allocation schedule for operations are based upon the Finance 
department’s approved methodology for allocation of the annual funding from various 
sources.  
 
The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibility for adopting budgeting policies 
and procedures and the annual schedule of budget development to the Executive 
Director. The Agency budget development process, which ends with the Board of 
Director’s approval becomes effective at the beginning of the fiscal year (July 1), is 
described in the following table. 
 
 

Agency Budget Development Process and Timeline 
Activity Purpose Prepared/Issued By When 

Activity Purpose 
Prepared/ 
Issued By When 

Gather information on 
next fiscal year’s 
sources of funds 

Budget cycle 
commencement 

Finance December 

Develop Agency 
budgets 

Input and review 
initial budget 
recommendations 

Finance January-March 

Ad-hoc budget 
meeting 

Review budgets with 
Board of Directors 
and have questions 
answered 

Finance, Board of 
Directors 

February or March 

Revise budget if 
necessary based 
upon ad-hoc meeting 

To ensure that the 
proposed budgets 
settles all outstanding 
questions posed by 

Finance March or April 

128



Board and other 
stakeholders. 

Finalize budget Complete budget 
input process 

Finance May 

Budget approval Formalize fiscal 
year’s budgets 

Board of Director’s May Board of 
Director’s meeting 

Input budgets into 
Oracle 

For reporting 
purposes 

Finance June 

 
Agency Budget Development Activities 
 
Budget Evaluation. Monitoring budget performance is critical to evaluate the Agency’s 
success in meeting current year objectives and is also the first step in planning the 
budget for next year’s operations. The Agency should track revenues and expenditures 
against its budget to assure that expenditures do not exceed available funding. The 
monthly internal reports and Monthly Financial Statements are useful budget evaluation 
tools. 
 
Budget Planning. The Agency has a strategic plan in place for effective operation, 
management of increased service demands, and improved service delivery. The 
Agency’s budget is a formal statement of how the Agency will meet its objectives in the 
coming year. 
 
The Agency will responsibly evaluate and prioritize the resources it needs to address 
increases in workload, changes in services mandated by statute, improved 
administration and operation, and enhanced services to meet the goals of its strategic 
plan, and to ensure that the funding adequately meets the Agency’s needs. 
 
It is essential to the success of the Agency that staff gives budget development a high 
priority to prepare an accurate and all-inclusive budget for the Agency. 
 
Program Structure 
 
The Budget Program Structure is broken into four levels- Program, Element, 
Component, and Task (FDSP). Each successive level provides additional detail that is 
used to develop, organize, and manage the Agency budget as follows: 
 

 Fund: This is the summary level, which includes all elements of Agency 
Operations. Agency Administration is reflected as a distributed expense 
against Agency operations. 
 

 Division: This is the second level of budget detail, which breaks down the 
two programs into the major Agency operations and administration elements. 
 

129



 Subdivision: The Component level is the third level of budget detail. It further 
segregates Agency operations funds into categories for different types of 
revenue and expenses on a department basis. 
 

 Program: The Program level is used to track specific programs or projects.   
 
Baseline Budget Development 
 
Responsibility for developing the baseline budget lies with the Agency’s Finance 
department. The Finance department issues an annual Baseline Budget Development 
Package that specifies the procedures and schedules for developing the baseline 
budget. The baseline budget covers both the current year and budget request year. The 
Agency must complete the following schedules to establish its baseline budget: 
 

Salary and Position Worksheet. The baseline budget process starts with an 
estimate of the cost of personnel services (salaries and wages), which is the 
largest component of the Agency’s budget. A schedule has been developed of all 
authorized positions, their salaries, and the associated benefit costs for each 
position. 

 
Baseline Budget. The complete operating budget for the Agency based on 
existing resources makes up the baseline budget. The Baseline Budget provides 
a comprehensive financial plan for the Agency. It also establishes the financial 
condition of the Agency through the fund sources. The Baseline Budget identifies 
all resources available to the Agency including: fund balances, funding from TDA 
allocations, grant funding and other local revenue. It also identifies all Agency 
costs including the personal services, as well as operating expense and 
equipment items. 

 
The Baseline Budget also includes the following table and schedules to assist the 
Agency: 
 

 Explanation worksheet 
 

 Baseline budgets. 
 

 Schedule of Capital Purchases. 
 

 Schedule of Professional Services and Supplies. 
 

 Salary and benefit information. 
 
Budget Implementation 
 
Budget implementation is a two-step process of establishing control over available 
resources and then executing operations consistent with the adopted budget plan. 

130



 
The Agency is responsible for managing its budget within available resources and in 
compliance with prescribed rules and regulations. This responsibility resides with the 
Executive Director, who has authority over the general operation of the Agency. 
 
Establishing Budgetary Control 
 
Budget controls are mechanisms to ensure that the Agency’s resources are expended 
in a manner consistent with the Agency’s priorities. The Agency’s baseline budget is the 
key internal control for effective operations. As the Agency prepares and allocates its 
known resources between programs, elements, components, tasks (FDSP), and objects 
of expenditure. A starting point is created by which the Agency can measure itself to 
evaluate its performance. 
 
System-wide budget revision and transfer policies are specified in Budget Monitoring 
and Reporting. 
 
The Agency is responsible for developing internal policies regarding the internal 
allocation and transfer of moneys between programs, elements, components, tasks and 
objects of expenditure. At minimum, the following shall apply: 
 

 Under no circumstance will grant funds received by the Agency from 
governmental body be expended for any purpose other than that specifically 
provided by the grantor. 

 
 Under no circumstance shall the Agency incur obligations greater than the 

expenditure limits imposed by the available resources. 
 
Budget Execution 

 
Once plans, resources and controls are in place the Agency executes its operating plan, 
thereby incurring operating expenses and receiving revenues. As part of this process, 
encumbrances are established to account for contracts and purchase orders. 
 
Payments are made and received consistent with the policies set forth in this manual. 
Expenditure limits based on Board of Directors and internal allocations and policies on 
the movement of funds guide how the Agency may accommodate necessary 
modifications to its budget plan. 
 
7.1.1.7 BUDGET MONITORING AND REPORTING 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines for the Agency to monitor 
and control its annual budget and help ensure responsible management of available 
resources. 

131



 
The Agency will manage its operations in a fiscally prudent manner. Expenditures may 
not exceed the amounts established in the Agency's approved budget. Budgetary 
control measures are required to assure that expenditures do not exceed allocations for 
specific funds, programs, elements, components, tasks, or objects of expenditure. 
 
The Agency shall monitor actual expenditures against its monthly and annual budget. 
Cash flow also will be monitored to assure that the Agency has sufficient funding to 
meet its obligations. On a monthly basis, the Agency shall submit a report of revenues 
and expenditures.  
 
The Monthly Financial Statements will be in the form and according to the schedule 
approved by NCTPA.  
 
Background 
 
After the Agency's annual budget has been approved by the Board of Director’s and 
funds programmed, the Agency must operate within the limitations of the available 
funding. The Agency must establish budgetary control procedures to monitor its budget 
on an ongoing basis throughout the year to assure that actual expenditures do not 
exceed budgeted amounts. 
 
Regular budget monitoring allows the Agency to: 1) assure that funds are available for 
operations, and 2) reallocate limited resources in the event of budget shortfalls or 
surpluses. Monitoring both expenditure and cash flow allows the Agency to exercise an 
appropriate level of control over available funds and to take corrective action as 
necessary. 
 
Monthly budget reporting at NCTPA is done in the FDSP format at the object of 
expenditure level.  
 
Budget Monitoring Requirements 
 
It is the Agency’s responsibility to monitor its budget on a regular basis.  It is 
recommended that the Agency prepare and review a comparison of actual expenditures 
with the approved budget that provides the following information for each program 
element and budget line item of expenditure: 
 

a. Actual expenditures incurred for the previous month. 
 

b. Expenditures incurred for the fiscal quarter-to-date and year-to-date compared 
with their respective budgets for the same time frame. 

 
c. The variance between month-to-date actual and budgeted expenditures. 

 

132



In addition, the Agency should analyze its cash flow needs for the current month and 
project its cash flow for the remainder of the fiscal year. 
 
Expenditure to budget comparisons and cash flow monitoring reports shall be prepared 
and reviewed as soon as is practicable after closing information becomes available 
each month. 
 
The Agency shall not limit its budget analysis to a "bottom line" review of the Agency's 
fund balance. Individual budget line item review is required to provide a greater degree 
of budgetary control. 
 
Budget Reporting 
 
NCTPA is responsible for collecting information and reporting on the financial status to 
the Executive Director, Board of Directors, and responsible staff members. The Agency 
shall: 
 

a. Provide the State Controller with summary information regarding revenues and 
expenditures when requested by the State.  

 
b. Adopt rules to provide for reasonable public access to budget allocation and 
expenditure information at the state and local levels. 

 
c. Adopt rules ensuring that the Agency provides information relating to Agency 
administration including financial information in a timely manner upon written 
request. 

 
Specific requirements for Agency financial reporting are discussed below. 
 
Overall Work Plan 
 
Once the Board has adopted a budget, staff will prepare the Overall Work Plan (OWP) 
that expands on the tasks and projects that each division will undertake during the fiscal 
year.  The OWP will allocate staff and other resources to each task and project. 
Quarterly Financial Statements (QFS) 
 
The Agency shall submit quarterly financial statements that provide the following FDSP 
information at the object of expenditure level: 
 

a. Actual expenditures incurred during the previous quarter. 
 

b. Cumulative expenditures for the fiscal quarter-to-date and year-to-date. 
 

c. The variance between actual and budgeted expenditures for the quarter. 
 

d. The remaining budgeted balance for each object of expenditure. 

133



 
e. Budget transfers among FDSP areas and between expenditure objects, as 
necessary to support operations. (These adjustments should net to zero). 

 
f. Budget revisions reflecting changes to the Agency's available budget, such as 
additional allocations or receipt of new grants. 
 

In addition, monthly monitoring reports are to be provided to the Executive Director and 
management staff to ensure adherence to budgeted expenditures. 
 
Budget Revisions 
 
During the course of the fiscal year, the Agency may receive additional or amended 
allocations from Federal, State, MTC, or regional entities and receive revenues above 
those originally budgeted, or receive new grants from other governments or private 
sources. 
 
The Agency may revise the budget and report the budget revisions the Board of 
Directors for formal approval. Budget revisions are reported at the Task and Summary 
Object of Expenditure (line item) levels, and reflect an overall increase or decrease to 
the Agency's approved budget. 
 
Under no circumstance will funds received by the Agency for specific uses or 
applications (i.e., grant funds) be transferred to other Agency programs in violation of 
grant terms, conditions and agreements. 
 
The Agency will conduct regular reviews of actual expenditures versus budgeted 
amounts and project expenditures to assure that the remaining budget is sufficient to 
cover anticipated expenditures for the balance of the fiscal year. If a budget shortfall is 
anticipated, appropriate actions shall be taken to assure that Agency operations are not 
adversely affected. 
 
The Agency will document all budget revisions to account for variances in projected 
versus actual expenditures, and include this information as part of the quarterly update 
to the Board of Directors, or more frequently if necessary to carry out the mission of the 
agency. 
 
Budget Transfers 
 
NCTPA may adopt rules that ensure the Agency’s management of the movement of 
funds between functions, line items, or programs on a basis that is consistent with 
statute, rules of Agency, and standards of federal, state, or regional administration. 
 
It is the intent of this manual to provide the Agency with the flexibility in transferring 
funds between individual programs and objects of expenditure where the transfers are 
necessary for the efficient and cost-effective operation of the Agency, or to make 

134



technical corrections. Within this framework, the following provisions govern budget 
transfers. 
 
Transfers between Subdivision Items 
 
The Agency prepares their baseline budgets according to the FDSP structure. The 
budgeted amounts represent the Agency’s planned operations by program activity for 
the fiscal year. 
 
The budget transfer process allows the Agency to transfer unrestricted funds between 
or among the budgeted program components to reflect changes in the Agency’s 
planned operations or to correct technical errors.  
 
Funds designated for specific purposes shall only be used for the stated purpose. 
 
Transfers between Expenditures 
 
The Agency will also prepare its budget at the summary object of expenditure level 
specified in the Chart of Accounts and adhere to the transfer policies above.  
 
Budget Change Proposals 
 
Local Transportation Funds (LTF) is the primary funding source for the Agency’s 
planning operations. FTA grants are the primary funding source for the Agency’s transit 
operations.  However, in the event there are non-discretionary costs that are imposed 
upon the Agency as a result of legislative or other changes to operations and programs 
that are not funded by the LTF funding adjustment, NCTPA is permitted to submit a 
Budget Change Proposal (BCP) to request additional funding through the annual budget 
process to address operational changes These changes include unanticipated grant 
revenues and related operating or capital expenditures, unanticipated expenses 
necessary to carry out the mission of the Agency, costs associated with meeting 
legislative mandates, and emergencies.: 
 
Augmented funding may be received from NCTPA based upon approved BCP’s funded 
in the Budget.  Following enactment of the state budget, the Agency will reflect changes 
in funding in its subsequent monthly financial statement. 
 
Funds received pursuant to the BCP process may not be transferred between program 
areas and are not to be included when calculating the amount available for transfer to 
another program area. 
 
While the Agency may not transfer augmented funds from the budgeted program area, 
funds received in this process may be transferred between summary objects of 
expenditure within the program area. 
 

135



Exceptions to this process must be based on extreme circumstances, thoroughly 
explained in writing, recommended by the Finance Manager or designee, and submitted 
to the Board of Directors of NCTPA for approval. 
 
Emergency Budget Procedures 
 
LTF budget allocations to the Agency are intended to adequately fund Agency 
operations and staffing, allowing the Agency to carry out its functions and guarantee 
citizens’ access to justice. In the unlikely event that the Agency projects that its budget 
will be exhausted before the end of the fiscal year, preventing the Agency from meeting 
its financial obligations or continuing normal operations, NCTPA should be immediately 
advised in writing. 
 
NCTPA will work to help it manage the funding shortfall. Under the most extreme 
circumstances, if Agency expenditures exceed the budget authorized by the Board of 
Directors, NCTPA may appoint the County of Napa to manage the fiscal operations of 
the Agency. 
 
7.1.1.8 FUND ACCOUNTING 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines by which the Agency 
establishes “funds” and maintains accountability over the public resources used to 
finance its operations. 
 
As a publicly funded entity, the Agency must ensure that the funds allocated to it by the 
state and other sources are used efficiently. The Agency shall establish and maintain 
separate funds to segregate its financial resources and allow for the detailed accounting 
and accurate reporting of its financial operations. 
 
This procedure applies to all Agency employees who are responsible for or participate 
in the financial operation of the Agency, the accounting for revenues and expenses, and 
the collection and disbursement of funds. 
 
Overview 
 
Funds and Fund Types 
 
It is a common practice for state and local governments and public agencies to account 
for their financial resources and report the results of their operations through the use of 
fund accounting. A “fund” is a complete set of accounting records designed to segregate 
various financial resources and maintain separate accountability for resources 
designated for specific uses. The establishment of discrete funds is beneficial in 
ensuring that public monies are only spent for approved and legitimate purposes. 
 

136



State and local governments can establish as many funds as required to operate 
efficiently and account for resources accurately. However, all funds used must be 
classified into one of the seven types shown in the table that appears on the following 
page. 
 
Section 1300, GASB Codification, states that a government unit should keep the least 
number of funds possible to satisfy its particular circumstances. 
 
The GASB number of funds principle states: “Government units should establish and 
maintain those funds required by law and sound financial administration. Only the 
minimum number of funds consistent with legal and operating requirements should be 
established because unnecessary funds result in inflexibility, undue complexity, and 
inefficient financial administration.” 
 
 
  

137



Classification of Fund Types Available to Government Agencies 
 

Classification Fund Type Purpose Commonly Used 
by NCTPA? 

Governmental 
Funds 
 

General fund To account for all financial 
resources except those 
required to be accounted for in 
a separate fund. 
 

Yes, to account 
for all funds 
received by the 
Agency except 
those that must be 
accounted for 
separately. 

 Special 
revenue 
fund 
 

To account for certain revenue 
sources “earmarked” for 
specific purposes. 

Yes, to account 
for 
federal, state, 
local and private 
grants. 

 Debt service 
fund 
 

To account for the 
accumulation of resources 
for, and the payment of, 
general long-term debt principal 
and interest. 

No 
 

 Capital 
projects 
fund 

To account for financial 
resources used in the 
acquisition or construction of 
major capital facilities, other 
than those financed by 
proprietary funds and trust 
funds. 

No 

Proprietary 
Funds 

Enterprise 
fund 

To account for operations that 
are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private 
business enterprises. 

Yes 
 

 Internal 
service 
fund 
 

To account for the financing of 
goods or services provided by 
one department or agency to 
other departments or agencies 
of the governmental unit, or to 
other governmental units on a 
cost - reimbursement basis. 

No 
 

Classification Fund Type Purpose Commonly Used 
by NCTPA 

Fiduciary 
Funds 

Trust or 
Agency 
fund 

To account for resources 
received by one government 
unit on behalf of a secondary 
governmental or other unit. 

Yes, to account 
for fines, fees, etc. 
collected by the 
Agency on behalf 
of others. 

138



Operations Fund – Local Transportation Fund 
 
The Local Transportation Fund is used to account for the financial activities associated 
with the moneys appropriated by the State of California and allocated to the Agency. 
 
The Agency Operations Fund is established by the County as an agency fund type 
under the General Funds classification. However, for the Agency’s purposes, the 
Agency Operations Fund is treated as a general fund type under the Governmental 
Funds classification. 
 
An accounting structure including elements such as Programs, Organizations, Object 
and Sub-Object accounts, and revenue sources should be established to allow the 
Agency to account separately for various programs and activities. 
 
The Executive Director or designee shall authorize and direct expenditures from the 
Local Transportation Fund. The LTF along with all other applicable funds shall be used 
to report the Agency’s financial activities in the Monthly Financial Statements (MFS). 
 
Special Revenue Funds 
 
Agency operations may include activities that are funded by federal, state, local 
governmental or private grants. Most grants specifically define the purposes for which 
grant funds may be used. In many cases, the grants are reimbursement type 
agreements that require the Agency to document its costs to receive payment. These 
are generally defined as expense-driven grants. 
 

a. The Agency should establish and maintain Special Revenue Funds to 
specifically account for revenues and expenditures related to grant activities. 

 
b. Revenues and expenditures under these funds shall not be commingled with 
the Operation Funds. However, grants and other revenues and expenditures in 
the Operations Fund may have a separate accounting designation for tracking 
purposes. Financial systems operated the Agency must be capable of 
establishing and maintaining Special Revenue Funds to specifically account for 
revenues and expenditures related to grant activities. 

 
c. The Special Revenue Funds shall be reported with the Local Transportation 
Fund in the Monthly Financial Statements information provided to the state. 

 
d. Additional information regarding grant accounting is provided in Grant 
Accounting and Administration. 

 
 
  

139



7.1.1.9 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines and accounting principles 
for the Agency to follow when gathering, summarizing and reporting accounting 
information associated with the fiscal operations of the Agency. 
 
The Agency shall comply with the basic principles of accounting and reporting that are 
applicable to government units. Financial transactions shall be executed and accounted 
for in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and legal 
requirements. 
 
This procedure will apply to all Agency employees and agents. 
 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
 
To meet the needs of internal and external users of Agency financial information, State 
and local governments have adopted Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP). 
 
GAAP are uniform minimum standards and guidelines for financial accounting and 
reporting. They govern the form and content of an organization’s financial statements. 
GAAP encompass the conventions, rules and procedures necessary to define accepted 
accounting practices at a particular time. They include not only broad guidelines of 
general application, but also detailed practices and procedures. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
 
GAAP applies to both private and public sector organizations. The term private sector 
generally refers to businesses and non-profit organizations. Public sector generally 
refers to state and local governments. 
The highest authority for setting accounting standards for the private sector is the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). The primary authoritative body for 
setting standards for the public sector is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 
 
Application of GAAP 
 
The Agency shall use an accounting system that conforms to GAAP to assure 
uniformity in financial reporting and to provide a reasonable degree of comparability 
between Agency and State financial reports. 
 
The accounting system implemented by the Agency must both: 
 

a. Present fairly and fully disclose the financial positions and results of operations 
of the Agency’s funds in conformity with GAAP. 

140



 
b. Determine and demonstrate compliance with all legal requirements and 
contractual provisions. 

 
Every effort shall be made to comply with GAAP. When legal requirements conflict with 
GAAP, the basic financial statements shall be prepared in conformity with GAAP. 
Additional schedules and explanations shall be also issued to conform to legal 
requirements, if necessary. 
 
Fund Accounting 
 
Governmental funds shall be the primary fund type the Agency uses to account for its 
resources. The number and types of funds established shall be based upon how the 
Agency’s resources will be spent and the need to segregate and account for funds used 
for different purposes. 
 
The Agency may establish several funds. Each fund shall have separate general ledger 
accounts to account for designated assets, liabilities, and other balances. [Section 
1300, GASB Codification states that a government unit should keep the least number of 
funds possible to satisfy its particular circumstances.] 
 
The Agency shall use the Governmental (Agency Operations Fund, Special Revenue 
Funds), Proprietary and Fiduciary (Agency and Trust funds) types of funds to account 
for its financial activities. Fund Accounting, provides more details on Agency funds. 
 
Governmental fund revenues shall be classified by fund and source codes. 
 
Agency Trust Funds for allowable expenditures should be classified by fund, program, 
element, component, task, object, and sub-object codes. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The Agency shall utilize either Accrual or Modified Accrual Basis of accounting to 
measure its financial position and the results of operations associated with the Agency’s 
Governmental, Proprietary, or Fiduciary funds. 
 
The Agency shall recognize revenues when they become both measurable and 
available to finance expenditures of the current period. 
 
Expenditures shall be recognized in the accounting period during which goods are 
received or services are rendered. 
 
The Revenues and Expenditures policy provides a more detailed discussion on the 
recognition of revenues and expenditures as well as year-end accrual procedures. 
 
  

141



Budgetary Accounting 
 
The Agency shall adopt an annual budget. The annual budget is the Agency’s plan of 
financial operation, which includes estimates of proposed expenditures for the fiscal 
year. Refer to Budget Development, and Budget Monitoring and Reporting, for more 
details. 
 
The Agency accounting system shall provide the basis for appropriate budgetary 
control. Budgetary comparisons shall be included as part of the financial statements and 
schedules for each of the Agency’s funds included under the annual budget. 
 
 
7.1.1.10 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform accounting guidelines for the Agency 
to record revenues and expenditures associated with operations. 
 
The Agency shall account for its resources using either Accrual Basis or Modified 
Accrual Basis of accounting. Revenues shall be recognized in the current period to the 
extent that they are measurable and available to liquidate current liabilities. 
Expenditures shall be recognized in the accounting period during which goods are 
received or services are rendered. 
 
Measurement of Resources and Basis of Accounting 
 
The majority of the Agency’s financial activities are accounted for in the “Local 
Transportation Fund”, which is essentially a general fund. Additionally, the Agency 
receives grants from federal, state and local governments as well as from the private 
sector. The following sections describe how resources should be measured under these 
funds and what basis of accounting should be applied. 
 
Measurement of Resources 
 
Governmental funds (such as the Local Transportation Funds and the FTA funds) are 
designed to measure the “flow of financial resources”. The objective is to determine 
whether more or fewer resources will be available for spending in the near future as a 
result of current transactions. Increases in resources available for spending in the 
current period are treated as revenues. Decreases in resources are treated as 
expenditures. 
 
Agency funds (such as the Revenue Collection Fund) are designed for one government 
agency (the Agency) to collect and temporarily hold resources for another government 
unit (the County). These funds report assets (due from) and liabilities (due to), but not 
equity, revenues or expenditures. 

142



Basis of Accounting 
 
A fund’s basis of accounting determines when a transaction is recognized as revenue or 
expenditure. The basis of accounting for the Local Transportation Fund and other 
revenue funds is the Accrual Basis of accounting. 
 
Revenue Recognition - Under Modified Accrual accounting, revenues are recognized 
when they are “susceptible to accrual”. GASB Codification Section 1600.06 explains 
that revenues are susceptible to accrual when they are both measurable and available. 
It is not enough that revenue has been earned (measurable). The related cash flow 
must be available in the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. 
 
Since the Agency derives most of its revenues from State funding and grant 
reimbursements, these revenues are susceptible to accrual. All Agency revenues are 
measurable and available (within a reasonable amount of time) to pay for current 
liabilities and therefore, should be recognized during the current period. 
 
Expenditure Recognition – Expenditures shall be recognized in the accounting period 
during which goods are received or services are rendered. 
 
Most Agency purchases or contract commitments are short-term and should be 
recognized during the current fiscal year, if goods are received or services are 
rendered. Expenditures associated with long-term contracts covering more than one 
year may also be recognized during the current fiscal year. If goods are not received or 
services are not rendered, expenditures may be recorded in the subsequent period. 
 
General Revenue Recognition 
Since the Agency derives most of its revenues from state funding and expenditure-
driven grants, virtually all revenues can be accurately measured and expected to be 
available within a reasonable amount of time to pay for current liabilities. Therefore: 
 

a. The Agency shall recognize revenues during the current fiscal year when they 
are both measurable and available. 

 
b. The Agency shall apply the concept of “earnings” to define measurability (i.e. 
the Agency is entitled to the funded amounts, the Agency has rendered the 
services required by the grants, or revenues have been earned). 

 
General Expenditure Recognition 
 
Liabilities shall be recognized in the accounting period during which goods are received 
or services are rendered: 
 

 The Agency shall encumber moneys from the Local Transportation Fund and 
when the liability is incurred (i.e., a purchase order or contract is issued). 

143



 
 The Agency shall recognize expenditures as payments are made to 

vendor(s). 
 

 The Agency shall disencumber (reduce) the operating fund as the reserve of 
funds is reduced or liquidated. 

 
Year-End Revenue Accrual 
 
Even though Agency financial reporting must be on the modified accrual basis, daily 
accounting may be on a cash basis. Under such circumstances, accrual basis for 
financial statement purposes is achieved by adjusting the accounts at the close of each 
year. The Agency fiscal year ends on June 30th. The Agency shall perform year-end 
accruals as follows: 
 
Prior to June 30th, the Agency shall: 
 

 Review all revenue accounts related to entitlements and accrue revenues 
(such as the thirteen installment of state funding) that may not have been 
received from the state, but which are measurable and available. 

 
 Review all revenue accounts related to expense driven grants and accrue 

revenues that may not have been billed to date. 
 

 All accruals need to be reversed during the first month of the new fiscal year. 
 
Year-End Expenditure Accrual 
 
Similar to revenues, expenditures must be reported on the modified accrual basis for 
financial reporting purposes. The daily accounting basis may be on a cash basis as 
described in section 6.3. The accrual basis is achieved by adjusting accounts at year-
end. The Agency shall perform year-end accruals as follows: 
 

 The Agency shall review all open purchase orders, contracts and the related 
encumbrances in an effort to accrue expenditures during the current fiscal 
year, disencumber funds and liquidate the associated liability to the extent 
possible. 

 
 All open purchase commitments for which goods and services have been 

delivered or rendered, but not paid, shall be accrued as current year 
expenditures. This also applies to grant funding. 

 
 All contracts straddling two fiscal years shall be reviewed for the express 

purpose of recognizing expenditures in the current period if it is determined 
that the services were rendered or goods were received in the current year. 

144



The balance of the contracts should be closed in the current year and 
reopened in the new fiscal year along with the appropriate encumbrances. 

 
All accruals need to be reversed during the first month of the new fiscal year. 
 

7.1.11 GENERAL LEDGER 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines by which the Agency 
organizes its chart of accounts and general ledger to document financial transactions 
ensuring that financial reports clearly and accurately reflect the Agency’s financial 
position. 
 
It is the policy of the Agency to establish an accounting system with a chart of accounts 
and general ledger that enable the Agency to record financial transactions with 
accuracy and consistency. The financial information contained in the general ledger 
shall be maintained in a manner that facilitates the preparation of reports that clearly 
and accurately reflect the Agency’s financial position. 
 
This procedure applies to all employees who are responsible for or participate in the 
financial operations of the Agency, and the accounting for Agency revenues and 
expenses. 
 
General Ledger 
 
The Agency shall maintain separate and identifiable general ledgers for the purpose of 
recording and reporting its financial activities. 
 
The general ledgers are the hubs of the accounting and financial system. All financial 
transactions shall be summarized and recorded in the general ledgers. 
 
Separate general ledgers shall be maintained for each type of fund used by the Agency. 
For example, separate general ledgers will be maintained for each of the following: 
 

a. Governmental Fund to record all general Agency operations not associated 
with other Agency fund types. 

 
b. Proprietary Fund to record all federal, state, local government or private grants 
provided to the Agency for transit services. 

 
c. Fiduciary Fund to record all financial activities performed by the Agency on 
behalf of other government entities for the region. 

 
The general ledgers shall be supported by appropriate sub-ledgers that provide 
adequate and sufficient details of all summary entries. 

145



 
Entries into the general ledgers flow from the sub-ledgers (such as accounts payable) or 
other journals. 
 
The general ledgers shall consist of general ledger accounts designed to identify and 
segregate different types of transactions in logical groups such as assets, liabilities, 
equity or fund balances, revenues and expenditures. The Agency shall document these 
general ledger accounts in its chart of accounts. 
 
To the extent practical, the Agency shall adopt the County’s chart of accounts. When 
strict adherence to the County’s chart of accounts is not practical due to system or other 
local constraints, the Agency shall maintain a chart of accounts that provides a 
complete listing of all the accounts used in the accounting system. A detailed 
description of the type and purpose of each account should also be developed. 
 
The Agency shall establish an appropriate number of accounts to allow the Agency to 
make sound financial decisions. Too few accounts will not provide sufficient detail. Too 
many will render the accounting system difficult to manage and hinder the extraction of 
relevant information. 
 
For budgetary purposes, the Agency shall further categorize and summarize various 
general ledger accounts by program, component, element, and task. 
 
The general ledgers shall be balanced on a regular basis and not less than once a 
month. Trial balances shall be generated as part of this effort to verify that the sum of 
debit and credit entries during the period is equal. 
 
When necessary, adjusting journal entries shall be prepared to adjust the accounts. All 
adjusting entries shall be adequately documented and shall require appropriate written 
management approval. 
 
All nominal and budgetary accounts shall be closed at the end of the fiscal year, as the 
balance sheet accounts remain open and should be carried forward to the new fiscal 
year. Closing entries shall be used to transfer the balances in operating accounts 
(revenue and expenditure accounts) to fund balances. After closing entries are made, 
only balance sheet accounts should have balances. Budgetary accounts should also be 
closed along with the revenue and expenditure accounts. 
 
General Fixed Asset Account Group 
 
The Agency shall account for fixed assets that are not otherwise accounted for in the 
general ledgers of the Government Fund, Proprietary Fund or Fiduciary Fund in a 
“General Fixed Asset Account Group”. 
 
The General Fixed Asset Account Group shall be used to track the following categories 
of assets: 

146



 
 Land. 

 
 Structures (Facilities) and improvements. 

 
 Equipment. 
 Construction in progress. 

 
Agency equity or ownership of these assets shall be recorded in “Investment in Fixed 
Assets” accounts that are set up according to the source of the fund used to acquire the 
assets. For example, the general ledger of each of the Agency’s three funds may 
include an Investment in Fixed Assets account to track ownership of specific assets 
recorded in the general fixed asset account group. 
 
7.1.12 ENCUMBERANCES 

 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application  
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines for the Agency to use in 
reserving or encumbering funds sufficient to cover its financial obligations. 
 
All commitments related to purchases shall be encumbered to ensure that adequate 
funds are available to pay invoiced amounts. Purchases include purchase orders, 
contracts, and other financial obligations that are associated with a contract. 
 
Overview 
 
As purchase orders or contracts are issued, they are forwarded to the Agency 
accounting department, so that encumbrance amounts may be posted. This 
encumbrance reduces the Agency’s balance of funds. 
 
With each payment against a purchase order or contract, an equal amount of 
encumbrance is reversed. The reversal is posted to the purchase order or contract. At 
the end of the contract period, any remaining encumbrance balance is reversed by the 
final payment, or by a reversal entry. 
 
As a part of the closing process each fiscal year, purchase orders and contract 
expenditures are accrued according to the procedures specified in Chapter 12– 
Revenues and Expenditures. When these expenditure accruals are made, equal 
amounts of encumbrances are reversed. For financial obligations that will be recognized 
in the next fiscal year, new encumbrances are established on July 1 to reserve sufficient 
funds. 
 
Blanket Purchase Agreements with Releases 
 

147



For blanket purchase agreements with releases, only the release order amount is 
encumbered for an amount sufficient to cover specific goods or services ordered. 
 
Ongoing Contracts 
 
Long-term contracts and purchase orders should be structured to expire on June 30 and 
reopen on July 1, the beginning of the new fiscal year. However, if this is not possible, 
purchase orders and contracts should be encumbered to cover the maximum 
expenditures that may occur during the current fiscal year. At the beginning of the next 
fiscal year, the remaining obligation is encumbered. 
 
Obligations Not Encumbered 
 
The following are examples of financial obligations that are typically not encumbered: 

 
 Purchase orders or contracts that specify effective dates in a future fiscal year 

will not be encumbered until the beginning of that fiscal year. 
 
 Warrant requests. 
 
 Purchase card transactions. 

 
Change Orders 
 
Periodically, changes or amendments to existing purchase orders or contracts are 
processed. Encumbrances are adjusted accordingly, to reflect the increases or 
decreases in the purchase orders or contracts. 
 
Encumbrances at Fiscal Year End 
 
Subject to annual approval by the Board of Director’s, encumbrances as of a fiscal year 
end may be carried forward to the new fiscal year. These encumbered funds are 
available in the new fiscal year in addition to the budgeted amount for the new year. 
 
Canceling an Encumbrance 
 
An encumbrance may be canceled by expiration or by cancellation of the purchase 
order or contract. When this occurs, the unencumbered funds are available for other 
expenditures or encumbrances of the Agency. 
 
 
  

148



7.1.13 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy and the following procedures is to provide uniform guidelines 
for payments to individuals and businesses that provide services to the Agency.  

 
The implementation of these procedures will establish effective accounting control over 
assets (cash), liabilities (accounts payable) and expenditures. Prompt payment of 
claims supported by appropriate documentation will foster good business relationships 
with the individuals and businesses that provide essential services to the Agency. 
 
The Agency shall pay the claims of the individuals and businesses that provide services 
in a timely fashion, according to the rules and limitations established by the Agency. All 
claims must be supported by appropriate documentation. All payments are subject to 
review by the Finance Manager, Executive Director and employee(s) who are 
authorized to approve such payments. 
 
The policies and procedures described in this section apply to all Agency employees 
and agents who participate in the requisition, approval, purchase, receipt, or payment 
for services required by the Agency. 
 
7.1.1.14 VENDOR INVOICE PROCESSING 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy and the following procedures is to provide uniform guidelines 
for the Agency to process and submit vendor invoices to the County Auditor Controller 
for payment. 
 
All NCTPA vendor, supplier, consultant and contractor invoices shall be routed to 
accounts payable for processing. The Accounts Payable staff shall process the invoices 
in a timely fashion and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the purchase 
agreements. All invoices must be matched to the proper supporting documentation and 
must be approved for payment by authorized personnel acting within the scope of their 
authority. 
 
Vendor Records 
 
Before a vendor’s invoice can be paid, the accounts payable department must establish 
a vendor file that includes at least the following information: 

 
a. The vendor’s name, address, and telephone number. 
 
b. Name and address of vendor representative to whom payments are to be sent 
if different from the above. 

149



 
c. Name, title and telephone number of the person to contact in case of an 
incomplete or incorrect invoice. 
 
d. Description of goods provided or services performed. 

 
e. Taxpayer identification number. 

 
No invoice shall be processed for payment without a vendor tax identification number. 
 
In compliance with Internal Revenue Service rules and regulations, the Agency shall 
ensure that a Form 1099 MISC is issued to all non-employees who meet the criteria for 
independent contractors established by the IRS. In general, the Agency must report 
payments that meet the following four conditions: 

 
a. Payment is made to someone who is not an employee. 

 
b. Payment is made for services in the course of trade or business (including 
government agencies and nonprofit organizations). 

 
c. Payment is made to an individual, partnership, estate, or in some cases, a 
corporation. 

 
d. Payments made total at least $600 during the year. 

 
e. Payment for professional services such as fees to attorneys, accountants, and 
architects require the issuance of a Form 1099 MISC. Forms must be issued to 
each qualifying independent contractor by January 31 of each year and a copy 
must be sent to the IRS by February 28 of each year. 

 
Document Routing 
 
Routing of Vendor Invoices 
 
NCTPA shall direct all vendors and contractors to submit invoices to one central 
location for processing. For the majority of vendors, this would be the Agency’s 
accounts payable department. 
 
The Executive Director or an authorized representative must approve all invoices for 
payment.  Invoices must also be approved by project managers. 
 
Accounts payable data entry is the responsibility of the accounts payable department. 
 
Routing of Related Documents 
 

150



As they are generated, other pertinent documents must also be routed to the Agency’s 
accounts payable department. Original copies of purchase orders, blanket purchase 
order releases, contracts, order forms, approved requisitions, purchase card ordering 
logs, receipts, packing slips, and all other appropriate documentation related to the 
acquisition of goods and services for Agency related business must be provided to 
accounts payable. 
 
The accounts payable department will maintain these documents in a central file to be 
matched against the related vendor invoices and claims. 
 
This information may also be maintained in electronic form and accessible through an 
on-line purchasing system. The accounts payable staff may utilize on-line information to 
process invoices. 
 
However, original documents are still required as supporting evidence when invoices 
are batched for approval. Original documents must also be retained in compliance with 
the Agency’s record retention policy. 
 
Payment Authorization 
 
The Agency shall establish and maintain an authorization matrix, known as the 
“Signature Authorization Form”, which lists employees who are permitted to commit 
resources and approve invoices for payment. 
 
The Signature Authorization Form (authorization matrix) shall list the dollar limits and 
scope of authority of each authorized employee. For example, only certain employees 
will be allowed to approve transactions such as the acquisition of fixed assets, hiring of 
consultants, etc. The Signature Authorization Form should indicate such conditions. 
 
The Signature Authorization Form shall be updated on an annual basis or as required 
by changes in personnel. 
 
Copies of the Signature Authorization Form shall be provided to the accounts payable 
department, county accounts payable department, outside accounting service provider, 
etc., as appropriate. 
 
Invoice Processing 
 
Preparing Invoices for Processing 
 
Upon receiving the vendor invoices, accounts payable will immediately stamp the 
documents with the current date. 
 
Invoices will be sorted by their payment due dates and maintained in a special file for 
processing. 
  

151



Document Matching 
 
At the scheduled time and depending on the Agency’s invoice payment cycle, an 
accounts payable employee will match the vendor invoices to all appropriate supporting 
documentation. The Agency will adopt the “three point match” procedure to process 
vendor invoices.  In instances where no packing slip or other procurement 
documentation will be applicable, a Fair and Reasonable form may accompany the 
payment. 
 
A “three point match” procedure consists of matching a vendor invoice to a purchase 
agreement and to proof of receipt and acceptance of goods or services. For example: 
 

a. All details of the invoice, including description of goods and services ordered, 
quantities invoiced, unit prices billed and other applicable charges must be 
matched to the details and terms and conditions of the Agency’s purchase 
agreements or contracts. 

 
b. All invoice details, including description of goods or services ordered and 
quantities invoiced must be matched to the details of packing slips, shipping 
orders, receiving reports or other forms of acknowledgement of delivery of 
products or completion of work by an authorized employee. 

 
Vendor invoices shall not be processed for payment without completing the “three point 
match” procedure. If one element is missing (for example there is no evidence of receipt 
of goods and services), the accounts payable employee should contact the responsible 
employee to obtain the appropriate documents or secure a signature of approval. 
 
Review for Accuracy of Invoice 
 
Calculations and price extensions shown on the invoices shall be audited to ensure their 
accuracy. 
 
Vendor name, address, billing address, vendor number, federal ID number and all other 
pertinent information shall be reviewed against the information set up in the vendor 
master file. All discrepancies shall be reported to the employee who authorized the 
transaction. 
 
Accounts Payable personnel must report discrepancies in the vendor master file to the 
Fiscal Officer or other designated employees and secure appropriate approval prior to 
correcting any information. 
 
Problem Resolution 
 
Discrepancies between vendor invoices and Agency purchase orders or contracts may 
arise due to: 

 

152



 Vendor invoicing errors. 
 

 Vendor invoice format that does not allow accounts payable to make a match 
between the invoice and the purchase authorization. 
 

 Data entry errors made at the time the purchase information was entered into 
the Agency purchasing system. 
 

 Changes in the purchase information approved by the Agency but not 
documented in the system or not reflected by a change order. 

 
When discrepancies are detected, an invoice will not be processed for payment. The 
accounts payable employee shall report the errors to the requestor of the goods and 
services. 
 
The Agency shall designate the person responsible for investigating discrepancies and 
making necessary corrections prior to invoice payment. This may be the individual who 
performed the buying activities (usually a buyer), the person who originally requested 
the goods or services, accounts payable, or another party. Coordination of corrective 
actions will be required between with the employee requesting the goods or services, 
the employee approving the purchase, accounts payable, and the vendor. 
 
Problems that cannot be quickly corrected should be referred to the Executive 
Director/Fiscal Manager for resolution. 
 
Invoice Error 
 
Not all errors and discrepancies will require the Agency staff to engage in problem 
resolution activities. Some errors may be immaterial and inconsequential to the 
purchase agreement. For example, vendor invoices may show actual freight charges or 
handling charges that differ slightly from the amount originally estimated at contract 
issuance. The Agency may allow vendor invoices with these types of discrepancies to 
be processed without requiring extra processing steps for error correction. 
 
Account Coding 
 
It is important that all expenditures are recorded in the appropriate accounts. The 
accounts payable department shall only be responsible for assigning account codes for 
transactions that do not require encumbrances (e.g., purchase card transactions, 
warrant requests). 
 
If there is any question regarding the assignment of an account code, Accounts Payable 
will contact the person who initiated the purchase requisition to confirm that the correct 
account is being charged. 
 
Invoice Batching 

153



 
Accounts Payable shall batch small groups of invoices together for approval and for 
warrant processing. Each batch of invoices will have a cover sheet that provides a batch 
number, a summary list of the invoices included, the total number of invoices, and a 
batch total showing the total dollar amount of all the invoices submitted. The batch 
cover sheet is called an Operator I.D. 
 
Batches shall contain only invoices that have been properly processed and that are 
accompanied by information documenting purchase authorization and receipt. 
 
Invoices shall be batched on at least a weekly basis. 
 
Each batch should have a control total to be verified against the data subsequently 
entered into the accounting system. 
 
The batched invoices will be submitted to the designated Agency employee(s) (Agency 
Executive Officer, Agency Fiscal Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Accounting Manager, 
etc.) for review and approval. Depending on the dollar amount of the invoices and the 
level of authority established for each Agency employee, additional approvals may also 
be required. 
 
Payment Approval 
 
Designated employees with payment approval authority shall review all batched 
invoices for: 
 

 Propriety of the transactions. 
 
 Accuracy of the records submitted. 
 
 Reasonableness of the expenditures. 

 
Designated Agency employees shall act within the scope of their authority when 
approving invoices for payment. If the dollar amount or nature of a purchase exceeds an 
individual’s authority, the next level of authority shall be consulted and appropriate 
approval secured before releasing the invoice for payment. 
 
Agency employees authorized to approve invoices shall not approve payment of their 
own purchases. Another level of approval will be required. 
 
The Finance Manager or Fiscal Officer shall ensure that sufficient funds are available in 
the Agency accounts for the County Auditor-Controller to issue payment. 
 
Invoices that have been properly processed and approved according to the applicable 
criteria shall be forwarded to the County Auditor- 

154



Controller, the Agency accounts payable department, or other financial institution (third 
party) for payment. 
 
Types of Payment 
 
The following list shows the various types of payments that the Agency may authorize: 
 

Final payments are made for completed and accepted goods and services.  
Final payments must have a contract close checklist before settlement occurs. 

 
Partial payments are made for completed and accepted supplies or services 
that are only a portion of the total required deliveries (e.g., orders with items on 
back orders, missing components of an assembly, etc.). 

 
Progress payments are made to a vendor as work progresses under a 
purchase order or contract. 
 
Milestone payments are made to the vendor after the completion of specific 
tasks agreed to and set forth in the contract between the vendor and the Agency 
(e.g., long term information services contract with specific deliverables and 
timetables, consultant engagements, etc.). 

 
Advance payments are made to a vendor prior to performance of a purchase 
order or contract (e.g., registration fees for a conference, educational programs, 
etc.). Advance payments are only made in unusual circumstances and are not 
permitted for time and materials service contracts or for the purchase of goods. 

 
As necessary, designated Agency employees shall review the terms of applicable 
contracts or purchase agreements to ensure that payments are made according to 
contract specifications. 
 
Terms of Payment 
 
The Agency may issue its own purchase orders and contracts or use the county 
purchase orders and contracts. If the county provides invoice payment services for the 
Agency, the Agency shall establish standard terms of payment that are consistent with 
the county’s payment cycle. If the Agency uses an outside service provider to pay 
invoices, the Agency will have more flexibility in establishing a convenient payment 
cycle. 
 
Payments 
 
Under current state regulations, the Operations Fund is in the county treasury.  The 
procedures used by the Agency to issue payments depend on how the Operations Fund 
is established. 
 

155



If the Operations Fund is established in the county treasury, the county must issue 
payments at the Agency’s direction.  In this case, the Agency shall ensure that the 
county: 
 

 Issues payments on the Agency’s behalf when directed by authorized Agency 
personnel. The Agency’s Signature Authorization Form shall be provided to 
the county for approval verification. The Agency may establish more 
restrictive signature requirements at its discretion. 

 
 Has a method of accounting for all payments issued on behalf of the Agency. 

The Agency should require the county or its service provider to provide 
reports such as check or warrant registers, bank reconciliation reports, etc., 
for reconciliation to Agency records if needed. 

 
 Immediately posts payments to the check or warrant register. 

 
 Has a method of accounting for voided or missing checks or warrants and for 

notifying the Agency accordingly. 
 
7.1.1.15 AUDITS 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines for the Agency to follow 
prior to, during, and after the completion of audits conducted by governmental units or 
other organizations with audit rights over operations and finances. 
 
There are many legal requirements and restrictions surrounding the use of public 
resources that can lead to audits of Agency operations and finances. The Agency shall, 
as part of its standard management practice, conduct its operations and account for its 
resources in a manner that will withstand audit scrutiny. During an audit, the Agency 
shall fully cooperate with the auditors to demonstrate full accountability, efficient use of 
public resources, and compliance with all requirements. Substantiated audit findings 
shall be investigated and corrected in a timely fashion. 
 
Audit Rights 
 
The financial records, internal controls, regulatory compliance and other aspects of the 
Agency’s operations are subject to audit by various entities. The rights of various 
government units to audit the Agency’s operations and finances are discussed below. 
 
The County of Napa 
 
The County of Napa’s Auditor/Controller’s office is authorized to perform audits and 
reviews of all Agency financial records. 
 

156



To assure that the Agency is managing its resources effectively and efficiently, and is 
also able to carry out its function, the County may conduct periodic audits of the 
Agency, through the use of internal auditors or independent contractors. 
 
The scope of County internal audits may include, but is not limited to, reviews and 
audits of Agency finances, procedures, internal controls, compliance with rules and 
regulations, and performance issues. 
 
The role of internal auditors is to ensure that the system of internal control is adequate 
and functioning as designed, and to help management in the effective and efficient 
discharge of their responsibilities. The County has established an Internal Audit Unit as 
a key component of its internal control structure. The scope of the Internal Audit Unit’s 
activities may include, but is not limited to, financial, performance, and compliance 
audits and reviews. 
 
The Board of Directors should be notified by the Agency of any and all audits or audit-
related activities, whether initiated by the Agency or at the request of other agencies.  
 
The Auditor/Controller’s office may also audit MOU agreements between the Agency 
and the county to ensure that the amounts of any indirect or overhead costs are 
individually stated, together with the method of calculation of the indirect of overhead 
costs, and to determine the reasonableness of the indirect or overhead costs charged to 
the Agency. 
 
The Metropolitan Planning Organization 
 
Independent audits are conducted by outside accounting firms that specialize in 
examining the operations of government and business entities. The Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission may authorize the performance of a financial audit, 
performance audit, agreed upon procedures review, or any combination thereof. 
 
State of California 
 
The Bureau of State Audits is authorized by the state under the federal Single Audit Act 
to audit the Agency regarding its use and accounting of federal grant funds. 
 
The Board of Director’s should be informed when the Agency is notified of the state’s 
intention to conduct any audit or review. 
 
The Agency shall notify the Executive Director whenever the State Controller’s Office 
requests an audit of the Agency’s collection activities. 
 
Types of Audits 
 
Financial Audits 
 

157



The purpose of a financial audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the Agency’s 
financial statements are reliable. 
 
Financial statements present management’s assertions regarding the Agency’s financial 
position, results of operations, and cash flow. The audit provides an independent basis 
for relying on the Agency’s assertions. 
Auditors conducting a financial audit will: 
 

 Inspect relevant documents. 
 

 Observe employee performance. 
 

 Inquire about policies, procedures, transactions and events. 
 

 Confirm balances and transactions. 
 

 Perform analytical procedures. 
 
The auditor’s goal is to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the 
Agency’s financial statements are fairly presented. 
 
Performance Audits 
 
Performance audits are also called efficiency and effectiveness audits, compliance 
audits, and operations audits. The scope of a performance audit is typically narrower 
than the scope of a financial audit and may be confined to a particular program, 
department, process, or other aspect of Agency operations. 
 
The purpose of a performance audit is to determine if the Agency is conducting its 
operations in the most economic and efficient manner, and if programs are achieving 
their intended purposes. An important part of the auditor’s task is to define what 
constitutes efficient and effective performance for the operations he or she is reviewing. 
 
Federal Grant Audits 
 
A portion of the Agency’s operating budget comes in the form of federal grants, which 
may be awarded by several agencies. For many years, the Agency was subject to the 
audit requirements of each granting agency. Sometimes multiple audits were performed 
by different audit teams, each of which examined the same records and internal controls 
according to differing and conflicting audit standards. To resolve this problem, the 
federal Single Audit Act was enacted in 1984 and amended in 1996, to replace multiple 
grantor audits with a single audit that addresses the requirements of all federal grantor 
agencies. 
 
The Single Audit Act requires auditors to: 
 

158



 Determine if the supplementary schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
prepared by the Agency is fairly presented in relation to the Agency’s financial 
statements. 

 
 Test internal controls and the Agency’s compliance with federal award 

program requirements. 
 

 Audit at least half of all federal program awards as “major programs” as 
defined by the act. If the Agency has expended less than $100 million in 
federal awards, a major program is one that accounts for the greater of 
$300,000 or 3% of federal awards, and which does not meet the criteria for a 
“low risk” program. A low risk program is one that has been audited as a 
major program within the past two years and for which there have been no 
audit findings. In addition, programs must be considered to be major if they 
are formally designated as such by a federal grantor agency. 

 
 For each major program, the auditor must: 

 
i. Gain an understanding of the internal controls in place to assure 
compliance and then test those controls. 

 
ii. Render an opinion as to whether the Agency complied with laws, 
regulations and contract provisions for grants that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major program. 

 
iii. Consider materiality separately for compliance categories. 

 
In concert with the Single Audit Act, The Office of Management and Budget has issued 
Circular A-133, which sets forth standards designed to obtain consistency and 
uniformity in audits conducted of state and local governments that expend federal grant 
awards. The circular may be found at www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars. The following 
paragraphs highlight some of the important topics addressed in the circular. 
 
The Agency is responsible for preparing financial statements for the grant program that 
include, at a minimum, a schedule of expenditures of grant funds for the program and 
notes that explain the significant accounting policies used in preparing the schedule, a 
summary schedule of prior audit findings, and a corrective action plan. 
 
The auditor is responsible for: 
 

a. Performing an audit of the financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted government auditing standards (GAGAS). 

 
b. Gaining an understanding of the internal controls that are in-place and testing 
those controls. 

 

159



c. Determining whether the Agency is in compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, and grant agreements. 

 
d. Following up on prior audit findings. 

 
e. Preparing combined or separate reports that include: 

 
i. An opinion regarding whether the financial statements are presented 
fairly in all material respects. 
ii. A report on internal control related to the grant program. 

 
iii. A report on compliance including an opinion regarding Agency 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and grant agreements. 

 
iv. A schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

 
Federal grant awarding agencies are responsible for: 
 

a. Identifying federal awards made by informing each recipient of the Catalog of 
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number and title, award name and 
number, and award year. 

 
b. Advising recipients of the requirements imposed upon them by federal laws, 
regulations, and grant agreements. 

 
c. Ensuring that audits are completed and reports are received in a timely 
manner. 

 
d. Providing technical advise to auditees and auditors. 

 
e. Issuing a management decision on audit findings within six months of receipt 
of the audit report and ensuring that the recipient takes timely and appropriate 
corrective action. 
 
f. Providing annual updates of Circular A-133. 

 
Audit Support 
 
Generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) and GAGAS require auditors to study 
and evaluate the Agency’s system of internal accounting controls to determine the type 
and extent of audit procedures to be performed. A system of internal controls consists of 
the measures employed to safeguard the Agency’s assets, ascertain the accuracy and 
reliability of the entity’s accounting data, promote operational efficiency and encourage 
compliance with policies and procedures. 
 

160



GAAS and GAGAS also require that sufficient competent, evidential matter be obtained 
through inspection, observation, inquiries and confirmation to allow a reasonable basis 
for an opinion regarding the records and operations under examination. 
 
The Executive Director or a designee shall be the primary point of contact for all 
auditors examining the operations and records of the Agency. 
 
The Board of Directors should be notified in advance by the Executive Director or a 
designee of any impending audit.  
 
The Agency shall cooperate fully with the auditors’ requests for information. Auditors 
shall be provided access to Agency records, files, policies, procedures, computer 
systems, and personnel for the purpose of gathering information that is within the nature 
and scope of their audit assignments. 
 
The Agency shall not withhold relevant information, misrepresent any fact or mislead 
auditors in an attempt to “pass the audit”. 
 
Audit Findings and Issue Resolution 
 
Exit Meeting 
 
At the conclusion of field (onsite) activities, auditors will normally hold an exit meeting 
with Agency representatives to present preliminary audit findings and discuss 
deficiencies, reportable conditions, material weaknesses, or unacceptable risk levels 
discovered during the audit. 
 
The Agency shall use this opportunity to provide additional information, clarify 
questionable items and attempt to resolve the issues prior to the issuance of the audit 
report. If necessary, additional reasonable time should be requested to further research 
the auditor’s findings. 
 
Audit Reports 
 
There are three common reports associated with audits of public entities such as the 
Agency: 
 

a. The auditor’s report on the fair presentation of the financial statements. 
 

b. The auditor’s report on compliance and internal control over financial reporting 
based on an audit of the financial statements. 

 
c. The auditor’s report on compliance and internal control over compliance 
applicable to each major program. 

 

161



Auditor’s reports on compliance and internal controls typically include a separate 
section that lists the auditor’s findings, which provide information on specific 
weaknesses or instances of noncompliance. The auditor often provides specific 
recommendations for corrective actions to be taken by management to resolve the 
weakness or noncompliance issue. 
 
When an auditor discovers an expenditure that may not be allowed under the 
requirements of a federal grant, the expenditure is listed as a questioned cost. 
Questioned costs may ultimately be rejected by the granting agency, in which case the 
Agency must refund them. Questioned costs that exceed $10,000 must be reported 
under the Single Audit Act. 
 
Report Distribution 
 
In addition to the auditor’s standard distribution of audit reports, the Agency shall assure 
that a copy of any audit report is delivered to the County of Napa, State of California, 
Federal Transit Administration, MTC, and any other public agency which requests a 
copy. 
 
Corrective Action 
 
It is the responsibility of the Agency to take swift corrective action to improve its 
practices in areas where auditors find deficiencies, reportable conditions, material 
weaknesses, or unacceptable levels of risk. 
 
If it is perceived that the required corrective actions will materially impact operations and 
finances, the Agency shall consult the Board of Directors prior to engaging in any such 
actions. Agency management shall have the discretion to consider mitigating factors 
and provide written justification to the Board of Directors for not correcting specific 
deficiencies. The Board may accept the Agency’s argument for not instituting improved 
practices or it may choose to assist the Agency in developing and implementing 
corrective actions. While the Agency shall always strive to improve on its system of 
internal controls, the costs of implementing policies, procedures and internal controls 
should not exceed the value of the benefits they provide. 
 
Subsequent Audits 
 
Auditors routinely conduct follow-up audits to determine whether appropriate corrective 
actions have been taken with respect to the findings of previous audits. During the 
subsequent audits, auditors will determine whether the corrective actions taken, if any, 
have resulted in the desired changes, or whether management has acknowledged the 
risks of not taking corrective actions. 
 
The Single Audit Act requires preparation of a schedule that presents the status of 
corrective actions taken on audit findings from previous years. 
 

162



The Agency shall ensure that all reported conditions be either corrected or adequately 
justified prior to any scheduled follow-up audit. 
 
7.1.1.16 PETTY CASH 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for the Agency to use in 
establishing, drawing from, replenishing, and accounting for petty cash funds. 
 
A petty cash fund may be established when the Agency finds it necessary to keep a 
small amount of cash on hand to purchase low value supplies and services that cannot 
be practically purchased by other means. The maximum petty cash purchase is $100.00 
unless advance approval from the Executive Director is obtained. 
 
This procedure applies to all Agency officers, managers, and employees who are 
responsible for authorizing, controlling, or reconciling petty cash funds or who may 
make purchases using petty cash. 
 
Introduction 
 
A petty cash fund may be established when it can be demonstrated that a continuing 
cash advance should be kept on hand to permit the purchase of low-value supplies and 
services. 
 
Whenever possible, standard procurement methods should be used instead of petty 
cash (refer to Procurement Manual). However, some supplies, such as stamps, postage 
for prepaid meters, parking, cab fare, and rapid transit tickets needed for official Agency 
business purposes, may be purchased using petty cash funds. 
 
Petty Cash Fund Custodian 
 
The Executive Director or Finance Manager must appoint a custodian of the petty cash 
fund. The custodian is personally responsible for the safekeeping, disbursement, and 
accounting for petty cash. A copy of this procedure shall be given to the custodian to 
ensure that he or she understands the requirements for using petty cash funds. 
 
Petty cash funds should be kept separate from all other monies. The petty cash fund 
shall be kept in a locked drawer or cabinet with the key in the custodian’s possession. 
 
Establishment of a Petty Cash Fund 
 
A check made payable to the custodian of the fund is written to establish the fund. 
Checks written to replenish the petty cash fund are also made payable to the custodian. 
 

163



The petty cash fund should be kept to the lowest amount that is sufficient to meet the 
needs of the Agency. The authorized fund shall not exceed $500. 
 
Petty Cash Disbursements 
 
The maximum petty cash disbursement is $100, exclusive of applicable sales tax. A 
greater than $100 may be given by authority of FM or ED. 
 
Disbursements from a petty cash fund can only be made for authorized purposes. Each 
disbursement must be documented by a petty cash receipt, which should contain the 
following information: 
 

a. Date of purchase or payment. 
 

b. Name of vendor or other payee. 
 

c. Amount paid. 
 

d. Description of the goods purchased (entered by the vendor if a handwritten 
receipt is obtained, or by the purchaser if a cash register tape is issued) or of the 
services provided. 

 
e. The Agency account the disbursement should be charged to. 

 
f. Signature indicating receipt of purchases or services. An example petty cash 
receipt is provided at the end of this procedure. 

 
The original vendor invoice, cash register receipt, or other evidence of the transaction 
for which petty cash is disbursed must be attached to the petty cash receipt. 
 
The total receipts plus the cash on hand must equal the specified amount of the petty 
cash fund at all times. 
 
Restrictions on the Use of Petty Cash 
 
Whenever possible, standard procurement methods should be used instead of petty 
cash (refer to Procurement Manual). 
 
The petty cash fund cannot be used to: 
 

a. Pay for expenditures greater than $100 unless advance approval from the 
Executive Director or designee is obtained. If approval is not obtained, purchases 
greater than $100 shall be made according to the Procurement Manual. 

 
b. Purchase goods currently covered by an Agency contract or blanket purchase 
order. 

164



c. Pay personal services that would be considered either wages or independent 
contractor payments. All payments for personal services must be paid through 
either the payroll system as wages, or accounts payable, if payment is being 
made to an independent contractor. 

 
d. Pay travel expenditures, except for local travel (e.g., parking, cab fare, local 
public transit fares, etc.). 

 
e. Make personal loans, salary advances or to serve as a check cashing fund. 

 
Petty Cash Fund Reimbursement 
 
Reimbursements to the petty cash fund are made by check payable to the custodian. To 
receive reimbursement for petty cash expenditures, the custodian must submit a 
Reimbursement of Petty Cash form that is supported by purchase receipts. An example 
form is provided at the end of this procedure. 
 
Reimbursement requests must be approved for payment by the Fiscal Officer or his or 
her designee. The Agency accounting department is responsible for reviewing the 
receipts submitted with reimbursement requests. 
 
Agency executives, managers, and other employees are prohibited from authorizing 
petty cash reimbursements payable to cash or themselves. 
 
Reimbursement should be requested as needed, but no less frequently than monthly. 
The fund shall be reimbursed prior to the close of the fiscal year. 
 
Change in Petty Cash Custodian 
 
When custody of a petty cash fund is transferred to another custodian: (1) a personal 
review of the fund will be made by the employees directly concerned, and (2) a Petty 
Cash Change of Custodian Form (provided at the end of this procedure) should be 
completed for the approval of the Executive Director. The purpose of this form is to 
document the change of custodian, that the total of the cash and the receipts equal the 
specified amount of the fund, and that the new custodian is aware of his or her specific 
responsibilities related to custody of the fund. 
 
Associated Documents 
 
Petty Cash Voucher 
Imprest Cash Voucher Control Form 
Petty Cash Reconciliation 
 
  

165



PETTY CASH VOUCHER (Sample) 
 

 
 
Date: _____________________ 
Name: __________________________ 
________________________________ 
 
Amount: _________________________ 
Basis of Request: __________________ 
Advance: ____ Reimbursement: ______ 
Purpose and nature of usage: ________ 
 
________________________________ 
Attached receipts: _________________ 
Signature: _______________________ 
 
 
7.1.1.17 CASH HANDLING 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines for employees to use in 
receiving and accounting for payments from the public in the form of fees, 
reimbursements and assessments resulting from payment for services. 
 
It is the policy of the Agency to collect and process payments received from the public in 
the form of fees, reimbursements and assessments in a manner that protects the 
integrity of the Agency and its employees and promotes public confidence. The Agency 
shall institute procedures and internal controls that assure the safe, secure collection, 
and accurate accounting of all payments. 
 
This policy applies to all Agency employees and agents whose official job 
responsibilities involve any aspect of collecting or processing revenue received from the 
public either in-person or by mail. 
 
Safekeeping of Money 
 
To reduce the potential for losses due to errors or irregularities, Agency employees and 
its agents involved in collection activities (cashiers and supervisors) will observe the 
guidelines provided in this section. 
 
  

166



Acceptable Forms of Payment 
 
The Transit Center can accept the following for payment of fees, reimbursements and 
assessments: 
 

a. Cash. 
 

b. Personal checks. 
 

c. Bank checks or drafts. 
 

d. Traveler’s checks. 
 

e. Money orders. 
 

f. Credit cards. 
 

g. Debit cards. 
 
No Cash Policy at NCTPA Headquarters 
 
NCTPA’s administrative offices and headquarters does not accept cash for payment of 
fees, unless authorized by the Finance Manager or Executive Director. 
 
The “no-cash” policy is intended to increase taxpayer and employee safety, reduce 
customer wait time at the front desk, and reduce cost in handling cash. Accepting cash 
payments is costly in both staff time it takes to process cash.   
 
Cash payments are accepted by the Soscol Gateway Transit Center ticket office and at 
other locations where transit media may be sold. 
 
Payments Made In-Person 
 
Beginning Daily Balance- Transit Center Ticket Office 
 
At the beginning of each day, cashiers receive a nominal amount of money to enable 
them to return change on cash transactions. The Purchased Transportation provider 
generally secures these funds in individually locked drawers or bags. Cashiers should 
verify receipt of their beginning cash funds with their supervisor. Any beginning cash 
drawer/bag cash discrepancies  should be resolved before the cashier starts their daily 
cash collection duties. 
 
Additionally, the Transit Center Ticket Office may maintain a separate “Change Fund” 
(e.g., $300-$500) for the exclusive purpose of providing small denomination currency 
and coins (change) to cashiers in exchange for large denomination currency they 
receive throughout the day (this is not a petty cash fund). At the end of the business 

167



day, the “Change Fund” custodian, in the presence of a Manager or Supervisor, should 
verify that change fund monies are intact. 
Cash Handling Procedures 
 
Cash control procedures are of primary importance to management in avoiding losses. 
The fundamental rules for controlling cash receipts include the following: 
 

a. Organizationally: 
 

i. Designate specific responsibility for custody of cash funds during the 
workday and for securing cash in a safe, vault, or other secure storage 
place overnight. 

 
ii. Limit responsibility for receiving cash to as few people as possible. 

 
iii. Separate cash handling from record keeping. Responsibilities for 
collection and deposit preparation should be segregated from those 
involving the recording of cash receipts into accounting records and 
permanent record entries. 

 
iv. Have bank reconciliations prepared by persons not responsible for 
handling cash (this function is managed by the County). 

 
b. When receiving payment: 

 
i. When cash is received at the public windows it is counted out loud in the 
presence of the customer. 

 
ii. Money should not be put in the cash drawer until after a receipt is 
issued and the correct change is given to the customer. 

 
iii. If a customer disputes the amount of change tendered at the counter, 
the cashier shall ask a supervisor for assistance. 

 
iv. Cashiers shall not return a disputed amount without a supervisor’s 
approval. 

 
v. Payments involving relatives or personal friends shall be given to the 
supervisor for re-assignment. 

 
vi. Cash receipts should be recorded daily. 

 
c. When depositing revenue: 

 
i. Prior to deposit, cash receipts should be secured in a cash drawer, vault, 
safe or locked cabinet to which only specifically authorized personnel have 

168



access. Cash drawers should be used for official business only (i.e., the 
collection of fees, reimbursements, assessments, etc.). 

 
Check/Money Order/Cashier Check Handling Procedures 
 
When a check, money order or cashier’s check is received at the public window or in 
the U.S. mail, the following shall be verified before accepting payment: 
 

a. The name of the customer must be imprinted on the check. 
 

b. Numeric and written dollar amounts must match. 
 

c. Checks must be signed by the customer. 
 

d. Checks must be dated for the day they are written. Post-dated checks are not 
accepted. 

 
e. Two party checks are not accepted. 

 
f. Checks must be written for the exact amount due. No change shall be made on 
payments made by check. 

 
g. Checks must be made out to the Agency. 

 
h. Contract number(s) shall be written on checks, if applicable. 
 
i. Corrections made by the customer must be initialed by customer, not just 
crossed out and rewritten. 

 
j. All checks must be restrictively endorsed immediately upon receipt (e.g., For 
deposit only to…). 

 
k. When a check is accepted at the public window, the customer must provide an 
acceptable form of picture identification such as a driver’s license or passport. 

 
Checks received by the Agency for which the payee line is blank or that are made 
payable to another state agency may be endorsed and deposited by the Agency when 
they are known to be a proper payment to the Agency. 
 
Credit Card and Debit Card Payments 
 
State of California Government Code 6159- Payment to Public Agencies by Credit Card, 
authorizes the acceptance of credit card payments by the Agency and establishes the 
conditions under which payment by credit card is allowed. The same requirements 
apply to debit card payments. 
 

169



The Agency may accept the following types of payments by credit card or debit card: 
 

a. Transit Passes. 
 

b. Taxi Scrip. 
 
c. Other types of transit products sold at the Transit Center. 
 
d. Internet sales (credit card only payments for online sales) 

 
The Transit Center may accept credit card or debit card payments in person. At a 
minimum, the Transit Center must verify that the credit card or debit card is current (the 
card expiration date must not have passed) for payments made in person.  
 
Prior to accepting any credit card or debit card payment, the validity of the payment 
must be verified with the card issuer either electronically or by telephone. 
 
The Agency may impose a fee for the use of a credit card or debit card in an amount not 
to exceed the cost incurred in accepting the card payment. This cost may include, but is 
not limited to, the discount or fee paid to the credit card or debit card issuer. 
 
Dishonored Payments 
 
For checks that are returned due to insufficient funds: 
 

a. The Agency may impose a reasonable charge to recover its actual collection 
and processing costs. 
 

b. The County of Napa, NCTPA’s payment processor will impose a charge of at 
least $10 to recover its actual collection and processing costs. 

 
b. The Agency may prescribe a different method of payment. 

 
If any credit card or debit card payment is not accepted by the card issuer or is charged 
back to the Agency, the record of payment and/or receipt issued shall be voided. The 
payment obligation of the cardholder shall continue as if no attempt at payment has 
been made. 
 
The Napa County Treasury department acts as our collection agency.  The Treasury 
department makes several attempts to collect payment.  NCTPA is charged a $10 fee 
for all returned checks.  If the Treasury department is unsuccessful at collection the 
payment, a journal is posted by the Treasury department debiting the corresponding 
revenue account on our behalf. 
 
Receipts 
 

170



All payments to the Agency must be acknowledged by a sequentially numbered receipt. 
Receipts issued should provide information sufficient to create an adequate audit trail 
that ensures proper distribution of the monies received including: 
 

a. Receipt number. 
 

b. Date of payment. 
 

c. Amount received. 
 
The Agency shall keep a record of all receipts issued. A receipt is deemed to be 
cancelled if a payment made by check, money order, credit card, or debit card is 
dishonored. 
 
Periodically monitor receipt sequence numbers to identify gaps and assure that all 
receipts are accounted for. 
 
Void Transactions 
 
Transactions that must be voided require the approval of a supervisor. When notified by 
a cashier, the supervisor is responsible for reviewing and approving the void 
transaction. All void receipts should be retained, not destroyed. 
 
Backup Procedure for Automated System Down Time 
 
In the case of a failure of the automated accounting system, pre-numbered receipt 
books will be issued by the supervisor or designated employee. A handwritten receipt 
shall be given to the customer and a copy of the receipt is clipped to the payment, and a 
copy shall be retained by the Agency or Transit Center. 
 
Payments processed during down time shall be kept separate from money processed 
through the system. Money, receipts and case files will be kept together in a designated 
secure place. 
 
Handwritten receipt transactions must be processed as soon as possible after the 
automated system is restored. The transactions must be recreated in the system from 
the handwritten receipts before the money can be transferred to the cash drawer or 
cash register. 
 
Daily Balancing and Closeout 
 
At the end of the workday, all cashiers must balance their own cash drawer or register. 
Cashiers may not leave the premises nor transact new business until daily balancing 
and closeout are complete. 
 

171



Balancing and closeout include completing and signing the daily report; attaching a 
calculator tape for checks; turning in the report, money collected and cash change fund 
to the supervisor; and verifying the report with the supervisor. 
 
After daily balancing and closeout are completed, the collections are prepared for 
deposit to the County or bank. If the daily collections are not deposited on the same day 
they are collected, they must be locked in a safe, vault, or secure cabinet overnight. 
 
Shortages and Overages 
 
Cashiers must report all overages and shortages to their supervisors. Overages and 
shortages must be handled separately, never combined or netted together. An Overage 
or Shortage Report must be completed and signed by the responsible cashier and 
turned in to the appropriate supervisor with the daily cash balance report. 
 
Supervisors will monitor all reports of overages and shortages to determine if there is a 
pattern meriting further investigation, modification of collection procedures, retraining of 
personnel, or disciplinary action. 
 
All unidentified overages over $5 should be deposited into a separate account to 
maintain visibility of these amounts. Overages may be cleared after a waiting period of 
six months. 
 
Fare Overpayment 
 
Passenger should be ready with the appropriate fare, exact change or tokens, or one of 
the VINE’s convenient passes when boarding. All buses have electronic fare boxes that 
accept the following fare payments; NCTPA issued fare media, U.S. currency $1, $5, 
$10 & $20 dollar bills, $1 coins as well as 1¢ 5¢, 10¢, 25¢, & 50¢, and transfers. Bus 
operators do not carry change. Fares or overpayments are Non-refundable. NCTPA 
buses are to be retrofitted with Clipper transponders. 
 
Payments Received Through the Mail 
 
Checks and money orders received through the mail should be processed on the day 
they are received. Any exceptions are to be brought to the attention of a supervisor, 
placed in a locked area and processed on the next business day. 
 
A team approach should be used to maintain accountability for payments received in 
the mail: 
 

a. An administrative assistant opens the mail. 
 

b. More than the administrative assistant may be needed to process large 
volumes of mail. 

 

172



c. All checks and other forms of payment through the mail is logged in a central 
repository. 
 

The following steps should be followed in opening the mail and processing the 
payments received: 
 

a. Checks and money orders received though the mail should be processed on 
the day they are received and listed on a check receipts log sheet. 

 
b. The check receipts log sheet should include the following information: 

 
i. Name of the person/organization making the payment. 

 
ii. Check amount. 

 
iii. Check number. 

 
iv. Date received. 

 
v. Name of the person handling the check. 

 
c. An adding machine tape of all checks and money orders should be run and the 
total amount received should be matched to the total amount entered into the 
accounting system. 

 
d. The person logging the payments received through the mail shall sign the 
bottom of the log sheet after running the adding machine tape. 

 
e. The adding machine tape should be attached to the log sheet and the checks 
delivered to a designated cashier for entry into the accounting system. 

 
f. Receipts for payments received in the mail shall only be sent to the customer if 
a stamped, self-addressed envelope is included with the payment. 

 
Payments Received Through RidetheVine.com Website 
 
NCTPA accepts credit card payment for transit media through the RidetheVine.com 
website.  Visa, Mastercard, Discover, and American Express are accepted forms of 
online payments for transit products. 
 
NCTPA’s servers use Secure Sockets Layer (SSL), an encryption technology that works 
with Netscape, Microsoft Internet Explorer, AOL and Apple’s Safari’s browser. This 
ensures that only the RidetheVINE.com Web-Store can read your personal information.  
 
RidetheVINE.com has also obtained a digital certificate from Network Solutions, a 
leading provider of Internet trust services. When the user enters a secured portion of the 

173



site, an image of a closed lock or a solid key should appear in the bottom bar of your 
browser window. If you click on this image, a small popup window displaying site-
security information will appear. This certificate guarantees that your personal 
information is being transmitted in a secure (encrypted) form to a RidetheVINE.com 
Web server, not to an unknown or unauthorized server.  
 
NCTPA and RidetheVINE.com does not sell registered users information to third parties 
and does not keep credit card information stored on its servers. A registered user must 
re-enter the credit card information at each transaction to complete the purchase. 
 
Handling Counterfeit Currency 
 
The following procedures are to be followed for the handling of counterfeit currency. 
 
Identification 
 
At a minimum, cashiering staff must test all $50 and $100 bills for possible forgery. 
Depending on volume, $20 bills may also be tested at the option of the Executive 
Director or his/her designee or on staff supervisor. Every member of the cashiering staff 
should be provided with a counterfeit detection pen, which should be used to test for 
counterfeit bills. If the ink changes color, this indicates a potential counterfeit. 
Counterfeit detection pens may be obtained through local sources. 
 
For additional information on counterfeit currency identification, please refer to the 
USSS Web site at www.treas.gov/usss; under “Investigations,” click “Know Your 
Money,” followed by “How to Detect Counterfeit Money.” 
 
Confiscation 
 
Each cashier who receives currency suspected of being counterfeit should contact his 
or her supervisor immediately. Care should be taken in discussing confiscation with the 
customer because of the risk of legal action and/or violence. Discussion with the 
customer should focus on ensuring that: 
 

a. The customer understands that he or she is not being accused of 
counterfeiting; and 

 
b. Federal regulations require confiscation of the currency. 

 
Security staff should be asked to observe (but not detain) the customer, if this can be 
done unobtrusively. 
 
If feasible, the supervisor should telephone the closest USSS office to supply the serial 
numbers of the currency believed to be counterfeit, but not in the presence of the 
customer. 
 

174



After confiscation and pending instructions from the USSS, the supervisor should put 
the suspect currency in a sealed envelope and place it under lock and key; handling of it 
should be minimized. The USSS or an appropriate law enforcement agency is 
responsible for returning any confiscated currency determined not to be counterfeit. 
 
Under no circumstances are cashiers permitted to retain possession of counterfeit 
currency. 
 
Replacement of Confiscated Currency 
 
If a supervisor believes that currency received by NCTPA may be counterfeit, he or she 
should explain to the customer that the currency cannot be accepted and must be 
confiscated, but that other currency, traveler’s checks, or a credit card may be 
substituted as an acceptable form of payment, as appropriate. 
 
The customer should always be informed that if he or she does not replace the 
currency, the transaction is incomplete. 
 
Notification 
 
The supervisor should telephone the USSS regarding the receipt of counterfeit or 
potentially counterfeit currency. 
 
If the Agency is unable to collect funds because of the acceptance of counterfeit 
currency, the Executive Director or his or her designee should initiate appropriate 
collection efforts. 
 
Handling Foreign Currency 
 
It is the policy of the Agency that currency other than United States is not accepted by 
NCTPA and VINE Transit. 
 
 
7.1.1.18 REVENUE COLLECTIONS AND DISTRIBUTION 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform guidelines for the Agency and its 
agents to collect process and report all fees and assessments resulting from business 
services. 
 
It is the policy of the Agency to collect and process revenue in a manner that protects 
the integrity of the Agency and its employees and promotes public confidence. The 
Agency shall institute procedures and internal controls that assure the safe and secure 
collection of revenue, prompt deposit of all revenues received, accurate accounting that 

175



creates an audit trail, and the generation of reports required for sound financial 
management. 
 
Deposits 
 
The Agency shall prepare appropriate documentation to deposit funds in the County 
treasury or for pick-up by an armored transport service.  
 
To deposit money in the County treasury, a deposit permit request must be prepared. 
The deposit permit is called a “Deposit Authorization Form.” This request, prepared in 
duplicate, must be supported by acceptable documentation such as duplicate receipts 
or a receipt listing. The County keeps one copy and signs and gives NCTPA the second 
copy. 
 
The Deposit Authorization Form and supporting documentation requirements shall be 
prescribed by the County Auditor/Controller. 
 
The Deposit Authorization Form and money held for deposit shall be transmitted to the 
County Treasurer for deposit. 
 
The County Treasurer shall receipt all copies of the deposit permit request and 
distribute the copies to the County Treasurer, County Auditor/Controller, and Agency. 
 
The County Treasurer shall deposit the money into the funds indicated on the deposit 
receipt. 
 
Daily Reporting 
 
All collections made by the Agency must be recorded in general ledger, which may be 
created manually or generated by an automated system. The receipts from all cashiers 
should be posted daily and reconciled with the daily deposit of funds. 
 
The collection record should show in chronological sequence and by receipt number all 
amounts collected by the Agency and the nature of the money collected. At the end of 
the month, each column of the collection record should be added and the totals 
recorded. A duplicate copy of the collection record may be prepared and attached to the 
monthly cash settlement report as supporting documentation. 
 
Revenue Distribution 
 
Each payment received by the Agency is ultimately distributed or disbursed according to 
a fund established by the Board of Directors. 
 
The Agency must assure that it is able to track revenues collected by funding source 
and reimbursement codes for accounting purposes. 
 

176



Disbursement of funds is made from the County treasury after revenues collected by the 
Agency have been accepted for deposit by the County Auditor/Controller. Disbursement 
is made using County warrants upon the order of the Agency. 
 
Monthly Cash Settlement Report 
 
The Agency must deposit all money that it collects or has under its control during the 
month into the County treasury. The proper accounting for or disposition of these 
collections is detailed in a cash settlement report filed with the County Auditor-
Controller. An example of the detail needed to facilitate distribution includes: 

a. Cash on hand at the beginning of the month. 
 

b. Collections during the month. 
 

c. Payments received by credit card during the month. 
 

d. Adjustments. 
 

e. Deposits in the treasury. 
 

f. Cash on hand at the end of the month. 
 
Farebox Procedures 
 
Daily all Bus Operator’s as part of their pre trip inspection are required to make certain 
that the farebox is properly locked and operational prior to pull out. If the operator finds 
out that the farebox is defective, either the farebox is fixed or replaced or the operator is 
given a different vehicle. If the farebox should malfunction during service, a coach 
exchange will be done immediately. The technician will fix the farebox as soon as the 
bus arrives at the yard. In addition, the pullout supervisor also double checks that the 
farebox is in good operational condition prior to pull out. 
 
Upon completion of service, the bus operator will return to the yard. The bus operator 
will pull up to a designated area (in front of the maintenance bay). A utility service 
worker with the bus operator presence probes the farebox, pulls the vault, and empties 
the contents into the GFI cash box. The vault is then placed back into the farebox. This 
process is repeated until the last bus is accounted for. After the last bus is vaulted the 
cash box is placed inside a secured area. 
 
The next business day all monies are picked up by the armored service.  During the 
pick up the farebox revenues are pulled from the GFI cash box and the funds 
transferred into coin bags and cash bags. The bags are sealed and deposit tickets 
prepared by the armored car service. Tickets, tokens and junk coins are returned to the 
NCTPA.  
 

177



Paratransit and community shuttle passengers’ fares are collected by the operator in a 
pouch. The pouch is then placed into a locked Safe located in the transit operations 
office. 
 
The next business day all monies are counted, and reconciled by two supervisors. 
Paper currency, tickets and coins are separately accounted for. A weekly deposit is 
made at the County Treasures office. 
 
7.1.1.19 PURCHASING CARDS 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
A Purchasing Card (P-card) is a credit card that authorized Agency employees may use 
to purchase goods and services for use by NCTPA. P-Cards are issued to individuals 
who meet the appropriate requirements and can only be used by the individual named 
on the card.  
 
P-Card transactions bring greater efficiency to the purchasing process because 
transactions can be made without a purchase order and payment is streamlined.  The 
Agency will choose a Purchasing Card program offered through a card-issuing Financial 
Services Provider (“Card Issuer”). This program is governed by the terms and 
conditions of a Master Agreement between NCTPA and the Card Issuer. The Card 
Issuer will provide a web-based system to manage the Program. 
 
The NCTPA Purchasing Card (P-Card) is a payment method for business related 
purchases of goods and services by NCTPA. The Purchasing Card gives authorized 
employees the ability to charge some types of purchases, eliminating the need for 
check vouchers, blanket purchase orders, and limited purchase orders.  This will allow 
greater convenience, control, and flexibility and reduce the costs associated with 
initiating and paying for those purchases. The Procurement Officer is responsible for 
managing the Program.  This policy supports the use of Purchasing Cards for 
appropriate business transactions, while assuring that the appropriate internal controls 
are in place to minimize the Agency’s risk of financial loss. 
 
This policy applies to all designated employees who are authorized to use the Agency’s 
purchasing cards. Currently, the authorized users for the P-Cards are the Procurement 
Officer, Executive Director, and Finance Manager. 
 
Purchasing Cards 
 
Issuance of a Purchasing Card is based on business need. Cardholders must use the 
card responsibly and in a manner consistent with the Agency’s mission and ethical 
practices and applicable laws. Misuse or fraudulent use of the Purchasing Card may 
result in progressive administrative and/or disciplinary action. 
 
Security 

178



 
The Cardholder is responsible for the security of the card. This card should be treated 
with the same level of care as the Cardholder would use with his/her own personal 
charge cards.  
 
Issuance of a P-Card to an Authorized User 
 
The authorized users of a Purchasing Card will be will be designated by the Executive 
Director. 
 
Purchases Allowed 
 
Purchasing Cards may be used to purchase any item and/or service for immediate use 
not prohibited by law, this policy, or other policies approved by the Board of Directors. 
The total purchase with the P-Card will not exceed the limits established for that Card. 
All other procurement policies remain in effect and P-Cards should not be used to 
circumvent them. The Procurement Officer’s P-card may be used to pay vendors in lieu 
of warrants (check).   
 
Using the P-Card  
 
A need for an item and/or service is established when it is not readily available through 
a contract or check request. In making a purchase, the Cardholder must abide by the 
following rules: 
  

a. All procurement practices are in force and pre-authorization and pre-approval 
is required from the Procurement Officer before a purchase transaction is 
allowed.  

 
b. In purchasing an item or service, the Cardholder must ensure that sales tax is 
included in the purchase price before issuing payment with the P-Card.  

 
c. If a supplier does not accept the P-Card, the Cardholder should forward a 
completed Dispute Form to the P-Card Program Administrator marking “Non-
Acceptance” as the reason for the dispute. 
 
d. The Cardholder must retain the purchase receipt and attach it to the expense 
report. After being signed by the appropriate Manager, the expense report should 
be submitted to accounts payable.  

 
Purchasing Limits 

 
The Procurement Officer will establish limits for individual P-Cards and aggregate limits 
for combined card totals. The maximum amount of a single item purchase of supplies or 
materials will not exceed $10,000, unless preapproved by Executive Director.  .  
 

179



Purchases Prohibited 
 

• Personal expenditures  
 
• Cash Advances or refunds  
 
• Entertainment of any kind, including the purchase of alcohol or patronage of 
drinking establishments.  
 
• Separate, sequential, and component purchases or transactions made with the 
intent to circumvent State Law or Agency policy.  
 
• Purchases that are split to stay within card transaction limits.  
 
• Transaction amounts greater than Cardholder’s transaction limit.  
 
• Other purchases specifically excluded by the procurement policies or by law.  
 

Declined Transactions  
 

If a Vendor receives a “Decline” response from the Issuer after attempting to put 
through a P-Card transaction, Cardholders should contact the P-Card Program 
Administrator with the following information for resolution:  
 

• Account number  
 
• Business where decline occurred  
 
• Total transaction amount of the decline  
 
• Date the decline occurred  

 
After determining the reason for the “Decline” it may be necessary for the P-Card 
Program Administrator to contact the P-Card issuer for temporary or permanent 
changes to the Cardholder’s control limits to process the transaction.  

 
Purchasing Return  
 
The Cardholder is responsible for obtaining a credit memo from the Vendor when 
merchandise purchased with the Card is later returned to the Vendor for any reason. 
The credit memo will be attached to the expense report along with the sales receipt.  

 
Vendor Payments with P-Card in Lieu of Warrants 
 
The Purchasing card may be used to pay vendors for goods and services normally paid 
by warrants (checks).  Payments by P-card in lieu of check may result in significant cost 

180



savings to the Agency.  Every effort should be made to pay vendors with P-cards in lieu 
of warrants if the vendor accepts the purchasing card.  However, NCTPA’s procurement 
policies and procedures must be followed before a vendor can be paid with a P-card, 
just as those procedures are followed when paying by warrant.  
 
Supporting Documentation for Card Purchases 

 
All transactions must be supported by receipts or credit slips. In instances where the 
receipt is lost, Cardholder must obtain a copy at their own expense from the vendor or 
bank. For purchases made over the phone or on the Internet, a logging system with 
unique transaction identifiers should be maintained and a faxed copy or e-mail 
confirmation of the order retained as the receipt.  

 
Reconciliation of Card Purchases 
  
The P-Card Administrator is responsible for ensuring that the expense report is 
reconciled with the purchase receipts. The Finance Manager or designee is responsible 
for reviewing receipts and expense reports and sending them to the Accounts Payable 
by the 5th business day after the cut-off date.  
 
Disputed Items 
 
Disputes, if possible, should be resolved promptly between the Cardholder and the 
Vendor. Cardholders should raise disputes immediately. As failure to do so will result in 
an authorized purchase that the department is responsible for paying even though the 
charge is incorrect. If the dispute cannot be resolved within 10 days, the Cardholder 
should submit a Dispute Form to the P-Card Program Administrator. A charge should 
not be disputed on the current expense report if it was returned for credit after the cut-
off date. The credit should be reported on the next expense report with a notation being 
made that there is a disputed charge and expected credit. 
 
Records Retention 

 
The P-Card Program Administrator must maintain all original receipts in a secure 
location until they are reconciled to the Monthly expense report. Records from each 
Monthly expense report should be kept together.  

 
Lost or Stolen Cards  

 
When it is determined that a Purchasing Card has been lost or stolen, IT IS 
IMPERATIVE TO FIRST CANCEL THE CARD WITH THE ISSUER BY CALLING THE 
ISSUERS TOLL-FREE NUMBER. In addition, the Cardholder must also notify the P-
Card Program Administrator of the loss by phone and then complete a Purchasing Card 
Lost/Stolen Card Form. Once a P-Card is discovered lost or stolen, it is imperative to 
cancel the card immediately. The Agency is liable for all charges until the card is 
reported lost or stolen. Thus, the Cardholder may be responsible for all charges made 

181



against the P-Card from the time it is lost or stolen until the time the Issuer is notified, if 
the Cardholder fails to immediately notify the Issuer upon discovering the loss or fails to 
discover the loss within a reasonable amount of time.  
 
Unauthorized Use of the P-Card 
 
Any purchases that the P-Card Program Administrator deems prohibited will be sent 
back to the Cardholder for justification and/or explanation. If any prohibited charges 
appear in the Cardholder’s transactions and expense report, the following may occur:  
 

• The P-Card Program Administrator will investigate all circumstances 
surrounding alleged misuse of the P-Card and in cases where there is evidence 
of a procedure or policy violation will be subject to disciplinary action.  
 
• Termination of use and forfeiture of the P-Card are potential disciplinary actions 
for improper use of the card.  
 
•  In those cases where there is evidence of negligent use of the P-Card, but no 
fraudulent acts have been committed, the Cardholder will be required to 
surrender the P-Card with all further privileges revoked.  
 
• A Cardholder who makes an unauthorized purchase with the Purchasing Card, 
or uses the Purchasing Card in an inappropriate manner will be liable for 
payment for unauthorized charges.  

 
Any employee having knowledge of violations to this procedure or any other procedure 
or policy governing the use of the P-Card must immediately report such activity to the P-
Card Administrator.  
 
The P-Card may be suspended or terminated if a Purchasing Cardholder is suspected 
of fraud or theft. Should the suspicion prove founded, appropriate action shall be taken 
in accordance with existing Agency policies and procedures.  
 
Termination Clause 

 
The P-Card is issued to an employee for the Agency’s convenience and may be 
suspended or terminated at any time by the Agency for non-compliance with Agency 
policies and procedures. Transfer, resignation, or terminations of employment are 
grounds for cancellation of the P-Card.  
 
It is important to cancel a card immediately upon an employee’s separation from 
employment. The P-Card issuer or the Credit Card Recovery Program will not cover any 
charges incurred between the employee’s termination date and the date the card is 
cancelled. The department will be responsible for payment of charges incurred by an 
employee no longer working in that department; if a delay in canceling privileges 
resulted of the Agency’s actions.  

182



 
NCTPA Fleet Vehicles Fuel Cards 
 
NCTPA will continue to participate with the State of California Voyager Fleet Fueling 
System Inc. to provide offsite fleet fueling.  The State has an agreement with US Bank 
Corp to allow governmental agencies to piggy-back with the program and take 
advantage of a universal fuel card system. The Voyager system provides a web-based 
software system that manages and tracks detailed transactions for auditing purposes, 
generates consolidated monthly invoices and provides controls and security measures 
when fueling (examples: by user can set fuel limits, number of transactions per day and 
dollars per week/month). Voyager also automatically strips out the federal gasoline 
excise tax prior to billing (NCTPA is exempt).   
 
Authorized User Agreement for Voyager Cards 
 
NCTPA User Agreement (NCTPA form CC001) will be executed by each authorized 
User prior to use accepting terms and conditions associated with the fuel card, such as, 
fraud, abuse and misuse. 
  

a. Delegations 
 

i. Except as otherwise provided, the NCTPA Executive Director is authorized to 
open fuel credit card accounts.   

 
ii. The Finance Manager is responsible for managing the credit card accounts 
once activated.   
 

iii. The Manager of Public Transit is specifically responsible to manage the operational 
procedures for fuel card systems. 
 
7.1.2 RESERVE POLICIES 
 
7.1.2.1 CASH RESERVE 

 
Background 
 
A key element of prudent financial planning is to ensure that sufficient funding is 
available for current operating, capital and debt service needs.  Additionally, fiscal 
responsibility requires anticipating the likelihood of, and preparing for, unforeseen 
events. NCTPA will strive at all times to have sufficient funding available to meet its 
operating, capital, and debt services obligations as well as to protect its 
creditworthiness. The Agency is committed to maintaining a financial structure that 
provides adequate and predictable revenue at the lowest possible costs to meet 
forecasted needs and operational objectives. 
 

183



The adequacy of the targeted cash reserve year-end balance ranges and/or annual 
contributions of each fund will be reviewed annually during the budgeting process or 
when a major change in conditions threatens the reserve levels established within this 
policy. 
 
General Fund Reserve 
 
Purpose:  To ensure sufficient cash resources are available to fund daily administration; 
operations and maintenance of providing service 
 
Target Criteria:  To meet the Agencies cash flow needs and unbudgeted expenses, the 
Planning fund cash reserves should be at a minimum of $500,000 per fiscal year. 
 
Public Transit Reserve 
 
Purpose:  To ensure sufficient cash resources are available to fund daily administration; 
operations and maintenance of providing public transit service. 
 
Target Criteria:  To meet the Agencies cash flow needs and unbudgeted expenses, the 
Planning fund cash reserves should be at least 25% of non-restricted funds of the 
current fiscal year operating budget. 
 
Working Capital Reserve  
 
A significant percentage of operating funds are not available until the end of each fiscal 
year. As such, it is imperative that the Agency maintain sufficient reserves to sustain 
operating activities. This reserve would be designed to ensure sufficient liquidity for 
operating activities.  
 
Target Criteria:  Approximately 20% of operating revenue is derived from federal 5307 
formula funds. NCTPA’s fiscal year begins on July 1st of each year, while the federal 
fiscal year commences on October 1st. Typically, Congress manages to appropriate the 
aforementioned funds in February or March of each year at the earliest. Once the funds 
are apportioned it typically takes an additional month or two before they are available to 
the Agency. It is not uncommon that the funds do not become available until the 
following fiscal year.  
 
Annual Budget Reserve  
 
The reserve would identify an amount as a cushion for unexpected operating costs.  
Target Criteria:  It is reasonable to assume that some variance between budgeted and 
actual revenues and expenditures will occur and that a sufficient appropriation be held 
in reserve to ensure the delivery of public transit service without disruption. Staff will 
prepare information documenting the Agency’s financial performance over the past few 
years as it pertains to budget variances. This process may also provide support for a 
portion of the proposed “Emergency Reserve”.  

184



 
Emergency Reserve  
 
These funds would be reserved for costs incurred associated with natural disasters or 
for sudden unexpected declines in major funding sources or spikes in diesel fuel costs 
etc.  
Target Criteria: The Agency has traditionally budgeted very conservatively managed to 
allocate nearly $1 million of its TDA-LTF sales tax revenue to the capital budget. That 
practice enabled the Agency to absorb sharp and sudden declines without the need to 
reduce service, as the operating budget was left largely intact.  
 
Capital Reserve  

 
To identify capital funds that would be readily available to NCTPA in case of unexpected 
capital needs and/or capital cost overruns.  
 
NCTPA has a balance of Local Transportation Funds that are held by the county of 
Napa and managed by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) that has 
been claimed for capital acquisitions. NCTPA maintains a long list of pending capital 
acquisitions for which these funds have been allocated. The funds are released to 
NCTPA by MTC upon request and submittal of reimbursement documentation. This 
fund currently serves as a quasi capital reserve account. 
 
Fund Name Reserve Type Proposed Cash 

Reserve Formula 

Governmental Fixed Amount >= $500,000 
Enterprise 20% of budget 20% of budget 

 
7.1.2.2 INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
The purpose of this Investment Policy (Policy) is to establish investment objectives, 
provide guidelines, and set forth responsibilities and reporting procedures necessary for 
the prudent management and investment of the funds of NCTPA and its component 
units (NCTPA). This policy is for investment activities outside the County of Napa’s 
policy, should NCTPA have a separate account(s) for investing. 
 
Scope  
 
This policy applies to the activities of NCTPA with regard to the consolidated investment 
of short-term operating funds, reserves, and capital funds. Balances in County of Napa 
checking accounts, investments of employees' retirement funds, and deferred 
compensation plans are not covered by this policy.  
 
Delegation of Authority  
 

185



The NCTPA Board hereby designates the Executive Director and Finance Manager as 
the Custodial Officer for the Agency’s funds. The Custodial Officer shall be responsible 
for the operation of the investment program. No person may engage in an investment 
transaction except as provided under the terms of this Policy and procedures 
established by the Custodial Officer. The Custodial Officer shall be responsible for all 
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the 
activities of subordinate officials with access to the funds subject to this Policy.  
 
General Objectives  
 
The investment objectives of this Policy and their priority are: (1) safety; (2) liquidity; and 
(3) yield.  
 
Safety. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 
capital in the overall portfolio. The objective shall be to remain compliant with applicable 
laws and to mitigate Credit Risk, Interest Rate Risk, and Custodial Risk.  
 

a. Legality. All funds within the scope of this Policy are subject to regulations 
established by the State of State of California. 

 
b. Credit Risk. NCTPA will minimize the risk of loss by:  

 
c. Interest Rate Risk.  NCTPA will minimize the risk that the Market Value of 
securities in the portfolio will fall due to the changes in general interest rates, by: 

 
 Limiting exposure to poor credits. 
 Prequalifying the financial institutions NCTPA will do business with. 
 Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual 

securities will be minimized.  
 Actively monitoring the investment portfolio holdings for ratings changes, 

changing economic/market conditions, etc. Maintaining appropriate 
balances in investment vehicles that provide overnight liquidity; and  

 Structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash 
needs to meet anticipated demands where possible and prudent.  

 
d. Custodial Risk. NCTPA will minimize Custodial Risk by placing its securities 
with a third-party custodian, who will hold the securities in NCTPA’s name, as 
evidenced by the safekeeping contract and monthly statements.  

 
 Maintaining appropriate balances in investment vehicles that provide 

overnight liquidity; and  
 Structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash 

needs to meet anticipated demands where possible and prudent.  
 

186



Liquidity.  The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by:  
 
Yield. The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market 
rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the 
investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Securities shall not be sold prior to 
maturity with the following exceptions:  
 

 A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize loss of principal.  
 A security trade will improve the quality, yield, or target Duration in the portfolio.  
 Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold.  

 
Internal Controls. The Custodial Officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
an adequate internal control structure designed to reasonably protect the assets of 
NCTPA from loss, theft, or misuse. The concept of "reasonable protection" recognizes 
that (1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the 
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by the Custodial 
Officer. Accordingly, the Custodial Officer shall establish a process for an annual 
independent review by an external auditor to assure compliance with this Policy and the 
internal controls established by the Custodial Officer. The internal controls should 
address the following points:  
 

 Control of collusion  
 Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping  
 Confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers  
 Custodial safekeeping  
 Avoidance of physical delivery of securities whenever possible  
 Address control requirements for physical delivery where necessary  
 Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members  
 Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party 

custodian and implementation of the appropriate safeguards  
 Compliance and oversight with investment parameters including diversification 

and maximum maturities  
 Staff training 

 
All financial institutions and Broker-Dealers who desire to be considered for investment 
transactions, must supply the following, in writing (electronic delivery is acceptable): 
 

 Audited financial statements  
 Proof of Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc (FINRA) registration  
 Proof of state licensing  
 Certification of having read and understood and agreeing to comply with 

NCTPA’s investment Policy  
Evidence of adequate insurance coverage  

 

187



The Custodial Officer may engage the services of an external investment adviser to 
assist in the management of NCTPA’s investment portfolio. All investment transactions 
executed by the external investment adviser on behalf of NCTPA must consistent with 
this Policy and be pre-approved in writing by the Custodial Officer.  
 
Authorized Investments  

1. Investment Types. The following securities are permitted under this Policy. 
 

a. U.S. Treasury Obligations. United States Treasury Notes, Bonds, Bills, 
certificates of indebtedness, or other obligations of the U.S. Treasury for 
which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment 
of principal and interest.  

 
b. Government Agency Issues. Federal agency or United States 
Government-Sponsored Enterprise obligations, participations, or other 
instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and 
interest by federal agencies or United States Government-Sponsored 
Enterprises. See Appendix I: Glossary for definition and investment 
examples.  
 
c. Repurchase Agreements. An agreement of one party to sell securities at 
a specified price to a second party and a simultaneous agreement of the first 
party to repurchase the securities at a specified price or at a specified later 
date. Only U.S. treasury obligations and government agency issues described 
in paragraph (a) and (b) of this subsection that are limited in maturity to three 
years and priced according to percentages prescribed by written Policy may 
be used in conjunction with a Repurchase Agreement.  
 
d. Bankers’ Acceptances. A draft or bill of exchange drawn upon and 
accepted by a bank. Used as a short-term credit instrument, Bankers' 
Acceptances are traded at a Discount from face value as a money market 
instrument on the basis of the credit quality of the guaranteeing bank.  
 
e. Medium Term Corporate Notes (Corporate Indebtedness). Commercial 
Paper and Medium Term Corporate Notes subject to a valid registration 
statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or issued 
under the authority of section 3(a)(2) or 3(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended. The corporate indebtedness must be issued by a commercial, 
industrial or utility business enterprise, or by or on behalf of a financial 
institution, including a holding company owning a majority interest in a 
qualified financial institution.  

 
Municipal Debt.  

 
f. Lawfully issued debt obligations of the agencies and instrumentalities of the 
State of California and its political subdivisions that have a long-term rating of 

188



A, or an equivalent rating or better, or are rated on the settlement date in the 
highest category for short-term municipal debt by a Nationally Recognized 
Statistical Rating Organization.  

 
g. Lawfully issued debt obligations of the States of California, Idaho and 
Washington and political subdivisions of those states if the obligations have a 
long-term rating of AA or an equivalent rating or better or are rated on the 
settlement date in the highest category for short-term municipal debt by a 
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization.  

 
Time Deposit Accounts, Certificates of Deposit, and Deposit Accounts.  

 
h. Deposits in insured institutions in credit unions or in federal credit unions, if 
the insured institution or credit union maintains a head office or a branch in 
California. Certificates of Deposit placed through deposit placement services, 
such as the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS), are 
allowable.   

 
The table on the next page identifies the investment types that are authorized for 
NCTPA by the California Government Code. The table also identifies certain provisions 
of the California Government Code (or NCTPA’s investment policy, where more 
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit 
risk.  

 
 

    Maximum  Maximum 
  Maximum  Percentage  Investment 

Authorized Investment Type  Maturity  of Portfolio  in One 
Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds   5 years  None  None 
U.S. Treasury Obligations   5 years  None  None 
U.S. Agency Obligations   5 years  None  None 
State of California Obligations   5 years  None  None 
Banker's Acceptances   180 days  40%  30% 
Commercial Paper - Select 
Agencies  

 180 days  25%  10% 

Commercial Paper - Other 
Agencies  

 180 days  40%  10% 

Negotiable Certificates of 
Deposit  

 5 years  30%  None 

Repurchase Agreements   30 days  5%  None 
Reverse Repurchase 
Agreements  

 92 days  20% of base 
value 

 None 

Medium Term Notes   5 years  30%  None 
Mutual Funds/Money Market 
Mutual Funds  

  
N/A 

  
20% 

  
10% 

189



Collateralized Bank Deposits   5 years  None  None 
Mortgage Pass-Through 
Securities  

 5 years  20%  None 

Time Deposits   5 years  None  None 
County Pooled Investment 
Funds  

 N/A  None  None 

JPA Pools (other investment 
pools)  

 N/A  None  None 

Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF)  

 N/A  None  None 

 
 

7.1.3 DEBT FINANCING 
 
7.1.2.3 DEBT FINANCING 
 
The purpose of a debt financing instrument such as a line of credit policy is to provide 
funding mechanism to satisfy NCTPA’s short term liquidity needs. The policy covers all 
forms of debt including long-term, short-term, fixed-rate, and variable-rate debt. It also 
covers other forms of financing including both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet 
structures, such as leases, and other structured products used with the intent of funding 
capital projects.   
 
Requirements 
Any debt will be reported to the Board of Director’s as part of its quarterly budget update 
at their regularly scheduled monthly meeting accompanied by a description of the need 
for use of the line of credit, amount being requested, cost of borrowing, and the 
expected payback period. 
 
Roles and Accountabilities 
The Executive Director is responsible for assuring that the line of credit is used only as 
described in this policy. The Executive Director is authorized to use the LOC for 
reimbursable program(s) expenditures when necessary to avoid shortfalls in operating 
cash flow.  
 
The Board must approve application for and acceptance of any Lines of Credit with a 
financial institution. Once the Line of Credit is authorized by the Board, the Executive 
Director can authorize borrowing within the limit of the line of credit up to $500,000. The 
Board must approve all borrowing against the line of credit greater than that amount, 
and  before the agency incurs a debt that could or will extend beyond one year. 
 
The Board must approve any other borrowing of funds in the name of the Agency, 
including the use of any promissory notes. The Board shall give very serious attention to 
be sure that NCTPA will have sufficient funds available to repay any loans or lines of 
credit on time. 
 

190



Line of Credit (LOC) 
Secured and unsecured lines of credit may be established as a contingency to meet 
operating cash requirements. It is the policy of NCTPA that use of the Line of Credit 
(borrowing against the Line of Credit’s availability) will be initiated subject to the 
following conditions and restrictions:  

 The Executive Director and Finance Manager concur that the need is valid.  
 

 The Executive Director with concurrence from the Finance Manager may borrow 
up to $500,000 cumulatively.  Any request over $500,000 will need Board 
approval. 
 
 

 LOC drawdowns will be transferred to NCTPA’s bank account managed by the 
County of Napa’s Treasury department. 
 

 The borrowing against the Line of Credit will be used to meet expenses of 
payment to external vendors for Congestion Management Agency projects or 
Public Transit operating assistance and capital projects. 

 
 The status of the Line of Credit will be shared with the Board of Director’s in 

regular reports at their monthly meeting. 
 

 Authorization by the Executive Director or Board of Directors to use the Line of 
Credit will accompany a signed cash flow justification. 
 

 An internal, signed authorization form will be developed for each increment 
borrowed.  Authorization to proceed will require a minimum of two signatures:  
the Executive Director and the Finance Manager.   If one of the two individuals 
are not available to sign, then the Board Chair will serve as a substitute 
signatory.    

7.1.4 ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1.4.1 FIXED ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy and the following procedures is to provide uniform guidelines 
for the Agency to acquire, capitalize, monitor and dispose of fixed assets. 
 
The Agency shall establish and maintain a Fixed Asset Management System to record, 
control and report all assets in accordance with this policy’s uniform guidelines. 
 
As the Fixed Asset Management System is maintained and operated by the Agency, the 
primary objectives shall be to: 

 

191



a. Ensure that Agency assets are properly identified and recorded. 
 

b. Ensure that Agency assets are effectively utilized. 
 

c. Safeguard Agency assets against loss or misuse. 
 
Asset Capitalization Policy 

 
All Agency assets that were either transferred from the county to the Agency on June 
30th, 1998, or purchased by the Agency on or after July 1st, 1998, must be recorded and 
classified as a fixed asset. 
 
Disposable items 

 
Disposable items are purchases with a value of less than $250 that are intended for 
one time use, or that have an anticipated useful life of less than one year. These 
purchases shall be recorded as an expense during the current fiscal year. Examples of 
disposable items are office supplies, consumables, etc. 

 
The Agency is not required to record and track disposable or inventory items in the 
Fixed Asset Management System. 
 
Inventory items 

 
Individual items transferred from the county or purchased directly by the Agency with an 
individual value of more than $500 and less than $5,000 and an anticipated useful life 
of more than one year, shall be classified as inventory items. In addition, property that is 
particularly subject to loss or theft that is valued at less than $1,000 shall also be 
classified as office inventory items. Examples include small office equipment, 
calculators, cellular phones, small tools, printers, monitors, filters, belts, bolts, etc. 

 
The Agency shall maintain a detailed and up-to-date inventory listing of these items 
showing the appropriate description and quantities. 

 
Periodic physical inventories shall be conducted to count the actual quantities on hand, 
determine the usefulness or obsolescence of the items and reconcile the accounting 
records. 

 
An annual inventory is required; a quarterly physical inventory should be performed 
once every three months.(Per contractual agreement with purchase transportation 
provider, inventories will be maintained and physical inventories will be 
performed by purchase transportation provider. Physical inventories and up-to-
date listings will once again be performed by Agency upon completion of 
contract.) 
 
Software 

192



 
The Agency uses a number of commercially available and custom computer software 
programs in its daily operations. It shall be the responsibility of the Agency’s information 
systems department or, where there is none, a designee of the Executive Director to 
maintain a current list of Agency-owned computer software. 
 
Computer software developers typically impose limitations regarding the use of their 
products through licensing agreements. It shall be the responsibility of the Agency 
information systems department to assure compliance with the license conditions of 
software products used by the Agency (e.g., limitations on the number of users, number 
of copies in circulation, etc.). 

 
The Agency information systems department will keep all software related 
documentation, licenses, etc., in a designated location. Identification tags, if required, 
shall be placed in a file with the software license. 
 
Fixed Assets 

 
Individual items purchased directly by the Agency with a value of $5,000 per unit or 
more and with an anticipated useful life of more than one year shall be capitalized 
(classified as fixed assets). Examples of fixed assets are vehicles, security equipment, 
verbatim reporting equipment, servers, copiers, etc. 

 
The Agency shall record all transactions associated with transferred or acquired fixed 
assets in the Agency’s general ledger and sub-ledgers (such as a Fixed Asset 
Management System). 

 
The following information shall be maintained in the Fixed Asset Management System: 
 

a. Description of the fixed asset. 
 

b. Date of acquisition. 
 

c. Value of the fixed asset (based on acquisition cost or appraisal value at time of 
transfer). 

 
d. Estimated useful life. 

 
e. Salvage value (if applicable). 

 
f. Method of depreciation or amortization (if applicable). 
 
g. Current period depreciation expense (if applicable). 

 
h. Accumulated depreciation to date (if applicable). 

 

193



i. Remaining balance (net book value), if applicable. 
 
j. Federal Grant number (if purchased with Federal funds) 

 
Fixed Assets shall be assigned to a responsible Agency unit using proper budgetary 
unit, program, department or organization codes. 
 
Identification 

 
Once the necessary information has been recorded in the Fixed Asset Management 
System, a unique identification number should be assigned to each fixed asset. 

 
 
Responsibility for Fixed Assets 

 
All fixed assets shall be assigned to a particular location. 

 
A fixed asset management and tracking system shall be used to establish and maintain 
a complete listing of all tagged items assigned to a particular unit or location. 

 
The Agency unit or location shall maintain a Record of Physical Inventory that lists the 
tagged assets assigned to it. A copy of the Record of Physical Inventory shall also be 
maintained by the Finance Manager or another designated employee for control 
purposes. 
 
Equipment Utilization 

 
It is the responsibility of the Executive Director and all Agency employees responsible 
for assets and equipment to: 
 

a. Maintain control over assigned items. 
 

b. Identify underutilized items. 
 

c. Dispose of items that will not be used in the foreseeable future.  
 
At a minimum, the Agency should make a periodic review of underutilized equipment to 
determine whether such equipment should be transferred or disposed. 
 
Physical Inventory of Agency Assets 

 
The Agency shall conduct a physical inventory of all Agency assets and equipment on a 
periodic basis. A bi-monthly inventory is recommended, an inventory must be performed 
at the end of fiscal year. 

 

194



The inventory count recorded at each unit or location shall be reconciled against the 
asset records. Variances shall be investigated and resolved. Unexplained losses or 
missing items shall be reported to the Fiscal Officer or another designated employee. 

 
Written approval must be obtained from the Fiscal Officer or other designated employee 
prior to adjusting any asset records. 
 
Transfer and Disposal of Inventory Items and Fixed Assets 

 
Over time, new assets or equipment may be acquired, obsolete items disposed of, or 
items may be transferred between locations. To protect the integrity of the Fixed Asset 
Management System, a record of Asset Transfer or Disposal shall be used.  Transfers 
and disposals of fixed assets with federal interests are further subject to FTA Grant 
Management Guidelines USC 5010.1C. 

 
Transfer of Inventory Items and Fixed Assets 

 
An asset transfer/disposal form shall be prepared to record the permanent transfer of a 
fixed asset or equipment between units or locations. 
 
The asset transfer/disposal form shall be approved by an authorized employee acting 
within the scope of his or her authority. 

 
Copies of the asset transfer/disposal forms shall be maintained by the Finance 
Manager, the unit or location from which the item is being transferred, and the receiving 
unit. 
 
Minimum information on transfer documentation will include but not limited to: 

 Unique asset identification number 
 Description of asset (for vehicles include the Department of Motor Vehicles ID 

number, the make and model) 
 Date of transfer 
 Date of acquisition 
 Board memo and resolution number for acquisition and transfer or disposition. 

 
Disposal of Inventory Items and Fixed Assets 
 
1. Acceptable means of disposal for Agency’s personal property. The Agency may: 
 

a. Sell personal property that is no longer needed for Agency use for fair market 
value. 
 
b. Trade surplus personal property with another government or public agency if 
the property received in return is needed for Agency use. 
 

195



c. Donate, sell at less than fair market value, or otherwise transfer personal 
property to another government or public agency if the Agency no longer needs 
the property for its own use. 
 
d. Dispose of personal property that is no longer needed for Agency use and that 
has negligible or no economic value in a manner deemed appropriate by the 
Agency. 

 
2. The Executive Director or Finance Manager must approve the disposal of any asset 
or equipment. 

 
3. An asset transfer/disposal form shall be prepared to record the disposal of the fixed 
asset or equipment. 
 Minimum information on disposition documentation will include but not limited to: 

 Unique asset identification number 
 Description of asset (for vehicles include the Department of Motor Vehicles ID 

number, the make and model) 
 Date of transfer 
 Date of acquisition 
 Board memo and resolution number for acquisition and transfer or disposition. 

 
4. Copies of the asset transfer/disposal form shall be maintained by the Finance 
Manager and by the disposing unit or location. 

 
5. Agency officers, managers or supervisors are prohibited from purchasing assets from 
the Agency in the disposition process. 
 
6. The proceeds resulting from any disposal of Agency personal property shall be 
deposited in the Proprietary Fund.   
 
Notice of Disposal 

 
1. The Agency must publicize its intention to transfer or dispose of personal property. 
This must be accomplished at least one week prior to the transfer or disposal by placing 
a notice in at least one of the following:  

 
a. In three public places. 
 
b. On the Agency website. 
 
c. In a newspaper of general circulation published in the county. 
 

2. The notice of disposal requirement does not apply to property that is valued at less 
than $250 or for transfers of property. 
 
Associated Documents 

196



 
Depreciation Schedule for Transit Agencies Capital Items 
ASSET DEPRECIABLE 

LIFE 

Buildings- New 
Buildings- Used 
Modular Buildings 
Bus Shelters 
Other facilities 

30 years 
20 years 
10 years 
  5 years 
5-15 years 

Office furniture, fixtures, and equipment (not structural 
components.  Data handling, 
equipment, servers, copiers (>$5,000). 

5-10 years 

Vehicles Cars- new 
Vehicles Cars-used 

7 years 
3-5 years 

Vans- (new)        
Vans- (used) 

7 years 
3-5 years 

Buses- small (up to 22 passengers) body   
on van cutaway (includes carpenter and 
wheel coach for replacement 

5 years 

Buses- large (new,over 30 passengers)   
  
Buses- large (used,over 30 passengers) 

12 years 
  7 years 

Trucks- light duty (under 13,000 lb g.v.w.)- new 
Used 

7 years 
5 years 

Trucks- heavy duty (over 13,000 lb g.v.w)- new 
used 

7 years 
5 years 

Bus radio, base stations,  
bus washer station,   

3-5 years 
5-10 years 

Equipment- engines, transmissions, filters 5 years 
Fareboxes (new)      
Fareboxes (used)  

12 years 
3 years 

Maintenance garage items:  
Roller cabinets, portable tool stands, portable   
compressors, portable hoists, diagnostic 
equipment 

3-10 years 

Lift trucks, engine and transmission stands, brake 
lathes 
 

3-8 years 

Power hand tools, portable bus washers, power  
(hydraulic) jacks, cherry pickers, parts cleaners,  
grease guns and pumps, power floor cleaners,  
lawn mowers, snow blowers, and precision hand  
tools 
 

2-5 years 

Hand tools, oil pumps, fuel pumps, portable 
lighting equipment, and grinders 

2-3 years 

197



7.1.4.2 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR 

State of Good Repair (SGR) is an initiative launched by the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) to maintain the nation’s bus and rail systems. FTA defines State of 
Good Repair as an effort that “includes sharing ideas on recapitalization and 
maintenance issues, asset management practices, and innovative financing strategies. 
It also includes issues related to measuring the condition of transit capital assets, 
prioritizing local transit re-investment decisions and preventive maintenance practices.” 

SGR is a key priority at the NCTPA and we are committed to ensuring the best in safe, 
reliable, cost-effective and responsive transit services.  

Achieving a SGR is incorporated in NCTPA’s goals and objectives and includes 
developing a plan that: 

1. Reflects a comprehensive understanding of the system and its condition, and 
the strategic direction of the system. 

2. Supports the enhancement of the transit service while maintaining the 
overall condition of the basic infrastructure 

3. Prioritizes expenditures so that there is a maximum return on investment 
4. Supports the seamless transition of the system from one in a start up mode, to 

one in a renewal mode 
5. Ensuring current service levels are supported  
6. Maintaining a “state of good repair” 
7. Keeping maintenance practices current  
8. Evaluating asset replacement 

 
7.1.4.3 TRANSIT PASS INVENTORY CONTROL 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
This policy is used to provide guidelines and procedures regarding stewardship required 
for Transit pass inventory to assure that pass inventory is documented and properly 
recorded.  
 
Custodianship duties and responsibilities: 
   
The Executive Director or Finance Manager may delegate the responsibility of 
maintaining proper accountability and control of the transit pass inventory.  Specific 
responsibilities regarding Transit pass inventory are as follows:   
 

 Know the location of all equipment in their inventory and assure that such 
equipment is reasonably secure from possible theft and other hazards.  Report 
any changes in location to management. This is critical for proper stewardship 
and essential for insurance management purposes. 

 

198



 Assure that transit pass inventory is being used in the best interest of NCTPA. 
 

 Provide assistance as needed to personnel who are taking inventory. 
 

 Review and verify transit pass inventory on an annual basis by reporting on the 
status of transit pass inventory.  
 

 Discourage theft and loss of property by keeping property in a secured location. 
 
Inventory Control Duties and Responsibilities: 
 

1. Inventory Control receives a Transit Pass request report from the Transit Center 
on a regular basis.  Personnel will review each purchase order to verify and 
approve items. Inventory Control personnel or designated department 
representative will physically affix property tags within ten (10) working days of 
determination of requirement or notification.  
 

2. Inventory Control personnel will perform an annual physical inventory of Transit 
Passes and will submit a status report to the Finance Manager. 

 
3. After completion of the transit pass inventory, personnel will report the findings to 

the Finance Manager for review and action if required. Inventory Control will 
report all missing property for investigation if not previously reported.  

 
4. Missing Property: If property is discovered missing, an immediate request should 

be made of Finance Manager or Executive Director to have the loss investigated.   
 
Procedures for Inventory Verification 
 
During the year, the Inventory Control officer must notify the Finance Manager when 
changes which affect the accuracy of the inventory records occur. These changes must 
be documented. 
 
Transit Passes will be inventoried annually in the following manner: 
 

1. An updated copy of the transit pass inventory listing will be furnished to Finance 
Manager annually by Inventory Control prior to performing a physical inventory. 
 

2. The Finance Manager will verify and sign the certification statement indicating all 
the items have been physically located or proper paperwork has been initiated to 
correct any discrepancies. 

 
3. A copy of the original, signed listing should be retained by the inventory control 

officer until the physical inventory is completed by Inventory Control. 
 

199



4. Upon completion of the physical inventory, any items determined to be missing 
will be reported to the Finance Manager by Inventory Control officer.   

 
The Department Head will have five (5) days to locate the property and arrange for 
Inventory Control to make a visual confirmation. If the property is not located, and the 
Department Head must immediately notify the Executive Director and Finance Manager. 
 
Security Measures 
 
Promptly report all missing or stolen equipment to Finance Manager and Executive 
Director. Some suggestions for security include: 
 

 Avoid leaving transit pass inventory cabinets/safes unlocked when unattended. 
 

 On a regular basis, convey to all employees the importance of being vigilant in 
the care of NCTPA property.  

 
7.1.5 GRANT MANAGEMENT 

 
7.1.5.1 GRANT ACCOUNTING AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish the budget, cost allocation, and reporting 
requirements related to the administration of grants that are used to fund Agency 
programs, projects and operations. 
 
The Agency shall comply with all federal, state, regional and grantor regulations, rules 
and requirements that apply to the administration of grant funds. The use of grant funds 
for specific Agency activities does not exempt employees from standard Agency policies 
and procedures. Requirements that apply to grant administration are in addition to those 
associated with normal Agency operations. 
 
This policy applies to employees, agents, and contractors who participate in Agency 
activities that are funded by grants, or who are responsible for the administration of 
grant funds. 
 
Introduction 
 
1. Grant funds awarded by government, business and other organizations may 
substantially benefit the Agency’s ability to serve the public. At the same time, the 
acceptance of grant funds may also represent an area of risk to the Agency. This is 
because money received by the Agency through grants is provided for specific 
purposes and under conditions that apply to its use. 
 

200



2. Grants are auditable. Therefore, the Agency must be able to identify the source and 
application of all grant funds. It must also prepare and submit periodic performance and 
financial reports regarding grant funded programs and projects. 
 
3. Inattention to grant compliance requirements or inadequate controls can lead to 
problems including: 
 

a. Incorrect reporting regarding the time, effort and funds spent on grant-funded 
activities. 

 
b. Failure to report program income. 

 
c. The use of grant funds to pay for activities not related to the grant program or 
project.  

 
d. Improper accounting for overhead costs. 

 
e. Improper transfers of funds between programs. 

 
4. Common weaknesses associated with grant compliance include: 
 

a. Lack of management controls due to outdated or nonexistent policies and 
procedures. 

 
b. Inadequate staff training and education. 

 
c. Inadequate systems associated with effort reporting, financial management, 
program income, etc. 

 
5. Measures that have been shown to improve grant program compliance include: 
 

a. Establishing compliance as an institutional expectation and individual 
responsibility. 

 
b. Establishing an expectation of zero tolerance for noncompliance. 

 
c. Defining individual roles and responsibilities. 

 
d. Assigning oversight responsibilities. 

 
e. Keeping policies and procedures current with respect to changing statutes, 
regulations, and grant conditions. 

 
Grant Requirements 
 

201



The uniform administrative rules for federal grants and cooperative agreements and 
sub-awards to state and local governments are established in Title 28, Part 66 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). 

 
Various grant programs (federal, state, local, private foundation, corporate) may have 
other requirements associated with specific legislation or the rules of the grantor. The 
Agency is responsible for familiarizing itself and complying with the requirements of the 
grant agreements it enters into. 
 
Grant Budgets 
 
Budget Establishment 
 
For each grant agreement that the Agency enters into, a distinct budget must be 
established at the appropriate level of the Budget Program Structure. The Agency 
financial management system must allow for the tracking of grant revenues and 
expenditures and facilitate the preparation of required financial and performance 
reports. 
 
Budget Control 
 
The Agency must be able to compare actual expenditures under each grant with 
budgeted amounts. Grant funds must be traceable to a level of expenditure that 
demonstrates the funds have not been used in ways that violate statutes, regulations, or 
conditions of the grant agreement. 
 
Budget and Program Changes 
 
1. Certain types of post-award changes to budgets and projects supported by grant 
funds shall require the prior approval of the grantor. 
 
2. Unless otherwise stated in a grant agreement or applicable regulations, the Agency 
must obtain prior approval whenever any of the following changes is anticipated: 
 

a. A revision that would result in the need for additional funding. 
 
b. Cumulative transfers among direct cost categories or among separately 
budgeted programs, projects, functions or activities that exceed the current total 
approved grant budget. 

 
c. Transfers of funds allotted for training allowances to other expense categories. 

 
3. The Agency must also obtain prior approval from the grantor whenever any of the 
following program-related changes is contemplated: 
 

a. Revision of the scope or objective of the project. 

202



 
b. Need to extend the grant period to make funds available for a longer time than 
originally planned. 

 
c. Changes in key program personnel where the grant agreement specifies such 
a notification. 

 
d. Obtaining the services of a third party to perform activities that are central to 
the purposes of the grant award (subcontracting or subgranting). 

 
4. A request for approval of a change to the grant budget or program should be 
submitted to the grantor in the same format as the original grant application. The 
request shall include a narrative justification for the proposed change. 
 
Accounting and Administrative Requirements 
 
The Agency must account for grant funds in accordance with applicable laws and the 
procedures established for expending and accounting for its own funds. Specific 
aspects of fiscal control and accounting procedures are discussed below. 
 
Internal Control 
 
The Agency must effectively control and account for all grant-related cash, real and 
personal property, and other assets. These assets must be safeguarded and the 
Agency must assure that they are used only for authorized purposes. 
 
Fund Identification 
 
As indicated in the table shown in FUND ACCOUNTING, grant funds shall be 
accounted for as Special Revenue Funds. This will allow grant transactions and 
resources to be accounted for as a separate entity, and facilitate grant monitoring, 
reporting and auditing. 
 
Accounting Records 
 
The Agency must maintain records that adequately identify the source and application 
of grant funds. The records must contain information about grant awards, 
authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, expenditures, and 
income. 
 
Accounting records must be supported by appropriate documentation that may include 
receipts, cancelled checks, employee time and attendance records, payroll records, etc. 
 
Grant records will be retained according to the requirements established in Record 
Retention. 
 

203



Allowable Costs 
 
Only costs that are determined to be reasonable, allowable, and allocable may be 
applied to grant programs. In determining whether specific costs may be applied to a 
grant program, the Agency shall refer to the specific terms of the grant agreement. For 
federal grants, guidance is provided by the United States Office of Management and 
Budget in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal 
Governments (available at www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars). 
 
Direct and Indirect Costs 
 
Costs that are applied to grant budgets can be classified as either direct costs or 
indirect costs. There is no universal rule for classifying costs as direct or indirect. 
However, it is important to treat each cost item consistently as either direct or indirect. 
 
Guidelines for determining direct and indirect costs are provided in the following 
paragraphs. 
 
Direct costs are those that are specifically associated with a grant program or are 
incurred in the performance of grant-related activities. Direct costs that are typically 
applied to grants include: 
 

a. Employee compensation for time devoted and identified specifically to the 
performance of grant awards. 

 
b. The cost of materials acquired, consumed, or expended specifically for the 
purpose of grant awards. 

 
c. Equipment and other capital expenditures. 

 
d. Travel expenses incurred specifically to carry out grant awards. 

 
Time spent on grant-funded activities must be documented on employee timesheets 
that indicate the employee’s name, the specific grant program time is charged to, the 
dates on which time is charged, and the number of hours charged to the grant program 
each day. 
 
Indirect costs are those that are incurred for a common purpose that benefits more than 
one Agency function, program, grant, contract or other activity; and are not readily 
assignable to the activities they benefit. Indirect costs are usually charged to grant 
programs through the use of an indirect cost rate. 
 
The types of costs that may be classified as indirect costs cannot be specified for all 
situations. However, typical examples include: 

 
a. Agency central service costs. 

204

http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/


 
b. General administrative costs. 
 
c. Accounting and personnel services performed within the Agency. 
 
d. Facility operations and maintenance costs. 

 
To determine the indirect costs that may be applied to a specific grant; the Agency may 
be required to submit an indirect cost rate proposal that serves as the basis for 
negotiation of the indirect cost rates that will be allowed under the grant. In some cases, 
the Agency may apply predetermined rates that are based on the Agency’s estimated 
costs for a specific period, usually the fiscal year. 
 
Availability of Funds 
 
Most grants specify a specific period of time during which grant funds are to be used. In 
these situations, the Agency may only apply expenditures to the grant up to the end of 
the grant period, unless the grant specifically allows the carryover of unobligated 
balances. 
 
The Agency must liquidate all obligations incurred under a grant within 90 days of the 
end of the grant period, unless otherwise specified in the grant agreement. This 
deadline may be extended at the grantor’s discretion, upon the Agency’s request. 
 
Income from Grant-Funded Programs 
 
The Agency may sometimes generate income from grant-funded programs or activities. 
Income may include fees for services performed by the Agency, but it does not include 
fines, taxes, special assessments, or levies collected by the Agency. 
 
Income generated by grant programs shall be deducted from total program costs. 
 
Supplies and Equipment 
 
The Agency shall use, manage and dispose of equipment acquired under a grant 
according to the procedures established in Fixed Asset Management. 
 
Equipment acquired using grant funds shall be used for the project or program for which 
it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the project continues to be supported 
by grant funds. 
 
Minimum requirements for the management of equipment acquired using grant funds 
include: 
 

a. Records must be kept that include a description of the property, serial number 
or other identification, the source of the property, who holds title, the acquisition 

205



date, cost, percentage of grant participation in the cost, the location, use, and 
condition of the property. In addition, any information regarding the ultimate 
disposition of the property and the sale price. 
 
b. A physical inventory of the property must be taken and reconciled with 
property records at least once every three years. 

 
c. A control system must be in place to safeguard property and prevent loss, 
damage, or theft. 

 
d. Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep property in 
good condition. 

 
e. Proper procedures must be followed to ensure the highest possible return 
when the sale of property is authorized. See Fixed Asset Management, for 
requirements pertaining to disposal of assets. 

 
When equipment is no longer needed for a project or program, disposition will be made 
as follows: 
 

a. Equipment with a current value of less than $5,000 may be retained, sold or 
otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the grantor. 

 
b. Equipment with a current value greater than $5,000 may be retained or sold. 
The grantor shall have a right (which it may waive) to an amount calculated by 
multiplying the current market value or proceeds from the sale by the grantor’s 
share of the equipment. 

 
If there is a residual inventory of unused supplies that exceeds $5,000 in total fair 
market value at the end of the grant period, and if the supplies are not needed for any 
other grant-funded program or project, the Agency shall compensate the grantor for its 
share of the value of the unused supplies, unless the grantor waives its right to 
compensation. 
 
Procurement 
 
When procuring goods and services under a grant, the Agency will follow the same 
policies and procedures it uses for procurements using non-grant funds (see 
Procurement Manual). 
 
Reporting Requirements 
 
The Agency is responsible for monitoring the day-to-day activities of grant-funded 
operations to assure compliance with federal, state, region, and grantor-specific 
requirements and performance goals. The Agency must make periodic reports to the 
grantor regarding grant program performance and financial status. 

206



 
In cases where the Agency is a subrecipient of a grant awarded to the MTC, the Agency 
must submit reports to the MTC, which in turn reports to the grantor.  In some cases, 
the Agency reports to both the grantor and recipient. 
 
Upon written request, the Agency shall provide information regarding any and all grant 
funds and programs to MTC. The information requested may include, but is not limited 
to, performance and financial reports prepared for federal, state, local, and private 
grants. 
 
The following sections on performance and financial reporting generally pertain to 
federal grants. Pass-through grants or reimbursement grants received from the Judicial 
Council, or grants received from other sources may have different reporting 
requirements. It is the Agency’s responsibility to familiarize itself and comply with the 
reporting requirements of any grant it receives to avoid the discontinuation of funds 
needed for Agency programs. 
 
Performance Reporting 
 
The Agency may be required to submit performance reports related to grant funds as 
required by the terms of their grant agreements. For federal grants, the Agency shall 
submit quarterly performance reports unless the grantor requires monthly or annual 
reports.  
 
Annual reports shall be submitted no later than 90 days after the end of the grant year, 
or as specified in the grant agreement. Quarterly or semi-annual reports shall be 
submitted no later than 30 days after the reporting period. At its discretion, the grantor 
may extend the deadline for report submittal upon the Agency’s request. The grantor 
may also waive any performance reports when it is not needed. 
 
For each grant, performance reports shall contain brief information regarding the 
following: 

 
a. A comparison of actual accomplishments to the objectives established for the 
reporting period. Results should be quantified wherever possible. 

 
b. If established objectives were not met, the reasons for underperformance. 

 
c. Pertinent information including, but not limited to, analysis and explanation of 
any cost overruns. 

If significant developments that impact the Agency’s grant performance occur between 
reporting dates, the Agency must inform the grantor as soon as possible. Significant 
developments include: 
 

a. Problems, delays, or adverse conditions that will materially impair the 
Agency’s ability to meet grant objectives. Disclosure to the grantor must include a 

207



statement of the action taken or contemplated, and any assistance needed to 
resolve the situation. 

 
b. Favorable developments that will enable the Agency to meet time schedules 
and objectives sooner or at a lower cost than anticipated, or that produce more 
benefits than originally envisioned. 

 
Financial Reporting 
 
Accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results of grant-related 
activities must be made according to the reporting requirements of each grant. 
 
Financial information shall be reported on a cash or accrual basis, as required by the 
grantor (the Agency operates on the modified accrual basis). If the grantor requires 
financial reporting on an accrual basis, the Agency shall not be required to convert its 
accounting system. Rather, the financial reporting information shall be developed 
through an analysis of available information. 
 
The Agency shall submit annual financial reports unless the grantor requires quarterly 
or semi-annual reports. Financial reports shall not be required more frequently than 
quarterly, unless otherwise specified in the grant agreement. 
 
Annual reports shall be submitted no later than 90 days after the end of the grant year. 
Quarterly or semi-annual reports shall be submitted no later than 30 days after the 
reporting period, unless otherwise noted. At its discretion, the grantor may extend the 
deadline for report submittal upon the Agency’s request. The grantor may also waive 
any financial report when it is not needed. 
 
Required Forms for Federal Grant Financial Reports 
 
Federal regulations (28 CFR Part 66.41) require the submittal of financial information on 
specific forms (available at www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/#forms) for grants made 
by federal agencies. 
 
Submittal of reports is required no later than 30 days after the end of the quarter. 
However, the federal agency making the grant may require the report to be submitted 
earlier. 
 
Grant Termination and Enforcement 
 
If the Agency fails to comply with any term of a grant award, whether the term is stated 
in a federal regulation, State plan or application, grant agreement, notice of award, or 
elsewhere, the grantor may take the following actions, as appropriate to the 
circumstances: 
 

a. Withhold cash payments pending correction of the issue. 

208



 
b. Disallow all or part of the cost of the activity that is not in compliance. 

 
c. Suspend or terminate the grant award in whole or in part. 

 
d. Take other remedies that may be legally available. 

 
In the event the grantor takes action due to perceived noncompliance with the grant 
conditions by the Agency, the Agency shall have the opportunity to a hearing, appeal, or 
other administrative process that may be established under applicable statutes, 
regulations, or grant conditions. 
 
Grant awards may be terminated for convenience in whole or in part under the following 
conditions: 
 

a. By the grantor with the consent of the Agency, in which case the parties shall 
agree to the termination conditions including the effective date and the portion to 
be terminated, if applicable. 
b. By the Agency upon written notice to the grantor, setting forth the reasons for 
the termination, the effective date, and the portion to be terminated, if applicable. 
However, in the case of a partial termination, if the grantor determines that the 
remaining portion of the grant will not accomplish the purposes for which the 
grant was made, the grantor may terminate the grant in its entirety. 

 
Grant Closeout 
 
Within 90 days of the expiration or termination of a grant (or as specified in the grant 
agreement), the Agency shall submit all financial, performance and other reports that 
may be required as conditions of the grant. For federally funded grants these reports 
may include, but are not limited to: 

 
a. Final performance or progress report. 

 
b. Financial Status Report. 

 
c. Final request for payment. 

 
The grantor may make upward or downward adjustments to the allowable costs within 
90 days of receipt of the Agency’s final report (or within the period specified in the grant 
agreement). The grantor will also promptly pay the Agency for any final allowable costs. 
 
The Agency shall immediately refund the balance of any unobligated funds that are not 
authorized for use on other grants to the grantor. 
 
  

209



 
7.1.5.2 GRANT MANAGEMENT 
 
Organization 
The governing body of the Agency is the Board of Directors, consisting of twelve elected 
members appointed by their local city/county/town councils and one non-voting member 
appointed from the Paratransit Coordinating Council.   
 
The Board appoints the Executive Director to direct Agency operations.  Supporting 
management are administrative and supervisory staff.   
 

Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to:  

 
1) Outline management of federal and non-federal grants and to ensure 
compliance with local, state and federal rules and regulations.  

 
2) Monitor and ensure compliance with applicable local, state, and federal 
guidelines/regulations. 

 
3) Provide project status reporting information to grantors and internal 
project managers. 

 
4) Ensure that NCTPA’s financial commitments made with local, state, and 
federal grantors are fulfilled. 

 
5) Conform to priorities established by MTC’s Regional Transportation 
Plan and Transportation Improvement Program, and the Agency’s Short 
Range Transit Plan and capital budget. 

 
The first section of this document is an overall guide to FTA grant and project 
management. The next section of this document is about Program Management and 
Third Party Oversight.  The last section will focus on subrecipient monitoring of federal 
grants. 
 
Policy Statement 
 

The Finance Department is responsible for managing and administering local, 
state, and federal grants for all Agency departments.  Responsibility for these 
functions is assigned to the Grants Manager, who will be responsible for the 
management, administration and reporting on grants and reimbursable revenue 
in an effective and timely manner. 

 
All grant applications are completed in coordination with the intended project 
manager, approved by the Executive Director prior to requesting Board 
authorization to submit grant applications. 

210



 
Goals 
 

NCTPA’s grant administration function strives to ensure the following goals, that: 
 NCTPA is fully compliant with requirements and regulations of grant 

agreements. 
 

 Grant records are accurate, current and documented with a thorough audit 
trail. 
 

 Project managers receive accurate and timely information on expenditures 
and remaining fund balances. 

 
 The use of available funding sources is maximized to fund improved 

transportation services to customers. 
 
Management of Federal Grant Programs 

In accordance with Federal Transit Administration Circular 5010.1C, “Grant 
Management Guidelines”, NCTPA is required to: 

a. Provide continuous administrative and management direction of project 
operations.  

b. Provide, directly or by contract, adequate technical inspection and 
supervision by qualified professionals of all work in progress.  

c. Assure conformity to grant agreements, applicable statutes, codes, 
ordinances, and safety standards.  

d. Maintain the project work schedule agreed to by FTA and the grantee and 
constantly monitor grant activities to assure that schedules are met and 
other performance goals are being achieved.  

e. Keep expenditures within the latest approved project budget.  
f. Assure compliance with FTA requirements on the part of agencies, 

consultants, contractors, and subcontractors working under approved third 
party contracts or inter-agency agreements.  

g. Request and withdraw Federal cash only in amounts and at times as 
needed to make payments that are immediately due and payable.  

h. Account for project property and maintain property inventory records that 
contain all the elements required.  

i. Arrange for an annual independent organization-wide audit in accordance 
with OMB Circular, A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations."  

j. Prepare and submit force account and cost allocation plans prior to 
incurring costs if seeking reimbursement for these costs. Update and 
retain these approved documents for FTA upon request and during 
Triennial Review.  

211



k. FTA requires reports, once submitted and approved by FTA, to be 
updated and retained by the grantee for availability during the Triennial 
Review process.  

The NCTPA’s role in terms of each of these requirements is as follows: 

a. Provide continuous administrative and management direction of project 
operations.  

A project manager will be assigned to every FTA funded project or contract.  This may 
be internal staff or it may be a hired consultant who will ensure that the FTA 
requirements are met. At the start of every project a progress meeting and report 
schedule will be developed. The frequency of the meetings and type of reporting 
required will vary based on the type of project. 

b. Provide, directly or by contract, adequate technical inspection and supervision by 
qualified professionals of all work in progress.  

Based on a combination of FTA requirements and the nature of the project, the 
assigned project manager will determine what types of inspections are required for each 
capital or planning project. 

c. Assure conformity to grant agreements, applicable statutes, codes, ordinances, 
and safety standards.  

NCTPA will conform to the requirements listed within grant agreements and other 
applicable statutes, codes ordinances or safety standards. 

d. Maintain the project work schedule agreed to by FTA and the grantee and 
constantly monitor grant activities to assure that schedules are met and other 
performance goals are being achieved.  

NCTPA will:  

1. Create a schedule for each project.  

2. Have sufficient meetings with contractors or require sufficient reports 
from contractors to ensure that projects stay on schedule or that delays 
are appropriate and understood.   

3. Assure FTA that progress is being made on each project funded by FTA 
by completing the required Financial Status Reports and Milestone 
Reports.   

Currently, NCTPA completes these reports on a quarterly basis.  The milestone 
reports will contain the following information: 

212



5. Address each activity line item within the approved grant unless FTA 
advises otherwise.  

6. Include a discussion of all budget or schedule changes.  

7. For each milestone, include original estimated completion date, revised 
estimated completion date, and the actual completion date if applicable.  

8. Provide the dates of expected or actual requests for bid, delivery, etc.  

9. Provide a narrative description of projects, status, specification 
preparation, bid solicitation, resolution of protests, and contract awards.  

10. Analyze significant project cost variances. Completion and acceptance 
of equipment and construction or other work should be discussed, 
together with a breakout of the costs incurred and those costs required to 
complete the project. Use quantitative measures, such as hours worked, 
sections completed or units delivered.  

11. Include reasons why any scheduled milestones or completion dates 
were not met, identifying problem areas and discussing how the problems 
will be solved. Discuss the expected impacts of delays and the steps 
planned to minimize these impacts.  

12. Provide a list of all outstanding claims exceeding $100,000, and all 
claims settled during the reporting period. This list should be accompanied 
by a brief description, estimated costs, and the reasons for the claims.  

13. Include a list of all change orders and amounts exceeding $100,000, 
pending or settled, during the reporting period. This list should be 
accompanied by a brief description. 

14. Keep expenditures within the latest approved project budget.  

NCTPA will work to expedite projects so that they can be completed within budget.  
However, there are cost increases that are unforeseeable.  NCTPA will proceed in the 
best manner possible to complete the project within budget and will inform FTA 
immediately of any project difficulty in completing the project within budget. 

e. Assure compliance with FTA requirements on the part of agencies, consultants, 
contractors, and subcontractors working under approved third party contracts or 
inter-agency agreements.  

 
NCTPA has developed a Third Party Oversight Guide as part of its overall FTA grant 
management guide. The Third Party Oversight Guide literally provides a guide to 

213



NCTPA in monitoring third party contracts to ensure that FTA funded projects meet FTA 
requirements. The Third Party Oversight Guide can be found in this document. 

f. Request and withdraw Federal cash only in amounts and at times as needed to 
make payments that are immediately due and payable.  

NCTPA will only process FTA ECHO (electronic clearing house) draw downs after the 
contractor has been paid for services or within three days of payment for work 
completed.   

g. Account for project property and maintain property inventory records that contain 
all the elements required.  

NCTPA will do an on-site inventory of all vehicles and equipment every year.  NCTPA 
has also developed a Vehicle/Facilities/Equipment Maintenance Guide to facilitate 
oversight of maintenance of FTA funded equipment/property. See Third Party 
Oversight, which is part of this overall NCTPA FTA Grant Management Guide. 

h. Arrange for an annual independent organization-wide audit in accordance with 
OMB Circular, A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations."  

NCTPA has an independent auditor prepare an independent audit annually in 
accordance with OMB Circular, A-133. 

i. Prepare and submit force account and cost allocation plans prior to incurring 
costs if seeking reimbursement for these costs. Update and retain these 
approved documents for FTA upon request and during Triennial Review.  

Currently, NCTPA only charges FTA grants for direct costs.  However, if NCTPA takes 
on larger capital projects in the future and intends to request reimbursement for 
overhead costs, it will create a cost allocation plan that complies with FTA requirements 
and will submit the plan to FTA for review.  That Cost allocation plan will become part of 
this NCTPA FTA Grant Management Guide 

j. FTA requires reports, once submitted and approved by FTA, to be updated and 
retained by the grantee for availability during the Triennial Review process.  

NCTPA will maintain files of all required reports submitted to FTA.  These files will be 
made available to the FTA when requested. 
 
Formula Grants 
 

NCTPA must implement the Urbanized Area Formula Grant Program of Projects 
in accordance with the grant application, Master Agreement, and all applicable 
laws and regulations, using sound management practices. 

214



 
Funding levels to Urbanized Areas (UA) are generated by formulas based on 
revenue factors and population information.   

 
49 U.S.C. 5307 - available to urbanized areas (UA) for transit capital and 
certain categories of operating assistance (ADA assistance and Preventive 
Maintenance) in urbanized areas and for transportation-related planning. The 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the designated recipient for 
the 12 UAs in the San Francisco Bay Area and distributes revenues to eligible 
recipients based on replacement need.  VINE Transit’s service area is 
contained within the Napa and Vallejo small UA’s and revenues are 
distributed to NCTPA with a small portion coming from the Vallejo UA.  
Consequently, the revenues are only sufficient for transit operations. 
 
49 U.S.C. 5310, Transportation for Elderly and Persons with Disabilities. This 
capital grants funding program was established by the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA Section 5310) for meeting the transportation needs of 
elderly persons and persons with disabilities in areas where public mass 
transportation services are otherwise unavailable, insufficient, or 
inappropriate. It allows for the procurement of accessible vans and busses; 
communication equipment; and computer hardware and software for eligible 
applicants. Private nonprofit corporations or public agencies where no private 
nonprofits are readily available to provide the proposed service or that have 
been approved by the State of California to coordinate services for elderly 
persons and persons with disabilities. 
 
49 U.S.C. 5311 and 5311(f), Rural Transit and Intercity Bus. Section 5311 is a 
non-urbanized area formula funding program authorized by 49 United States 
Code (U.S.C) Section 5311. This federal grant program provides funding for 
public transit in non-urbanized areas with a population under 50,000 as 
designated by the Bureau of the Census. FTA apportions funds to governors 
of each State annually. The California State Department of Transportation 
(Department) Division of Mass Transportation (DMT) is the delegated 
grantee. 
 
49 U.S.C. 5339, Bus and Bus Facilities. The Program provides capital funding 
to replace, rehabilitate and purchase buses, vans, and related equipment, 
and to construct bus-related facilities. FTA apportions a discretionary 
component and a small urban (population 50,000 to 199,999) formula 
component to governors of each State annually. The California State 
Department of Transportation, Division of Mass Transportation (DMT) has 
been delegated the designated recipient responsibilities by the Governor and 
is the direct recipient for these funds. DMT administers these funding 
components to eligible sub-recipients which include: public agencies and 
private nonprofit organizations engaged in public transportation. 

 

215



49 U.S.C. 5317, New Freedom Funds. Caltrans is the designated recipient 
of the region’s small UA funds. Eligible projects are subject to the 
Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan. The funds can be used 
for operating and capital projects for new accessibility projects and for 
projects and for projects that go beyond the requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  

Federal Highway Administration Funds 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement (CMAQ) Program. MTC is the designated recipient for the San Francisco 
Bay Area’s funds and flexes a portion of the funds for transit rehabilitation and 
expansion projects. To access the funds, the Agency transfers the funds from FHWA to 
FTA through with Caltrans and then puts them into our STP/CMAQ grant.  A portion of 
these revenues are distributed for Bike and Pedestrian purposes and are managed by 
the CMAs. STP funds Surface Program funds are Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) that are eligible for highway and transit capital projects.  

CMAQ funds are Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) that are used to support 
transportation projects in air quality non-attainment areas. A CMAQ project must 
contribute to the attainment of the national ambient air quality standards by reducing 
pollutant emissions from transportation sources. 

Regional Planning, Programming, and Monitoring (PPM) funds. Passage of 
Assembly Bill 2538 allows all counties to program up to 5% of their county share to 
Planning, Programming, and Monitoring (PPM) purposes in the State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP). As agreed with the CMAs, MTC will program a portion of 
each county’s PPM for regional PPM activities each year. 

Transportation, Community, and System Preservation (TCSP). The Transportation, 
Community, and System Preservation (TCSP) Program provides funding for a 
comprehensive initiative including planning grants, implementation grants, and research 
to investigate and address the relationships among transportation, community, and 
system preservation plans and practices and identify private sector-based initiatives to 
improve those relationships.  

TCSP Program discretionary grants plan and implement strategies which improve the 
efficiency of the transportation system, reduce environmental impacts of transportation, 
reduce the need for costly future public infrastructure investments, ensure efficient 
access to jobs, services and centers of trade, and examine development patterns and 
identify strategies to encourage private sector development patterns which achieve 
these goals. 

State Revenues 

Transportation Development Act (TDA). The Mills-Alquist-Deddeh Act (SB 325) was 
enacted by the California Legislature to improve existing public transportation services 
and encourages regional transportation coordination. Known as the Transportation 

216



Development Act (TDA) of 1971, this law provides funding for allocation to transit and 
non-transit related projects that comply with regional transportation plans. 

The TDA provides two funding sources: 

 Local Transportation Fund (LTF), which is derived from a ¼ cent of the 
general sales tax collected within the county.  

 State Transit Assistance fund (STA), which is derived from the statewide 
sales tax on gasoline and diesel fuel.  
TDA funds are administered through the Regional Transportation Planning 
Agency (RTPA), which for the San Francisco Bay Area is MTC. TDA and STA 
can be used for eligible transit capital and operating purposes but the Agency 
primarily uses these revenues to support operations. A portion of these funds 
are used to subsidize lower transit fares for seniors and persons with 
disabilities. 

The funds are also used for the capital and operating costs for providing complementary 
paratransit service as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds.  This program 
includes the Interregional Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) and the 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP).  MTC is the designated 
recipient of the region’s RTIP funds but delegates programming authority to the 
region’s county Congestion Management Agencies (CMA). The California 
Transportation Commission has the ultimate authority of approving projects and 
allocating revenues. Caltrans staff administers the program grants. The ITIP is 
managed by CTC staff and Caltrans and the Agency is not eligible for these 
funds.  

In the past, the State also allocated a portion of its federal funds.  Projects 
funded with federal funds are transferred to FTA and put in a STP/CMAQ grant. 

Proposition 1B Infrastructure Improvement Bond. Public Mass Transit 
Improvement Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) Revenue Based Funds. 
These funds are distributed by the Controller and administered by Caltrans by 
formula based on State Transit Assistance Formula and can be used for transit 
capital purposes.  Population based funds are distributed to MTC. 

State Local Partnership funds.  The formula and administering agency has not 
been determined by the State legislature. The region is currently advocating for 
an “all voter approved” revenue formula.  The Agency would receive revenues 
based on its property and parcel taxes and would also be eligible for bridge toll 
and county measure matching revenues. The revenues are eligible for 
transportation capital projects. 

217



Regional Measure 2 – Bay Area voters approved the third dollar on the bridge 
which generated revenues for transit improvement projects in vicinity of the State 
owned bridge corridors.  The Agency receives annual operating revenues for 
express bus service to the El Cerrito BART station.  The Agency also receives 
revenues for capital improvements, and marketing if available. 

Transportation Funds for Clean Air (TFCA).  These funds are generated from 
a motor vehicle fee in the San Francisco Air Basin and are administered by the 
Bay Area Air Quality Management Agency (BAAQAMD).  Eligible projects include 
projects that reduce emissions with a cost effectiveness of $90,000 per ton of 
emissions saved.  BAAQMD administers the regional program and the county 
programs are managed by the CMAs. 

 
 Terms 

 The terms of a grant, including funding levels, funding restrictions and local 
match requirements should be clearly stated in the Request for Proposals (RFP) 
and/or funding agreement.  

 Generally the terms of the grant include a dollar amount but can specify a 
percentage contribution based on final project costs.  

 Most grants require a local match that ensures the grantee’s participation in the 
cost and implies the grantee’s commitment to the project. 

Coordination 

The Agency grant administration function is divided between multiple departments 
including Planning, Finance, and Transit Project management and grant administration 
may also be a shared responsibility between any one of Napa’s jurisdictions or non-
profit agencies.  Grant development and administration is performed by the Finance 
Department, in conjunction with the project manager.  Grant accounting is performed by 
the Finance Department.  Communication between Finance and the project manager is 
critical to ensure the accurate performance of the grant administration function.  Note: 
all approvals, disapprovals and concurrences required as part of these policies and 
procedures should be obtained in writing. 
 
The Project Manager and Finance Manager shall coordinate their respective job 
functions from the earliest stage of project development, including the development of 
the Short Range Transportation Program (SRTP) and the Agency’s annual capital 
budget. 
 
7.1.5.3 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Overview 
FTA grantees are required to have a formal Project Management Plan for all major 
capital projects.  The plan must provide for a detailed project management strategy to 

218



control the project budget, schedule and quality. The plan must address change orders, 
document control, and materials testing policies and procedures. 

A major capital project is defined as a project that:  involves the construction, extension, 
rehabilitation, or modernization of fixed guide way or New Starts project with a total 
project cost in excess of $100 million; or the Administrator determines it to be a major 
capital project based on criteria in 49 CFR Part 633.  

This document is not meant to satisfy the requirement for a formal Project Management 
Plan for all major capital projects.  This document is meant to be a project management 
guide for smaller capital and planning projects.  Should NCTPA require a formal Project 
Management Plan, NCTPA will prepare one for FTA approval. 

According to the FTA triennial review workshop of 2005, FTA grantees with smaller 
capital projects should have a mechanism for technical oversight of the project.  Regular 
meetings should be held to review project status.  Many grantees that do not have the 
technical expertise to manage large projects hire an architectural/engineering consultant 
to serve as project manager.  The transit system’s own maintenance and operations 
directors typically oversee the inspection and acceptance of rolling stock, sometimes 
with consultant support. 

The NCTPA will adhere to the basics of the following process in managing FTA funded 
projects: 

Organizational Chart 

A project manager will be assigned to every FTA funded project, study or 
contract.  Depending on the scope of the project, the NCTPA internal project may 
either manage the project him/herself or may hire a consultant as a project 
manager. Either way the project manager will ensure that FTA requirements are 
met.  The project manager will determine how, when and where staff resources 
will be allocated to meet the needs of the project.  

 
Budget 

NCTPA will establish a project budget for each NCTPA project covering any and 
all authorized expenditures for the project. 

  
Schedule 

NCTPA will establish a project schedule or timeline for each FTA funded project. 
 
Document Control Procedure/ Record Keeping 

NCTPA will provide and/or retain appropriate records based on Federal, State 
and Local requirements. 

 
Change Order Procedures and Documentation 

219



NCTPA will fully document any change order requests and will follow the 
procurement manual procedures for examining and approving or rejecting a 
change order request. 

 
Quality Control 

NCTPA will assure quality control by inspecting work in progress and final 
product or by hiring a consultant to inspect work in progress and final product. 

 
Internal Plan 

At the start of every project a progress meeting and report schedule will be 
developed.  The frequency of the meetings and type of reporting required will 
vary.  

 
Reporting Requirements 
A report will be generated for each project based on these meetings and attached into 
the TEAM program under milestones in project management.  The report will include (1) 
a brief description of progress; (2) status – whether or not the project is within budget, 
percentage of work completed and expected completion date; (3) Products.   
The FTA milestone reports must include the following information: 

1. Address each activity line item within the approved grant unless FTA 
advises otherwise.  

2. Include a discussion of all budget or schedule changes.  

3. For each milestone, include original estimated completion date, revised 
estimated completion date, and the actual completion date if applicable.  

4. Provide the dates of expected or actual requests for bid, delivery, etc.  

5. Provide a narrative description of projects, status, specification 
preparation, bid solicitation, resolution of protests, and contract awards.  

6. Analyze significant project cost variances. Completion and acceptance of 
equipment and construction or other work should be discussed, together 
with a breakout of the costs incurred and those costs required to complete 
the project. Use quantitative measures, such as hours worked, sections 
completed or units delivered.  

7. Include reasons why any scheduled milestones or completion dates were 
not met, identifying problem areas and discussing how the problems will 
be solved. Discuss the expected impacts of delays and the steps planned 
to minimize these impacts.  

220



8. Provide a list of all outstanding claims exceeding $100,000, and all claims 
settled during the reporting period. This list should be accompanied by a 
brief description, estimated costs, and the reasons for the claims.  

9. Include a list of all change orders and amounts exceeding $100,000, 
pending or settled, during the reporting period. This list should be 
accompanied by a brief description 

Periodic Updates of the Project Schedule or Budget 
As part of the internal plan NCTPA will review project progress, schedule and 
budget throughout the project.  The schedule and/or budget will be continuously 
reviewed and updated.   

 
Project Close Out 

Once a project has been completed and final payments have been made to the 
contractor for completion of the project.  NCTPA should close out the grant within 
the FTA TEAM Web system within 120 days of making the final payment to the 
contractor.   

 
7.1.5.4 THIRD PARTY OVERSIGHT 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this document is to outline the role of NCTPA, related to the oversight of 
third party contracting and to ensure compliance with Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) requirements.   
 
Organizational Chart 
 
It is the NCTPA’s role to monitor the activities of third party contractors as necessary to 
ensure that Federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, 
regulations and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements and that contract 
performance goals are achieved. 
 
Under the direction and supervision of the Executive Director, the necessary oversight 
to meet federal compliance will be completed and properly documented. 

The Finance Manager  will provide general oversight for all FTA programs.   

(Operational) Third Party Oversight 

The Transit Manager will provide third party oversight for the transit operations and 
capital related requirements which include: 

1. Accessibility/ADA 
2. Safety & Security 
3. EEO 
4. Maintenance 

221



5. School Bus Services 
6. Charter Services 
7. Drug and Alcohol Testing 
8. Satisfactory Continuing Control 

Oversight includes ensuring that site reviews are conducted and that forms are 
completed in a timely manner.  The Transit Manager will review the frequency and 
the format of each review with the Contractor, the Senior Transit Planner and the 
Transit Program Assistant annually to ensure that compliance is being maintained 
with FTA requirements.  The Transit Program Manager will provide oversight in any 
and all aspects of third party compliance and to carry out third party oversight 
compliance in the place of the Finance Manager if s/he is not available to do so.  

The Senior Transit Planner will assist the Transit Manager in any areas that are 
necessary but with special emphasis on ADA, maintenance and satisfactory 
continuing control requirements and by conducting on-sight visits to provide overall 
contract compliance.   The Senior Transit Planner will report quarterly to the transit 
program manager third party reviews that were conducted during the quarter or if 
there were no third party oversight reviews conducted. This position may also 
provide guidance and support to the Transit Assistant as necessary. 

The Transit Assistant will assist the Transit Manager by creating and maintaining a 
master contract calendar with all project requirements and due dates included.  This 
position will schedule monthly internal staff meetings to review the calendar and 
overall project progress. This position will also assist the Transit Manager by 
scheduling monthly contractor meetings. 

Fiscal (Contracting & Procurement) Third Party Oversight 

The Finance Manager will provide oversight for contracting and procurement 
related requirements which include:  Financial Management 

9. Procurement and Contracting 
10. Civil Rights 
11. Buy America 
12. Suspension and Debarment 
13. Lobbying 
14. Equipment Compliance Certification 
15. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

All contracts and procurements requiring a request for proposal or bid must be 
approved by the Finance Manager. Oversight includes ensuring that certifications 
are received, forms are completed and required reviews are conducted in a timely 
manner.   The Finance Manager will provide oversight in any and all aspects of third 
party compliance and to carry out third party oversight compliance in the place of 
the Transit Manager if s/he is not available to do so.  

222



The Procurement and Contract’s special will assist the Finance Manager by 
performing third party DBE audits for smaller projects to ensure that commitments 
made in the original bid or proposal to include DBE vendors are carried out.  

 

FTA Required Areas of Third Party Oversight 

Accessibility 

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) requires that persons with 
disabilities receive the same level of service from a transportation system as a 
non-disabled person. Services that are “separate but equal” are not acceptable 
(i.e., all wheel chairs on one bus and everyone else on another bus). 

 
Basic Requirement – Fixed Route Systems: Public operators of fixed route 
systems open to the general public are required to provide complementary 
paratransit or other special service to persons with disabilities that are 
comparable to the level of service provided to individuals without disabilities who 
use the fixed route system. All vehicles purchased must be ADA accessible 
unless a waiver has been obtained from FTA. 

 
Basic Requirement – Demand Response Systems: Operators of demand 
response services must conform to “equivalent service” requirements. All 
vehicles purchased must be ADA accessible unless the agency certifies that 
equivalent service is provided. 

 
Comparable or “equivalent service” includes: response time, fares, geographic 
area of service, hours and days of service, availability of information, 
reservations capability, constraints on capacity or service availability, and 
restrictions priorities based on trip purpose. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  Ensure compliance with this 
requirement, if applicable. This is the primary responsibility of the Transit Manager and 
the Senior Transit Planner, in coordination with the Finance Manager. 

Safety and Security 

FTA grantees of Urbanized Area Formula Grant Program funds must annually 
certify that it is spending one percent of such funds for transit security projects or 
that such expenditures for security systems are not necessary. 

 
The goal of the FTA’s Safety and Security Program is to achieve the highest 
practical level of safety and security in all modes of transit. To this end, FTA 
continuously promotes the awareness of safety and security concepts and 
practices.  In addition, FTA develops guidelines that transit systems can apply in 
the design of their procedures and by which to compare local actions. 

 

223



NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts: Ensure that the third party 
contractors are providing safety training, security management and emergency 
management plans. Compliance with this requirement is managed by the Transit 
Manager. 

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) 

The grantee must ensure that no person in the United States shall on the ground 
of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age or disability be excluded from 
participating in or denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination the 
employment under any project, program, or activity receiving federal financial 
assistance from the federal transit laws. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts: NCTPA subjects all contractors 
to meet EEO and Title 6. Responsibility for the EEO/Title VI program falls under NCTP’s 
Human Resources/Administrative Manager. 

Maintenance Procedures 

FTA grantees must keep federally funded equipment and facilities in operating 
order. Third-party contractors must have policies and procedures to maintain 
vehicles.  They must maintain in operative condition those features of facilities 
and vehicles that are required to make the vehicles and facilities readily 
accessible.  ADA accessibility features must be repaired promptly if they are 
damaged or out of order. Contractors must establish a system of regular and 
frequent maintenance checks of lifts sufficient to determine if they are operative, 
which will be systematically checked for compliance. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts: NCTPA has established a 
Vehicle/Facilities/Equipment Oversight Procedure Document. Maintenance compliance 
is the responsibility of the Transit Manager. 

School Bus Services 

FTA grantees and their contractors cannot engage in school bus operations 
(providing vehicles or facilities) exclusively for the transportation of students and 
school personnel in competition with private school bus operators.  In no case 
can federally funded equipment or facilities be used to provide exclusive school 
bus service.  

 
This prohibition does not apply to school “tripper service.” Tripper service is 
defined as regularly scheduled mass transportation service open to the public, 
which is designed or modified to accommodate the needs of school students and 
personnel.  Such service must be open to the public, must serve regular transit 
stops, and must be delineated on route schedules and maps.  Vehicles may not 
display a “school” sign. 

 

224



NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  Document conversation on 
compliance with this regulation, if applicable. School Bus Service compliance is the 
responsibility of the Transit Manager.  

Charter Services 

FTA grantees and their contractors, are prohibited from using Federally-funded 
equipment or facilities to provide charter service, except on an incidental basis; 
and then, only when one or more of the seven exceptions set forth in the charter 
service regulation in 49 CFR Section 604.9 (b) apply.  Other conditions include 
recovering the fully allocated cost of the service and putting the revenues earned 
back into your transportation program. 

 
Charter services is defined as transportation using buses or vans or facilities, 
funded with FTA grants, which are provided to a group of persons who because 
of common purpose, have acquired exclusive use of the vehicle or service.  The 
group operates under a single contract, at a fixed charge for the vehicle or 
service; and the group travels together under an itinerary either specified in 
advance or modified after the trip begins. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  Document conversation on 
compliance with this regulation, if applicable.  Oversight of charter services compliance 
is the responsibility of the Transit Manager.   
 

Drug and Alcohol Testing 
FTA funds under Capital Grant, Urbanized Area Formula Grant, or Non-
Urbanized Area Formula Grant Programs must have a drug and alcohol testing 
program in place for all safety sensitive employees. 

 
The FTA-mandated drug and alcohol testing program is separate from and in addition to 

the provisions of the Drug-Free Workplace Act (DFWA).  Please review 49 CFR Part 40 

“Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug Testing Programs” and 49 CFR Part 

655 “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations.   

If a grantee uses a contract service provider or maintenance provider to perform safety 
sensitive functions, the contractor is subject to the provisions of these regulations.  For 
transit agencies that use volunteer drivers, the volunteers are not subject to testing. 
 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:   NCTPA has established a Drug 
and Alcohol Program Oversight Procedure Document. Drug and Alcohol Program 
compliance is the responsibility of the Transit Manager. 

Satisfactory Continuing Control 

225



The Grantee must maintain control over real property, facilities, and equipment and 
ensure that they are used in transit services 
 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts: Ensure that vehicles, equipment 
and transit facilities are used in accordance with FTA requirements.  Compliance with 
this requirement is the responsibility of the Transit Manager. 

Financial Management 

The Federal requirements for managing Federal funds are in OMB Circular A-87, OMB 
Circular A-110 and OMB Circular A-133. Where there are conflicts between state and 
Federal law, the most restrictive law takes precedence. 
 
FTA grantees must have legal, managerial, financial and technical capability to carry out 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) programs and to receive and disburse Federal 
funds.  Financial systems must be sufficient to prepare reports and track grant funds. 
 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts: Ensure that the third party 
contractors can meet requirements.  A site visit to new contractors may be necessary.  
In most cases a documented phone interview or a review of financial references is 
sufficient.  This is conducted by the Finance Manager. 

Procurement and Contracting 

FTA grantees will use their own procurement procedures that reflect applicable state 
and local laws and regulations, provided that the process ensures competitive 
procurement and that the procedures conform to applicable federal law including 49 
CFR Part 18, specifically Section 18.36 and FTA C 4220.1E, “Third Party Contracting 
Requirements.” Grantees will maintain a contract administration system that ensures 
that contractors perform in accordance with terms conditions, and specifications of their 
contracts or purchase orders 
 
Recipients must comply with five FTA requirements: 
 

1. Provide full and open competition; 
2. Exclude in-state or local preference;  
3. Include federally required clauses in all contracts  
4. Obtain FTA approval on contracts with a duration of more than five years;  
5. Use Brooks Act procedures for architectural and engineering procurements  

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  To the extent that the 
subgrantee contracts with third parties, the subgrantee is required to include in their 
contracts the clauses required by Federal Statutes and Executive Orders and their 
implementing instructions.  It is the Fiscal Manager’s role to collect and review these 
contracts for proper Federal clauses. Necessary certifications must be on file before 
award of contract. Further, NCTPA must follow its own procurement policy when 
conducting any procurement. 

226



Civil Rights 

FTA grantees must ensure that no person in the United States, on the grounds of 
race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from 
participating in, denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination under any 
project, program or activity funded in whole or in part with FTA funds. 

 
A civil rights complaint is defined as a formal complaint filed in person or in 
writing to the Office of Civil Rights; to the US Department of Transportation; to 
the Federal Transit Administration; to the Federal Highway Administration; or to 
private counsel alleging discrimination.  Complaints must be filed within 180 days 
of the alleged discriminatory event or practice. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  Pre-award, request list of any 
outstanding civil rights complaints against the organization. This is the responsibility of 
the Finance Manager. 

Buy America 

Per “Buy America” law, federal funds may not be obligated unless steel, iron and 
manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in the United 
States unless FTA has granted a waiver or the product is subject to a general 
waiver. Rolling stock must have sixty percent domestic content and final 
assembly must take place in the United States. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts: For all procurements of steel, 
iron and manufactured products over $100,000 the grantee is required to obtain and 
retain a Buy America certification of compliance from the successful bidder.  The only 
exception is for an item subject to a Buy America waiver. If neither of the above 
conditions exists, the grantee may also be able to get a waiver from the FTA for this 
requirement. This is part of the procurement process and is the responsibility of the 
Finance Manager. 

Suspension and Debarment   
FTA grantees are required to prevent fraud, waste, and abuse in federal 
transactions, persons or entities, which by defined events or behavior, potentially 
threaten the integrity of federally administered programs, are excluded from 
participating in FTA-assisted programs. FTA grantees not only are required to 
certify that they are not excluded from Federally assisted transactions, but also 
are required to ensure that none of the grantee’s “principals” (as defined in the 
governing regulation 49 CFR Part 29 and FTA Circular 2015.1), subrecipients, 
and third-party contractors and subcontractors are debarred, suspended, 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in Federally assisted 
transactions. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  For any sub-contractor who will 
receive twenty-five thousand dollars or more through a federally funded agreement 
NCTPA will document certification on compliance with this regulation. The Finance 

227



Manager is responsible for compliance with the suspension and debarment 
requirement. 
 

 Lobbying  

Recipients of Federal grants and contracts exceeding $100,000 must certify 
compliance with Restrictions on Lobbying, before they can receive funds. In 
addition, grantees are required to impose the lobbying restriction provisions on 
their contractors. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts: Ensure that all contracts funded 
with FTA funds exceeding $100,000 include the clause certifying that the contractor will 
abide by the FTA required restrictions on lobbying. The Finance Manager is responsible 
for ensuring this requirement. 

Equipment Compliance Certification 

FTA grantees using Federal funds to purchase vehicles are required to conduct 
pre-award and post delivery reviews to confirm Buy America, purchaser’s 
requirements, and Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) and certify 
compliance for all revenue service rolling stock procurements. 

 
Recipients must keep documentation showing they complied when procuring 
revenue rolling stock. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  Ensure that payment for 
vehicles is not made until pre-award and post delivery reviews are documented, if 
applicable. This is the responsibility of the Finance Manager. 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 

FTA grantees must comply with the policy of the Department of Transportation 
(DOT) that DBE’s, as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, are ensured nondiscrimination 
in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts.  Grantees also must 
create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for DOT-assisted 
contracts; ensure that only firms that fully meet eligibility standards are permitted 
to participate as DBEs; help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs; and 
assist the development of firms that can compete successfully in the marketplace 
outside the DBE program. 

 
NCTPA’s Role in Monitoring Third Party Contracts:  On large capital projects, the 
DBE Officer or the Project Manager should document periodic efforts to monitor on-site 
DBE activities.  This may include site visits to ensure DBE’s are actually conducting the 
work on contracts, checking employee records to ensure that employees working on the 
project are employees of the DBE, and/or review title or leasing information on any 
heavy equipment used to ensure that the equipment is owned or leased by the DBE.  
On smaller projects, NCTPA will require the submittal of evidence that DBE’s have been 
paid by the prime contractor in a timely manner for the work described in the bid or 

228



proposal. Monitoring DBE compliance in NCTPA contracts is the responsibility of 
Finance Manager with assistance from the Transportation Administrative Assistant. 
 
Review Schedule for Third Party Oversight 
 

The following provides the minimum requirement for third party oversight review: 
 

1. Accessibility/ADA:  Monthly 
2. Safety & Security:  Semi-Annually 
3. EEO:  Ongoing 
4. Maintenance:  Per Vehicle/Facilities/Equipment Oversight Procedures 

a. Comprehensive facilities and equipment maintenance plan 
submitted by contractor annually. 

b. Program Manager will also perform a monthly inspection of the 
facilities and equipment (Sunday inspection). 

c. Transit Planner will perform quarterly site visits and complete 
checklists related to recorded verification of preventative 
maintenance work order intervals, the overall record keeping 
system, and warranty records 

5. School Bus Services:  Annually – review at monthly meeting 
6. Charter Services:  Annually – review at monthly meeting 
7. Drug and Alcohol Testing:  Semi-Annually – Transportation Program 

Assistant 
8. Satisfactory Continuing Control:  Annually  
9. Financial Management:  Ongoing with every new contract 
10. Procurement and Contracting:  Semi-Annually 
11. Civil Rights:  Ongoing with every new contract 
12. Buy America:  Ongoing with every new contract or purchase 
13. Suspension and Debarment:  Ongoing with every new contract 
14. Lobbying:  Ongoing with every new contract 
15. Equipment Compliance Certification:  Ongoing with every new contract or 

purchase 
16. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise:  Semi-Annually 

 
7.1.3.5 SUBRECEPIENT MONITORING 
 
Purpose 
 
NCTPA is responsible for financial and programmatic monitoring of sponsored project 
funds awarded to NCTPA that are subcontracted to another institution, organization, or 
individual (sub-recipient). 
  
For subcontracts that include any federal funds, sub-recipients are required to make an 
annual disclosure of any sponsored research audit findings. As a recipient of federal 
sponsored projects, NCTPA must comply with the guidelines outlined in OMB Circular 
A-133. 

229



 
NCTPA is required by federal regulation to monitor expenditure of federal funds 
awarded to the Agency that are sub-contracted to another institution, organization, or 
individual. To provide the monitoring required by federal regulations and to ensure good 
stewardship of sponsored projects, NCTPA will review all sub-recipient expenditures for 
allowability, allocatability, reasonableness, and proper compliance. 
 
Policy Statement 
 
It is the policy of the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA), to 
carry out its fiduciary responsibilities in accordance with State and Federal Law.  
Specifically, this policy addresses the need to define the difference between a 
subrecipient and vendor in order to make a determination of whether a subrecipient or 
vendor relationship exists for the purpose of dispersal of Federal grant awards. 
 
The purpose of this procedure is to outline the distinctions between a subrecipient and a 
vendor in accordance with 29 CFR 99.210, in order to determine whether payment 
constitutes a Federal award (subrecipient) or a payment for goods and services 
(vendor). 
 
Definitions 
 

The terms defined below apply to this policy and are for the express purpose of 
interpreting this policy. 

 
1. Subrecipient: A subrecipient is a legal entity that receives Federal funds. 

The subrecipient is accountable for the expenditure of funds according to the 
program regulations.  When the organization performs the following activities 
they are defined as a subrecipient: 

 
 Determines eligibility for the Federally funded program 
 Has its performance measured against the objectives of the Federal 

program 
 Has responsibility for programmatic decision-making 
 Has responsibility for adherence to applicable Federal program 

compliance requirements 
 Uses the Federal funds to carry out a program of the organization as 

opposed to providing goods or services for a program. 
 

2. Vendor: A vendor is a dealer, distributor, merchant or other seller providing 
goods or services that are required to conduct a Federal program.  Payments 
made for goods or services to vendors would not be considered Federal awards.  
The following activities are indicative of a vendor relationship: 

 Provides the goods and services within normal business operations 
 Provides similar goods or services to many different purchasers 
 Operates in a competitive environment 

230



 Provides goods or services that are ancillary to the operation of  the 
Federal program 

 Is not subject to the Federal compliance requirements of the program 
 
Scope 
 
This policy applies to sub-awards or sub-contracts issued under sponsored projects 
awarded to NCTPA without regard to the primary source of funding. The following are 
the objectives of implementing this policy: 
 

A. Manages or eliminates any conflict of interest that arises from a sub-award or 
sub-contract by the Agency to an entity in which the Agency, or key personnel 
have a financial interest. 

 
B. Advises sub-recipients of federal laws or regulations, terms and conditions of 
the prime award or agreement, and NCTPA requirements that apply to the sub-
award or sub-contract. 

 
C. Provides sub-recipients with information regarding the prime award including 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance number (CFDA), title, award name and 
number, award dates, and sponsoring agency, as required by OMB Circular A-
133. 

 
D. Monitors costs and activities of sub-recipients to ensure that expenditures 
charged to the Agency are allowable, allocable and reasonable, and reflected in 
the scope of work of the sub-award or subcontract. Ensures that the performance 
goals set forth in the scope of work are being met in a timely manner. 

 
E. Ensures that cost-share commitments made by sub-recipients are 
documented and adhere to all relevant regulations. 

 
F. Conducts an annual risk assessment of all active sub-contracts or sub-awards 
to determine which sub-recipients require closer scrutiny. 

 
G. Ensures that sub-recipients expending $500,000 or more in federal awards 
during the subrecipient's fiscal year have met the OMB Circular A-133 audit 
requirements for that fiscal year. 

 
H. Issues management decisions on audit findings within six months after receipt 
of the subrecipient's audit report and ensures that the sub-recipient takes 
appropriate and timely corrective action. 

 
I. Considers whether sub-recipient audits necessitate adjustment of NCTPA’s 
records, such as budget modifications, or re-allocation of cost-shared resources. 

  

231



 
Roles and Responsibilities 
 

Finance Department 
All sub-contractors or sub-recipients receive a copy of the sub-recipient 
monitoring policy. 

 
Contract Administrator 
 Ensures that sub-contract/sub-award paperwork is reviewed by the Program 

Administrator before sending to the Chief Procurement Officer for review. 
 Logs all expenditures/invoices on the sub-contract/sub-award. 
 Ensures that appropriate back-up documentation for expenditures has been 

provided by sub-recipient. 
 Routes the invoice to Accounts Payable for approval and payment. 
 Checks Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) to ensure that sub-recipient is 

not on debarred list. 
 

Program Administrator 
 Reviews budget and scope of work before agreement is signed. 
 Reviews invoices submitted by the sub-recipient to ensure that costs are 

allowable, allocable and reasonable. Reviews back-up documentation 
provided for expenditures. 

 Reviews invoices and expenses-to-budget. 
 Ensures that cost-share commitments are documented in the invoicing 

process. 
 Authorizes approval for any invoices under $5,000. 
 Assists Finance Dept. with questions regarding sub-recipient invoices. 
 Reviews technical or performance reports. 
 Ensures that any project deliverables (reports, financial or programmatic) are 

submitted to NCTPA in a timely manner. 
 
Procurement and Contracts Specialist 
 The Procurement and Contracts Specialist has primary oversight 

responsibility for ensuring that sub-recipients complete an annual certification 
to disclose any sponsored research audit findings. 

 Conducts a risk assessment of sub-recipients to determine the level of 
oversight needed on each project. 

 Ensures that cost-shared commitments of sub-recipients are met and 
documented. 

 Performs periodic audits or site visits as deemed necessary. 
 Reviews A-133 audit reports filed by sub-recipients and any audit findings. 
 Reviews corrective actions cited by sub-recipients in response to audit 

findings, and determines sanctions imposed on sub-recipients who are unable 
or unwilling to conduct required audits or address issues of non-compliance. 

 

232



Finance Department 
Accounts Payable 
 Confirms that the appropriate signatures have been obtained. 
 Generates payment to the sub-recipient for the approved amount. 
 Ensures that expenditures invoiced by the sub-recipient for work and effort 

committed are appropriate to the approved budget and scope of work of the 
agreement. 

 
During the Sub-award Monitoring  
 

The Agency shall monitor the subrecipients use of Federal awards through 
reporting, regular contact, or other means to provide reasonable assurance that 
the subrecipient administers Federal awards in compliance with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements and that 
performance goals are achieved.  

 
The Program Administrator (PA) shall maintain sufficient contact with the 
Subrecipients of the sub-award to assess accurately whether the Subrecipient is 
reasonably progressing towards the achievement of the sub-award’s statement 
of work including performance goals.  

 
The PA shall obtain periodic written progress reports from the Subrecipient(s). 
Progress reports should generally contain, for each sub-award, brief information 
on each of the following.  

 
1. A comparison of actual accomplishments with the goals and objectives 

established for the period. Whenever appropriate and the output of 
programs or projects can be readily quantified, such quantitative data 
should be related to cost data for computation of unit costs.  

 
2. Reasons why established goals were not met, if appropriate.  

 
3. Other pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis and 

explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.  
 

Upon receipt of a Subrecipient invoice, the PA shall review and assess whether 
the charges on the invoice reasonably match the progress made on the 
statement of work.  

 
The PA should either certify their approval of the reasonableness by signing each 
invoice or contact Contract Administrator to initiate more formal administrative 
proceedings with the Subrecipient.  

 
The Procurement and Contracts Specialist will review each PA approved invoice 
for completeness and accuracy per the provisions sub-award agreement. For 
invoices not approved by the PA, the Agency will place a hold on payments to 

233



the Subrecipient until a written agreement has been agreed to by the Agency and 
the Subrecipient official offices to rectify the situation. 

 
Sub-recipient Audits  
The Agency’s employs a risk based approach of monitoring Sub-recipients annual audit 
results. NCTPA will conduct the following monitoring activities for all applicable 
subrecipients that meet the Agency’s risk based approach criteria:  
 
For all sub recipients subject to OMB A-133 audits, NCTPA will: 
  

1. Obtain a written acknowledgment on whether the subrecipient has complied with 
the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and the required audits are 
completed within nine months from the end of the Sub recipient’s audit period.  

 
7.1.5 EXPENSE REIMBURSMENTS 

 
7.1.5.1 BUSINESS TRAVEL 
 
Purpose, Policy Statement and Application 
 
The purpose of this policy and the procedures that follow is to define the rules and limits 
that must be observed when arranging, engaging in, or claiming reimbursement for 
travel on Agency business. 
 
NCTPA employees may be required to travel in the course of performing their official 
duties. It is the intent of the Agency will reimburse its employees for their reasonable 
and necessary travel expenses incurred while traveling on Agency business within the 
limits of the reimbursement guidelines. 
 
This policy sets forth the manner and purposes under which employee travel will be 
authorized and reimbursed by the Agency.  Its intent is to establish reimbursement 
schedules under which employees assigned to NCTPA will receive no more than 
reasonable and necessary reimbursement for travel expenses while avoiding the 
necessity for employees to utilize personal funds to partially cover the cost of travel. 
 
This policy covers requirements and procedures for travel as well as general 
requirements and procedures that apply to both. 
 
Except as otherwise provided by contract, ordinance or statute, the policies and 
procedures specified herein shall supersede any and all travel policies and procedures 
previously adopted and shall be deemed to govern in the case of any apparent conflict 
with similar policies and procedures. 
 
This policy applies for all in-state and out-of-state business. 
 
Establishing Residence and Headquarters  

234



 
1. Location of residence and headquarters shall be established by every employee 
assigned to NCTPA and the Executive Director before travel expenses shall be allowed. 
 
2. No travel expenses shall be allowed from residence to headquarters except when the 
employee is required to travel to headquarters outside of working schedule. 
 
3. Board members shall be reimbursed for travel when that travel is solely for the benefit 
of NCTPA business and not a requirement of his/her elected position. 
 
4. No travel expenses shall be allowed members of the Board for costs associated with 
travel to and from regularly scheduled NCTPA or MTC meetings. 
 
Approval to Travel 
 
The Agency is responsible for developing and implementing a system for the submittal 
and approval of travel expense claims that is impartial and appropriate, and that 
complies with the policies, schedules and procedures approved by the Board of 
Directors. The minimum standards for travel expense reimbursement are provided 
below. 
 
All travel required for Agency business shall be approved by the Executive Director prior 
to making travel arrangements.  

 The Agency allows employees to make their own travel arrangements, provided 
they are to the economic or other benefit of the Agency.  
 

Out of Area Travel Authorization Form 
 
Arranging for Travel 
 
Employees who need to travel on business must obtain written approval from their 
appropriate approving authority by using the “Out of Area Travel Authorization” form. 
Travel costs incurred without written travel request approval may be subject to rejection 
when reimbursements are requested. Any out-of-state travel requires the approval of 
the Executive Director or designee. 
 
Travel Reservations 
 
Agency employees may travel by plane, train, bus, private or Agency–owned vehicles, 
rented car, taxi, or other means, whichever most economically and advantageously 
suits the needs of the Agency. Employees may elect to make their own hotel 
reservations or may use a travel planner if one is available.  
 
Use of Agency and Personal Vehicles 
 

235

file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/0100_Templates%20and%20Forms/16_Travel/28_Out%20of%20Area%20Travel%20Authorization.xlsx


Anyone who operates a vehicle on Agency business must hold a valid California driver’s 
license and a good driving record. Prior to authorizing the use of a personal vehicle, the 
approver will ensure personal liability insurance requirements have been satisfied. 
However, unless it is a condition of employment, employees are not required to use 
their personal vehicle for business purposes. Requests for the use of Agency owned 
vehicles should be submitted immediately after approval of a travel request requiring a 
vehicle. 
 
To determine if a driver has a valid license and a good driving record, the Agency 
should request drivers’ records from the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) at time of 
hire for employees who are expected to travel on Agency business and regular intervals 
thereafter (e.g., annually). 
 
Commercial Vehicle Rental Policy 
 
It is essential that Agency employees receive authorization from the Executive Director 
prior to traveling.  Employees of NCTPA who are 21 years of age or older may rent and 
operate Agency vehicles when on official business. Business-related travel by a 
contractor or temporary help for vehicle usage must be addressed in a written 
agreement between the contractors or agency and NCTPA. 
 
Travelers may use a commercial vehicle contractor if an Agency vehicle is unavailable. 
NCTPA staff shall not rent luxury or specialized vehicles.  If only one or two people will 
be using the rented vehicle, staff should rent a midsize or economy car whenever 
possible.  A full size rental is allowed for three (3) or more staff members traveling 
together. The actual cost of the car rental will be reimbursed by the Agency for days in 
which the car rental was used for NCTPA business.  If the employee chooses to rent a 
luxury or specialized vehicle, NCTPA will reimburse the employee based on the 
economy vehicle rental rate from the car rental agency.   
 
Substantiation for Upgrade 
 

 A traveler must rent a economy or midsize vehicle unless there is a reason for 
a larger vehicle - such as three (3) or more travelers commuting together, or a 
need for extra luggage space to transport equipment, conference materials or 
the like. In such a case, an upgrade for another type or size of vehicle (such 
as an intermediate-size car, mini-van, or a cargo van) may be utilized, with 
prior approval. 

 
 If a larger or upgraded vehicle is necessary, written substantiation for the 

rental must be attached to the traveler’s request for reimbursement. 
 
When renting a vehicle, it is unnecessary for travelers to sign up for collision insurance 
(Collision Damage Waiver (CDW)), Loss Damage Waiver (LDW), or medical insurance 
(called “personal accident insurance”). 
 

236



The Insurance Liability Program provides automobile liability insurance coverage to 
Agency employees on official Agency business. In the event of an accident, the 
commercial vehicle rental company insurance carrier will cover liability and vehicle 
repair costs up to $1,000,000. The Liability Program will cover any additional liability 
costs in excess of $250,000 for Agency employees, see limitations regarding non-
salaried drivers in Section 6.3. If the process is not followed, the liability insurance is not 
applicable and any accident related expenses will be the responsibility of the traveler's 
Agency. 
 
All out-of-state and international travel requires pre-approval in writing from the 
Executive Director or his/her designee. The Agency recommends buying liability 
insurance coverage for international travel and will assist in obtaining it in accordance 
with the laws of the foreign country. 
 
Contract rental vehicles are to be used only for conducting official Agency business. A 
traveler who wishes to extend the rental of a vehicle for personal use should arrange it 
with the commercial vehicle rental contractor when making reservations and before 
picking up the vehicle. 
 

 At the end of Agency business, the traveler must close out the Agency 
contract rental agreement (either at the original vendor location or another 
mutually agreed upon location) and have a new rental agreement drawn for 
the term of personal travel. 

 
 The rate charged by the vendor for the term of personal travel is between the 

traveler and the commercial vehicle rental company, does not include the 
insurance benefit identified above, and must be completely separate and 
apart from the Agency contract. 

 
 If personal travel is interrupted by official Agency business, the traveler may 

be reimbursed for the Agency business mileage at the authorized personal 
vehicle mileage rate or have a new rental agreement drawn for the term of the 
official Agency business (whichever is less costly). 

 
Vehicle rental contractors charge for vehicles returned with less than full gas tanks. 
Travelers should refuel vehicles before returning them to the vendor, since the vendor’s 
refueling charge is usually higher than regular gas station rates. Travelers may submit 
the refueling cost for reimbursement on their TME, with original receipt attached. If it 
becomes necessary to use the vehicle rental company for refueling, resulting in a rate 
higher than at a regular gas station, the traveler must submit a written explanation with 
the TME as to why the vehicle was not refueled prior to its return. In the absence of a 
satisfactory explanation, the amount involved will be disallowed and will be considered a 
non-reimbursable personal expense. 
 
Discount Airfares for Official Business 
 

237



Discounted fares may be available to Agency employees traveling on official Agency 
business when ordering directly from an airline or from an authorized travel agent.  
 
Exception Request for Lodging 
 
1. Pertaining to In-State Travel and Out-of-Area Travel. 
 
Because employees do not have control over where non-state sponsored business is 
conducted, reimbursement of actual expenses, supported by receipts is authorized if the 
participant stays at the conference, convention, or meeting site.   
 

a. Alternative lodging. The Agency requires a good faith effort to locate 
establishments within the identified maximum rates. Attach a list of at least three 
moderately priced establishments contacted, the dates of the contacts, phone 
numbers, contact persons, rates available, and any other results of the contacts. 

 
b. Transportation to and from alternative lodging. Either the cost or the loss 
of productive time required by travel between the work location and a less 
expensive lodging establishment can justify exceeding the rate difference 
(explain efforts to obtain transportation, and provide a cost comparison analysis). 

 
c. State business conducted at a designated lodging establishment (attach 
an agenda and supporting documentation). Address the availability of alternative 
lodging, as identified above. 

 
d. Required attendance. An exception can be authorized when attendance is 
required at a state conference, convention, business meeting, or training where 
the contracted facility exceeds the maximum daily lodging allowance (provide 
specific facts, including confirmation related to this criterion). 

 
e. Attendance at a non-state-sponsored function. An exception can be 
authorized when a participant in a non-state sponsored function cannot stay at 
the designated function site. 

 
Explain the circumstances; provide specific facts that prevent on-site lodging. Please 
note that an exception will not be authorized solely for the convenience of the traveler. 
 
2. Request an exception in advance of travel for lodging expenses that exceed the 
following federal maximum rates: 
 

a. In-State. The rates up to federal maximum per night, excluding tax and 
surcharges, for non-state sponsored functions (conferences, conventions, 
business meetings, and training classes) if the participant does not stay at the 
conference, convention, or meeting site. An exception request for such an 
alternative site is rare and shall be authorized only in instances justified as a 
result of official state business (i.e., schedule conflicts due to multiple 

238



meetings at various sites, no room available, and so forth). Business 
meetings authorized under this section are meetings with formal agendas 
requested by outside entities at locations over which the employee has no 
control. 
 
(*California Federal per diem rates for current year.  See California 
Lodging Industry website for updates at www.clia.org) 

 
b. Out-of-State. Lodging expenses will be reimbursed for the actual incurred 

costs up to the federal lodging rate, plus tax and surcharges, when 
substantiated by receipts. The U.S. Department of State Standardized 
Regulations (federal) lodging rates are accessible on the Internet at the 
following (click on Domestic Per Diem Rates): 
 
http://policyworks.gov/org/main/mt/homepage/mtt/perdiem/ travel.htm 

 
3. The Department of General Services for the State of California provides an on-line 
lodging directory for travelers, which may be accessed at www.travelcsg.com. The on-
line directory does not contain a complete listing of all hotels, but may be used as a 
guide in locating hotels that offer the government employee lodging rates. 
 
4. The Agency must retain TME documents for three years and have them available for 
audit, if needed. 
Business-related Travel by a Contractor 
 
Business-related travel by a contractor for items such as air transportation, lodging, 
meals, personal vehicle usage, rental vehicle usage, insurance requirements, etc. must 
be addressed in a written agreement between the contractor and the Agency, in 
accordance with the procurement and contracting guidelines established by the Agency 
Financial Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 
Insurance Liability Program Coverage 
 
Agency- Owned Vehicles. First-dollar liability coverage is provided for employees 
authorized to drive Agency-owned vehicles in the course and scope of employment. 
That is, if an Agency employee is authorized to drive an Agency-owned vehicle in the 
course and scope of their employment at the time of an accident, NCTPA’s insurance 
agent provides full protection against third-party claims arising out of that accident.  
 
Commercial Vehicle Company. The program does not cover damage to the rental 
vehicle. Repairs for such damage are paid for directly by the Agency. If the accident is a 
result of negligence on the part of a third party, NCTPA’s insurance agent will initiate 
action to recover from that party the cost to repair or replace the damaged vehicle.  
 
Privately Owned Vehicles. Private vehicles may be used for NCTPA business in lieu 
of an NCTPA staff vehicle.  

239

http://www.clia.org/
http://www.travelcsg.com/


 
a. The owner of the private vehicle should be aware that his/her insurance 
coverage is primary in the event of an accident.  NCTPA will carry additional 
insurance to safeguard its employees who use privately owned vehicles for 
NCTPA business purposes. 
 
b. Should a settlement or judgment arising out of that accident exhaust the policy 
limit, the Agency will provide excess coverage. In the event of an accident, the 
employee should pay his/her deductible and request reimbursement, 
substantiated by a receipt, on a Travel/Mileage Expense form. The 
reimbursement will be considered an allowable Agency expense if: 

 
i. The damage occurred while the automobile was used on authorized 
office Agency business; 

 
ii. The amount claimed is the actual loss and is not recoverable directly 
from or through the insurance coverage or any party involved in the 
accident; 

 
iii. The loss claimed does not result from a decision not to maintain 
collision coverage; 

 
iv. A copy of the insurance policy is provided (for verification of the 
insurance deductible); and 

 
v. An itemized receipt is provided (for the insurance deductible or repair 
costs up to the deductible maximum). The receipt must indicate proof of 
payment with a zero balance due. 

 
c. Owners of private vehicles must meet requirements of the California Financial 
Responsibility Law which requires a minimum coverage of $15,000 per 
person/$30,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and $5,000 property damage.  
This requirement may be met by a combined single limited coverage of $35,000. 

 
d. Reimbursement for the use of privately owned vehicles will be paid at the rate 
established annually by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).  This rate is 
intended to reimburse the employee for the per mile cost of normal maintenance, 
insurance costs and wear and tear of vehicle.  The County Auditor will notify 
NCTPA of the appropriate rate. 
 
In choosing whether to use a privately owned vehicle or to use airline or other 
travel modes, employees should select the options that will be least expensive 
for the Agency when all costs associated with the trip have been considered.  
These costs include employee time spent driving, parking costs, costs associated 
with getting to and from an airport, and to and from lodging to final destination. 
 

240



e. Reimbursement for the use of privately owned vehicles shall be made only for 
each vehicle operated regardless of the number of persons transported.  No 
additional per mile reimbursement for transportation shall be allowed any 
passenger in a vehicle operated by another employee, Executive Director or 
official of NCTPA. 
 
f. Reimbursement for reasonable and necessary charges for parking and tolls will 
be allowed. 

 
Out-of-State and International Vehicle Coverage. NCTPA’s insurance agent program 
provides coverage as referenced above for Agency-owned vehicles or a commercial 
vehicle company, whichever is applicable. The Agency recommends buying liability 
insurance coverage for international travel and will assist in obtaining it in accordance 
with the laws of the foreign country. 
 
Medical Coverage for Employees. NCTPA’s insurance agent program does not 
provide coverage for medical costs resulting from an injury to a employee, or occupants 
of a Agency-operated vehicle. In the event of an accident, an injury to an employee of 
the Agency is handled through workers' compensation. 
 
Insurance Coverage Limitations for Passengers. Transporting any persons other 
than those directly involved in official Agency business is prohibited unless written 
permission has been obtained in advance for each trip by the employee's appropriate 
approval level. 
 
In those limited situations when advance approval has been obtained, neither NCTPA’s 
insurance program nor the workers' compensation system will pay for any loss or 
expense, including; medical expenses, of a non-Agency passenger, including a family 
member, resulting from any injury or accident in a Agency-operated vehicle. The non-
judiciary passenger or family member is responsible for all such costs and expenses. 
Typically, the passenger or family member's health insurance provider would cover 
these expenses. 
 
Motor Vehicle Accidents and Reporting. All motor vehicle accidents involving any 
vehicle being used on Agency business must be reported within 48 hours to NCTPA at 
625 Burnell St., Napa, CA 94559-3420. 
 
To accomplish this, travelers must complete a Vehicle Accident Report as soon as 
possible and forward it to their supervisor.  The supervisor will: (1) review the form, (2) 
investigate the circumstances surrounding the accident, (3) verify that the employee 
was on official Agency business, (4) and complete the Supervisor’s Review of Motor 
Vehicle Accident Report. 
 
At the accident scene, do not admit fault or make any promises that the Agency will pay 
for damages. NCTPA’s insurance agent handles all decisions on accident claims. If a 

241



claimant contacts you, refer the claimant directly to NCTPA’s insurance agent to 
expedite the handling of the claim. 
 
A Vehicle Accident Report and an Accident Identification Card should be placed in the 
glove compartment of all Agency-owned or leased vehicles. The Accident Identification 
Card serves as evidence of financial responsibility and states: 
 
"This vehicle is owned or leased by the Napa County Transportation and Planning 
Agency, a public entity, and operated by employees of the Agency. California Vehicle 
Code sections 16000, 16021 et seq. state that ownership or lease of a vehicle by a 
public entity establishes evidence of financial responsibility." This card should be 
completed at the scene of an accident and provided to the other driver. 
 
Travel Procedures 
 
It is necessary to document business travel expenses with original receipts showing the 
actual amounts spent on lodging, transportation and other miscellaneous items. In 
limited circumstances, a receipt not on pre-printed bill head may be acceptable. 
Receipts not on pre-printed bill head must be signed by the vendor or person furnishing 
the goods or services. Every receipt must be properly itemized. Original receipts are 
needed to claim reimbursement for: 
 

a. Air travel. For ticket less travel, the airfare itinerary is a valid receipt. 
 

b. Rental cars. 
 

c. Other forms of transportation including buses, trains, taxis, etc.. 
 

d. Parking/Tolls. 
 

e. Seminar registration. 
 

f. Hotel lodging. Receipts for hotel lodging charges must be on a preprinted bill 
head with a zero balance shown. The hotel express check-out or receipts from a 
third-party provider for lodging booked via the internet are not valid receipts. In 
some instances, a hotel may decline to issue a receipt on their pre-printed billing 
head for lodging booked via the internet. 

 
g. Meals. (Receipts for meals need not be submitted to the Agency. However, 
meal receipts should be retained by the traveler for IRS documentation 
purposes.) 

 
h. Incidentals. (Receipts for incidentals need not be submitted to the Agency. 
However, receipts for incidental expenses should be retained by the traveler for 
IRS documentation purposes.) 
 

242



i. Conferences and training classes. In addition to the receipt, a proof of 
attendance or certification of completion must be submitted with the claim. 

 
j. Telephone or fax charges of $2.50 or more. All telephone or fax expenses 
claimed must be related to Agency business and show the date, place, and party 
called. 

 
In cases where receipts cannot be obtained or have been lost, a written explanation to 
that effect and the reason provided must be noted on the TME. Lodging, airfare, and car 
rental receipts cannot be certified as lost or waived and will not be reimbursed without 
the submission of a valid original receipt. 
 
Agency Vehicle Use 
 
NCTPA staff vehicles shall be the primary vehicles for the conduct of NCTPA related 
business.  However, because there are very few NCTPA vehicles and their use is 
limited by their funding sources, employees may need to use personally owned vehicles 
for NCTPA business. 
 
NCTPA vehicles shall be used only for NCTPA business. Transportation of persons not 
on business with, or the responsibility of, the NCTPA is strictly prohibited except when 
an employee uses an NCTPA vehicle to attend a conference or meeting and is 
accompanied by family, friend or another agency representative. 
 
Original receipts documenting expenses for gasoline, oil, parking, tolls, and any other 
necessary costs are required for reimbursement. 
 
Parking and Traffic Offences 
 
Parking fines and other traffic infringements are the responsibility of the driver and will 
not be paid by the Agency. Non-payment of these fines may result in disciplinary action 
including permanent loss of use of Agency vehicle. 
 
Driving under the Influence of Alcohol or Drugs 
 
Driving with alcohol content over the legal limit or under the influence of illegal drugs is 
illegal, the consequences of which include personal penalties such as fines and or jail 
as well as financial penalties associated with the voiding of insurance cover and 
damage to property expenses. Any employee found guilty of such an offence will be 
responsible for the payment of all fines and repair costs resulting from the incident and 
may be subject to disciplinary action. 
 
Theft of Property from Vehicles 
 
Wherever practicable, valuable items such as laptop computers must not be left in 
vehicles. If it is unavoidable the items must be out of sight and stored as per insurance 

243



cover stipulations and the vehicle securely locked. The Agency will not accept 
responsibility for any loss or damage incurred. 
 
Personal Vehicle Mileage 
 
1. When the use of a personal vehicle is approved for Agency business, a 
Travel/Mileage Expense form must be completed for reimbursement. The form must 
contain a description of the trip including the date of travel, destination, and total miles 
driven for business purposes. 
 
2. Employees submitting claims for reimbursement for personal vehicle use should note 
the following: 
 

a. Travel between home and an employee’s regular place of work is not 
reimbursable unless otherwise noted. 

 
b. When travel commences from home and the traveler is authorized to use 
his/her personal vehicle to travel to a business destination other than the 
traveler’s regular place of work, reimbursed mileage will be calculated from the 
traveler’s designated headquarters or home, whichever results is the lesser 
distance, to the business destination. If the traveler departs from the last 
business destination directly to the traveler’s home, mileage reimbursement will 
be calculated from the last business destination to the traveler’s designated 
headquarters or home, whichever results in the lesser distance. If the first or last 
business destination is closer to home than the regular place of work, no mileage 
reimbursement will be allowed. 
c. If the traveler is driven to a common carrier, he/she can claim double the rate 
authorized for a one-way trip to and from the common carrier, if no parking is 
claimed. If the traveler departs or returns to a common carrier on his/her day off 
or one hour before or one hour after the normal workday, actual miles driven may 
be claimed. 

 
3. Prior to authorizing the use of a personal vehicle, the approver will ensure personal 
liability insurance requirements have been satisfied. However, unless it is a condition of 
employment, employees are not required to use their personal vehicle for business 
purposes. It is the employee's responsibility to inform his or her appropriate approval 
level of any personal automobile liability coverage changes during the year. 
 
Travel Expense Reimbursement 
 
Reimbursable travel expenses are limited to the authorized, actual, and necessary costs 
of conducting the official business of the Agency and the limits established in the 
published the County’s Travel Rate Guidelines. Agency Travel Expense Claims shall be 
processed and paid at least monthly. 
 
Submittal of Travel/Mileage Expense (TME) Form 

244



 
Employees who incur reimbursable business travel costs must submit a completed TME 
form, which: 
 

a. Is approved and signed by the Executive Director or designee. 
 

b. Includes only allowable expenses paid by the employee. 
 

c. Is supported by receipts for airline tickets, lodging, car rentals, and any other 
expenses. Receipts should be arranged in chronological order, taped onto an 8 
1/2” x 11” sheet of paper, and attached to the TME. Each receipt must be 
itemized on a pre-printed bill head showing the date, quantity, cost, and nature of 
expense. Receipts not on pre-printed bill head must be signed by the vendor or 
person furnishing the goods or services. 

 
d. Provides written justification for any unusual expenses. 

 
e. Notes the business purpose of the trip. 

 
f. The Agency has developed an electronic Travel/Mileage Expense form that 
maybe used to provide a simple and convenient means of documenting travel 
expenses for reimbursement purposes. Use of the electronic form is 
recommended and it is included in the Associated Documents at the end of this 
procedure. 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this policy, receipts or vouchers shall be submitted for 
every item of expense, except as follows: meals (when being reimbursed within the 
meal allowance listed in the Napa County Memorandum of Understanding), taxi, bus, 
trolley, streetcar, light rail, hotel bus, and ferry fares; bridges and road tolls; telephone 
and telegraph charges; parking meter; and all legal expenditures of one dollar or less.  
Receipts are required for reimbursement of meals greater than the meal allowance 
listed in the Napa County Memorandum of Understanding. 
  

g. In cases where receipts cannot be obtained, a statement to that effect shall be 
entered on the expense claim and the reason given.  In the absence of a 
satisfactory explanation, the amount involved shall not be allowed. 

 
Expense claims may be rendered more frequently than once a month on forms 
prescribed by the Napa County Auditor-Controller. 
 

h. All expense claims must be rendered no later than three (3) months after the 
date incurred.  Any claims submitted beyond the three (3) month period will 
require approval of the Executive Director prior to processing for payment. 

 
i. Claims for reimbursement of expenses must indicate the purpose of the trip, 
dates of travel and time of departure and return. 

245



 
j. Unless otherwise provided in this policy, all expense claims shall be identified, 
accompanied by vouchers and approved by the Executive Director or designated 
representative of the Executive Director. 

 
k. Reimbursement shall be allowed only for the actual days of authorized travel. 

 
l. Each claim for travel or mileage expense shall contain a certification. 

 
The foregoing certification shall be in addition to any oath or certification required by law 
for the NCTPA or County of Napa claim forms. 
 
Travel Advance 
 
1. Travel advances for out of county travel are authorized as follows: 
 

a. Training programs as defined in this policy where the actual costs of overnight 
accommodations, meals and registration or fees can be determined.  NCTPA 
staff may request reimbursement in advance up to thirty (30) in advance of actual 
travel. 

 
b. Travel by the Executive Director or Management employees where the per 
diem basis for reimbursement is selected. 

 
c. Anticipated travel costs as estimated for travel. 

 
2. Travel advance claims for specific amounts in a minimum of $100 must be submitted 
to the NCTPA a minimum of seven (7) days prior to when advance is required.  
Advance payments may be made up to one month in advance of travel.  If the cost to 
purchase a transferable ticket is less than 5% more than purchasing a non-transferable 
ticket, NCTPA staff should purchase the transferable ticket. 
 
Employees should try to find the most economical travel option possible.  If an advance 
payment is made to the employee or the travel vendor, the employee and/or Executive 
Director should request that the travel be transferable to other employees.  If for some 
reason the original employee is unable to proceed with their travel plans, another 
NCTPA staff person would be able to fill the vacancy or use the prepaid travel at 
another time.   
 
Allowable Expenses 
 
1. The following types of expenses are allowable and reimbursable for Agency business 
travel: 
 

a. Airfare. Air travel should be obtained at the lowest convenient airfare. Only the 
cost of coach class air travel is allowable. 

246



 
b. Surface Transportation. The cost of surface transportation by train, bus, taxi, 
and rented vehicle, private or Agency-owned vehicle is allowable. If surface 
transportation is chosen in lieu of available commercial air travel, the total 
reimbursement cannot exceed the total cost for travel had the services of a 
commercial airline been used. A cost comparison should be prepared calculating 
the amounts for both modes of transportation and related expenses prior to 
approving surface travel so the traveler knows in advance the estimated amount 
eligible for reimbursement. 

 
c. Mileage. The mileage rate for reimbursement when personal vehicles are 
used in the course of Agency business will be established by the published IRS 
guidelines. Parking and toll charges are also reimbursable. 

 
d. Lodging/Hotels. Actual costs incurred for overnight lodging are allowable up 
to the maximum rate established by the Board of Directors or approved lodging 
exception request rate. 
 
All personnel assigned to NCTPA are expected to secure reservations as 
economically as possible commensurate with the standards of accommodations 
available at the location of official travel.  A government rate should be requested 
if available.  Absent a government rate, the lowest available rate should be 
obtained. 
 

With exception provided for Per Diem Allowances, whether receiving advance 
reimbursement or reimbursement in arrears, documentation must be provided for the 
actual cost associated with lodging expense and attached to the reimbursement request 
form.  In the case of an NCTPA staff person who has received an advance on his/her 
travel expenses, the documentation for the hotel costs must be attached following 
actual travel. 
 

e. Meals. Employees may be reimbursed for meals consumed during business 
travel. Meals to be reimbursed should be itemized as breakfast, lunch or dinner.  
It is the traveler’s responsibility to communicate any dietary restrictions to a 
sponsoring organization.   
 
According to the Internal Revenue Code, meal costs for same-day travel, even if 
reimbursed by the employer, are a personal expense, not a "business expense," 
which means meal costs for same-day travel are subject to taxation, except as 
noted below: 

 
Meal reimbursements for travel less than 24 hours are nontaxable and non-
reportable when: 

 
i. Travel includes an overnight stay 

 

247



ii. Meals provided to attendees are included as part of a conference 
curriculum or business meeting and must be documented with date, 
duration, place, attendees’ names and purpose of the meeting. 

 
a. Except as otherwise provided in this policy, reimbursement for dinner is 
authorized only when overnight stay is involved or; 
 

i. When the claimant is required to leave residence or headquarters prior 
to 6:00 P.M., or 
 
ii. Upon return from travel, the claimant is reasonably required to arrive at 
residence or headquarters after 7:00 P.M. 

 
b. Employees assigned to NCTPA who are required to attend or hold a meeting 
at which a meal is involved shall be reimbursed for the actual cost of the meal.  
For purposes of this paragraph, meeting meals are defined as those for which 
the primary purpose of the meal was for the conduct of NCTPA business.  
Reimbursement shall be made only upon submission of the appropriate claim 
which shall reflect the date and purpose of the meal for which reimbursement is 
being claimed. 
 
c. With exception provided for Per Diem Allowances, the Executive Director and 
Management Employees shall be reimbursed for actual meal expenditures. 
 

Per Diem Allowances for Meals and Incidentals 
 
Employees and NCTPA staff may claim per diem allowances for meals and 
Incidentals. 
 
Per Diem shall be allowed for each 24-hour period involving overnight stay and 
three meals. 
 
Per Diem allowances shall not be pro-rated and hotel and meal expense claims 
will not be honored for periods in which per diem is claimed. 
 
Per diem allowances shall be tied to the IRS’ published Per Diem Lodging and 
Meals & Incidental Expenses Allowance rates, unless the IRS’ has published a 
specific Per Diem Lodging and Meals and Incidental Expenses Allowance for the 
location of travel then that rate applies.  The IRS publishes the rates in effect for 
the period October 1 through September 30 each year. The rates can be found 
on the U. S. General Services Administration web site: http://www.gsa.gov  
 

Public Transportation 
 

248

http://www.gsa.gov/


The use of public transportation services, i.e., airport shuttle services, is 
encouraged in lieu of taxi or car rental unless availability, cost or employee safety 
dictates otherwise. 
 
Tickets for transportation whether by bus, railroad or airline, may be purchased 
by the individual and reimbursement shall be made upon submission of a proper 
expense claim.  Tickets for transportation may also be purchased and paid for via 
cooperative purchase agreements sponsored by other governmental agencies.  
Alternately, tickets for transportation may be obtained directly from a travel 
agency in which case the travel agency shall submit its claim on an approved 
form.  Unless otherwise provided, only economy class fares will be allowed. 
 

Government rate should be requested when available.  Absent a government rate, the 
lowest available rate should be used.  Airline and other travel reservations should be 
made as far in advance as possible in order to take advantage of available advance 
purchase discounts.  If the cost to purchase a transferable ticket is less than 5% more 
than purchasing a non-transferable ticket, NCTPA staff should purchase the 
transferable ticket. 

 
Expenses of Other Employees  
 
Agency employees may be reimbursed for business expenses incurred for other 
employees provided the specific business reason for the expense is indicated along 
with the names and affiliations of the others involved. This is intended for common 
business travel situations where it is practical for one individual to pay for an expense 
rather than divide it among several individuals (e.g., a restaurant bill for a group of 
employees traveling together). 
 

 When the entire party consists of officials or employees assigned to NCTPA, 
one member of the party may make payment for the meal in which event the 
names of participating employees shall be listed on the expense voucher.  
Reimbursement of such expenses shall be limited to the amount authorized 
by this policy for each employee. 

 
 Taxi and toll bridge fares may be paid by one member of a party and 

submitted on his/her expense account. 
 

 Hotel accommodations occupied by more than one official or employee of the 
NCTPA may be paid by one member of the party in which event the names of 
the involved employees shall be listed on the expense claim. 

 
The Executive Director, management and authorized employees may be reimbursed for 
the cost of meals for non-NCTPA officials doing business with NCTPA in which event 
the names of the participants and the nature of the business must be listed on the 
expense claim.   
 

249



Continuing Education/Training Programs.  
 
Any employee who is required as a condition of employment to maintain licensure and 
who must have continuing education to maintain eligibility to perform their job duties 
and/or maintain licensure shall be reimbursed for meals and mileage and for the actual 
cost of tuition/registration and books/supplies, associated with said educational course 
or training provided such course work or training. Employees should make every effort 
to stay within a 100 mile radius of Napa for this training. 
 
 Any employee who attends other work-related training programs shall be reimbursed 
for the meals and mileage and for the actual cost of registration associated with said 
training.  Training programs are not ongoing educational courses offered by colleges or 
universities for specific degrees, i.e., Masters Certification.   
 
Any travel in excess of a 100-mile radius or overnight stay associated with continuing 
education or training programs must receive prior Executive Director approval. Approval 
may be written or verbal. With such approval, then Paragraph A herein shall apply for 
associated costs. 

 
Employees shall be allowed sufficient leave with pay to meet the minimum continuing 
education/training required.  The allowed leave shall be subject to the convenience of 
NCTPA and the approval of the Executive Director. 

 
The Executive Director must approve training or continuing education prior to 
commencement to ensure that reimbursement of costs associated with continuing 
education or training is within the NCTPA approved budget. 
 
Conventions and Conferences  
 
The Executive Director is authorized to attend any conference or convention within the 
United States. 
 
Except as otherwise provided, all other employees assigned to NCTPA must secure 
prior approval from the Executive Director or his/her designee before attending 
conventions or conferences. 

 
Elected officials’ travel associated with conventions and conferences shall be governed 
by their respective jurisdiction’s travel policy.  NCTPA will only reimburse elected official 
travel if the travel was completed exclusively for NCTPA business.  The elected officials’ 
own jurisdiction's travel policy shall govern reimbursement to that official. 

 
Out of Country Travel  
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this policy, unless otherwise expressly provided 
by law:  
 

250



 All out of country travel by employees assigned to NCTPA, including the 
Executive Director, must receive prior approval from the NCTPA Board.   

 
 All out of country travel by members of the NCTPA Board must receive prior 

approval from the NCTPA Board.   
 

 If time constraints do not allow prior Board approval to be obtained in a timely 
manner, subject to ratification at the next Board of Supervisors meeting: 

 
 The Executive Director may authorize NCTPA Board Member travel. 
 
 The Chair or Vice-Chair of the NCTPA Board may authorize the Executive 

Director’s travel. 
  

Unallowable/Non-reimbursable Expenses 
 
1. Expenses incurred for the sole benefit of an employee shall not be allowed as 
reimbursable travel expenses.  Examples of unallowable expenses include: 
 

a. Any type of insurance not related to rental vehicles. 
 

b. Personal phone calls 
 

c. Personal credit card fees or dues 
 

d. Newspapers, magazines, and other like charges 
 

e. Laundry 
 

f. Barbering 
 

g. Alcoholic beverages 
 

h. Entertainment 
 

i. Gratuities in excess of 15% of the cost of meal(s) unless required through 
contractual arrangement 

 
j. Transportation of personal baggage 

 
k. Any other personal expenses 

 
2. Surface Transportation in Lieu of Air Travel. The excess costs of meals, lodging, 
or other travel expenses incurred as a result of choosing surface transportation instead 
of air travel are not allowable. As stated above, the total travel costs reimbursed may 
not exceed the amount had the services of a commercial airline been used. 

251



3. Meal Provided by a Sponsoring Organization. Meals provided by a sponsoring 
organization will not be reimbursed if the traveler chooses to forego the provided meals. 
 
Travel Expense of Non-Employees 

 
a. Travel by the NCTPA Board.  Except as otherwise provided in this policy, 
travel expenses incurred by the members of the NCTPA Board shall be 
reimbursed consistent with the travel policy from each of the Board member’s 
jurisdiction.  Expenses will only be reimbursed by NCTPA when the travel is 
exclusively for NCTPA business. 

 
b. Expenses of Non-Employee Interns.  Interns assigned and authorized by the 
Executive Director or Management employees to use their private vehicles to conduct 
NCTPA business will be reimbursed, provided the volunteer or intern is enrolled in the 
Napa County Pull Notice Program available through the Department of Motor Vehicles 
and administered by the Napa County Executive Officer/Risk Management Division.  
 
Out-of-Area Travel Request Form 
 
TRAVEL/MILEAGE EXPENSE CLAIM (TME) FORM 
GENERAL TME INSTRUCTIONS 
 
Out of Area Travel Authorization Form 
Travel Expense Reimbursement Form 
 
The TME must be completed in ink, unless electronically printed. Completion of the 
upper portion of the form in its entirety is required.  Submit the signed original with 
supporting documentation within 30 days of travel. Receipts should be arranged in 
chronological order and taped onto an 8 1/2 x 11 sheet of paper. 
 
1. TIME and DATE – Enter numeric day of the month. If departure and return are same 
date, enter departure time above and return time below on the same line. Otherwise, 
use two lines to enter activity. 
 
2. LOCATION – Enter the location where the expenses were incurred. To be eligible for 
lodging and/or meal reimbursement, expenses must be incurred in excess of 25 miles 
from headquarters. 
 
3. MEALS and INCIDENTALS Per Diem and Incidental amounts apply.  Note: all meal 
reimbursement for non-consecutive one day trips are taxable and reportable income 
unless the travel included an overnight stay. 
 
4. LODGING – Enter the actual cost of lodging not to exceed the maximum authorized 
rate, plus tax per day. Each day of lodging must be listed separately on the form. An 
itemized receipt is mandatory. 
 

252

file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/0100_Templates%20and%20Forms/16_Travel/28_Out%20of%20Area%20Travel%20Authorization.xlsx
file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/0100_Templates%20and%20Forms/16_Travel/28_Travel%20Claim%20Form%20rev.%2011-2013.xlsx


5. PURPOSE OF TRIP and MODE OF TRAVEL – Explain the need (purpose) for travel 
and any unusual expenses. Enter details or explanation of items included in above 
columns. The budgetary account code is mandatory and must be included on the form. 
 
7. TRANSPORTATION – The most efficient and least costly mode of transportation 
shall be reimbursed.  
 
Enter the method of transportation used. Enter "A" for commercial airlines, "B" for bus, 
airport shuttle, light rail or BART, "PC" for privately owned vehicle, "R" for railway, "RA" 
for rental aircraft, "RC" for rental vehicle, and "T" for taxi. 
 
Enter carfare, bridge tolls, and parking charges. Enter "C" for carfare, "P" for parking, 
and "T" for tolls. 
 
Original receipts are mandatory for all taxi fares, shuttle fares, bridge and road tolls, 
public ground transportation fares, and parking fees of more than $5. In cases where 
receipts cannot be obtained or have been lost, a statement to that effect shall be made 
in the expense account and the reason given. A statement as to a lost receipt will not be 
accepted for lodging, airfare, rental car, and/or business expenses. For a ticketless 
flight, submit the itinerary. The itinerary includes the same information that would be 
found on a ticket. 
 
Also, the airfare itinerary and the car rental agreement must be attached to the 
TME even when these items are booked and paid through the Agency. 
 
8. BUSINESS EXPENSE – Receipts are mandatory for all business expenses, except 
telephone charges of $2.50 or less. However, all telephone calls must include a 
statement of the party called, place, and business purpose of the call. Record business 
meals/business lodging in this column. 
 
9. TOTAL EXPENSES FOR DAY – Daily total must be entered. 
 
10. SUBTOTALS/TOTAL – Enter column totals (claim should be in balance). 
 
11. MILEAGE RATE CLAIMED – Mandatory for personal car mileage reimbursement. 
 
12. CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION, SIGNATURE AND DATE – Mandatory. 
 
13. SIGNATURE AND DATE OF APPROVING OFFICER – Mandatory. (Each 
employee must have a legitimate and reasonable need to travel before the appropriate 
approval level gives his or her approval. It is inappropriate for an employee to travel 
without this approval. The most reasonable mode of transportation and/or lodging must 
be acquired when traveling. It is the approving officer’s responsibility to ascertain the 
accuracy, necessity and reasonableness of the expenses for which reimbursement is 
claimed.) Print and sign the form and forward the required number of copies to the 
approving authority. 

253



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: March 19, 2014 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Program Manager- Finance 
       (707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 14-09 Authorizing the Procurement of Financing 
Instruments with Pledge of Future Revenues 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board (1) 
authorize the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the Bank of Marin on a 
debt financing instrument and (2) approve Resolution 14-09 (Attachment 1) pledging 
revenues as collateral as a term of funding. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
As NCTPA’s schedule of special projects and enterprise activities continue to grow, 
ensuring adequate cash flow is available for operations becomes more and more 
challenging. Nearly all the agency’s revenue is collected on a reimbursement basis, 
forcing the agency to carry the costs for operating and capital purchases until revenues 
are deposited.  NCTPA is recommending procuring a line of credit for up to $3 million 
that can be used to satisfy short term liquidity needs and to guarantee sufficient 
revenues for on-going operations. 
 
NCTPA received proposals from the Bank of Marin and Mechanics Bank.  The two 
proposals are materially the same but the Bank of Marin’s one-time document fee is 
$250 less than Mechanics Bank and the Bank of Marin does not require that NCTPA 
maintain a deposit account, while Mechanics Bank requires a deposit account for the 
duration of the agreement.  It should be noted that Mechanics Bank does not specify a 
minimum deposit.   
 

 

254



Board Agenda Letter                      Wednesday, April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comments 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes.  As money is borrowed, carrying costs such as interest 
expense will be incurred.  However, the short term debt is expected to be paid as 
reimbursements are delivered to NCTPA which could be offset by reduced costs for 
delivering capital projects more efficiently. 
 
Is it currently budgeted?  No.  Cash is not a budgeted item. 
 
Where is it budgeted?   
 
Is it Mandatory or Discretionary:  Discretionary. 
 
Is the general fund affected?  Yes. 
 
Future fiscal impact: Unknown. Short term financing instruments are only used on an 
as needed basis and will only affect NCTPA’s funds on a current basis. 
 
Consequences if not approved: Liquidity and cash flow issues may delay NCTPA’s 
delivery of projects and services to the public.  
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION  
 
Staff presented this item to NCTPA’s Board of Directors at its meeting on March 19, 
2014.  Board members were generally supportive of the concept but tasked NCTPA 
staff to draft a policy for managing the Line of Credit before it would consider approving 
the proposal.  NCTPA staff has submitted to the Board updated financial policies for 
their approval under Item 9.3 of today’s Board packet, which includes: the Finance and 
Grants chapter of the NCTPA Policies, Practices and Procedures.  
 
  

255



Board Agenda Letter                      Wednesday, April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Specifically, the policy would require that the finance manager prepare a cash flow 
analysis to justify using the financial instrument and requires a minimum of two 
signatures (either the Executive Director or the Chair and the Finance Manager) before 
debt can be incurred.  Borrowing excess of $500,000 would need to be approved by the 
Board in advance of the transaction.  All debt incurred, payments, and interest will be 
reported to the Board as part of its quarterly budget update. 
 
Subsequent to the March Board Meeting, staff was contacted by Mechanics Bank 
asking for re-consideration of their proposal.  Originally, Mechanics Bank was dropped 
from consideration because the employees that staff had been working with at 
Mechanics Bank left and went to the Bank of Marin; consequently staff no longer had 
relationships with the Mechanics Bank. The establishment of a new contact at 
Mechanics Bank resulted in a new proposal from Mechanic’s Bank which was received 
on April 2, 2014. 
 
To insure an equitable procurement process NCTPA staff notified the Bank of Marin that 
Mechanics Bank had submitted new terms but did not disclose the details. This 
prompted the Bank of Marin to resubmit its proposal on April 3, 2014. 
 
NCTPA staff considers both proposals as being sufficient to meet NCTPA’s needs. The 
terms of the proposals are materially the same but the Bank of Marin’s terms offer a 
slightly lower one-time document fee and waive requiring a deposit account.   
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution No. 14-09 

(2) Mechanics Bank Term Sheet Dated March 31, 2014 
(3) Bank of Marin Term Sheet Dated April 2, 2014 

256



ATTACHMENT 1 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.4 

April 16, 2014 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 14-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY (NCTPA) 

AUTHORIZING PROCURMENT OF FINANCING INSTRUMENTS WITH 
BANK OF MARIN (BANK) AND PLEDGE OF FUTURE REVENUES 

 
WHEREAS, the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) is 

designated the countywide transportation planning agency responsible for highway, street and 
road, and transit planning and programming within Napa County; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCTPA may incur debt pursuant to Section 53852 of the California 
Government Code, for any purpose for which NCTPA is authorized to use and expend moneys, 
including but not limited to current expenses, capital expenditures, investment and 
reinvestment, and the discharge of any obligation or indebtedness of the  agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, NCTPA may pledge certain revenues  pursuant to Section 53856 of the 

California Government Code, including any taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts, or other 
moneys of the agency, including moneys deposited in inactive or term deposits, for the payment 
of indebtedness represented by a note or notes or similar debt instrument; and  
 

WHEREAS, NCTPA acknowledges that any note or notes, or similar debt instrument, 
and the interest thereon shall be a first lien and charge against, and shall be payable from the 
first moneys received by NCTPA from such pledged moneys; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCTPA’s projects and programs are funded on a reimbursement basis, 
creating temporary shortage of working capital; and 

 
WHEREAS, NCTPA requires a financial credit facility, consisting of a revolving line of 

credit,  for positive cash flow until grant reimbursements are received; and 
 
WHEREAS, NCTPA wishes to accelerate delivery of transportation and transit projects 

with the use of the financial credit facility provided by the Bank; and 
 
WHEREAS, NCTPA must enter into an agreement with the Bank for the issuance of the 

financial credit facility and to evidence a loan to NCTPA (Debt Instrument Agreement); and 
 
WHEREAS, NCTPA agrees to make payments under the Debt Instrument Agreement in 

sums sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest due on such debt; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. The Board approves entering into a Debt Instrument Agreement with the Bank in 

accordance with the Bank’s Term Sheet attached and further authorizes the 
Executive Director to negotiate, execute and deliver the Debt Instrument 
Agreement subject to the prior approval of NCTPA Legal Counsel.  

  

257



 
Resolution No. 14-09 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

2. The Board acknowledges that if there is a failure to make, as and when due, any 
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest under the Debt 
Instrument Agreement to Bank, it pledges as collateral those funds appropriated 
to NCTPA during the loan term of the Debt Instrument Agreement specified as 
follows:  i) funds from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), ii.) funds from the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), iii.) funds from the Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ),  iv.) funds received pursuant to the California 
Transportation Development Act (Local Transportation Funds (LTF) and State 
Transit Assistance (STA) funds), v.) CalTrans Planning, Programming and 
Monitoring (PPM) funds, and vi.) Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
Regional Measure 2 (RM2) funds, and vii.) Public Transportation, Improvement, 
and Service Enhancement Account Program (PTMISEA-Prop 1B) funds - for all 
future payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest under the Debt 
Instrument Agreement when due and payable, so as to ensure against default on 
such payments; provided however, no moneys encumbered for a special 
purpose are pledged for the payments unless an equivalent amount of the 
proceeds under the Debt Instrument Agreement is set aside for the special 
purpose. The specified funds shall be the sources of payment for the principal, 
premium, if any, and interest due under the Debt Instrument Agreement. 

 

3. That the Board designates the Executive Director, or her designee, to be 
responsible for implementing procedures to monitor post-issuance compliance 
with covenants in any loan agreement between the Bank and NCTPA. 

 
Passed and adopted this 16th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
 
_______________________          Ayes: 
Keith Caldwell, NCTPA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
                   Noes: 
 
 
 
                   Absent: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NCTPA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED:  
 
______________________________ 
Janice Killion, NCTPA Legal Counsel 

258



                        ATTACHMENT 2 

NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.4 

                             April 16, 2014

259



260



261



                        ATTACHMENT 3 

NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.4 

                             April 16, 2014

262



263



264



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Staffing 
Plan 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board (1) 
Approve Resolution No. 14-10 Resolution for Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period 
(Attachment 1); (2) Authorize the Executive Director to hire Eliot Hurwitz, as a part-time 
extra help, limited-term employee, for no more than 960 hours, effective July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015, for the provisions of services related to the preparation of the 
Napa Countywide Transportation Plan – Vision 2040: Moving Napa Forward, in an 
amount not to exceed $53,684; (3) Approve reclassifying the Transportation Engineer 
position from a part-time limited term position to a full-time FLSA exempt position with 
an annual salary range of $84,777-$102,412, and (4) Receive an update on staffing and 
new positions. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Eliot Hurwitz, NCTPA’s Planning Manager, announced his retirement effective June 30, 
2014.  This comes at a challenging time for the agency as it is currently preparing its 25-
year countywide transportation plan.  Eliot’s role as planning manager makes him a 
central figure in the development of that plan.  CalPERS requires that the Board 
approve a resolution for exception to the 180 day wait period so that the agency can 
rehire Eliot to continue to lead the plan to its completion in May 2015.     
 
Eliot’s announcement and the recent retirement of Larry Gawell has prompted 
consideration for staffing changes and organizational restructure.  After assessing 
various functional needs and upcoming projects, it was determined that a full-time 
engineering position is a missing component to the success of the agency and staff is 
recommending that a full-time engineering position be created. 

 

265

mailto:kmiller@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                   Wednesday April 16, 2014 
Board Agenda Item 9.5 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Further, staffing changes will be made in order to fill the gaps left by Eliot and Larry.  
Danielle Schmitz has accepted the position of acting Planning Manager until the 
Planning Manager position is listed in 2015.  Karrie Sanderlin is assuming the role of 
Manager of Administration which will include the responsibility for Procurement in 
addition to her other responsibilities as Human Resource Manager and Board 
Secretary, and Renee Kulick will serve under Karrie in the role of Procurement 
Specialist and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Officer.   
 
Also, several months ago, staff alerted the Board that it received a grant to fund a new 
program which will provide mileage reimbursement to eligible seniors and disabled 
residents to pass through to individuals providing rides to lifeline-type services.  The 
grant funds a part-time position for a period of up to two years.  This position will be 
listed shortly. 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote on the item. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  Yes.  There is a net cost reduction of $174,018 
 
(1) There will be an approximate $155,000 reduction in the annual administrative 

budget (wages and employee benefits) upon the retirement of the current 
Program Manager-Planning (Strategic).  However, as post retirement 
employment is limited to 960 hours per fiscal year, approving the 12 month (960 
hours) contract agreement with Eliot Hurwitz will cost the agency $53,984.  

 
(2) There is approximately at $40,000 increase in the administrative budget to 

reclassify the Transportation Engineer position to a full-time position.  This 
increase includes 1848 additional hours annually plus employee benefits; 
 

(3) Elimination of the Chief Procurement & Compliance Officer position is a reduction 
of $125,000 
 

(4) Additional cost associated with the acting Planning Manager is $11,998 per 
year.  There is no cost associated with the Mileage Reimbursement Program 
Administrator.  Additional cost associated with the assumption of new 
responsibilities by the Manager of Administration and the Procurement 
Specialist/DBE Officer is pending completion of performance review. 

 
 
 

266



Board Agenda Letter                   Wednesday April 16, 2014 
Board Agenda Item 9.5 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
At the February 2014 meeting, the Board approved revising the NCTPA Organizational 
Chart which reflected recent staffing changes, FTA regulatory requirements for 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Civil Rights, and is more consistent with 
the actual functioning of the agency.  With the pending retirement of one employee, and 
to better serve the needs of the agency, staff is requesting that the Board: 
 

(1) Approve Resolution No. 14-10 Resolution for Exception to the 180-day Wait 
Period (Attachment 1).  This resolution is a requirement by the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) when an agency wishes to 
hire a retiree prior to the 180 days wait period between their retirement date 
and hire date.  The agency must certify the nature of the employment and that 
the appointment is necessary to fill a critically needed position before their 
180 days has passed, and the appointment must be approved by the 
governing body of the employer in a public meeting.  The Agency wishes to 
hire Eliot Hurwitz, effective July 1, 2014, for the provision of services related 
to the preparation of the Napa Countywide Transportation Plan – Vision 2040: 
Moving Napa Forward.  

(2) Authorize the Executive Director to hire Eliot Hurwitz, as a part-time extra 
help, limited-term employee, for no more than 960 hours at the hourly rate of 
$55.92, effective July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, for the provision of 
services related to the preparation of the Napa Countywide Transportation 
Plan – Vision 2040: Moving Napa Forward.   

(3) Approve reclassifying the Transportation Engineer position from a part-time 
position to that of a full-time position. 

(4) Receive an update to staffing plan which includes the interim promotion of 
Danielle Schmitz to Interim Planning Manager effective July 1, 2014.  Adds 
procurement responsibilities under Manager of Administration and establishes 
a Procurement Specialist and DBE Position.  Changes further include a part-
time grant-funded position to manage the Mileage Reimbursement Program. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 14-10 

267



ATTACHMENT 1 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.5 

April 16, 2014 

 
 

Resolution No. 14-10 
April 16, 2014 

 
RESOLUTION FOR EXCEPTION TO THE 180-DAY WAIT PERIOD 

GC sections 7522.56 & 21224 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code section 7522.56 the Board of 
Directors of the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) must 
provide CalPERS this certification resolution when hiring a retiree before 180 days has 
passed since his or her retirement date; and 
 

WHEREAS, Eliot Hurwitz, is to retire from the Napa County Transportation and 
Planning Agency in the position of Program Manager-Planning (Strategic) effective June 
30, 2014 and  
 

WHEREAS, section 7522.56 requires that post-retirement employment 
commence no earlier than 180 days after the retirement date, which is December 28, 
2014, without this certification resolution; and  
 

WHEREAS, section 7522.56 provides that this exception to the 180 day wait 
period shall not apply if the retiree accepts any retirement-related incentive; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors, the Napa County Transportation and 
Planning Agency and Eliot Hurwitz certify that Eliot Hurwitz has not and will not receive 
a Golden Handshake or any other retirement-related incentive; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby appoints Eliot Hurwitz as an extra 
help retired annuitant to perform the duties of the Program Manager-Planning for the 
Napa Countywide Transportation Plan - Vision 2040: Moving Napa Forward, for the 
Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency  under Government Code section 
21224, effective July 1, 2014, and  
 

WHEREAS, the entire employment agreement, contract or appointment 
document between Eliot Hurwitz and the Napa County Transportation and Planning 
Agency has been reviewed by this body and is attached herein; and  
 

WHEREAS, no matters, issues, terms or conditions related to this employment 
and appointment have been or will be placed on a consent calendar; and  
 

WHEREAS, the employment shall be limited to 960 hours per fiscal year; and  
 

WHEREAS, the compensation paid to retirees cannot be less than the minimum 
nor exceed the maximum monthly base salary paid to other employees performing 
comparable duties, divided by 173.333 to equal the hourly rate; and  
 

268



 
Resolution No. 14-10 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum base salary for this position is $9,693.00 and the 

hourly equivalent is $55.92 and the minimum base salary for this position is $8,064.00 
and the hourly equivalent is $46.52; and 
 

WHEREAS, the hourly rate paid to Eliot Hurwitz will be $55.92; and  
 

WHEREAS, Eliot Hurwitz has not and will not receive any other benefit, 
incentive, compensation in lieu of benefit or other form of compensation in addition to 
this hourly pay rate; and  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors hereby certifies 
the nature of the appointment of Eliot Hurwitz as described herein and detailed in the 
attached employment agreement/contract/appointment document and that this 
appointment is necessary to fill the critically needed position of Program Manager-
Planning for the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency by July 1, 2014 for 
the provision of services related to the preparation of the Napa Countywide 
Transportation Plan - Vision 2040: Moving Napa Forward 

 
Passed and Adopted the 16th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
________________________        Ayes: 
Keith Caldwell, NCTPA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                   Noes: 
 
 
                   Absent: 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NCTPA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Janice Killion, NCTPA Legal Counsel 

269



April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: ACCEPT AND FILE 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Senior Planner 
(707) 259-5968 / Email: dschmitz@ncpta.net 

SUBJECT: Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment and Growth Strategy: 
May 2014 Update  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the NCTPA Board accept and file the Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment 
and Growth Strategy: May 2014 Update.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
At their April 3rd meeting the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommended the 
NCTPA Board accept and file the PDA IGS report.   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In May 2013, the NCTPA completed a Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment and 
Growth Strategy (IGS) to comply with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 
Plan Bay Area SB 375 requirements.  SB 375 requires the metropolitan areas develop 
strategies that reduce transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions.  The regional 
agencies required that the counties provide periodic updates to their PDA IGS.   
 
The TAC received the draft PDA IGS update at their March and April meetings and 
recommend the NCTPA Board accept and file the May 2014 update.  
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
  

 

270

mailto:dschmitz@ncpta.net


Board Agenda Letter                    Wednesday April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.6 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No  
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
SB 375 requires that the current Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), Plan Bay Area, 
include a Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) which promotes compact, mixed-
use commercial and residential development.  To meet the goals of SB 375 more of the 
future development is planned to be walkable and bikable and close to public transit, 
jobs, schools, shopping, parks, recreation and other amenities.  
 
To help achieve the goals of the SCS, the nine (9) Bay Area counties have gone 
through a self identification process to designated PDAs in their jurisdiction that can 
accommodate a majority of their future growth.  The purpose of a PDA Investment and 
Growth Strategy is to ensure that CMAs understand the opportunities and barriers to 
developing PDAs in the region, in particular what transportation investments should be 
made to best achieve the PDA’s housing goals. 
 
The PDA Investment and Growth Strategy further serves to familiarize NCTPA with the 
transportation needs of the PDAs in Napa County.  This knowledge will help NCTPA to 
program funds, in order to meet PDA housing and job goals.  The first step in the PDA 
process was to prepare an inventory of the PDAs and evaluate the current conditions 
within the PDA, document any planning that has already occurred, and identify the 
planning and capital needs of the PDA.  This initial task was done in May 2013 with the 
idea that the PDA IGS would be a living and working document for NCTPA.  This is the 
first annual update of the PDA IGS document.   
 
Appendix A-6 of the MTC’s Resolution 4035 outlines the details of the Priority 
Development Area Investment and Growth Strategy and the subsequent yearly 
updates.  NCTPA’s May 2014 update is in the form of a memo and touches upon 
current and future work planned for Napa’s PDAs in the areas of housing and 
transportation as well as an assessment of housing policies that will encourage future 
development.  NCTPA staff is asking the NCTPA Board to accept and file this document 
to comply with Resolution 4035.   
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) PDA IGS May 2014 Update  

(2) Resolution 4035 Appendix A-6  

271



ATTACHMENT 1 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.6 

April 16, 2014 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
Date: May 1, 2014 
 
TO: Metropolitan Transportation Commission and Association of Bay 

Area Governments  
 
FROM:  Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency 
 
 
SUBJECT: PDA Investment and Growth Strategy: May 2014 Update  
 
 
Overview:  
The Napa County Priority Development Area Investment and Growth Strategy was 
completed in May 2013.  On November 8, 2013 NCTPA staff joined other CMA staff in 
presenting an overview of their PDA IGS to the MTC Planning committee and ABAG 
Administrative Committee.  The presentation was well received by the committees.    
 
Since that time the PDAs of Napa County have been working on their individual PDA 
development strategies.  The City of American Canyon received $475,000 under the 
MTC Regional PDA Program to put towards its PDA Specific Plan.  The City is currently 
working on retaining a consultant to assist with the specific plan which is scheduled to 
begin in spring 2014.    
 
The City of Napa, which has a specific PDA plan, was awarded $275,000 under the 
MTC Regional PDA Program to perform more specific PDA planning activities.  The City 
will be using the funds to implement an infrastructure financing strategy, parking 
management strategy, and active transportation improvement project.    
 
NCTPA kicked-off its 25-year Countywide Transportation Plan with a Board Retreat held 
on January 15, 2014. The countywide plan will establish transportation goals, 
objectives, and performance measure.  A focus of the transportation plan will be to set 
project and program priorities over the next 25 years.  This plan will also discuss how 
Napa will respond to new policies such as SB 375, which mandate reductions in 
greenhouse gas emissions and vehicle miles traveled. 
 
NCTPA will also focus agency efforts on developing project specific plans and advocacy 
to bring greater attention to the County’s (with focus on the PDAs) infrastructure needs 
and funding challenges.  This will involve coordinating with federal, state, and regional 
partners to prioritize investments in the County’s PDAs.  NCTPA will stay abreast of 
funding and regulatory opportunities and identify financing mechanisms to support 

272



2 
 

sustainable development, and encourage a rich mix of affordable housing and 
employment to remove barriers to PDA development and growth.   
 
The Countywide Plan update will include projects and other improvements for new and 
existing roadways, including highways, major arterials and local streets and roads. It will 
also include public transit, and facilities and programs to support cycling and walking. 
This Plan will contain an update to NCTPA’s Community Based Transportation Plan 
(CBTP) which specifically examines how our transportation system will meet the needs 
for disadvantaged communities.  
 
This plan, scheduled for adoption in May/June 2015, will be complete around the time 
that MTC solicits new projects for the next Bay Area Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP) update and will position Napa County to participate in that exercise based on the 
most up to date local consideration of Napa’s transportation vision, goals and priorities.  
 
American Canyon Update:  
The City of American Canyon expects to release a request for proposal (RFP) for a 
planning consultant to assist with the PDA specific plan by the end of March 2014.  
American Canyon will also be releasing its RFP for its Housing Element update by the 
end of April 2014.   
 
Housing Element Polices  
The City of American Canyon has the following PDA relevant policies and programs that 
encourage affordable housing:   
 

Housing Element Policy/Program 
Summary of progress in 

Implementation and Effectiveness 
Program 2.3.1  To ensure sufficient 
residential capacity is maintained to 
accommodate the RHNA need, the City 
will maintain a formal ongoing project-by-
project evaluation for housing projects 
pursuant to Government Code Section 
65863 (No-Net Loss) for its impact on 
housing supply for multiple income levels. 
Should an approval of commercial 
development result in a reduction of 
capacity within mixed use zones below the 
residential capacity needed to 
accommodate the remaining need for 
lower-income households, the City will 
identify and, if needed, zone sufficient 
sites to accommodate the shortfall. 

No commercial developments have been 
proposed on land that would result in a 
reduction of capacity within mixed use 
zones below the residential capacity 
needed to accommodate the remaining 
need for lower-income households.  No 
further action required by this program is 
necessary. 

  

273



3 
 

  

Program 2.3.2 Maintain City staffing or 
contracted services at levels that are 
adequate to ensure the continued prompt 
consideration of residential development 
applications. 

The City has maintained staffing or 
contracted services at levels that are 
adequate to ensure the continued prompt 
consideration of residential development 
applications by hiring two contract 
planners to process residential projects. 

Policy 2.4.1 Allow flexibility in the type of 
units developed on vacant, residentially 
designated properties in master-planned 
communities and other planned 
developments. 

The zoning code provides flexibility in the 
type of units developed on vacant, 
residentially designated properties in the 
Watson Ranch master-planned 
communities by requiring a Specific Plan. 

Policy 2.4.2 Require larger projects to 
include a mix of housing types. 

The General Plan requires a variety of 
housing types including single family 
attached and detached townhouses, 
condominiums, mixed-use and apartments 
in the Town Center (Watson Ranch) 
project which is the largest un-built project 
in the City. 

Program 2.10.1 To promote the 
development of affordable housing units, 
the City will promote housing opportunities 
and assist developers and  property 
owners with the consolidation of lots and 
the construction of affordable housing 
through the following actions: 

a. Selling City owned land at a 
reduced cost to developers to build 
affordable housing through a 
Request for Proposals process.   

This was accomplished with the Valley 
View affordable senior housing project in 
the PDA. 

Program 2.10.2 Discourage proposals for 
residential down-zonings or 
reclassifications of residentially designated 
property to nonresidential uses that would 
impact the City’s potential to meet its 
Quantified Objectives for affordable 
housing.  Any proposal must demonstrate 
adequate alternatives and methods that 
would help minimize and mitigate any loss 
in potential housing for multiple income 
groups. 

No proposals for residential down-zonings 
or reclassifications of residentially 
designated property to nonresidential uses 
that would impact the City’s potential to 
meet its Quantified Objectives for 
affordable housing have been received 
during the reporting period. 

  

274



4 
 

  

Policy 2.11.1 Use federal, state, local and 
private funding assistance, to the extent 
that these opportunities exist, and are 
appropriate to American Canyon’s needs, 
to encourage the development of 
affordable housing. 

The City recently received a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG )funding 
for a low income housing rehabilitation 
program and Surface Transportation 
Program (STP) Federal Funds to develop 
a specific plan for the City’s Priority 
Development Area which will include a 
significant amount of housing opportunities 
for lower income residents. 

Program 2.11.1 Continue to partner with 
the City of Napa Housing Authority or 
similar entity to take advantage of 
administrative resources and receive a 
reasonable share of federal, state and 
private funding for housing. Housing 
Authority administered programs that City 
residents will continue to benefit from 
include the Rental Assistance and Section 
8 Programs; programs in the foreseeable 
future may include CDBG funds. 

The City is completing the second year of 
a two-year contract with the City of Napa 
Housing Authority to take advantage of 
administrative resources and receive a 
reasonable share of federal, state and 
private funding for housing. Housing 
Authority administered programs that City 
residents will continue to benefit from 
include the Rental Assistance and Section 
8 Programs; programs in the foreseeable 
future may include CDBG funds. 

Program 2.13.1 Require all residential 
projects of ten or more above moderate-
income units to include affordable units. 
 

The City is not currently able to require all 
residential projects of ten or more above 
moderate-income units to include 
affordable units because of the Palmer 
lawsuit that invalidated Inclusionary zoning 
ordinance programs.  A new program that 
complies with Palmer is planned for the 
next year but is not yet in place. 

 
Development  
Transportation: Transportation Projects underway or planned for in the American 
Canyon PDA include: 

 Napa Junction Elementary Pedestrian Program which consists of installing 
sidewalks on Napa Junction Road which is adjacent to City Hall and the Napa 
Junction Elementary School.   This project is currently under construction.  

 Theresa Avenue Sidewalk Improvements Phase 3 consists of various sidewalk 
improvements along Theresa Avenue.  This project will go out for bid in March 
2014.   

 Eucalyptus Drive Complete Street Improvements consist of extending Eucalyptus 
Drive 1,500 feet west of Hwy 29 and south from Los Altos to Rio del Mar.  This 
project will extend the road and provide complete street areas for pedestrians 
(sidewalks and paths) and cyclist (class I and II bike facilities) into the American 
Canyon PDA at the intersection of Eucalyptus Dr. and Hwy 29 by realigning 
Eucalyptus Dr. from Theresa Rd. to intersect with Hwy 29.   This project is 

275



5 
 

programmed through the Regional Transportation Improvement Program to 
receive construction funds in FY 18/19.   

 The SR 29 Gateway Corridor Study will be complete in spring 2014 and provide 
a roadmap for future transportation infrastructure development along the Hwy 29 
Corridor.  The study will also address much needed bicycle and pedestrian 
infrastructure along the corridor.   
 

Housing: Within the PDA the City has an application for 180 apartments at the north-
east corner of Napa Junction Road/SR-29 and 120 apartments at the north-west corner 
of Silver Oak/American Canyon Road.  The Planning Commission also approved 70 
affordable senior housing apartments on Theresa Avenue.   
 
City of Napa Update: 
The City of Napa is actively working on reviewing their housing element policies and 
programs that support PDA development and is on target to complete its Housing 
Element update in fall 2014.  

2009 Housing Element Policy/Program 
Title  Ref. # and Brief Description of 

Program 

Summary of progress in 
Implementation and Effectiveness 

1.B  Future Land Use Planning.   
Address long term housing needs through 
Specific Plans or other land use plan 
updates, targeting Downtown, major 
transportation corridors near services, 
large sites and sites identified for 
potential future change. 

Objective met.  The Downtown Napa 
Specific Plan was adopted in June 2012 
(O2012 4; related resolutions).  This Plan 
addressed several of the potential future 
change sites identified in 2009 HE Figure 
6.9, and identified sites for 500-600 units 
long term.  The Plan also reduced 
Downtown residential parking standards. 

1.F  Market Analyses. During Specific 
Plans & similar planning efforts, analyze 
housing and job types, numbers and 
incomes and develop strategies to 
improve linkages between housing and 
employment development. 

Objective being met.  The Downtown 
Specific Plan adopted in 2012 analyzed 
future jobs and housing potential to assure 
that there are substantial and varied 
housing opportunities as well as 
employment development planned for and 
permitted by the Downtown Plan. 

1.I  Housing Sites Study. Complete 
housing sites analysis for surplus or 
potentially surplus institutional lands and 
follow-up actions, such as prioritizing 
sites for purchase. 

Objective partly met.  A citywide Housing 
Sites Study of all institutional lands 
(city/non city) has not been completed.  
However, the City completed a review of 
its Downtown land assets in part to inform 
the 2009-2012 Downtown Specific Plan 
effort. Certain City owned sites are 
identified in the Downtown Plan and 
Housing Element as potential housing 
opportunity sites. County offices on First 
Street are also identified in the Downtown 
Plan as having potential for future 

276



6 
 

residential mixed uses.  Other surplus City 
sites are also included in the Housing 
Element sites list. 

2.A  Added Multi Family Sites. 
Complete sites study before Housing 
Element to identify other potential sites 
for multi-family use, or where increased 
densities may be appropriate.   

Objective generally met.  The 2012 
Downtown Plan conducted a sites analysis 
for that Plan area increasing the housing 
potential in the Downtown, and including 
higher densities in the Downtown Core.    
Higher minimum densities were also 
adopted citywide in the city’s mixed use 
areas and on certain multi-family sites in 
2009.   
 
Early analysis of sites for the 2015-2023 
Housing Element update indicated that 
added sites are not needed to meet state 
standards, and that current densities are 
high enough to meet housing needs at all 
income levels (as evidenced by recent 
mixed income and lower income 
apartment approvals) and state criteria. 
 
 

2009 Housing Element Policy/Program 
Title  Ref. # and Brief Description of 

Program 

Summary of progress in 
Implementation and Effectiveness 

3.L  Transportation Element 
Amendment.  City shall proposed 
stronger General Plan policy[ies] and 
program[s] to strengthen concurrency of 
new development with infrastructure, 
particularly streets. 

Objective partly addressed.  The 2012 
Downtown Specific Plan Implementation 
Chapter identifies measures to be taken to 
develop infrastructure improvement fees 
(and other approaches) to improve their 
coordination with new development.  City 
has received PDA planning grant funds to 
complete such a program.   
 
The General Plan Transportation Element 
already contains policy to implement 
improvements to accommodate future 
development (T1.3, T1.5), and all Napa 
County jurisdictions passed a sales tax 
measure to improve funding for road 
maintenance beginning in 2018. 

  

277



7 
 

5.N  Community Outreach 
Increase community outreach and 
education by: 
 
c.  Using Downtown Plan and others to 
create broad based visions that include 
housing opportunities;  
 

The Downtown Plan conducted extensive 
community outreach – including a broad 
based committee, web surveys, “partner 
groups”, workshops, etc. in creating a 
vision for Downtown that includes 
substantial housing opportunities. 

5.R  Public/Private Partnerships 
Encourage use of private resources to 
help meet identified housing needs. 

Objectives met.  Housing impact fees 
collected from private development 
projects are being used to meet identified 
housing needs.  Local non-profits (in 
particular the Vintners Association and 
Gasser Foundation) have provided 
significant funding towards meeting 
affordable housing needs.  Further, private 
volunteers on committees, such as such 
as for the Downtown Specific Plan and 
Affordable Housing Task Force provide 
valuable assistance.  
 

 
Development  
Transportation: Transportation projects underway or planned for in the City of Napa 
include:  

 California Roundabouts consists of constructing roundabouts at the intersections 
of First Street and California Boulevard and Second Street and California to 
better manage traffic congestion.  The Roundabouts are being funded by OBAG 
and RTIP funds and are scheduled to be constructed in FY 16-17.   

 Silverado Trail Five-way intersection improvements will provide intersection 
geometry improvements, lane widening, travel lane reconfiguration, and signal 
modification.   The Silverado Trail five-way intersection is programmed to receive 
RTIP funds for construction in FY 17-18.   

 Saratoga Drive Extension has been recently complete to include access to the 
new housing development that includes 27 affordable units at the Anton Napa 
site.  

 The California North/South Bike Lane project will provide class II bike lanes 
along California Boulevard between Pueblo Avenue and Permanente Way.  This 
project fills a missing gap of continuous class II that connects to the Napa PDA.  
Construction on this project will begin in spring 2014.  

 The Napa Bike Path Undercrossing will provide critical east-west bicycle and 
pedestrian access and safe crossing of SR 29.    The project will also provide 
transportation connectivity to the Napa PDA.   The Napa Undercrossing is 
currently in the design phase.  

278



8 
 

 The Tulocay Creek Bridge and Trail project was recently awarded construction 
funds to complete this critical link to the Vine Trail.  The project will complete a 
portion of the class I path that parallels the Napa River from Third Street to the 
Napa College.  This project travels right through the heart of Napa’s PDA.     

 
Housing: Within or in proximate access to the PDA the following housing projects are 
underway:  

 Anton Napa located at 190 Silverado Trail consists of 134 multi-family apartment 
units – including 27 units affordable to lower income households.  Construction 
on this project has recently been completed and certificate of occupancy has 
been issued.  The project is now open for tenants.   

 The Tulocay Village Apartments located on 467 Soscol Avenue consist of 483 
multi-family apartment units.  The application was submitted for required land use 
entitlements but no Planning Commission hearing date has been set. The City of 
Napa is seeking commitment from the developer to provide 10% of the units as 
affordable, approximately 48 units.  

 Black Elk Mixed-Use project is located on 728 First Street is a three story mixed-
use building with 5,500 square feet of retail on ground floor, 4,500 square feet of 
office on second floor, and 3 residential condominiums on third floor.  The project 
includes a proposed sub-grade “tuck-under” structured parking below the ground 
floor.  An application has been submitted for required land use entitlements and 
the Planning Commission is scheduled to review the project on March 6, 2014. 

 
Next Steps:  
 
Communities of Concern 
In the coming year, one main area of focus for NCTPA will be defining Communities of 
Concern (COC) for Napa County.  This will be crucial in securing future transportation 
funding for the Napa region.   Language in the Active Transportation Program 
Guidelines states the following:  
 
For a project to contribute toward the Disadvantaged Communities funding requirement, 
the project must clearly demonstrate a benefit to a community that meets any of the 
following criteria: 

 The median household income is less than 80% of the statewide median based 
on the most current census tract level data from the American Community 
Survey. Data is available at 
http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml. 
 

 An area identified as among the most disadvantaged 10% in the state according 
to latest versions of the California Communities Environmental Health Screening 
Tool (CalEnviroScreen) scores. Scores are available at 
http://oehha.ca.gov/ej/ces11.html. 
 

 At least 75% of public school students in the project area are eligible to receive 
free or reduced price meals under the National School Lunch Program. Data is 

279

http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml
http://oehha.ca.gov/ej/ces11.html


9 
 

available at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/sd/sd/filessp.asp. Applicants using this 
measure must indicate how the project benefits the school students in the project 
area or, for projects not directly benefiting school students, explain why this 
measure is representative of the larger community. 
 

It also appears that Communities of Concern will play a role in how Cap and Trade 
funds are distributed.  MTC released a draft Cap and Trade funding framework which 
includes language that states, “All Investment Categories should include funding that 
benefits disadvantaged communities.  The Communities are defined as MTC’s 
Communities of Concern.”   
 
MTC/ABAG has not identified any COCs in Napa County.  Currently MTC/ABAG 
determine Communities of Concern using eight specific factors.  According to 
MTC/ABAG, COCs are defined as census tracts having concentrations of four or more 
factors listed below, or that have concentrations of both low-income and minority 
populations.1   
 

Disadvantage Factor % of Regional Population Concentration Thresholds 
1. Minority Population  53% 70% 
2. Low Income (< 200% 

of Poverty) Population  23% 30% 

3. Limited English 
Proficiency Population  9% 20% 

4. Zero Vehicle 
Households  9% 10% 

5. Seniors 75 and older 6% 10% 
6. Population with a 

Disability 18% 25% 

7. Single-Parent Families  14% 20% 
8. Cost-burdened Renters 10% 15% 

 
Even though MTC/ABAG do not recognize any COCs in Napa County, there are still 
pockets of disadvantage communities that should be acknowledged.   A recent Stanford 
Study, The California Poverty Measure: A New Look at the Social Safety Net, ranked 
Napa County as having one of the highest poverty rates in California.  This was based 
on a new methodology called the California Poverty Measure (CPM) which takes into 
account social safety net programs received by individuals in a county, and factors in 
housing costs.  This new methodology placed Napa in the “high cost county” category 
and also gave Napa County the second highest CPM rate, only behind Los Angeles 
County.  The Stanford Study also shows Napa having the largest threshold between the 

                                            
1 Appendix A to Plan Bay Area Equity Analysis  

280

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/sd/sd/filessp.asp


10 
 

Original Poverty Measure (OPM) and Stanford’s poverty measure, the California 
Poverty Measure (CPM).2   
 
Further analysis will need to be completed by NCTPA and the regional agencies to 
establish an acceptable COC measure to address the specific challenges of Napa 
County.  NCTPA has already started this process.   
  
Countywide Plan 
The next steps for the Countywide Plan are reaffirming the goals of the Countywide 
Plan with the NCTPA Board, creating the Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC), and 
preparing a projects and program inventory.  The CAC will consist of a member from 
each jurisdiction in Napa County as well as other community stakeholders.  NCTPA 
staff will be working on a series of Issue Papers over the coming months that will cover 
several different topics of the Countywide Plan, including land use and development 
which will include a PDA analysis.  NCTPA will also be working on prioritizing 
transportation investments with the jurisdictions.  This prioritized list of transportation 
projects should be complete by spring 2015 in time for the Bay Area RTP call for 
projects. 
 

                                            
2 The California Poverty Measure: A Portrait of Poverty within California Counties and Demographic 
Groups; The Stanford Center of Poverty and Inequality 
http://www.stanford.edu/group/scspi/poverty/cpm/CPMBrief_CPI.pdf  

281

http://www.stanford.edu/group/scspi/poverty/cpm/CPMBrief_CPI.pdf


Appendix A-6: PDA Investment & Growth Strategy 
 
MTC shall consult with the CMAs and amend the scope of activities identified below, as necessary, to minimize 
administrative workload and to avoid duplication of effort.  This consultation may result in specific work 
elements shifting to MTC and/or ABAG.  Such changes will be formalized through a future amendment to this 
appendix. 
 
The purpose of a PDA Investment & Growth Strategy is to ensure that CMAs have a transportation project 
priority-setting process for OBAG funding that supports and encourages development in the region’s PDAs, 
recognizing that the diversity of PDAs will require different strategies.  Some of the planning activities noted 
below may be appropriate for CMAs to consider for jurisdictions or areas not currently designated as PDAs if 
those areas are still considering future housing and job growth.  Regional agencies will provide support, as 
needed, for the PDA Investment & Growth Strategies.  The following are activities CMAs need to undertake in 
order to develop a project priority-setting process: 
 
(1) Engaging Regional/Local Agencies  
• Develop or continue a process to regularly engage local planners and public works staff. Encourage 

community participation throughout the planning process and in determining project priorities 
• Participate as a TAC member in local jurisdiction planning processes funded through the regional PDA 

Planning Program or as requested by jurisdictions.  Partner with MTC and ABAG staff to ensure that 
regional policies are addressed in PDA plans. 

• Help develop protocols with MTC, ABAG and Air District staff to assess toxic-air contaminants and 
particulate matter, as well as related mitigation strategies, as part of regional PDA Planning Program. 

 
(2) Planning Objectives – to Inform Project Priorities   
• Keep apprised of ongoing transportation and land-use planning efforts throughout the county  
• Encourage local agencies to quantify infrastructure needs and costs as part of their planning processes 
• Encourage and support local jurisdictions in meeting their housing objectives established through their 

adopted Housing Elements and RHNA.    

o Short-term: By May 1, 2013, analyze progress of local jurisdictions in implementing their housing 
element objectives and identify current local housing policies that encourage affordable housing 
production and/or community stabilization. 

o Long-term: Starting in May 2014 and for subsequent updates, PDA Investment & Growth Strategies 
will assess performance in producing sufficient housing for all income levels through the RHNA 
process and, where appropriate, assist local jurisdictions in implementing local policy changes to 
facilitate achieving these goals1.  The locally crafted policies should be targeted to the specific 
circumstances of each PDA. For example, if the PDA currently does not provide for a mix of income-
levels, any recommend policy changes should be aimed at promoting affordable housing.  If the PDA 
currently is mostly low-income housing, any needed policy changes should be aimed at community 
stabilization.  This analysis will be coordinated with related work conducted through the Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) grant awarded to the region in fall 2011. 

 
(3) Establishing Local Funding Priorities - Develop funding guidelines for evaluating OBAG projects that 
support multi-modal transportation priorities based on connections to housing, jobs and commercial activity.  
Emphasis should be placed on the following factors when developing project evaluation criteria:  

1 Such as inclusionary housing requirements, city-sponsored land-banking for affordable housing production, “just cause 
eviction” policies, policies or investments that preserve existing deed-restricted or “naturally” affordable housing, condo 
conversion ordinances that support stability and preserve affordable housing, etc. 

                        ATTACHMENT 2 

NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.6 

                             April 16, 2014

282



May 17, 2012 
Attachment A, MTC Resolution No. 4035 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
New Federal Surface Transportation Authorization Act, Cycle 2 Program  
Project Selection Criteria and Programming Policy  Page 2 of 2 

 

• Projects located in high impact project areas. Key factors defining high impact areas include: 
a. Housing – PDAs taking on significant housing growth in the SCS (total number of units and 

percentage change), including RHNA allocations, as well as housing production 
b. Jobs in proximity to housing and transit (both current levels and those included in the SCS), 
c. Improved transportation choices for all income levels (reduces VMT), proximity to quality transit 

access, with an emphasis on connectivity (including safety, lighting, etc.) 
d. Consistency with regional TLC design guidelines or design that encourages multi-modal access: 

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/planning/smart_growth/tlc/2009_TLC_Design_Guidelines.pdf 
e. Project areas with parking management and pricing policies  

• Projects located in Communities of Concern (COC) – favorably consider projects located in a COC 
see: http://geocommons.com/maps/110983 

• PDAs with affordable housing preservation and creation strategies – favorably consider projects in 
jurisdictions with affordable housing preservation and creation strategies or policies 

• PDAs that overlap with Air District CARE Communities and/or are in proximity to freight 
transport infrastructure – Favorably consider projects located in PDAs with highest exposure to 
particulate matter and toxic air contaminants where jurisdictions employ best management practices to 
mitigate exposure.  

 
Process/Timeline 
CMAs develop PDA Investment & Growth Strategy June 2012 – May 2013 
PDA Investment & Growth Strategy Presentations by CMAs to Joint 
MTC Planning and ABAG Administrative Committee  

Summer/Fall 2013 

CMAs amend PDA Investment & Growth Strategy to incorporate 
follow-up to local housing production and policies 

May 2014 

CMAs submit annual progress reports related to PDA Growth 
Strategies, including status of jurisdiction progress on 
development/adoption of housing elements and complete streets 
ordinances. 

May 2014, Ongoing 

 
 
 
 
J:\SECTION\ALLSTAFF\Resolution\RESOLUTIONS\MTC Resolutions\RES-4035_Attach-A.doc 

283

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/planning/smart_growth/tlc/2009_TLC_Design_Guidelines.pdf


 

April 16, 2014 
NCTPA Agenda Item 9.7 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: INFORMATION/ACTION 

 
 

NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 

REPORT BY:  Kate Miller, Executive Director  
(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nctpa.net 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update and State Bill Matrix 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA) Board receive the 
monthly Federal and State Legislative Update. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Board will receive a Federal legislative update.  The board will also receive a State 
legislative update (Attachment 1) from Platinum Advisors.  A copy of the bill matrix 
(Attachment 2) is also attached.  Staff had intended to bring new legislation for the 
Board’s consideration but many of the bills that could have critical effects on agency 
operations were still spot bills.  These bills will be further developed in May, and staff 
will bring the bills back to the Board for at its May meeting.   
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comment 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  No. 
  

 

284

mailto:kmiller@nctpa.net


Board Agenda Letter                        Wednesday April 16, 2014 
Board Agenda Item 9.7 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
Federal Update 
 
There is no Federal Update this month. 
 
State Update 
See attached report and bill matrix from Platinum Advisors. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) April 1, 2014 State Legislative Update (Platinum Advisors) 

(2) Bill Matrix 
 

285



ATTACHMENT 1 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.7 

April 16, 2014 

 

 

 

 

April 1, 2014 

 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
 Napa County Transportation Planning Agency 

FR: Steve Wallauch 
 Platinum Advisors 

RE: Legislative Update          

 
On Friday, the Senate voted 28-1 to suspend the three lawmakers who have been embroiled in 
legal woes distracting the body and the public from the normal business of the Legislature.  
Senator Leland Yee from San Francisco shocked his colleagues last week when he was indicted 
on gun trafficking charges.  You may recall that last year he received a letter threatening his life 
over his legislation to make gun laws stricter. On the Senate floor on Friday, Republicans were 
irritated that Senate Pro Tem Steinberg had delayed a vote on suspending Senators Ron 
Calderon and Rod Wright for several weeks after Republicans had been requesting the body 
take action.  As a result, many of the Republicans chose to abstain from voting. The lawmakers 
will receive pay during their suspension, although Steinberg is attempting to remedy that issue 
by introducing a constitutional amendment to allow the Legislature the power to hold 
suspended lawmaker’s pay as well. 
State Budget: 

Senate Budget Sub 2 on Transportation – The Senate Budget Subcommittee #2, chaired by 
Senator Jim Beal reviewed and took action on the non-controversial transportation items 
included in the Governor’s budget.  This included approving the appropriation of $963 million in 
Prop 1B bond funds, and the transfer of $4 million from the Local Airport Loan Account to the 
local airport grant program.  The Assembly Budget Subcommittee #3 is scheduled to review the 
transportation budget on April 2nd. 

One of the items held open by Senate Sub 2 was the Governor’s proposed early repayment of 
$349 million in loans to transportation programs.  The Governor’s budget proposes to allocate 
the bulk of these funds to the SHOPP ($110 million), traffic management ($100 million), and 
local streets and roads ($100 million).  CSAC is advocating for a greater share of the funds for 
local streets and roads based on the formula on how the funds were taken.  Under the gas tax 
swap formula these funds should be allocate 44% to STIP, 44% local streets and roads, and 22% 
to SHOPP.  Under this calculation, cities and counties should receive nearly $150 million of the 
repaid funds. 

286



2 

 

 

Senate Budget Subcommittee #4 on Local Government Finance:  Senate Sub 4 held a primarily 
informational hearing on several local government funding programs.  In particular, the 
Committee reviewed the Governor’s proposal on reforming the use of Infrastructure Financing 
Districts (IFDs).  IFDs are a form of tax increment financing.   

With the demise of redevelopment financing, IFDs have been seen as a possible replacement 
for financing local economic development projects.  Overall, the Committee agreed with the 
LAO’s position that stringent auditing should be in place, but it should not be overseen by the 
Department of Finance.  In addition, concerns were expressed about the conditions the 
Governor’s proposal would impose before a local government is eligible to create an IFD.  These 
conditions include having received a finding of completion in the RDA wind-down process, 
compliance with all the State Controller’s audit findings, and have no outstanding RDA related 
lawsuits. 

Of particular note in the budget staff’s review of this issue is the suggestion of state support for 
economic development projects.  The analysis mentions that an argument can be made for 
state assistance for projects with a regional or statewide benefit, or projects that benefit 
schools.  No specific funding proposal was provided but potential sources ranged from state 
grants and loans to potentially dedicating a greater share of the property tax increment.  In 
prior legislation, the state has allowed an IFD to collect the growth on the ERAF share if the 
project meets certain economic benefits and is approved by the State Infrastructure Bank. 

 

LAO Review of Transportation Proposals – The LAO released its analysis of the Governor’s 
proposed transportation budget.  The findings and recommendation made by the LAO include 
the following: 

 Loan Repayment:  The Governor’s budget includes a $337 million payment, which 
represents a portion of the general fund loans owed the State Highway Account.  The 
LAO questions whether the proposed use of the repaid funds is the most cost effective 
approach.  Of the amount repaid, $100 million is directed to cities and counties for local 
streets and roads projects.  In particular, the LAO urges the Legislature to consider 
whether the $100 million dedicated to cities and counties would be better spent on 
repairs to the state highway system. 

 High Speed Rail:  The LAO recommends withholding funding on High Speed Rail until the 
Administration provides a funding plan that identifies all funding sources that will be 
used to close the $21 billion shortfall facing the initial operating segment, including 
identifying how much Cap & Trade revenue will be used.  In addition, the LAO urges the 
Legislature to consider a full array of option for the Cap & Trade funds. 

 
LAO Review of the Governor’s IFD Proposal:  The LAO released its review of the Governor’s 
proposal to expand the use of Infrastructure Financing Districts (IFDs) for local economic 
development purposes.  The Governor proposes to allow cities and counties to create an IFD 
with the approval of 55% of the residents within the proposed district, and the District may 
fund projects ranging from housing to commercial facilities and projects aimed at meeting 

287



3 

 

sustainable communities goals.  The LAO recommends the Legislature consider the following 
variations to the Governor’s proposal: 

 Reject the authority for the Department of Finance to audit the new IFDs, and instead 
adopt independent audit requirements. 

 Reject the Governor’s proposed 55% voter approval of the project area residents, and 
instead require a 55% voter approval of the entire city. Or, establish a process that 
eliminates the need for a public vote by creating IFDs that are separate legal entities 
that are substantially similar to a JPA in terms of issuing debt. 

 Reject the Governor’s proposal to require cities and counties to meet specific 
requirements before creating an IFD.  The Governor’s proposal would require every city 
or county to have been issued a finding of completion for its RDA dissolution process, 
has implemented all finding in the State Controller’s audit of the RDA dissolution 
process, and has no RDA dissolution lawsuits pending against the state. 

 
Policy 
 
AB 32 Scoping Plan Update:  On March 14th the Air Board posted the Environmental Analysis of 
the proposed AB 32 Scoping Plan Update.  This starts the clock ticking on the 45 day comment 
period, which will be the last chance to submit comments prior to the Board’s adoption.  To 
receive a written response and consideration by the Board, the deadline to submit comments is 
April 28th at 5:00 p.m. The Board is scheduled consider approving the proposed Scoping Plan 
Update at its meeting on May 22 in Sacramento.  The draft Update and appendices can be 
found at:  
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/document/updatedscopingplan2013.htm 
 
Also posted on March 14th were the focus group appendices to the Scoping Plan Update.  In 
particular Appendix C contains the overview and recommendations for the transportation 
sector.  The transportation Appendix provides an overview of current activities as well as 
transportation planning goals for beyond 2035.  It also includes a list of policy 
recommendations to be pursued over the next 5 years.  These recommendations range from 
affordable housing to Caltrans working with local agencies to shift the emphasis from highway 
expansion to maintaining the existing system and expanding transit and active transportation 
options.  In addition, the recommendations include priorities for freight transportation such as 
the development of the Sustainable Freight Strategy and the continued development of 
advanced technology demonstration projects.  The transportation appendix can be found here: 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/2013_update/transportation.pdf 
 
Legislation 
Mileage Based User Fees:  Senator Mark DeSaulnier has introduced SB 1077, which directs the 
Department of Motor Vehicles to develop and implement a pilot program designed to assess 
the use of a vehicle miles travelled fee, now commonly referred as a Mileage Based User Fee 
(MBUF).  The introduction of this bill follows a recent CTC discussion on this topic and the 
urgent need to reexamine how California funds its highway system.  In addition, Caltrans has 

288

http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/document/updatedscopingplan2013.htm
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/2013_update/transportation.pdf


4 

 

started an internal review examining MBUF programs in Oregon and Washington and how 
those efforts could be implemented in California. 
 
County Sales Tax:  Assemblyman Mark Stone has introduce AB 2119 that would allow a county 
board of supervisors to place a measure on the ballot to impose a local sales tax either 
countywide, or apply only in the unincorporated area of the county.  Current law limits the 
application of a county sales tax to the entire county.   
 
Park & Ride Lot Relinquishment:  Senator Lois Wolk has introduced SB 1368 in order to address 
an issue in Solano County.  This measure applies statewide and would authorize the California 
Transportation Commission to approve the relinquishment of a state owned park & ride lot to a 
Joint Powers Authority formed for the purpose of providing transportation services.  Current 
law limits the relinquishment to a county transportation commission or regional transportation 
planning agency. 
 
Green Stickers:  Assemblyman Al Muratsuchi has introduced AB 2013.  This measure would 
double from 40,000 stickers to 85,000 stickers that the state can issue to specified vehicles that 
grant unrestricted use of HOV lanes.  This would allow more owners of Volts, plug-in Prius, and 
others to access HOV lanes without meeting the occupancy requirement.   
 
Point of Sale:  Senator Ed Hernandez has introduced SB 983 which clarifies the point of sale 
location for purchasing fuel at card lock fuel sites.  This bill would clarify that the point of sale is 
the location of the card lock facility where the fuel dispensed and not the location of the 
business entity that operates the card lock facility.   
 
No Weight Fees for Bond Debt:  Over the past week a few more bills were amended that would 
end the practice of using vehicle weight fees to fund the debt payment on transportation 
bonds.  In order to address a staggering deficit, the Gas Tax Swap was created as a roundabout 
means to use transportation funds to relieve the general fund of transportation bond debt 
payments.  With a much brighter economic outlook, many believe it is time revisit ending the 
use transportation funds for general obligation bond debt.  This was originally included on the 
Assembly Republican transportation package, but is has expanded to become a bipartisan issue.  
The following are the bill in print so far: 
 

 AB 2651 (Linder):  This bill would, starting on January 1, 2016, prohibit the use of truck 
weight fee as the source of debt payments for transportation bonds.  This would free-up 
about $900 million for transportation projects. 

 AB 2728 (Perea):  This bill would, until January 1, 2019, prohibit the transfer of 
transportation funds to the Transportation Debt Service Fund, and prohibit these funds 
from being loaned to the general fund.  AB 2728 would only provide relief for the next 
four years, unless extended by the Legislature. 

 SB 1418 (DeSaulnier):  This bill would also end the practice of using transportation funds 
for debt service payments.  SB 1418 makes ALL of the amendments to numerous code 
sections in order to unequivocally end this practice. 

289



5 

 

 
Republican Transportation Proposal:  A couple more pieces to the Assembly Republican 
Caucus’s transportation proposal were unveiled last week.  The package appears to be slightly 
scaled back because none of the measures change how the diesel fuel taxes are allocated, 
which means no impact to public transit funding.  However, an additional round of 
amendments could change that.  The new bills include the following:   

 AB 2652 (Linder):  This bill would require up to $2.5 billion in unanticipated revenue to 
be used to repay all remaining debts owed to transportation accounts.  Unanticipated 
revenue would be what remains of any surplus after schools and other mandated 
programs receive their allotment.  AB 2652 specifies that 50% of the unanticipated 
revenue, not to exceed $2.5 billion, would be appropriated to cities and counties for 
local street and road projects.  The allocation to cities and counties would be based on 
the existing “HUTA” formula.  The remaining 50% would be deposited into the Budget 
Stabilization Account. 

 AB 2653 (Linder):  This bill would redirect the “non-Article 19” funds from the 
Transportation Debt Service Fund and allocate these funds to the STIP (44%), SHOPP 
(12%), and cities and counties (44%).  AB 2653 would also direct all of the 17 cent excise 
tax that was added to gasoline sales as part of the Gas Tax Swap to cities and counties 
for local street and road projects.  These funds would be allocated based on the HUTA 
formula whereby 50% of the funds are allocated to cities on a per capita basis, and 50% 
is allocated to counties based on 75% on the number of registered vehicles and 25% on 
the number of county maintained road miles. 

 
Cap & Trade Legislation:  There have been numerous bills introduced relating to Cap & Trade 
funding programs.  Many are spot bills and others are unlikely to move, but there are several 
viable proposals that will be heard in the next few weeks.  The following is a quick summary of 
the higher profile bills. 
 

 AB 1970 (Gordon):  AB 1970 is the continuation of Assemblyman Gordon’s effort to 
establish a local government funding program using cap & Trade revenue that started 
last year with AB 413.  This proposal would create the Community Investment and 
Innovation Program at the Strategic Growth Council.  The program would receive cap-
and-trade auction revenue to fund competitive grants for local governments to 
implement GHG emissions reduction projects.  AB 1970 specifies that 25% of the funds 
allocated through this program must be used for projects that benefit environmental 
justice communities. 

 

 SB 1122 (Pavley):  SB 1122 creates two funding programs.  One for the Strategic Growth 
Counsel to administer grants to local agencies for implementing sustainable 
communities and other greenhouse gas reduction plans.  The second pot of funds would 
be allocated to MPOs on a per capita basis to be used for competitive grants for projects 
within the region.  The regional grants would be awarded pursuant to guidelines 
adopted by the Strategic Growth Council.   

290



ATTACHMENT 2 
NCTPA Board Agenda Item 9.7 

April 16, 2014 

 
 

 
 

April 1, 2014 

 

 
 

Bills Subject Status 
NCTPA ADOPTED 

POSITION 

AB 935 
(Frazier D)  
San Francisco Bay 
Area Water 
Emergency 
Transportation 
Authority: terms 
of board 
members. 

AB 935 would expand the Water Emergency 
Transportation Authority board and specify that 
the seats represent specified counties 
 
AB 935 would divvy up the appointments to 
WETA as follows: 
 

 Of the Governor’s three appointees one 
shall be a resident of San Francisco. 

 The Senate Rules Committee will have two 
appointees that shall include a resident of 
Contra Costa County and a resident of San 
Mateo County 

 The Speaker of the Assembly will have two 
appointees that shall include a resident of 
Solano County and a resident of Alameda 
County. 

 Each of the County appointees shall be 
selected from a list of three nominees 
provided by the transportation authority 
from each county. 

 If a transportation authority does not 
submit a list of three names within 45 
days of a vacancy then the Governor shall 
appoint a resident from the specified 
county. 

 

SENATE T & H WATCH 

  

291

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=ab_935&sess=1314&house=B
http://asmdc.org/members/a11/


2 
 

Bills Subject Status 
NCTPA 

ADOPTED 
POSITION 

AB 1193 
(Ting D)  
Bikeways. 

AB 1193 was gutted and amended in January to create a new 
class of bike paths, known as a “cycle track” or “protected 
bikeway.”  The bill would create a Class IV bikeway defined to 
provide a right-of-way designated exclusively for bicycle travel 
within a roadway and that are protected from other vehicle 
traffic with devices, including, but not limited to, grade 
separations, flexible posts, inflexible physical barriers, or parked 
cars. 
 

SENATE T & 
H 

SUPPORT 

AB 1720 
(Bloom D)  
Vehicles: bus gross 
weight. 

This bill would extend the sunset date for the bus axle weight 
exemption by one year from January 1, 2015 to January 1, 2016.  
This bill would also likely be used to implement any agreement 
reached this year on the axle weight issue.   
 

ASSEMBLY 
TRANS 

SUPPORT 

AB 2445 
(Chau D)  
Community 
colleges: 
transportation 
fees.contracts. 

AB 2445 was unanimously approved as part of the consent 
calendar by the Assembly Committee on Higher Education.  The 
bill now moves to the Assembly Floor. 
 
This bill make a clarifying changes in existing law to allow a 
community college district to impose a fee approved by the 
students for transportation services on a campus by campus 
basis.  Some believe existing law limits the approval of the fee to 
a district wide vote.     
 

ASSEMBLY 
FLOOR 

SUPPORT 

SB 1 
(Steinberg D)  
Sustainable 
Communities 
Investment 
Authority. 

SB 1 would create a new form of tax increment financing that 
would allow local governments to create a Sustainable 
Communities Investment Authority to finance specified activities 
within a sustainable communities investment area. 
 
The Governor’s Office asked the authors’ of the various tax 
increment measures to hold-off sending these bills to his desk 
last year.  With the Governor’s IFD proposal released as part of 
the budget negotiations over the structure of a new tax 
increment financing proposal will heat-up during the budget 
process. 
 

Senate Floor 
- Inactive 
File 

WATCH 
 

  

292

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201193');
http://asmdc.org/members/a19/
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=ab_1720&sess=1314&house=B
http://asmdc.org/members/a50/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202445');
http://asmdc.org/members/a49/
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_1&sess=1314&house=B
http://sd06.senate.ca.gov/


3 
 

Bills Subject Status 
NCTPA 

ADOPTED 
POSITION 

SB 792 
(DeSaulnier D)  
Regional entities: 
Bay Area. 

SB 792 sat on the Senate Appropriations Committee’s Suspense 
File for most of 2013; however, with the changing political 
landscape SB 792 was moved out of Appropriations and approved 
by the Senate. 

 

This bill directs the Joint Policy Committee to prepare a regional 
organization plan with the goal of reducing overhead costs and 
integration of regional planning requirements.  The plan shall be 
submitted to the JPC by December 31, 2014, and the JPC shall 
hold hearings in each county before adopting the plan by June 30, 
2015. 

 

The bill also directs the JPC to develop community outreach 
policies, maintain a website, and beginning on January 1, 2014, 
the JPC shall review the plans and policies for implementing the 
sustainable communities strategy. 
 

Assembly 
Desk 

WATCH 

SB 1433 
(Hill D)  
Local Agency Public 
Construction Act: 
transit design-build  

This bill would repeal the sunset date on existing law that allows 
transit operators to utilize the design-build procurement process.  
The bill also removes the project cost thresholds that must be 
meet in order to use design-build, thus allowing design-build 
procurement to be used on any size project. 

SENATE  T & 
H 

SUPPORT 

  

293

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_792&sess=1314&house=B
http://sd07.senate.ca.gov/
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sb_1433&sess=1314&house=B
http://sd13.senate.ca.gov/


4 
 

Bills Subject Status 
NCTPA ADOPTED 

POSITION 

SCA 4 
(Liu D)  
Local government 
transportation 
projects: special taxes: 
voter approval. 

SCA 4 is in the Senate Committee on Appropriations.  
Constitutional amendments are exempt for the House of 
Origin deadline. 

SCA 4 has been amended to require a percentage of the sales 
tax revenue be used for projects that reduce GHG emissions 
from transportation sources, and require a portion of the 
funds used on state highway project be given to the state for 
future maintenance needs.   

This measure would amend the Constitution to lower the 
voter approval threshold to 55% for the imposition, extension, 
or renewal of a local tax for transportation projects.  SCA 4 
was amended to require a local measure to include the 
following in order to be approved with a 55% vote: 

 

 Includes a specific list of projects and programs that 
will be funded and limits the use of the funds for those 
purposes, 

 Includes a requirement for annual audits, and  

 Requires the creation of a citizens’ oversight 

committee. 

SENATE 
APPRS  

SUPPORT & SEEK 
AMENDMENTS 

SCA 8  
(Corbett D)  
Local government 
transportation 
projects: special taxes: 
voter approval. 

SCA 8 is in the Senate Committee on Appropriations.  
Constitutional amendments are exempt from the House of 
Origin deadline. 
 
SCA 8 is another measure that would amend the Constitution 
to lower the voter approval threshold to 55% for the 
imposition, extension, or renewal of a local tax for 
transportation projects. SCA 8 was also amended to require a 
local measure to include the following in order to be 
approved with a 55% vote:     
 

 Includes a specific list of projects and programs that 
will be funded and limits the use of the funds for those 
purposes, 

 Includes a requirement for annual audits, and  

 Requires the creation of a citizens’ oversight 
committee. 

SENATE 
APPRS  

SUPPORT 

  

294

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sca_4&sess=1314&house=B


5 
 

Bills Subject Status 
NCTPA 

ADOPTED 
POSITION 

SCA 11 
(Hancock D)  
Local government: 
special taxes: voter 
approval. 

SCA 11 is in the Senate Committee on Appropriations.  SCA 11 is an 
“umbrella measure” on lowering the voter threshold from 2/3 to 
55% for local sales taxes and parcel taxes.  This measure would 
lower the vote threshold for any purpose.   
 
SCA 11 was also amended to require the following elements in the 
local measure in order to be approved by 55%: 
 

 Includes a specific list of projects and programs that will be 
funded and limits the use of the funds for those purposes, 

 Includes a requirement for annual audits, and  

 Requires the creation of a citizens’ oversight committee. 

SENATE 
APPRS  

SUPPORT 

 

295

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/postquery?bill_number=sca_11&sess=1314&house=B
http://sd09.senate.ca.gov/

	NCTPA Agenda April 16 2014 kes-km
	NCTPA Item 8.1 - Draft NCTPA Minutes March 19 2014 kes-km
	NCTPA Item 8.2 - First Amendment to NCTPA Agreement No 12-08 kes jk km
	NCTPA Item 8.2 - First Amendment to NCTPA Agreement No 12-08 - Attch 1 Amend 1 Agreement No 12-09 Kate Miller
	NCTPA Item 8.3 - TDA 3 FY 2013-14 & 2014-15 Projects km jgrev
	NCTPA Item 8.3 - TDA 3 FY 2013-14 & 2014-15 Projects Attch 1 Resolution 14-08 km jg
	NCTPA Item 8.3 - TDA 3 FY 2013-14 & 2014-15 Projects Attch 2 ATAC TDA-3 Recommendation List-km
	Sheet1

	NCTPA Item 8.4 - ATAC Appointment dm-km changes
	NCTPA Item 8.5 - Veolia Invoice Payment jp-km
	NCTPA Item 8.5 - Veolia Invoice Payment Attch 1 Invoice 12272012-2
	NCTPA Item 9.1 - Grand Jury Report kes km jk
	NCTPA Item 9.1 - Grand Jury Report Attch 1 Grand Jury Report
	NCTPA Item 9.1 - Grand Jury Report Attch 2 Response Letter
	NCTPA Item 9.1 - Grand Jury Report Attch 3  Inquiry
	NCTPA Item 9.2 - NCTPA Draft Budget FY 2014-15 1st Reading-km
	NCTPA Item 9.2 - NCTPA Draft Budget FY 2014-15 1st Reading Attch 1 CONSOLIDATED for FINAL ADOPTION FY14-15 First Reading
	NCTPA Item 9.3 - NCTPA Policies Practices and Procedures Chapter 7 Financial Matters-km
	NCTPA Item 9.3 - NCTPA Policies Practices and Procedures Chapter 7 Finance Matters Attch 1 Policies Practices and Procedures 2013 Update KM
	NCTPA Item 9.4 - Financing-LOC-km jg
	NCTPA Item 9.4 - Financing LOC Attch 1 Reso 14-09-km jg changes to jg to kes
	NCTPA Item 9.4 - Financing LOC Attch 2 Mechanic Term Sheet
	NCTPA Item 9.4 - Financing LOC Attch 3 Marin Term Sheet
	NCTPA Item 9.5 - NCTPA Staffing Plan km jg kes final
	NCTPA Item 9.5 - NCTPA Staffing Plan Attch 1 Resolution 14-10-km no changes jg kes
	NCTPA Item 9.6 - PDA IGS Update-km changes
	NCTPA Item 9.6 - PDA IGS Update Attch 1 May 2014 Update_Final
	NCTPA Item 9.6 - PDA IGS Update Attch 2 Appendix A-6 kes
	Cycle2-OBAG_RES-4035_approved5-17-12 30
	Cycle2-OBAG_RES-4035_approved5-17-12 31

	NCTPA Item 9.7 - Legislative Update
	NCTPA Item 9.7 - Legislative Update Attch 1 Matrix
	NCTPA Item 9.7 - Legislative Update Attch 2 Matrix



